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Glossary of Certain Terms and Abbreviations

Centrus Energy Corp. and Related Entities

Board Centrus Energy Corp.’s Board of Directors

Centrus Centrus Energy Corp.

Enrichment Board Separate Board of Directors at Enrichment Corp., a subsidiary of Centrus Energy Corp.

Enrichment Corp. United States Enrichment Corporation

Oak Ridge Technology and Manufacturing Center in Oak Ridge, Tennessee

Paducah GDP Paducah Gaseous Diffusion Plant, an enrichment plant in Paducah, Kentucky formerly operated by Enrichment
Corp.

Piketon Production facility in Piketon, Ohio

Portsmouth GDP Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant, an enrichment plant near Portsmouth, Ohio, formerly operated by

Enrichment Corp.

USEC-Government Enrichment Corp. prior to 1993, when it was a wholly-owned government corporation

Other Terms and Abbreviations

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement June 17, 2002 agreement between Centrus (then known as USEC Inc.) and the DOE
2014 Plan The Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan

2019 Plan The Company’s 2019 Executive Incentive Plan

5B Cylinders Storage cylinders for HALEU UFs produced by the cascade
8.25% Notes 8.25% Notes, maturing February 2027

Annual Meeting The Company’s annual meeting of shareholders

ARDP DOE's Advanced Reactor Demonstration Program

ATM At the Market

Atomic Energy Act Atomic Energy Act of 1954

Centrifuge IP Centrifuge Technology Intellectual Property

Class A Common Stock Class A common stock, $0.10 par value per share

Class B Common Stock Class B common stock, $0.10 par value per share

CNEIC China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation

COBC Centrus’ Code of Business Conduct

Code Internal Revenue Code of 1986

Common Stock Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Consent Solicitation Consent solicitation related to the results of the 2021 tender offer
COVID-19 2019 Novel Coronavirus

D&D Decontamination & Decommissioning

DOC U.S. Department of Commerce

DOE U.S. Department of Energy

EU European Union

Exchange Act Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Exchange Agreement Exchange Agreement entered into by the Company and Kulayba LLC, dated February 2, 2021
FAR U.S. Government’s Federal Acquisition Regulations

HALEU High Assay Low-Enriched Uranium



HALEU Demonstration Contract
HALEU Operation Contract

IEA
IT
ITC
LEU

MB Group
Natural Uranium
NAV

NOL

NRC

NRV

NUBIL

Orano

Orano Supply Agreement
Order Book
Power MOU

Price-Anderson Act

RFP

Rosatom

RSA

SARs

SEC

SWuU

Technical Solutions

TENEX
TENEX Supply Contract
TRISO

U.S. GAAP
U235

U238
U30g
UFe
URENCO

usw

Voting Agreement Amendment

Voting Rights Agreement

Three-year, $115 million cost-share contract with DOE signed in 2019 by Centrus’ subsidiary, ACO
HALEU production contract with DOE signed in 2022

International Energy Agency

Information Technology

U.S. International Trade Commission

Low-Enriched Uranium; term is also used to refer to the Centrus Energy Corp. business segment which supplies
commercial customers with various components of nuclear fuel

Mr. Morris Bawabeh, Kulayba LLC and M&D Bawabeh Foundation, Inc.
Raw material needed to produce LEU and HALEU

Net asset value

Net Operating Loss

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Net realizable value

Net unrealized built-in loss

Orano Cycle

Long-term supply of SWU contained in LEU, signed by United States Enrichment Corporation with Orano in 2018
LEU Segment order book of sales under contract

Memorandum of understanding between the DOE and USEC-Government

Price-Anderson Nuclear Industries Indemnity Act (Section 170 of the U.S. Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as
amended)

Request for Proposal

Russian State Atomic Energy Corporation

1992 Russian Suspension Agreement, as amended
Stock appreciation rights

U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission
Separative work unit

The Centrus Energy Corp. business segment which offers technical, manufacturing, engineering, and operations
services to public and private sector customers

Russian government-owned entity TENEX, Joint-Stock Company

Agreement with TENEX through 2028

Tri-Structural Isotopic fuel manufacturing process

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

Uranium-235 isotope

Uranium-238 isotope

Uranium oxide, aka “yellowcake”

Uranium hexafluoride

Urenco, Limited, a consortium owned or controlled by the British and Dutch governments and two German
utilities

United Steelworkers Local 689-5 union

The Company’s amendment to its existing Voting and Nomination Agreement with the MB Group

The Company’s agreement with the MB Group entered into in December 2022



Warrant Warrant to purchase common stock of Centrus Energy Corp., held by Kulayba LLC and dated February 2, 2021
New Warrant Amended Warrant to extend the terms of the Warrant held by Kulayba LLC
WNA World Nuclear Association



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K of Centrus (the “Company,” “we” or “us”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In this context, forward-looking statements mean
statements related to future events, which may impact our expected future business and financial performance, and often contain words such as “expects”,
“anticipates”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “will", “should”, “could”, “would” or “may” and other words of similar meaning. These forward-looking statements are
based on information available to us as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and represent management’s current views and assumptions with
respect to future events and operational, economic and financial performance. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, events or
results and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may be beyond our control.

The factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements made by us include those factors discussed herein,
including those factors discussed in (a) Part |, Item 1A. Risk Factors, (b) Part Il, ltem 7.Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, (c) Part Il, Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary Data: Note 17, Commitments and Contingencies, and (d) other factors
discussed in the Company’s filings with the SEC. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which apply only as
of the date of this Report. The Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly release any revision to its forward-looking statements to reflect events or
circumstances that may arise after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K unless required by law.

For Centrus, particular risks and uncertainties (hereinafter “risks”) that could cause our actual future results to differ materially from those expressed in
our forward-looking statements include but are not limited to the following and which are, and may be, exacerbated by any worsening of the global business and
economic environment include but are not limited to the following:

Risks related to the war in Ukraine primarily include:

« risks related to the war in Ukraine and geopolitical conflicts and the imposition of sanctions or other measures by (i) the U.S. or foreign governments
and institutions, (ii) organizations (including the United Nations or other international organizations), or (iii) entities (including private entities or persons),
that could directly or indirectly impact our ability to obtain, deliver, transport, or sell LEU or the SWU and natural uranium hexafluoride components of
LEU delivered to us under the TENEX Supply Contract or make related payments or deliveries of natural uranium hexafluoride to TENEX;

* risks related to proposed legislation to ban imports of Russian LEU into the United States or similar bills become law and the potential inability to secure
a waiver or other exception from the ban in a timely manner or at all in order to allow us to continue importing Russian LEU under the TENEX Supply
Contract;

* risks related to the refusal or inability of TENEX to deliver LEU to us if, among other reasons, (i) U.S. or foreign government sanctions are imposed on
LEU from Russia or on TENEX, (ii) for any reason, TENEX is unable or unwilling to deliver LEU, receive payments, receive the return of natural uranium
hexafluoride, or conduct other activities related to the TENEX Supply Contract; or (iii) TENEX elects, or is directed (including by its owner or the
Russian government), to limit or stop transactions with us or with the United States or other countries; and

« risks related to disputes with third parties, including contractual counterparties, that could result if we are unable to receive timely deliveries of LEU
under the TENEX Supply Contract.



Risks related to economic and industry factors primarily include:

risks related to whether or when government funding or demand for HALEU for government or commercial uses will materialize and at what level;
risks regarding funding for continuation and deployment of the American Centrifuge technology;

risks related to (i) our ability to perform and absorb costs under the HALEU Operation Contract, (ii) our ability to obtain new contracts and funding to be
able to continue operations and (iii) our ability to obtain and/or perform under other agreements;

risks that (i) we may not obtain the full benefit of the HALEU Operation Contract and may not be able or allowed to operate the HALEU enrichment
facility to produce HALEU after the completion of the HALEU Operation Contract or (ii) the HALEU enrichment facility may not be available to us as a
future source of supply;

risks related to our dependence on others, such as TENEX, under the TENEX Supply Contract, Orano under the Orano Supply Agreement and other
suppliers (including, but not limited to, transporters) who provide us the goods and services we need to conduct our business;

risks related to natural and other disasters, including the continued impact of the March 2011 earthquake and tsunami in Japan, on the nuclear industry
and on our business, results of operations and prospects;

risks related to financial difficulties experienced by customers or suppliers, including possible bankruptcies, insolvencies, or any other situation, event or
occurrence that affect the ability of others to pay for our products or services in a timely manner or at all;

risks related to pandemics, endemics, and other health crises;
risks related to the impact and potential extended duration of a supply/demand imbalance in the market for LEU;

risks related to our ability to sell or deliver the LEU we procure pursuant to our purchase obligations under our supply agreements and the impacts of
sanctions or limitations on imports of such LEU, including those imposed under the RSA, international trade legislation and other international trade
restrictions;

risks related to existing or new trade barriers and to contract terms that limit our ability to procure LEU for, or deliver LEU to customers;
risks related to pricing trends and demand in the uranium and enrichment markets and their impact on our profitability;
risks related to the movement and timing of customer orders;

risks related to the fact that we face significant competition from major LEU producers who may be less cost sensitive or are wholly or partially
government-owned;

risks that our ability to compete in foreign markets may be limited for various reasons;
risks related to the fact that our revenue is largely dependent on our largest customers; and

risks related to our sales Order Book, including uncertainty concerning customer actions under current contracts and in future contracting due to market
conditions, global events or other factors including our lack of current production capability.

Risks related to operational factors primarily include:

risks related to uncertainty regarding our ability to commercially deploy competitive enrichment technology;
risks related to the potential for demobilization or termination of the HALEU Operation Contract;
risks that we will not be able to timely complete the work that we are obligated to perform;



risks related to the government’s inability to satisfy its obligations, including supplying government furnished equipment necessary for us to produce
and deliver HALEU under the HALEU Operation Contract and processing security clearance applications due to a government shutdown or other
reasons;

risks related to our ability to obtain the government’s approval to extend the term of, or the scope of permitted activities under, our lease in Piketon,
Ohio;
risk related to cybersecurity incidents that may impact our business operations;

risks related to our ability to perform fixed-price and cost-share contracts such as the HALEU Operation Contract, including the risk that costs that we
must bear could be higher than expected and the risk related to complying with stringent government contractual requirements; and,

risks related to a government shutdown that could result in program cancellations, disruptions and/or stop work orders and could limit the U.S.
government’s ability to make timely payments, and our ability to perform our U.S. government contracts and successfully compete for our work.

Risks related to financial factors primarily include:

risks related to our significant long-term liabilities, including material unfunded defined benefit pension plan obligations and postretirement health and
life benefit obligations;

risks related to our 8.25% Notes maturing in February 2027,

risks of revenue and operating results fluctuating significantly from quarter to quarter, and in some cases, year to year;

risks related to the impact of financial market conditions on our business, liquidity, prospects, pension assets and insurance facilities;
risks related to the Company’s capital concentration;

risks related to the value of our intangible assets related to the sales Order Book and customer relationships;

risks related to the limited trading markets in our securities;

risks related to decisions made by our Class B Common Stock stockholders regarding their investment in the Company, including decisions based
upon factors that are unrelated to the Company’s performance;

risks that a small number of holders of our Class A Common Stock (whose interests may not be aligned with other holders of our Class A Common
Stock), may exert significant influence over the direction of the Company and may be motivated by interests that are not aligned with the Company’s
other Class A stockholders;

risks related to (i) the use of our NOL carryforwards and NUBILs to offset future taxable income and the use of the Rights Agreement (as defined
herein) to prevent an “ownership change” as defined in Section 382 of the IRC and (ii) our ability to generate taxable income to utilize all or a portion of
the NOLs prior to the expiration thereof and NUBILs; and

risks related to failures or security breaches of our information technology systems.

Risks related to general factors primarily include:

risks related to our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

risks related to actions, including reviews or audits, that may be taken by the U.S. government, the Russian government, or other governments that
could affect our ability to perform under our contractual obligations or the ability of our sources of supply to perform under their contractual obligations
to us;

risks related to our ability to perform and receive timely payment under our agreements with the DOE or other government agencies, including risks
related to the ongoing funding by the government and potential audits;



risks related to changes or termination of our agreements with the U.S. government or other counterparties, or the exercise of contract remedies by
such counterparties;

risks related to the competitive environment for our products and services;
risks related to changes in the nuclear energy industry;
risks related to the competitive bidding process associated with obtaining contracts, including government contracts;

risks that we will be unable to obtain new business opportunities or achieve market acceptance of our products and services or that products or
services provided by others will render our products or services obsolete or noncompetitive; and

risks related to potential strategic transactions that could be difficult to implement, that could disrupt our business or that could change our business
profile significantly.

Risks related to legal and compliance factors primarily include:

risks related to the outcome of legal proceedings and other contingencies (including lawsuits and government investigations or audits);
risks related to the impact of government regulation and policies, including by the DOE and the NRC;

risks of accidents during the transportation, handling, or processing of toxic hazardous or radioactive material that may pose a health risk to humans or
animals, cause property or environmental damage, or result in precautionary evacuations, and lead to claims against the Company;

risks associated with claims and litigation arising from past activities at sites we currently operate or past activities at sites that we no longer operate,
including the Paducah, Kentucky, and Portsmouth, Ohio, GDPs; and

other risks discussed in this and our other filings with the SEC.

For a more detailed discussion of these risks and others that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in our forward-looking

statements, please see (a) Part I, ltem 1A, Risk Factors, (b) Part I, tem 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, (c) Part I, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data: Note 17, Commitments and Contingencies, and (d) other factors discussed in our
filings with the SEC. These factors may not constitute all factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in any forward-looking statement.
Accordingly, forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as a predictor of actual results.



PART |
Item 1. Business

Overview

Centrus Energy Corp., a Delaware corporation, is a trusted supplier of nuclear fuel components and services for the nuclear power industry, which provides a
reliable source of carbon-free energy. References to “Centrus”, the “Company”, “our”, or “we” include Centrus Energy Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries as
well as the predecessor to Centrus, unless the context otherwise indicates. We were incorporated in 1998 as part of the privatization of the U.S. government’s
uranium enrichment enterprise.

Centrus operates two business segments: (a) LEU, which supplies various components of nuclear fuel to commercial customers from our global network of
suppliers, and (b) Technical Solutions, which provides advanced engineering, design, and manufacturing services to government and private sector customers
and is deploying uranium enrichment and other capabilities necessary for production of advanced nuclear fuel to power existing and next-generation reactors
around the world.

Our LEU segment provides most of the Company’s revenue and involves the sale of enriched uranium, the fissile component of nuclear fuel, primarily to
utilities that operate commercial nuclear power plants. The majority of these sales are for the enrichment component of LEU, which is measured in SWU.
Centrus also sells natural uranium hexafluoride (the raw material needed to produce LEU) and occasionally sells uranium concentrates, uranium conversion, or
LEU with the natural uranium hexafluoride and SWU components combined into one sale.

LEU is a critical component in the production of nuclear fuel for reactors that produce electricity. We supply LEU and its components to both domestic and
international utilities for use in nuclear reactors worldwide. We provide LEU from multiple sources, including our inventory, medium- and long-term supply
contracts, and spot purchases. As a long-term supplier of LEU to our customers, our objective is to provide value through the reliability and diversity of our
supply sources.

Our global Order Book includes long-term sales contracts with major utilities through 2030. We have secured cost-competitive supplies of SWU under long-
term contracts through the end of this decade designed to allow us to fill our existing customer orders and make new sales. A market-related price reset
provision in the TENEX Supply Contract, which is our largest supply contract, occurred in 2018 and took effect at the beginning of 2019 — when market prices for
SWU were near historic lows — which has significantly lowered our cost of sales and contributed to improved margins since 2019.

Under a contract with the DOE, our Technical Solutions segment is deploying uranium enrichment and other capabilities necessary for production of
advanced nuclear fuel to meet the evolving needs of the global nuclear industry and the U.S. government. We also are leveraging our unique technical
expertise, operational experience, and specialized facilities to expand and diversify our business beyond uranium enrichment, offering new services to existing
and new customers in complementary markets.

Our Technical Solutions segment is dedicated to the restoration of America’s domestic uranium enrichment capability in order for us to play a critical role in
meeting U.S. national security and energy security requirements and advancing America’s nonproliferation, energy, and climate objectives. Our Technical
Solutions segment also is focused on repairing broken and vulnerable supply chains, providing clean energy jobs, and supporting the communities in which we
operate. Our goal is to deliver major components of the next-generation nuclear fuels that will power the future of nuclear energy as it provides reliable carbon-
free power around the world.
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The United States has not had domestic uranium enrichment capability suitable to meet U.S. national security requirements since the Paducah GDP shut
down in 2013. DOE continues to draw down its finite stockpile of Cold War-era enriched uranium but is expected to need a new source of U.S.-origin enrichment
in the future. Longstanding U.S. policy and binding nonproliferation agreements prohibit the use of foreign-origin enrichment technology for U.S. national security
missions. Our AC100M centrifuge currently is the only deployment-ready U.S. uranium enrichment technology that can meet these national security
requirements.

Centrus is pioneering U.S. production of HALEU, enabling the deployment of a new generation of HALEU-fueled reactors to meet the world’s growing need
for carbon-free power. On October 11, 2023, the Company announced that it began enrichment operations at its HALEU production facility in Piketon, Ohio
under its contract with DOE. HALEU is a high-performance nuclear fuel component which will be required by a number of advanced reactor and fuel designs that
are now under development for commercial and government uses. While existing reactors typically operate on LEU with the U235 concentration below 5%,
HALEU is further enriched so that the U?3> concentration is between 5% and 20%. The higher U%3® concentration offers a number of potential advantages, which
may include better fuel utilization, improved performance, fewer refueling outages, simpler reactor designs, reduced waste volumes, and greater nonproliferation
resistance.

The lack of HALEU supply is widely viewed as a major obstacle to the successful commercialization of these new reactors. For example, in surveys of
advanced reactor developers conducted by the U.S. Nuclear Industry Council in 2020 and 2021, respondents indicated that the number one issue that “keeps
you up at night” was access to HALEU. As the only company with a license from the NRC actively enriching up to 20% U235 assay HALEU and that is operating
a small scaled HALEU production facility, Centrus is uniquely positioned to fill a critical gap in the supply chain and facilitate the deployment of these promising
next-generation reactors.

The war in Ukraine has contributed to a significant increase in market prices for enrichment and (along with proposed legislation to limit imports of LEU from
Russia) has prompted calls for public and private investment in new, domestic uranium enrichment capacity not only for HALEU production but also for LEU
production to support the existing fleet of reactors. As a result, Centrus is exploring the opportunity to deploy LEU enrichment alongside HALEU enrichment to
meet a range of commercial and U.S. government requirements, which could bring operational synergies while increasing sales opportunities. Our ability to
deploy LEU and/or HALEU enrichment, and the timing, sequencing, and scale of those capabilities, is subject to the availability of funding and offtake
commitments.

Under the HALEU Demonstration Contract signed in 2019, Centrus constructed and installed a cascade of 16 AC100M centrifuges in Piketon, Ohio to
demonstrate HALEU production. The HALEU Demonstration Contract was originally set to expire on June 1, 2022. However, the DOE extended the HALEU
Demonstration Contract to November 30, 2022. The Company is currently performing closeout activities on the HALEU Demonstration Contract. Due to
challenges the DOE experienced in providing withdrawal cylinders as government furnished equipment, the DOE elected to change the scope of the HALEU
Demonstration Contract and moved the operational portion of the demonstration to a new, competitively awarded contract that provides for operations beyond
the term of the HALEU Demonstration Contract. DOE incrementally funded the HALEU Demonstration Contract with total funding to date of $173.0 million.

On November 10, 2022, after a competitive solicitation, the DOE awarded the HALEU Operation Contract to the Company’s subsidiary. Work began on
December 1, 2022. The base contract value is approximately $150 million in two phases through 2024. Phase 1, which was completed in November 2023,
included an approximately $30 million cost share contribution from Centrus matched by approximately $30 million from the DOE to complete construction of the
cascade support systems, begin operations and produce the initial 20 kilograms of HALEU UF.
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Phase 2 of the contract includes continued operations and maintenance and production for a full year at an annual production rate of 900 kilograms of HALEU
UFs. The DOE owns the HALEU produced from the demonstration cascade. In Phase 2, Centrus is being compensated on a cost-plus-incentive-fee basis, with
an expected Phase 2 contract value of approximately $90 million, subject to Congressional appropriations. Concurrently, pursuant to an amendment to our lease
for the Piketon facility, the DOE assumed all D&D liabilities arising out of the HALEU Operation Contract.

Under the HALEU Operation Contract, DOE is obligated to provide the 5B Cylinders necessary to collect the output of the cascade, but supply chain
challenges have created difficulties for DOE in securing enough 5B Cylinders for the entire production year. To support the DOE in mitigating the risk of further
delays in delivery of 5B Cylinders, the Company received technical direction and a contract modification from the DOE to procure compliant 5B Cylinders and
components while the contractual obligation to furnish compliant 5B Cylinders under the HALEU Operation Contract continues to rest with the DOE. The
Company is also performing additional work on infrastructure and facility repairs under separate DOE technical direction and subsequent contract modification.
For further details refer to Business - Technical Solutions - Government Contracting.

The DOE is contemplating awarding additional contracts to ensure availability of HALEU for the ARDP and for the advanced reactor market in general, and
received a $700 million congressional appropriation from the Inflation Reduction Act as a first step in establishing a domestic supply chain for HALEU. On
November 28, 2023, the DOE issued an RFP focusing on deconversion of HALEU and on January 9, 2024, issued an RFP focusing on the production of
HALEU. The Company expects to submit bids for both RFPs, with the goal of expanding HALEU production capability at the Piketon facility and building a
deconversion facility, subject to, among other things, availability of funding and/or offtake commitments.

For further details, refer to Part Il, ltem 7,Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Conditions and
Outlook. For a discussion of the potential risks and uncertainties facing our business, see Part |, Item 1A,Risk Factors.

Low Enriched Uranium

LEU consists of two components: SWU and natural uranium hexafluoride. Revenue from our LEU segment is derived primarily from:

« sales of the SWU component of LEU,
« sales of natural uranium hexafluoride, uranium concentrates, or uranium conversion, and
« sales of enriched uranium product that include both the natural uranium hexafluoride and SWU components of LEU.

Our LEU segment accounted for approximately 84% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2023. The majority of our customers are domestic
and international utilities that operate nuclear power plants. Our agreements with electric utilities are primarily medium-term and long-term, fixed-commitment
contracts. Under these contracts, customers are obligated to purchase a specified quantity of the SWU component of LEU from us. Contracts where we sell both
the SWU and natural uranium hexafluoride components of LEU to utilities or where we sell natural uranium hexafluoride to utilities and other nuclear fuel related
companies are generally shorter-term, fixed-commitment contracts.
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Uranium and Enrichment

Uranium is a naturally occurring element and is mined from deposits located in Kazakhstan, Canada, Australia, and several other countries, including the
United States. According to the WNA, there are adequate measured resources of natural uranium to fuel nuclear power at current usage rates for about
90 years. In its natural state, uranium is principally comprised of two isotopes: U23> and U238, The concentration of U?3 in natural uranium is only 0.711% by
weight. Uranium enrichment is the process by which the concentration of U?% is increased. Most commercial nuclear power reactors require LEU fuel with a U3
concentration greater than natural uranium of up to 5% by weight. Future reactor designs currently under development will likely require higher U%®
concentration levels of up to 20%.

SWU is a standard unit of measurement that represents the effort required to separate natural uranium between enriched uranium, having a higher
percentage of U%> and depleted uranium, having a lower percentage of U?3. The SWU contained in LEU is calculated using an industry standard formula
based on the physics of enrichment. The amount of enrichment deemed to be contained in LEU under this formula is commonly referred to as its SWU
component and the quantity of natural uranium hexafluoride deemed to be contained in LEU under this formula is referred to as its uranium or “feed” component.

While in some cases customers purchase both the SWU and uranium components of LEU from us, utility customers typically provide the natural uranium
hexafluoride to us as part of their enrichment contracts and in exchange we deliver LEU to these customers and charge for the SWU component. Title to natural
uranium hexafluoride provided by customers generally remains with the customer until Centrus delivers the LEU, at which time title to the LEU is transferred to
the customer, and Centrus takes title to the natural uranium hexafluoride.

The following outlines the steps for converting natural uranium into LEU fuel, commonly known as the nuclear fuel cycle:
Mining and Milling. Natural, or unenriched, uranium is removed from the earth in the form of ore and then crushed and concentrated.
Conversion. U30g is combined with fluorine gas to produce UFs, a solid at room temperature and a gas when heated. UF; is shipped to an enrichment plant.

Enrichment. UFs is enriched in a process that increases the concentration of the L3 isotope in the UFs from its natural state of 0.711% up to 5%, or LEU,
which is usable as a fuel for current light water commercial nuclear power reactors. Future commercial reactor designs may use uranium enriched up to 20%
U235, or HALEU.

Fuel Fabrication. LEU is then converted to uranium oxide and formed into small ceramic pellets by fabricators. The pellets are loaded into metal tubes that
form fuel assemblies, which are shipped to nuclear power plants. As the advanced reactor market develops, HALEU may be converted to uranium oxide,
metal, chloride or fluoride salts, or other forms and loaded into a variety of fuel assembly types optimized for the specific reactor design.

Nuclear Power Plant. The fuel assemblies are loaded into nuclear reactors to create energy from a controlled chain reaction. Nuclear power plants generate
approximately 18% of U.S. electricity and 10% of the world’s electricity.

Used Fuel Storage. After the nuclear fuel has been in a reactor for several years its efficiency is reduced and the assembly is removed from the reactor’s core.
The used fuel is warm and radioactive and is kept in a deep pool of water for several years. Many utilities have elected to then move the used fuel into steel or
concrete and steel casks for interim storage.

13



LEU Segment Order Book

Our Order Book extends to 2030. As of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, our Order Book was approximately $1.0 billion. The Order Book is the
estimated aggregate dollar amount of revenue for future SWU and uranium deliveries, and includes approximately $0.3 billion of deferred revenue and advances
from customers as of December 31, 2023, whereby customers have made advance payments to be applied against future deliveries. No orders in our Order
Book are considered at risk related to customer operations. This Order Book is for the LEU segment only; it does not include the HALEU Operation Contract or
other work in our Technical Solutions segment.

Most of our customer contracts provide for fixed purchases of SWU during a given year. Our Order Book estimate is based partially on customers’ estimates
of the timing and size of their fuel requirements and other assumptions that are subject to change. For example, depending on the terms of specific contracts,
the customer may be able to increase or decrease the quantity delivered within an agreed range. Our Order Book estimate is also based on our estimates of
selling prices, which may be subject to change. For example, depending on the terms of specific contracts, prices may be adjusted based on escalation using a
general inflation index, published SWU price indicators prevailing at the time of delivery, and other factors, all of which are variable. We use external composite
forecasts of future market prices and inflation rates in our pricing estimates. Refer to Part |, ltem 1A, Risk Factors, for a discussion of risks related to our Order
Book.

Suppliers

We have a diverse base of supply that includes:

» existing inventory of LEU (Refer to Part Il, Item 8,Financial Statements and Supplemental Data: Note 4, Inventories, in the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report);

« long-term contracts with enrichment producers;
« purchases and loans from secondary sources, including fabricators and utility operators of nuclear power plants that have excess inventory; and
» spot purchases of SWU, uranium, and LEU.

We aim to continue to further diversify this base of supply and take advantage of opportunities to obtain additional short and long-term supplies of LEU.
Currently, our largest suppliers of SWU is TENEX followed by the French government-owned company, Orano.

Under the TENEX Supply Contract, we purchase SWU contained in LEU, and we deliver natural uranium hexafluoride to TENEX for the LEU’s uranium
component. The TENEX Supply Contract extends through 2028. We typically pay for the SWU contained in the LEU and supply natural uranium to TENEX for
the natural uranium component. SWU pricing is determined by a formula using a combination of market-related price points and other factors. The LEU that we
obtain from TENEX under the TENEX Supply Contract currently is subject to quotas and other restrictions under the RSA between the United States and the
Russian Federation which governs exports of Russian uranium products to the United States. Currently, these quotas allow us to supply Russian LEU to our
U.S. customers through 2028. The terms of the RSA, as extended, were adopted into law by the U.S. Congress in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021.
Refer to Item 1A, Risk Factors - Operational Risksfor further discussion.

Centrus will need to make additional sales to place all the Russian LEU required to meet our SWU purchase obligations to TENEX. Although the RSA quotas

cover most of the LEU that we must order to fulfill our purchase obligations under the TENEX Supply Contract, we expect that a small portion of the Russian
LEU that we order during the term of the TENEX Supply Contract will need to be delivered to customers that will use it in non-U.S. reactors.
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The war in Ukraine has escalated tensions between Russia and the international community. As a result, the United States and other countries have
imposed, and may continue imposing, additional sanctions and export controls against certain Russian products, services, organizations and/or individuals. In
December 2023, for example, the U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 1042, the “Prohibiting Russian Uranium Imports Act”, that, if enacted into law,
would ban imports of LEU from Russia beginning ninety (90) days after the date of enactment. The Secretary of Energy could waive this ban for imports prior to
January 1, 2028 where there is no alternative viable source of LEU to sustain the continued operation of a nuclear reactor or a U.S. nuclear energy company or
where the imports are in the national interest. The prospects for H.R. 1042, which still needs Senate approval and Presidential signature, to become law remain
uncertain. Similar legislation was adopted by the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources in July 2023 and the White House endorsed the idea of a
long-term ban on imports of enriched uranium in an October 2023 fact sheet on funding priorities. To date, however, other than the quotas and provisions of the
RSA and the law implementing the RSA, there are no U.S. sanctions on imports of LEU into the United States.

Sanctions imposed by other countries to date also do not preclude the import of Russian uranium products into the United States. However, it is possible that
additional restrictions could be added that would affect our ability to purchase and re-sell Russian uranium enrichment, or implement the TENEX Supply
Contract, which could have a negative material impact on our business. Further, sanctions by the United States, Russia or other countries may impact our ability
and cost to transport, export, import, take delivery, or make payments related to the LEU we purchase. For example, due to restrictions imposed by Canada on
the ability of Canadian persons and entities to provide ocean transportation services to Russia, a permit is required for our shipper, a Canadian company, to
transport the LEU that we procure under the TENEX Supply Contract to the United States. A Canadian permit issued to our shipper was recently extended to
early July 2024, but for so long as the Canadian sanctions remain in place, the shipper will require further extensions of the permit for us to continue to use the
shipper beyond July 2024.

Any proposal for a U.S. ban on LEU imports represents a significant risk to our business because the TENEX Supply Contract is the major source of supply
that the Company relies upon today to meet its delivery obligations and to earn the revenues needed to fund our advanced technology work. Through 2027, well
over one-half of the LEU that we expect to deliver to customers is anticipated to come from material supplied to us under the TENEX Supply Contract. While we
have other sources, they are not sufficient to replace the TENEX supply. Refer to Item 1A, Risk Factors- Economic and Industry Risks - Dependence on our
largest customers or suppliers could adversely affect us.

In addition to limitations targeted specifically at imports of LEU, the expanding sanctions imposed by the United States and foreign governments on the
mechanisms used to make payments to Russia and to obtain services, including transportation have increased the risk that implementation of the TENEX
Supply Contract may be disrupted in the future.

Given all of the foregoing, we continue to monitor the situation closely and assess the potential impact of any new sanctions and how the impact on the
Company might be mitigated. Refer to Part |, Item 1A, Risk Factors - Operational Risks and - War in Ukraine Risks, for further discussion.

We also have an agreement with Orano for the long-term supply of SWU contained in LEU, with deliveries that commenced in 2023. Under the Orano Supply
Agreement, we purchase SWU contained in LEU received from Orano, and then deliver natural uranium to Orano for the natural uranium feed component of
LEU. We recently exercised our option to extend the six-year purchase period for an additional two years, electing to take the additional supply in 2029 and
2030. The Orano Supply Agreement provides flexibility to adjust purchase volumes, subject to annual minimums and maximums, in fixed amounts that vary year
by year. The pricing for the purchased SWU is determined by a formula that uses a combination of market-related price points and other factors, and is subject
to certain floors and ceilings. Prices are payable in a combination of U.S. dollars and euros.
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We procure LEU from other sources under short-term and long-term contracts and have inventories available that diversify our supply portfolio and provide
flexibility to help us meet the needs of our customers. We also have agreements to borrow SWU that we can use to optimize our purchases and deliveries over
time.

Market prices for SWU fell substantially in the aftermath of the nuclear incident at Fukushima, Japan in 2011, bottoming out in 2018. Since 2018, SWU prices
have steadily increased and, following the Russian invasion of Ukraine, have increased to levels consistent with those prior to the 2011 Fukushima incident.

Centrus’ purchase prices under the TENEX Supply Contract were adjusted to reflect lower market prices based on a one-time market related price reset. The
price reset occurred in 2018, reducing the cost for our purchases from 2019 through 2028. Similarly, Centrus’ SWU purchases under our long-term contract with
Orano reflect the lower market prices that prevailed in 2018, when Centrus signed the long-term contract with Orano.

Technical Solutions

Our Technical Solutions segment reflects our technical, manufacturing, engineering, and operations services offered to public and private sector customers,
including the American Centrifuge engineering, procurement, construction, manufacturing, and operations services being performed under the HALEU Operation
Contract. Subject to the availability of sufficient funding and offtake commitments, our goal is to expand our uranium enrichment capacity to meet the full range of
U.S. government and commercial requirements for enriched uranium. With our government and private sector customers, we seek to leverage our domestic
enrichment experience, as well as our engineering know-how and precision manufacturing facility to assist customers with a range of engineering, design and
advanced manufacturing projects, including the production of fuel for next-generation nuclear reactors and the development of related facilities. We continue to
invest in advanced technology because of the potential for future growth into new areas of business for the Company, while also preserving our unique
workforce at our Technology and Manufacturing Center in Oak Ridge, Tennessee, and our production facility near Piketon, Ohio. Refer to Part Il, Iltem 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Government Contracting

On October 31, 2019, we signed the cost-share HALEU Demonstration Contract with the DOE to deploy a cascade of centrifuges to demonstrate production
of HALEU for advanced reactors. The three-year program commenced on May 31, 2019, when the Company and the DOE signed an interim HALEU letter
agreement that allowed work to begin while the full contract was being finalized. We have significantly invested in advanced technology because of the potential
for future growth into new areas of business for the Company, while also preserving our unique workforce at our technology and manufacturing center in Oak
Ridge, Tennessee, and our production facility near Piketon, Ohio. The Company entered into this cost-share contract with the DOE as a critical first step on the
road back to the commercial production of enriched uranium, which the Company had terminated in 2013 with the closure of the Paducah GDP. Under the 2019
HALEU Demonstration Contract, the Company constructed and installed 16 centrifuges for eventual site operations and HALEU production. Additionally, the
Company designed, procured, and installed most of the necessary support systems. Centrus currently is the only company with an NRC license to enrich
uranium up to the 20% U-235 concentration that is contained in HALEU and is the only company known to us to produce HALEU outside of Russia.
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Under the HALEU Demonstration Contract, the DOE agreed to reimburse the Company for 80% of its costs incurred in performing the contract. The DOE
modified the contract several times to increase the total contract funding to $173.0 million. The HALEU Demonstration Contract's period of performance ended
in November 2022. Costs under the HALEU Demonstration Contract included program costs, including direct labor and materials and associated indirect costs
that are classified as Cost of Sales, and an allocation of corporate costs supporting the program that are classified as Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses. Services provided under the contract included constructing and installing centrifuge machines and related infrastructure, and training and qualifying
the workforce for operation of the facility. When estimates of total costs for such an integrated, construction-type contract exceed estimates of total revenue to
be earned, a provision for the remaining loss on the contract is recorded to Cost of Sales in the period the loss is determined. Our corporate costs supporting the
program are recognized as expense, as incurred over the duration of the contract term. The previously accrued loss on the HALEU Demonstration Contract was
realized over the contract term.

During the HALEU Demonstration Contract, the DOE experienced a supply chain delay in obtaining HALEU 5B Cylinders. Since it was not possible to begin
HALEU production without the 5B Cylinders, it was not possible to complete the operational portion of the HALEU Demonstration Contract before the expiration
date of the contract. As a result, the DOE elected to change the scope of the HALEU Demonstration Contract and move the operational portion of the
demonstration to a new, competitively-awarded, contract that provides for operations beyond the term of the HALEU Demonstration Contract. Under the HALEU
Demonstration Contract, Centrus completed construction of a cascade of 16 AC100M centrifuges in Piketon, Ohio, for the DOE to demonstrate HALEU
production. The HALEU Demonstration Contract was originally set to expire on June 1, 2022. However, the DOE extended the HALEU Demonstration Contract
to November 30, 2022. The Company is currently performing closeout activities on the HALEU Demonstration Contract.

As discussed above, the Company began work on the HALEU Operation Contract on December 1, 2022. On November 7, 2023, the Company announced
that it made its first delivery of HALEU to the DOE, completing Phase 1 by successfully demonstrating its HALEU production process. The portion of the
Company’s anticipated cost share under Phase 1 of the HALEU Operation Contract representing the Company’s share of projected program costs was
recognized in Cost of Sales as an accrued loss in the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2022, and was adjusted over the Phase 1 contract term based on
actual results and remaining program cost projections.

During November 2023, the Company transitioned to Phase 2 of the HALEU Operation Contract. The DOE will own the HALEU produced from the
demonstration cascade and Centrus will be compensated on a cost-plus-incentive-fee basis, with an expected Phase 2 contract value of approximately $90
million, subject to Congressional appropriations. The HALEU Operation Contract also gives DOE options to pay for up to nine additional years of production
from the cascade beyond the base contract; those options are at the DOE's sole discretion and subject to the availability of Congressional appropriations. The
Company has filed a license amendment to increase its possession limit above 900 kilograms of HALEU UFg and expects to receive NRC approval prior to
reaching its current possession limit.

Under the HALEU Operation Contract, the DOE is contractually required to provide the 5B Cylinders necessary to collect the output of the cascade, but
supply chain challenges have created difficulties for the DOE in securing enough 5B Cylinders for the entire production year. Centrus’ delivery of the 900
kilograms was conditioned on the DOE’s ability to provide the 5B Cylinders on a timeline that allowed for continuous production throughout Phase 2 of the
contract. During periods where 5B Cylinders are insufficient, the Company will not be able to produce HALEU, but will be able to continue operations of the
cascade and perform preventive maintenance and regulatory compliance type activities. Centrus anticipates that the delays in obtaining 5B Cylinders will be
temporary, but no longer expects to achieve delivery of the 900 kilograms of HALEU UF¢ anticipated for Phase 2 of the contract which extends to November
2024. The target fee for Phase 2 of the contract had been estimated to be $7.5 million based on the estimated costs for the contract and is subject to a contract
minimum fee of $6.9 million.
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To support the DOE in mitigating the risk of further delays in delivery of 5B Cylinders, the Company received technical direction and a contract modification
from the DOE to procure compliant 5B Cylinders and components, while the contractual obligation to furnish compliant 5B Cylinders under the HALEU Operation
Contract continues to rest with the DOE. The Company also is performing additional work on infrastructure and facility repairs under the DOE'’s technical
direction. On September 28, 2023, the DOE modified the HALEU Operation Contract to incorporate additional scope, which are not subject to cost-share, for
infrastructure and facility repairs, and costs associated with 5B Cylinder refurbishment, for an estimated additional contract value of $5.8 million. On October 19,
2023, the DOE provided additional funding of $5.5 million for the additional scope under the HALEU Operation Contract.

Centrus believes it is well positioned to compete for any follow-on contract(s) to expand HALEU production capability at the Piketon site. As discussed above,
on November 28, 2023, the DOE issued an RFP focusing on deconversion of HALEU and on January 9, 2024, issued an RFP focusing on the production of
HALEU. The Company expects to submit bids on both RFPs.

For further details, refer to Part Il, ltem 7,Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Conditions and
Outlook.
Commercial Contracting

In 2021, Centrus entered into a task order type services agreement with X-energy to provide services for detailed design of the TRISO fuel fabrication facility
and various support services for establishing their TRISO Research and Development Center. X-energy is funded under the current DOE cooperative agreement
titted ARDP. Centrus performed services pursuant to specific task orders, the last of which ended in March 2023. The services agreement expires on December
31, 2027, unless earlier terminated at the discretion of X-energy, but there are no active task orders pending.

Competition and Foreign Trade

It is estimated that the enrichment industry market for commercial nuclear reactors powered by LEU is currently about 50 million SWU per year. Our global
market share of enrichment for the LEU market is less than 5%. Global LEU suppliers in our highly competitive industry compete on the basis of price and
reliability of supply. The four largest LEU suppliers comprise over 95% of market share combined are as follows:

* Rosatom, a Russian government entity, which sells LEU through its wholly-owned subsidiary TENEX;

« Urenco, a consortium of companies owned or controlled by the British and Dutch governments and two German utilities;
¢ CNEIC, a company owned by the Chinese government; and

« Orano, a company largely owned by the French government, and formerly part of the French government.

According to the WNA, as of 2022, the production capacity for the major LEU suppliers is as follows:

* Rosatom/TENEX was approximately 27 million SWU per year. Imports of LEU and other uranium products produced in the Russian Federation are
subject to restrictions as described below under — Russian Suspension Agreement;

« Urenco has reported installed capacity at its European and U.S. enrichment facilities of approximately 18 million SWU per year;

* CNEIC has emerged as a significant producer primarily focused on supplying domestic requirements in China. CNEIC’s commercial SWU production
capacity was approximately 9 million SWU per year; and

« Orano’s gas centrifuge enrichment plant in France began commercial operations in 2011 and the plant has SWU production capacity of approximately 8
million SWU per year.
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All of our current competitors are owned or controlled, in whole or in part, by foreign governments, and operate enrichment technologies developed with the
financial support of foreign governments. These competitors may make business decisions in both domestic and international markets that are influenced by
political or economic policy considerations rather than exclusively by commercial considerations.

LEU also may be produced by down-blending government stockpiles of highly-enriched uranium. Governments control the timing and availability of highly-
enriched uranium released for this purpose, and the release of this material to the market could impact market conditions. Any additional LEU released into the
market from down-blended highly-enriched uranium could exert downward pressure on prices for LEU. However, without Russian supply, the global market
would be undersupplied for uranium enrichment.

Our LEU supply to foreign customers is exported under the terms of international agreements governing nuclear cooperation between the United States and
the government of the country of destination or other entities, such as the EU or the International Atomic Energy Agency. The LEU supplied to us is subject to
the terms of cooperation agreements between the country in which the material is produced and the country of destination or other entities.

Russian Suspension Agreement

Imports into the United States of LEU and other uranium products produced in the Russian Federation, including LEU imported by Centrus under the TENEX
Supply Contract, are subject, through December 31, 2040, to quotas imposed under U.S. legislation enacted into law in September 2008 and December 2020,
and under the RSA, as amended in 2008 and 2020. These quotas limit the amount of Russian LEU that can be imported into the United States for U.S.
consumption?.

The RSA is a trade agreement between the DOC and Rosatom originally signed in 1992 that suspended an anti-dumping duty investigation of Russian
uranium and imposed guantitative limits on exports of Russian uranium products, including LEU, to the United States. Under an amendment signed on October
5, 2020, the RSA’s limits on shipments of Russian uranium product to the United States were extended through at least 2040. Additionally, under legislation
passed by the U.S. Congress shortly after the amendment was signed, the material terms of the extended RSA were enacted into law.

Under this law and the RSA, imports of Russian uranium products peak in 2023 at 24% of the forecasted U.S. demand for enrichment and then begin to
decline, reaching 15% by 2028. Despite the fact that overall limits will ramp down, the RSA, as amended in 2020, explicitly sets aside sufficient quota in 2021
through 2028 for Centrus. The RSA and the legislation provide for a revision of the quotas in 2023, 2029, and 2035 to take account of SWU demand forecasts
that will be published by the WNA in the future. Accordingly, in November 2023, the DOC calculated a small increase in the quota through 2024. The adjustment
does not affect the quota allocated to Centrus. Any quota adjustment or other change to the RSA that reduces our quota allocations could affect our ability to
implement the TENEX Supply Contract through sales to customers who take delivery in the United States, which is our most significant market. The 2023
adjustment, however, did not affect us.

The actual size of the annual quotas allocated to Centrus for the TENEX Supply Contract are confidential, but a public version of the quotas shows that they
represent a significant portion of the total quotas provided under the RSA in 2021 through 2028. The quotas provided for the TENEX Supply Contract are
expected to be adequate to support the Company’s long-term strategic goals and to permit enriched uranium procured from TENEX during the remaining term
of the TENEX Supply Contract to be imported to supply U.S. utilities, thereby securing a key part of the Company’s supply base for the benefit of its customers
and providing the revenues needed by the Company to support its work on HALEU and other advanced technology projects in the United States.

1 The term “quota” is used herein for simplicity. The amounts of Russian uranium products that can be shipped to the United States are referred to as export limits in the RSA and import
limits in the legislation, but from a practical perspective the terms have identical effect.
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There are proposals in Congress to impose a ban on imports of Russian LEU, including a bill that was approved by the House of Representatives in
December 2023 that awaits consideration by the Senate. A Senate committee also has approved a bill containing similar provisions for a ban. If either of these
bills are enacted into law, we would have ninety (90) days to seek a waiver of the ban from the Secretary of Energy. A waiver could only be granted for imports
prior to 2028. Even if a waiver is granted, our imports would still be subject to the quotas allocated to Centrus for the TENEX Supply Contract. On the other
hand, if a waiver is not granted, we could not import the LEU covered by our request, even if the imports would otherwise be permitted by our quota under the
RSA and the related law implementing the RSA. For additional information please refer to Part I, Item 1A - Risk Factors - War in Ukraine for additional detail on
alternative LEU suppliers.

Beginning in September 2022, the DOC and the ITC, respectively, initiated two “sunset” reviews that will determine if the RSA should be maintained. These
“sunset” reviews are required to be conducted every five years. This was the fifth round of “sunset” reviews of the RSA. The last round of reviews in 2016-17
concluded that termination of the RSA would lead to the continuation or recurrence of dumping of French LEU (a determination made by the DOC), and to the
continuation or recurrence of material injury to the U.S. uranium industry (a determination made by the ITC), which resulted in the RSA being maintained. Even if
the RSA were terminated as a result of the “sunset” reviews, the quotas under the 2020 legislation would remain in place. In April 2023, the DOC published a
notice that this round of reviews concluded with determinations to keep the RSA in effect.

For further details, refer to Part I, ltem 1A Risk Factors - Restrictions on imports or sales of SWU or uranium that we buy from our Russian supplier and our
other sources of supply could adversely affect profitability and the viability of our business.

Ukraine War

The war in Ukraine has escalated tensions between Russia and the international community. As a result, the United States and other countries have
imposed, and may continue imposing, additional sanctions and export controls against certain Russian products, services, organizations and/or individuals.
While sanctions imposed to date do not preclude the import of Russian uranium products into the United States, it is possible that additional restrictions could be
added in the future that would affect our ability to purchase and re-sell Russian uranium enrichment, or implement the TENEX Supply Contract, which could have
a negative material impact on our business. Further, sanctions by the United States, Russia or other countries may impact our ability and cost to transport,
export, import, take delivery, or make payments related to the LEU we purchase. For example, due to restrictions imposed by Canada on the ability of Canadian
persons and entities to provide ocean transportation services to Russia, a permit is required for our shipper, a Canadian company, to transport the LEU that we
procure under the TENEX Supply Contract to the United States. The Government of Canada extended our shipper’s permit to early July 2024, but for so long as
the Canadian sanctions remain in place, the shipper will require further extensions of the permit for us to continue to use the shipper beyond July 2024.

In response to the war in Ukraine, there have been proposals in the U.S. Congress and elsewhere to ban imports of uranium products that could cut off or
reduce our ability to import LEU in one or more years under the TENEX Supply Contract. None of these proposals have been adopted as of the date of this
filing, but one bill to impose a ban was approved by the U.S. House of Representatives in December 2023 and awaits consideration in the Senate. Further, in an
October 2023 fact sheet published on the need for the U.S. Congress to provide additional funding for domestic initiatives, including $2.2 billion for U.S.
enrichment capacity, the White House stated that a long-term ban on enriched uranium imports from the Russian Federation into the United States is needed for
this funding to be successful.
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None of the proposals for a U.S. ban on imports of Russian LEU have been adopted.However, if any of these proposals were enacted, the ban on imports
would represent a significant risk to our business because the TENEX Supply Contract is the major source of supply that the Company relies upon today to meet
its delivery obligations and to earn the revenues needed to fund our operations, including our advanced technology work. To mitigate this harm, we would apply
for waivers from the Secretary of Energy to allow us to continue supplying our customers. To the extent waivers are not granted and other supplies cannot be
found, we would work with our counterparties to adjust delivery schedules and volumes or rely upon contractual rights and remedies, including, but not limited to,
force majeure. Absent waivers that allow us to continue to implement our existing plans for deliveries and sales in 2024-2027, sanctions on imports of LEU from
Russia could result in a reduction in the amount of material we can deliver to customers, with a corresponding loss of revenues that could pose a risk of
significant harm to our business and financial condition.

In addition, the expanding sanctions imposed by the United States and foreign governments on the mechanisms used to make payments to Russia and to
obtain services, including transportation, have increased the risk that implementation of the TENEX Supply Contract may be disrupted in the future.

Given all of the foregoing, we continue to monitor the situation closely and assess the potential impact of any new sanctions and how the impact on the
Company might be mitigated. For further details, refer to Part I, ltem 1A, Risk Factors - The current war in Ukraine and related international sanctions and
restrictions on trade could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Other Actions Adversely Affecting International Trade

In 2018, in connection with the withdrawal by the United States from a 2015 multilateral agreement known as the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action, the
U.S. government re-imposed sanctions on the AEOI and a number of its subsidiaries. Waivers were granted to allow non-Iranian entities to continue to work on
certain programs that, among other things, allowed affiliates of Rosatom to continue work on nuclear projects in Iran. These waivers have expired or been
terminated and, as a result, the U.S. government could decide to impose sanctions on Russian entities that may be involved in nuclear work in Iran, including
Rosatom or its subsidiaries. These sanctions could affect companies owned by Rosatom, including TENEX, even if they are not doing work in Iran. To date, no
sanctions have been imposed or announced on TENEX or any other Rosatom subsidiary involved in the TENEX Supply Contract, with respect to the work of
Rosatom or its subsidiaries in Iran.

DOE Facilities

We produced LEU through 2001 at the former Portsmouth GDP in Piketon, Ohio and through 2013 at the former Paducah GDP in Paducah, Kentucky, both of
which facilities we had leased from the DOE. The Portsmouth GDP and Paducah GDP were operated by agencies of the U.S. government for more than
40 years prior to the creation of the Company through privatization of the government enterprise in 1998. As a result of such operation, there are contamination
and other potential environmental liabilities associated with the U.S. government’s prior operation of the plants. The USEC Privatization Act and the terms of our
leases of the plants provide that DOE remains responsible for the D&D of the gaseous diffusion plants. Further, the DOE continued operations as well as
cleanup activities, both during and subsequent, to our operations at the facilities.

21



We lease facilities and related personal property near Piketon from the DOE. In connection with a letter agreement that preceded the HALEU Demonstration
Contract, the DOE and Centrus amended the lease agreement, which was scheduled to expire by its terms on June 30, 2019. The lease was extended until
May 31, 2022. In September 2021, the Company and the DOE renewed and extended the lease until December 31, 2025. On November 30, 2022 the lease
was further amended to ensure all D&D liabilities created under the HALEU Operation Contract reside with the DOE. As was the case with the HALEU
Demonstration Contract, any facilities or equipment constructed or installed will be owned by the DOE and may be returned to the DOE in an “as is” condition at
the end of the lease term. The DOE will be responsible for the D&D of any returned facilities or equipment. If we determine the equipment and facilities may
benefit Centrus after completion of the HALEU program, we can extend the facility lease and ownership of the equipment will be transferred to us, subject to
mutual agreement regarding D&D and other issues.

Human Capital Management

Our employees in Maryland, Ohio, and Tennessee are dedicated to our corporate philosophy based in honesty, trust, and the highest levels of integrity, safety
and security. Every day these values drive how we operate our business; govern how we interact with each other and our customers, partners, and suppliers;
guide the way that we treat our workforce; and determine how we connect with our communities. Our commitment to ethical business practices is outlined in our
COBC. Each employee is required to acknowledge receipt, understanding of, and compliance with our standards.

Due to the highly specialized nature of our business we need to hire and train skilled and qualified personnel to design, build, and operate our state-of-the-art
equipment, and to perform a broad range of services to support our country and our customers. Our work requires that we attract people who are dedicated to
consistently performing quality work and, for many of our positions, are able to obtain a security clearance. We recognize that our success as a company
depends on our ability to attract, develop, and retain such a workforce. We are dedicated to promoting the health, welfare, and safety of our employees. Part of
our responsibility includes treating all employees with dignity and respect and providing them with fair, market-based, competitive, and equitable compensation.
We recognize and reward the performance of our employees in line with our pay-for-performance philosophy and provide a comprehensive suite of benefit
options that are designed to enable our employees and their dependents to live healthy and productive lives.

Safety in our workplaces is paramount. We take measures to prevent workplace hazards, encourage safe behaviors, and enforce a culture of continuous
improvement to ensure our processes help eliminate incidents and injuries and comply with governing health and safety laws.

We are committed to promoting diversity of thought, experience, perspectives, backgrounds, and capabilities to drive innovation and to strengthen the
solutions we deliver to our customers because we believe this diversity leads to better outcomes. We proudly support a culture of inclusion and encourage a
work environment that respects diverse opinions, values individual skills, and celebrates the unique experiences our employees possess. To ensure a diverse
group of candidates is considered for each opening, we enlist the services of a Human Resource Consulting firm that provides services and products related to
Affirmative Action Plans and equal employment opportunity as required by the U.S. Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs.

Our values motivate us to promote strong workplace practices with opportunities for development and training. Our training and development efforts focus on
ensuring that the workforce is appropriately trained on critical job skills as well as leadership attributes that are consistent with our philosophy.
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A summary of our employees by location is as follows:

No. of Employees
at December 31,

Location 2023 2022

Piketon, OH 130 122
Oak Ridge, TN 110 104
Bethesda, MD 52 49
Total Employees 292 275

On October 1, 2022, the collective bargaining agreement for the employees represented by the United Steelworkers Local 689-5 union expired. There has
been no interruption of work as Centrus and the United Steelworkers Local 689-5 union continue to meet to reach accord on a new collective bargaining
agreement for the represented employees at the advanced technology facility in Piketon, Ohio.
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Information about our Executive Officers
Executive officers are elected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Executive officers as of February 9, 2024, are as follows:

Name Age Position

Amir V. Vexler 51 President and Chief Executive Officer (effective January 1, 2024)

Kevin J. Harrill 47 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

Shahram Ghasemian 57 Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate Secretary
Larry B. Cutlip 64 Senior Vice President, Field Operations

John M.A. Donelson 59 Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Amir V. Vexler joined Centrus on December 4, 2023, as a Special Advisor to the Board. On January 1, 2024, Mr. Vexler assumed the role of President and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Vexler has extensive experience in the nuclear fuel industry and a strong background in manufacturing, engineering services,
commercial operations, and business development. Prior to joining the Company, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Orano USA, overseeing
sales of nuclear fuel, decommissioning services, used nuclear fuel management, and medical isotopes as well as engineering and technology services for the
federal government. Previously, Mr. Vexler spent 20 years at General Electric Company, where he served in a number of leadership positions, including Chief
Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board, and Chief Operating Officer of Global Nuclear Fuel, a joint venture of General Electric Company and Hitachi.

Kevin J. Harrill has been Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer since August 2023 and was Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer from November 2021 to July 2023. He is responsible for all aspects of Centrus’ financial function, including accounting, tax, internal audit, corporate
treasury, information technology, procurement, and corporate finance. Prior to joining Centrus, Mr. Harrill held positions of increasing responsibility at
Blackboard, Inc., from 2015 to 2021, including Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Controller. Mr. Harrill has over 25 years of experience building and
leading finance teams across various industries including aerospace and defense, information technology, financial and professional services, and Software as a
Service (SaaS). Mr. Harrill has also held senior accounting and finance roles across Fortune 500 companies, including Computer Sciences Corporation, Harris
Corporation, and Science Applications International Corporation. Mr. Harrill holds a Master of Arts in National Security Studies, as well as a Bachelor of
Sciences in Business Administration with Finance and Accounting degrees from Georgetown University and holds an active Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
license in the State of Virginia.

Shahram Ghasemian has been Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate Secretary since August 2023. He rejoined
the Company in April 2020 as Senior Assistant General Counsel and Director of Legal Affairs and was later appointed also as Director, Corporate Compliance in
August 2022. Prior to rejoining the Company, Mr. Ghasemian served in various senior positions within the federal government, including the NRC, the DOE and
on Capitol Hill since 2006. Mr. Ghasemian previously worked for Centrus’ predecessor for nearly a decade, including serving as Chief Counsel at the Paducah
GDP in Kentucky.

Larry B. Cutlip has been Senior Vice President, Field Operations since January 2018, was Vice President, Field Operations from May 2016 through December
2017, was Deputy Director of the American Centrifuge Project from January 2015 to May 2016, was Director, Centrifuge Manufacturing from April 2008 to
December 2014, was Director, Program Management and Strategic Planning from December 2005 to April 2008, was Manager, Engineering from May 1999 to
December 2005, and held positions in operations management and engineering at the Company and its predecessors since 1981.
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John M.A. Donelson has been Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since October 2019 and was Vice President, Sales and Chief Marketing
Officer from January 2018 through October 2019. Mr. Donelson was Vice President, Marketing, Sales and Power from April 2011 through December 2017, Vice
President, Marketing and Sales from December 2005 to April 2011, Director, North American and European Sales from June 2004 to December 2005, Director,
North American Sales from August 2000 to June 2004, and Senior Sales Executive from July 1999 to August 2000. Mr. Donelson previously worked for Duke
Energy and Newport News Shipbuilding.
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Available Information

Our website is www.centrusenergy.com. We make available on our website, or upon request, without charge, access to our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
guarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed with, or furnished to, the SEC, pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed
with, or furnished to, the SEC. The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about SEC
registrants, including Centrus. From time to time, we also provide additional information regarding the Company and its activities on the “Investor Relations”
section of our website, which we encourage investors to review. The information contained or incorporated on our website is not part of this document. We also
provide news and information about the Company via our social media channels, including LinkedIn (https://linkedin.com/company/centrusenergy) and X,
formerly known as Twitter (http://x.com/centrus_energy).

Our COBC provides a brief summary of the standards of conduct that are at the foundation of our business operations. The COBC states that we conduct our
business in strict compliance with all applicable laws. Each employee must read the COBC and sign a form stating that he or she has read, understands and
agrees to comply with the COBC. A copy of the COBC is available on our website or upon request without charge. We will disclose on the website any
amendments to, or waivers from, the COBC that are required to be publicly disclosed.

We also make available on our website or upon request, free of charge, our Board of Directors Governance Guidelines and our Board committee charters.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following discussion sets forth the material risk factors that could affect our financial condition and operations. Such risks, which could negatively affect
our Consolidated Financial Statements, fall primarily under the categories listed below. Readers should not consider any descriptions to be a complete set of all
potential risks that could affect us.
Risks related to the war in Ukraine factors primarily include:
« the current war in Ukraine and related international sanctions and restrictions.

» the possible imposition of a ban on imports of Russian LEU into the United States or other countries, as a response to Russia’s invasion; and

« financial losses we incur in connection with (i) efforts to mitigate the impact of government sanctions imposed in response to the invasion of Ukraine
and/or (i) disputes with our counterparties arising from such sanctions or mitigation efforts.

Risks related to economic and industry factors primarily include:

« the financial difficulties experienced by, and operating conditions of, our customers and suppliers;

« epidemics and other health related issues, including, but not limited to the COVID-19 pandemic; and

« price volatility associated with the procurement of SWU and uranium.
Risks related to operational factors primarily include:

« restrictions on imports or sales of SWU or uranium that we buy from our Russian supplier and our other sources of supply; and
« the inability to sell all of the LEU we are required to purchase under supply agreements for prices that cover our costs.
Risks related to financial factors primarily include:

« significant long-term liabilities;

« material unfunded defined benefit pension plans obligations and postretirement health and life benefit obligations;

« our revenues and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and year to year;

« possible impairment loss related to our intangible assets;

« Centrus is dependent on intercompany support from Enrichment Corp.;

« limited trading volume for our securities and the market price of our securities is subject to volatility;

« asmall number of holders of our Class A Common Stock may exert significant influence over the direction of the Company;
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a small number of Class A stockholders, who also have significant holdings of the Company’s 8.25% Notes, may be motivated by interests that are not
aligned with the Company’s other Class A stockholders; and

limited ability to utilize our NOL carryforwards to offset future taxable income.

Risks related to general factors primarily include:

failures to protect classified or other sensitive information, or security breaches of IT systems could result in significant liability;
the inability to attract and retain key personnel;

the potential for the DOE to seek to terminate or exercise its remedies under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and our other agreements with the DOE,
or to require modifications to such agreements;

government reviews or audits can lead to withholding or delay of payments to us, non-receipt of award fees, legal actions, fines, penalties and liabilities,
and other remedies against us;

our U.S. government contracts and subcontracts are dependent on continued U.S. government funding and government appropriations, which may not be
made on a timely basis or at all;

changes to, or termination of, any agreements with the U.S. government, or deterioration in our relationship with the U.S. government; and

the ability to adapt to a rapidly changing competitive environment in the nuclear industry.

Risks related to legal and compliance factors primarily include:

our operations are regulated by the U.S. government, including the NRC and the DOE as well as the States of Ohio and Tennessee;

our operations involve the use, transportation and disposal of toxic, hazardous and/or radioactive materials and could result in liability without regard to
fault or negligence; and

our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to equity securities held (beneficially or of record) by foreign persons. If levels of foreign
ownership set forth in our certificate of incorporation are exceeded, we have the right, among other things, to redeem or exchange common stock held by
foreign persons, and in certain cases, the applicable redemption price or exchange value may be equal to the lower of fair market value or a foreign
person’s purchase price.
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War in Ukraine Risks

The current war in Ukraine and related international sanctions and restrictions on trade could have a material adverse impact on our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.

The current war in Ukraine has led the United States, Russia, and other countries to impose sanctions and other measures that restrict international trade. At
present, sanctions have not prevented the Company or TENEX from performing under the TENEX Supply Contract, but the situation is continuously changing.
For example, one bill to impose a ban was approved by the U.S. House of Representatives in December 2023 and awaits consideration in the Senate. Further,
in a recent fact sheet published in October 2023 on the need for the U.S. Congress to provide additional funding for domestic initiatives, including $2.2 billion for
U.S. enrichment capacity, the White House stated that a long-term ban on enriched uranium imports from the Russian Federation into the United States is
needed for this funding to be successful. Although, the prospect that a ban would actually be imposed remains uncertain, but appears to be becoming more
likely, imports of Russian LEU continue to be permitted into the United States subject to the RSA and a law adopted to implement the RSA.

Aside from the proposals for a U.S. ban on LEU imports from Russia, the expanding sanctions imposed by the United States and foreign governments on
goods, services, entities, and instrumentalities that could be needed for performance of the TENEX Supply Contract could have adverse effects on the TENEX
Supply Contract, even if such sanctions are not directed at imports of Russian LEU or other trade in nuclear material with Russia. For example, a sanction on a
Russian bank might prevent funds from being transferred to TENEX's account from the U.S. bank to which we make payments which could lead TENEX to
suspend shipments.

Further, sanctions by the United States, Russia, or other countries on goods and services needed to make imports may directly or indirectly impact
performance of the TENEX Supply Contract and our ability to transport, import, take delivery or make payments related to the LEU we purchase. For example, in
June 2022, Canada prohibited Canadian entities from providing transportation services to Russians or persons in Russia in various industries, including
enrichment of uranium. A company that provides transportation services to us under the TENEX Supply Contract contracted with an ocean carrier subject to
these Canadian sanctions, and could not load Russian LEU until it received a permit from the Canadian government. Although the permit was issued and
subsequently extended, it is only valid until early July 2024, meaning that, absent a renewal of the permit, we will need to find an alternative transportation
company, which may be difficult and costly, or impossible, because of the limited number of qualified service providers. Furthermore, because sanctions also
limit the types of non-nuclear cargo that the ocean carrier can ship to and from Russia, its overall business in Russia has been curtailed, so this reduced the
number of ships it uses for transportation to and from Russia, making it more difficult for us to make timely deliveries of LEU. The adverse impact of this reduced
schedule could also lead the carrier to withdraw its ships entirely from routes to or from Russia, leaving us without a carrier to transport the LEU we procure from
TENEX.

Additional sanctions or other measures by the U.S. or foreign governments (including the Russian government) could be imposed in the future. As noted
above, for example, there are proposals in the U.S. Congress and elsewhere to ban imports of uranium which could affect our ability to import LEU in one or
more years under the TENEX Supply Contract. Although none of these proposals have been adopted as of the date of this filing, any sanctions or measures
directed at trade in LEU from Russia or the parties involved in such trade or otherwise could interfere with, or prevent, performance under the TENEX Supply
Contract. We do not know what actions TENEX might take in response to sanctions, but if it refused to make future deliveries, such refusal would likely affect
our ability to meet our delivery obligations to our customers and would have a material adverse effect on the Company.
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If measures are taken to limit the import of Russian LEU or to prohibit or limit dealings with Russian entities, including, but not limited to, TENEX or the
Rosatom, the Company could seek a license, waiver, or other approval from the government imposing such measures to ensure that the Company could
continue to fulfill its purchase and sales obligations using LEU delivered under the TENEX Supply Contract. There is no assurance that such a license, waiver,
or approval, if sought, would be granted, or if granted, granted in a timely fashion. If a license, waiver, or approval were not granted, the Company would need to
look to alternative sources of LEU to replace the LEU that it could not procure from TENEX. The Company has contracts for alternative sources that could be
used to mitigate a portion of the near-term impacts. However, our alternative sources are not sufficient to replace all of the Russian LEU the Company is
currently permitted to import under the RSA, and to the extent additional supply cannot be obtained, or obtained at a higher cost, it will have a material adverse
impact on our business, results of operations, and competitive position.

As a result of the current uncertainty regarding trade with Russia, as well as the actions of Russia in the war against Ukraine, customers may seek to
renegotiate existing contracts, refuse to take deliveries of Russian LEU, or take other actions that could have a material adverse impact on our business, results
of operations, and competitive position. While we would expect to work closely with our contractual counterparties to mitigate impacts of shortages of material
due to the impact of sanctions, there is also a risk that disputes could arise that could result in significant costs for us. Further, our ability to enter into new
contracts to sell the material we are committed to purchase may be impacted. Finally, since the majority of our supply contracts include a market-based pricing
component, the rapidly rising market prices due to the war in Ukraine and the associated sanctions could materially increase our cost of sales under our existing
supply contracts, including but not limited to, the TENEX Supply Contract.

Accordingly, the situation at this time is evolving and, therefore, there is no assurance that future developments would not have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s procurement, payment, delivery, or sale of LEU, or business viability.
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Economic and Industry Risks

Our future prospects are tied directly to the nuclear energy industry worldwide. The financial difficulties experienced by, and operating conditions of,
our customers and suppliers could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Potential events that could affect either our customers or suppliers under current or future contracts with us or the nuclear industry as a whole, include:

pandemics, armed conflicts (including the war in Ukraine), government actions and other events that disrupt supply chains, production, transportation,
payments and importation of nuclear materials or other critical supplies or services;

natural or other disasters (such as the 2011 Fukushima disaster) impacting nuclear facilities or involving shipments of nuclear materials;
changes in U.S. or foreign government policies and priorities;

regulatory actions or changes in regulations by nuclear regulatory bodies applicable to us, our suppliers or our customers;

decisions by agencies, courts or other bodies under trade and other laws applicable to us, our suppliers, or our customers;

disruptions in other areas of the nuclear fuel cycle, such as uranium supplies or conversion;

civic opposition to, or changes in government policies regarding, nuclear operations;

business decisions concerning reactors or reactor operations;

the financial condition of reactor owners and operations;

the need for generating capacity; or

consolidation within the electric power industry.

These events could adversely affect us to the extent they result in a reduction or elimination of customers’ contractual requirements to purchase from us; the
suspension or reduction of nuclear reactor operations; the reduction or blocking of supplies of raw materials, natural or enriched uranium or SWU; lower
demand; burdensome regulation, disruptions of shipments, production importation or payment (including the blocking or restriction of transportation services or
hardware); increased competition from third parties; increased costs or difficulties; or increased liability for actual or threatened property damage or personal
injury. Additionally, customers may face financial difficulties, including from factors unrelated to the nuclear industry, that could affect their willingness or ability to
make purchases. We cannot provide any assurance that events will not preclude us from making deliveries to our customers or increase our costs or that our
customers, suppliers, or contractors will not default on their obligations to us or file for bankruptcy protection. If a customer files for bankruptcy protection, for
example, we likely would be unable to collect all, or even a significant portion, of amounts that are owed to us. A default and bankruptcy filing by one or more
customers or suppliers, or events, such as those listed above which prevent or limit our ability to obtain or sell material or services, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
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Our business, financial and operating performance could be adversely affected by epidemics and other health related issues, including but not
limited to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The global outbreak of COVID-19 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization and a national emergency by the U.S. government, and
negatively affected the U.S. and global economies, disrupted supply chains, and resulted in significant travel, transport, and other restrictions. Although the
COVID-19 pandemic has ended, other national or global health related outbreaks could disrupt the supply chains and day-to-day operations of the Company, our
suppliers, our contractors, and our customers, which could materially adversely affect our operations, including increasing our costs. In this regard, global supply
chains and the timely availability of products or product components sourced domestically or imported from other nations, including SWU contained in LEU we
purchase, could be materially disrupted by quarantines, slowdowns or shutdowns, border closings, and travel restrictions resulting from a global pandemic or
health crisis. Further, impacts of such health crises on our management and workforce, or our suppliers, contractors, or customers, could adversely impact our
business and we may be unable to mitigate such impacts.

In the event that a health crisis prevents our employees or our contractors from working in-person at our site or, our suppliers are unable to provide goods and
services on the schedule we anticipated, the impacts on our schedule and costs could be material.

Our business is exposed to price volatility associated with the procurement of SWU and uranium.

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk for purchases of SWU and uranium. Our earnings and cash flows are therefore exposed to variability of
spot and forward market prices in the markets in which it operates. The supply markets for LEU, SWU and other uranium are subject to price fluctuations and
availability restrictions.

Operational Risks

Restrictions on imports or sales of SWU or uranium that we buy from our Russian supplier and our other sources of supply could adversely affect
profitability and the viability of our business.

Nearly all of the SWU and LEU that we use to fill existing contracts with customers is sourced from outside the United States, including from Russia under the
TENEX Supply Agreement, and we expect these arrangements to continue into the future. Our ability to place this SWU and LEU into existing and future
contracts with customers is subject to trade restrictions, sanctions, and other limitations imposed by the United States, other governments, and our customers.
For example, our imports from Russia are subject to U.S. quotas. Given the quotas, restrictions, and customer limitations that limit our ability to sell SWU and
LEU purchased under the TENEX Supply Agreement both in the United States and globally, there is no guarantee that we can make sufficient sales to meet our
minimum purchase obligation under the TENEX Supply Agreement. (For further information refer to Part I, Item 1 - Business - Competition and Foreign Trade).

Further, currently evolving international events, including the war in Ukraine, could result in new or additional sanctions or other U.S. or foreign government
actions that could directly or indirectly limit or prevent our purchase, import, delivery and/or sale of material under our TENEX Supply Agreement. Even absent
such restrictions, some of our U.S. and foreign customers are unable or unwilling to accept Russian SWU and uranium.

Geopolitical events, including domestic or international reactions or responses to such events, as well as concerns about national security or other issues,
also could lead to U.S. or foreign government or international actions, or actions by the Russian government or TENEX, that could disrupt our ability to purchase,
import, sell, or make deliveries of LEU, SWU, or other uranium products, or even to continue to do business with one or more of our suppliers or their affiliates.
Our inability to meet our purchase or sales obligations, or to earn revenues from U.S. and international sales, would cause us to incur significant financial losses,
in addition to impeding or preventing us from fulfilling our existing contracts, or winning new contracts, and could adversely affect our profitability and the viability
of our business.
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We may be unable to sell all of the LEU we are required to purchase under supply agreements for prices that cover our costs, which could adversely
affect profitability and the viability of our business.

We may not achieve the anticipated benefits from supply agreements we enter into. The prices we are charged under some supply agreements are
determined by formulas that may not be aligned with the prevailing market prices at the time we enter into contracts with customers. As a result, the sales prices
in our contracts may not cover our purchase costs, or those purchase costs may limit our ability to secure profitable sales.

We are dependent on purchases from our suppliers and other sources to meet our obligations to customers and rely on third parties to provide
essential services.

We are currently dependent on purchases from suppliers to meet our obligations to customers, including purchases from the Russian government entity,
TENEX. A significant delay in, or stoppage, prohibition or termination of, deliveries of material to us under our supply agreements, could adversely affect our
ability to make deliveries to customers.

We also rely on third parties to provide essential services to the Company, such as the storage and management of inventory, transportation, and radiation
protection. Those service providers may not perform on time, with the desired quality, or at all, for a variety of reasons, many of which are outside our control. An
interruption of deliveries from our suppliers or the provision of essential services by third parties, could adversely impact our business, results of operations, and
prospects.

We face significant competition from major producers who may be less cost sensitive or may be favored due to support from foreign governments.

We compete with major producers of LEU, all of which are wholly or substantially owned by governments: Orano (France), Rosatom/TENEX (Russia), Urenco
(the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and two German utilities), and CNEIC (China). Our competitors have greater financial resources than we do. Foreign
competitors enjoy financial and other support from their government owners, which may enable them to be less cost or profit-sensitive than we are. In addition,
decisions by foreign competitors may be influenced by political and economic policy considerations rather than commercial considerations. For example, foreign
competitors may elect to increase their production or exports of LEU, SWU, or other uranium products, including HALEU, even when not justified by market
conditions, thereby depressing prices and reducing demand for our LEU, SWU, and other uranium products. This could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, and prospects. Moreover, our competitors may be better positioned to take advantage of improved market conditions and increase capacity to meet
any future market expansion.

The ability to compete in certain foreign markets may be limited for legal, political, economic, or other reasons.

Doing business in foreign markets poses additional risks and challenges. For example, agreements for cooperation between the U.S. government and various
foreign governments or governmental agencies control the export of nuclear materials from the United States. We are unable to supply fuel for foreign reactors
unless there is an agreement for cooperation in force. If an agreement with a country in which one or more of our customers is located were to lapse, terminate,
or be amended, our sales or deliveries could be curtailed or terminated, adversely affecting our business, results of operations, and prospects. Moreover, the
lack of such agreements for cooperation between the U.S. government and those governments or agencies in emerging markets may restrict our ability to sell
into such markets. Additionally, countries may impose other restrictions on the import or export of material or services related to our business.

Purchases of LEU and SWU by customers in the EU are subject to a policy of the Euratom Supply Agency that seeks to limit foreign enriched uranium to no

more than 20% of EU consumption per year. Similarly, China has a policy of using Chinese sources of LEU and SWU. Such policies limit our ability to sell in
those countries.
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Certain foreign markets lack a comprehensive nuclear liability law that protects suppliers by channeling liability for injury and property damage suffered by
third persons from nuclear incidents at a nuclear facility to the facility’s operator. The lack of legal protection for suppliers could adversely affect our ability to
compete for sales to meet the growing demand for LEU or SWU in these markets and our prospects for future revenue from such sales.

Dependence on our largest customers or suppliers could adversely affect us.

In 2023, our ten largest nuclear fuel customers represented approximately 79 % of total revenue and our two largest customers represented approximately
32% of total revenue. A reduction in purchases from our customers, whether due to their decision not to purchase optional quantities or for other reasons,
including a disruption or change in their operations or financial condition that reduces purchases of LEU, SWU, or other uranium products from us, could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, and prospects. Once lost, customers may be difficult to regain because they typically purchase under long-
term contracts. Consequently, we may face reduced revenues and difficulty in selling the material we are obligated to buy, which could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, and prospects.

Through 2027, well over one-half of the LEU that we expect to deliver to customers will come from material supplied to us under the TENEX Supply Contract.
While we have other sources, they are not sufficient to replace the TENEX supply. Further, given that Russia accounts for nearly one-half of all enrichment
capacity in the world, we are uncertain that we can fully replace the volume of material to be supplied to us under the TENEX Supply Contract through our
existing suppliers or other suppliers. Consequently, if imports of Russian LEU into the United States are restricted or banned, and we cannot obtain replacement
materials, we expect reduced revenues and higher costs, which would have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and prospects.

The dollar amount of the Order Book, as stated at any given time, is not necessarily indicative of future sales revenues and is subject to uncertainty.

Our Order Book is the estimated aggregate dollar amount of SWU and uranium sales that we expect to recognize as revenue in future periods under existing
contracts with customers. It includes deferred revenue for sales in which we have been paid but still have a delivery obligation, which means we will not receive
cash in the future from those deliveries. There is no assurance that the revenues projected will be realized, or, if realized, will result in profits. Our estimate of
the Order Book is based on a number of factors including customers’ estimates of the timing and size of their fuel requirements and estimates of future selling
prices. For example, depending on the terms of specific contracts, prices may be adjusted based on escalation using a general inflation index, published SWU
or uranium market price indicators prevailing at the time of delivery, and other factors, all of which are unpredictable. Any inaccuracy in estimates of future prices
would add to the imprecision of the Order Book estimate. From time to time, we have worked with customers to modify contracts that have delivery, scheduling,
origin or other terms that may require modifications to address our anticipated supply sources. If we were to initiate such discussions in the future, we have no
assurance that our customers would agree to revise existing contracts or would not require concessions, which could adversely affect the value of our Order
Book and our business, results of operations and prospects.
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Our ability to operate the HALEU enrichment facility we are deploying under the HALEU Operation Contract after the completion of the contract is
dependent on our ability to secure additional contracts and funding from the U.S. government or other sources.

On November 30, 2022, after a competitive selection award, we signed a contract with the DOE to complete and operate the enrichment plant we
commenced building in 2019. The HALEU Operation Contract has a base contract value of approximately $150 million in two phases through 2024. Phase 1
included an approximately $30 million cost share contribution from Centrus matched by approximately $30 million from the DOE to finish construction, bring the
cascade online, and demonstrate production of 20 kilograms of 19.75% enriched HALEU by December 31, 2023. On October 11, 2023, the Company
announced that it began enrichment operations in Piketon, Ohio. On November 7, 2023, the Company announced that it made its first delivery of HALEU to the
DOE, completing Phase 1 by successfully demonstrating its HALEU production process.

In Phase 2, we expect to continue operating for a full year at an annual production rate of 900 kilograms of HALEU, but there is no assurance that we will
have sufficient 5B Cylinders to produce 900 kilograms by November 2024.

Our goal is to continue production and modularly scale up the facility by matching production capacity with demand as demand for HALEU grows in the
commercial and/or government sectors. However, our right to continue to operate the facility after completion of Phase 2 of the HALEU Operation Contract
depends on the award of one or more follow-on contracts by the U.S. government, as well as continued funding for operation from the U.S. government or other
sources. There is no assurance that we will be awarded such contracts or that such funding will be available. Further, it is uncertain whether or when demand to
support the scale up of the facility will materialize. If we do not secure the necessary contracts and funding and if sufficient demand does not emerge, we may
not be able to continue or expand operations at that facility and may not be able to support providing HALEU fuel for the advanced reactors under development.

If we are required to delease the facility where we are deploying the HALEU cascade under the HALEU Operation Contract and return it, along with the
centrifuges and supporting equipment, to the DOE at the expiration of our contract, this would likely result in the termination of our NRC operating license and us
laying off our Piketon workforce. On the other hand, if we are able to continue operating the facility, we would incur additional costs and liabilities associated with
the facility.

If the Company’s operation of the Piketon facility were terminated, there can be no assurance that we could regain use of the Piketon facility or obtain a new
NRC license in the future at the Piketon site or an alternative site, in which event we would be unable to begin commercial production of HALEU. We may also
incur additional costs related to reducing our workforce or closing the Piketon facility. Failure to secure U.S. government or other funding to support the
continued operation of the Piketon facility, and retain our NRC license, could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition along with
our plans for future growth.
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Our Technical Solutions segment conducts business under various types of contracts, including fixed-price and cost-share contracts, which
subjects us to risks associated with cost overruns.

The Technical Solutions segment conducts business under various types of contracts, including fixed-price contracts and cost-share contracts, where costs
must be estimated in advance of our performance. These types of contracts are priced, in part, on cost and scheduling estimates that are based on assumptions
including prices and availability of experienced labor, equipment and materials, and estimates of the amount of other contract work we expect to perform. In the
event we have cost overruns, we may not be able to obtain compensation for additional work performed or expenses incurred. Our failure to accurately estimate
the resources and time required for fixed-price or cost-share contracts or our failure to complete our contractual obligations within the time frame and costs
committed could result in reduced profits, greater costs, or a loss for that contract. If the cost overrun on a contract is significant, or we encounter issues that
affect multiple contracts, the cost overrun could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Financial Risks
We have significant long-term liabilities.

We continue to have significant long-term liabilities, including the indebtedness under our 8.25% Notes, which mature in February 2027. We also still have
substantial pension and postretirement health and life benefit obligations and other long-term liabilities.

Our significant long-term liabilities (and other third-party financial obligations) could have important consequences, including:
« making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations to lenders and other creditors, resulting in possible defaults on, and acceleration of, such
indebtedness or breaches of such other commitments;
« placing us at a competitive disadvantage by making us more vulnerable to react to adverse economic conditions or changes in the nuclear industry;
« hindering our ability to obtain additional financing for future working capital and other general corporate requirements;

« reducing our cash resources for payments on our 8.25% Notes thereby limiting our ability to fund our operations, capital expenditures, and future
business opportunities;

« placing certain restrictions on the ability of our subsidiary, Enrichment Corp., to transfer cash and other assets to us, which could constrain our ability to
pay dividends on our Common Stock or to fund our commitments or the commitments of our other subsidiaries, pursuant to the indenture governing our
8.25% Notes, subject to certain exceptions; and

« restricting our ability to engage in certain mergers or acquisitions pursuant to the indenture governing our 8.25% Notes which also require us to offer to
repurchase all such outstanding notes at 101% of their outstanding principal amount in the event of certain change of control events.

The terms of the indenture governing our 8.25% Notes do not restrict Centrus or any of its subsidiaries from incurring substantial additional indebtedness in

the future. If we incur substantial additional indebtedness, however, the foregoing risks would intensify. Additional information concerning the 8.25% Notes
including the terms and conditions of the 8.25% Notes are described in Note 8, Debt, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report.
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The Company has material unfunded defined benefit pension plans obligations and postretirement health and life benefit obligations. Levels of
returns on pension and postretirement benefit plan assets, changes in interest rates and other factors affecting the amounts to be contributed to
fund future pension and postretirement benefit liabilities could adversely affect earnings and cash flows in future periods.

Centrus and its subsidiary, Enrichment Corp., maintain qualified defined benefit pension plans that are guaranteed by the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation, a wholly-owned U.S. government corporation that was created by Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Centrus also maintains non-
qualified defined benefit pension plans for certain executive officers. These plans are anticipated to require material cash contributions in the future, which may
divert funds from other uses and could adversely impact our liquidity depending on the timing of any required contributions or payments in relation to our sources
of cash and other payment obligations.

Further, earnings may be positively or negatively impacted by the amount of expense we record for employee benefit plans. U.S. GAAP requires a company
to calculate expenses for these plans using actuarial valuations. The IRS and the Pension Protection Act of 2006 regulate the minimum amount we contribute to
our pension plans. The amount we are required to contribute to pension plans could have an adverse effect on our cash flows.

Our revenues and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and year to year, which could have an adverse effect on our
cash flows.

Revenue is recognized when or as we transfer control of the promised LEU or uranium to the customer. Customer demand is affected by, among other things,
electricity markets, reactor operations, maintenance, and the timing of refueling outages. As a result, a relatively small change in the timing, amount, or other
terms of customer orders for LEU due to a change in a customer’s refueling schedule or other reasons may cause operating results to be substantially above or
below expectations, which could have an adverse effect on our cash flows.

Results of operations could be negatively impacted if adverse conditions or changes in circumstances indicate a possible impairment loss related to
our intangible assets.

Intangible assets originated from our reorganization and application of fresh start accounting as of September 30, 2014. The intangible assets represented the
fair value adjustment to the assets and liabilities for our LEU segment. The intangible assets remaining on our balance sheet relate to our sales Order Book and
customer relationships. The Order Book intangible asset is amortized to expense as the Order Book valued at emergence is reduced, principally as a result of
deliveries to customers. The customer relationships intangible asset is amortized to expense using the straight-line method over the estimated average useful
life of 15 years with 5 % years of scheduled amortization remaining.

The carrying values of the intangible assets are subject to impairment tests whenever adverse conditions or changes in circumstances indicate a possible
impairment loss. If impairment is indicated, the asset carrying value will be reduced to its fair value. Inherent in our fair value determinations are certain
judgments and estimates, including projections of future cash flows, the discount rate reflecting the risk inherent in future cash flows, the interpretation of current
economic indicators and market valuations, and strategic plans with regard to operations. A change in these underlying assumptions could cause the fair value
of the intangible asset to be less than its respective carrying amount.
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Centrus is dependent on intercompany support from Enrichment Corp.

Substantially all of our revenue-generating operations are conducted at our subsidiary, Enrichment Corp. The financing obtained from Enrichment Corp.
funds our general corporate expenses, including interest payments on the 8.25% Notes, which are guaranteed on a limited and subordinated basis by
Enrichment Corp. Enrichment Corp. also has pledged its assets as security for the 8.25% Notes. As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Centrus, Enrichment Corp.
has its own set of creditors and a separate board of directors, the Enrichment Board, who are elected by Centrus. Current and future funding and support are
conditional and dependent on Enrichment Corp.’s own financial condition and a determination by the Enrichment Board that such funding is in the interest of
Enrichment Corp.

There is limited trading volume for our securities and the market price of our securities is subject to volatility.

The price of our Class A Common Stock remains subject to volatility. The market price and level of trading of our Class A Common Stock could be subject to
wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors include, among other things, our limited trading history,
our limited trading volume, the concentration of holdings of our Class A Common Stock, actual or anticipated variations in our operating results and cash flow,
the nature and content of our earnings releases, announcements or events that impact our products, customers, competitors or markets, business conditions in
our markets and the general state of the securities markets and the market for energy-related stocks, as well as general economic and market conditions and
other factors that may affect our future results. Additionally, future sales of our common stock or instruments convertible into our common stock, in public or
private offerings may depress our stock price.

Holders of our Class B Common Stock may make decisions regarding their investment in the Company based upon factors that are unrelated to the
Company’s performance. Any sales of shares by holders of our Class B Common Stock would result in automatic conversion (with limited exceptions) of Class
B Common Stock into Class A Common Stock, which in turn could adversely impact the trading price of the Class A Common Stock.

Our 8.25% Notes are not listed on any securities exchange. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of the trading market for the 8.25% Notes. The
8.25% Notes may only be traded infrequently in transactions arranged through brokers or otherwise, and reliable market quotations for the 8.25% Notes may not
be available. In addition, the trading prices of the 8.25% Notes will depend on many factors, including prevailing interest rates, the trading volumes, and the
other factors discussed above with respect to the Class A Common Stock.

A small number of holders of our Class A Common Stock may exert significant influence over the direction of the Company.

As of December 31, 2023, based solely on amounts reported in Schedule 13D and 13G filings with the SEC, two stockholders with the largest holdings of our
Class A Common Stock collectively owned approximately 15% of our Class A Common Stock. As a result, these stockholders may be able to exert significant
influence over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions, such as a merger
of the Company, or sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets. These stockholders may have interests that differ from, and may vote in a way adverse to,
other holders of Class A Common Stock, or adverse to the recommendations of the Company’s management. This concentration of ownership may make it
more difficult for other stockholders to effect substantial changes in the Company, may limit the ability of the Company to pass certain initiatives or other items
that require stockholder approval, and may also have the effect of delaying, preventing, or expediting, as the case may be, a change in control of the Company.
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A small number of Class A stockholders, who also have significant holdings of the Company’s 8.25% Notes, may be motivated by interests that are
not aligned with the Company’s other Class A stockholders.

Currently, a small number of persons who also are Class A stockholders collectively own approximately 33% of our 8.25% Notes. As a result, these
stockholders may have interests that differ from the remainder of the holders of our Class A Common Stock, and, as a result, may vote or take other actions in a
way adverse to other holders of Class A Common Stock.

Our ability to utilize our NOL carryforwards to offset future taxable income may be limited.

Our ability to fully utilize our existing NOLs or NUBILs could be limited or eliminated in the event (i) we undergo an “ownership change” as described under
Section 382 of the Code, (ii) we do not reach profitability or are only marginally profitable, or (iii) there are changes in U.S. government laws and regulations. An
“ownership change” is generally defined as a greater than 50% change in equity ownership by value over a rolling three-year period. Past or future ownership
changes, some of which may be beyond our control, as well as differences and fluctuations in the value of our equity securities may adversely affect our ability to
utilize our NOLs and could reduce our flexibility to raise capital in future equity financings or other transactions, or we may decide to pursue transactions even if
they would result in an ownership change and impair our ability to use our NOLs. In addition, the “Section 382 Rights Agreement” we have adopted with respect
to our Common Stock contains limitations on transferability intended to prevent the possibility of experiencing an “ownership change,” but we cannot be certain
that these measures will be effective. We also may decide to pursue transactions even if they would result in an ownership change and impair our ability to use
our NOLs. In addition, any changes to tax rules and regulations or the interpretation of tax rules and regulations could negatively impact our ability to recognize
any potential benefits from our NOLs or NUBILs.

Legal and Compliance Risks

Our operations are highly regulated by the U.S. government, including the NRC and the DOE as well as the States of Ohio and Tennessee and could
be significantly impacted by changes in government policies and priorities.

Our operations, including the facilities we lease near Piketon, Ohio, are subject to regulation by the NRC. The NRC has granted us two licenses for the
Piketon facility: a license for a Lead Cascade test facility that was granted in February 2004, and a separate license to construct and operate a commercial plant
that was granted in April 2007. Our license to construct and operate a commercial plant will expire on April 13, 2037. In June 2021, the NRC approved an
amendment to permit HALEU production as a subset of the larger commercial plant license. We are currently performing work under a contract with the DOE for
the construction and operation of a cascade to produce HALEU. This contract is currently set to expire at the completion of Phase 2 which is no later than
December 31, 2024. We filed a new license amendment with the NRC to increase our material possession limit to accommodate anticipated output under the
HALEU Operation Contract and extend our production authorization period under our license. We have submitted a request to the NRC to terminate the 2004
license for the Lead Cascade test facility and such request is currently pending before the NRC.

The NRC could refuse to grant our license amendment to construct and operate a commercial plant if it determines that: (1) we are foreign owned, controlled,
or dominated; (2) the issuance of the amendment would be inimical to the maintenance of a reliable and economic domestic source of enrichment; (3) the
issuance of the amendment would be adverse to U.S. defense or security objectives; or (4) the issuance of the amendment is otherwise not consistent with
applicable laws or regulations then in effect.
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The NRC has the authority to issue notices of violation for violations of the Atomic Energy Act, the NRC regulations and conditions of licenses, certificates of
compliance, or orders. The NRC has the authority to impose civil penalties or additional requirements and to order cessation of operations for violations of its
regulations. Penalties under the NRC regulations could include substantial fines, imposition of additional requirements, or withdrawal or suspension of licenses
or certificates. Any penalties imposed on us could adversely affect our results of operations and liquidity. The NRC also has the authority to issue new regulatory
requirements or to change existing requirements. Changes to the regulatory requirements also could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

In addition, certain of our operations are subject to DOE regulation or contractual requirements. Our technology and manufacturing facility in Oak Ridge is
also regulated by the State of Tennessee under the NRC’s Agreement State Program as well as applicable state laws. Our operations at the facility near Piketon
also are subject to regulation by various agencies of the Ohio state government. These state and federal agencies may have the authority to impose civil
penalties and additional requirements, which could adversely affect our results of operations. Further, changes in federal, state or local government policies and
priorities can impact our operations and the nuclear industry. This includes changes in interpretations of regulatory requirements, increased inspection or
enforcement activities, changes in budgetary priorities, changes in tax laws and regulations and other actions or in-actions governments can take.

Our operations involve the use, transportation and disposal of toxic, hazardous and/or radioactive materials and could result in liability without
regard to fault or negligence.

Our operations involve the use, transportation, and disposal of toxic, hazardous and/or radioactive materials. A release of these materials could pose a health
risk to humans or animals. If an accident were to occur, its severity would depend on the volume of the release and the speed of corrective action taken by
emergency response personnel, as well as other factors beyond our control, such as weather and wind conditions. Actions taken in response to an actual or
suspected release of these materials, including a precautionary evacuation, could result in significant costs for which we could be legally responsible. In addition
to health risks, a release of these materials may cause damage to, or the loss of, property and may adversely affect property values. Additionally, we may be
responsible for D&D of facilities where we conduct, or previously conducted, operations. Activities of our contractors, suppliers or other counterparties similarly
may involve toxic, hazardous, and radioactive materials and we may be liable contractually, or under applicable law, to contribute to remedy damages or other
costs arising from such activities, including the D&D of third-party facilities.

We lease facilities from the DOE near Piketon. Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, as well as the HALEU Operation Contract, the DOE has agreed to
indemnify the Company’s subsidiaries who are party to those agreements, and other Company entities who fall under the definition of a person indemnified
under the Atomic Energy Act, against claims for public liability (as defined in the Atomic Energy Act) arising out of or in connection with activities under those
leases and the HALEU Operation Contract, as applicable, resulting from a nuclear incident or precautionary evacuation including transportation. While the Price-
Anderson Act requires DOE to provide this indemnity whenever a contract involves a risk of nuclear liability, DOE may take the position that it is not obligated to
enter into new indemnification agreements where it is obtaining goods and services under certain types of contracts. If an incident or evacuation is not covered
under DOE indemnification, we could be financially liable for damages arising from such incident or evacuation, which could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Even where the DOE has provided indemnification pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, there could be delays in obtaining reimbursement for costs from the

DOE and the DOE may also determine that some or all costs are not reimbursable under the indemnification. In addition, the Price-Anderson Act indemnification
does not cover loss or damage due to a nuclear incident to property located on the leased facilities.
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Centrus and Enrichment Corp. have been named as defendants in lawsuits alleging damages resulting from releases at the facilities we leased in the past at
the Portsmouth GDP, and the centrifuge facilities we still lease near Piketon. These claims include allegations of damages that the plaintiffs assert are not
covered by the Price-Anderson Act, which claims we and the other defendants have challenged. If the DOE were to determine that the Price-Anderson Act did
not apply, we would have to pay all or part of any damages awarded as a result of such claims, and the cost to us, including legal fees, could adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition. Refer to Note 17, Commitments and Contingencies — Legal Matters, of our Consolidated Financial Statements
in Part IV of this Annual Report for further details.

The authority of the DOE to enter into new indemnification agreements under the Price-Anderson Act expires at the end of 2025If it is not renewed by
Congress before the expiration date, indemnification clauses in agreements executed by DOE before expiration of the Price-Anderson Act remain in force but
DOE could not include an indemnification clause in new contracts. Absent authority under the Price-Anderson Act, DOE could rely on other authorities that
permit DOE to enter into indemnification agreements on a case by case basis, but there would be no assurance that DOE would enter into such agreements with
Centrus or its subsidiaries.

Absent indemnification, Centrus and its subsidiaries could seek commercial insurance to cover nuclear risks, but insurance typically is not available for work
done on legacy DOE sites, such as the Piketon facilities. Further, even if insurance were available, the amounts would be very small compared to the amount
covered by the DOE indemnification clause. If Centrus could not obtain adequate protection from nuclear risks through a DOE indemnification, it may be forced
to forego new business with DOE, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

In our contracts with any party where there is a risk of nuclear liability, we seek to include clauses that limit our liability as one measure to protect ourselves,
including at locations where the Price-Anderson Act indemnification does not apply, such as at the commercial facilities where we receive or hold enriched and
natural uranium, or deliver such material to customers, during transportation between such locations, or at the commercial facilities where such material is
processed or used, but there is no assurance that such contractual limitations on liability will be effective in all cases. Further, for protection at the reactors of our
U.S. customers, the Price-Anderson Act also is instrumental in providing a foundation for required protection of the utility’s suppliers, including Centrus, from
nuclear liability risks. Accordingly, the effectiveness of liability allocation in contracts with utilities depends, in large measure, on the continuation of the nuclear
protection afforded by the Price-Anderson Act and its implementation by the NRC.

Nuclear liability is a significant risk in all of our activities involving enriched uranium and other nuclear material and related goods and services.The costs of
defending against a claim arising out of a nuclear incident or precautionary evacuation, and any damages awarded as a result of such a claim, could be very
high and, even if indemnified, could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to equity securities held (beneficially or of record) by foreign persons. If levels of
foreign ownership set forth in our certificate of incorporation are exceeded, we have the right, among other things, to redeem or exchange common
stock held by foreign persons, and in certain cases, the applicable redemption price or exchange value may be equal to the lower of fair market value
or a foreign person’s purchase price.

Our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to shares of our Common Stock held (beneficially or of record) by foreign persons. Foreign
persons are defined in our certificate of incorporation to include, among others, an individual who is not a U.S. citizen, an entity that is organized under the laws
of a non-U.S. jurisdiction and an entity that is controlled by individuals who are not U.S. citizens, or by entities that are organized under the laws of non-U.S.
jurisdictions.
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The occurrence of any one or more of the following events is a “foreign ownership review event” and triggers the board of directors’ right to take various
actions under our certificate of incorporation: (1) the beneficial ownership by a foreign person of (a) 5% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of any
class of our equity securities, (b) 5% or more in voting power of the issued and outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities, or (c) less than 5% of
the issued and outstanding shares of any class of our equity securities or less than 5% of the voting power of the issued and outstanding shares of all classes of
our equity securities, if such foreign person is entitled to control the appointment and tenure of any of our management positions or any director; (2) the
beneficial ownership of any shares of any class of our equity securities by or for the account of a foreign uranium enrichment provider or a foreign competitor
(defined in our certificate of incorporation as a “Contravening Person”); or (3) any ownership of, or exercise of rights with respect to, shares of any class of our
equity securities or other exercise or attempt to exercise control of us that is inconsistent with, or in violation of, any regulatory restrictions, or that could
jeopardize the continued operations of our facilities (defined in our certificate of incorporation as an “Adverse Regulatory Occurrence”). These rights include
requesting information from holders (or proposed holders) of our securities, refusing to permit the transfer of securities by such holders, suspending or limiting
voting rights of such holders, redeeming or exchanging shares of our stock owned by such holders on terms set forth in our certificate of incorporation, and
taking other actions that we deem necessary or appropriate to ensure compliance with the foreign ownership restrictions.

The terms and conditions of our rights with respect to our redemption or exchange right in respect of shares held by foreign persons or Contravening Persons
are as follows:

* Redemption price or exchange value: Generally, the redemption price or exchange value for any shares of our Common Stock redeemed or exchanged
would be their fair market value. However, if we redeem or exchange shares held by foreign persons or Contravening Persons and our Board in good
faith determines that such person knew or should have known that its ownership would constitute a foreign ownership review event (other than shares for
which our Board determined at the time of the person’s purchase that the ownership of, or exercise of rights with respect to, such shares did not at such
time constitute an Adverse Regulatory Occurrence), the redemption price or exchange value is required to be the lesser of fair market value and the
person’s purchase price for the shares redeemed or exchanged.

« Form of payment: Cash, securities or a combination, valued by our Board in good faith.
* Notice: At least 30 days written notice of redemption is required; however, if we have deposited the cash or securities for the redemption or exchange in
trust for the benefit of the relevant holders, we may redeem shares held by such holders on the same day that we provide notice.

Accordingly, there are situations in which a foreign stockholder or Contravening Person could lose the right to vote its shares or in which we may redeem or
exchange shares held by a foreign person or Contravening Person and in which such redemption or exchange could be at the lesser of fair market value and the
person’s purchase price for the shares redeemed or exchanged, which could result in a significant loss for that person.
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General Risk Factors

Failures to protect classified or other sensitive information, or cybersecurity incidents could result in significant liability or otherwise have an
adverse effect on our business.

Our business requires us to use and protect classified, sensitive, and other protected information as well as business proprietary information and intellectual
property (collectively, “sensitive information”). Our computer networks and other IT systems are designed to protect this information through the use of classified
networks and other procedures. We routinely experience various cybersecurity incidents, including threats to our information technology infrastructure,
unauthorized attempts to gain access to the Company’s sensitive information, and denial-of-service attacks, as do our customers, suppliers, subcontractors, and
other business partners. The threats we face vary from attacks common to most industries to attacks by more advanced and persistent, highly organized
adversaries, including nation states, which target us and other government contractors because we possess sensitive information. If we are unable to protect
sensitive information, our customers or governmental authorities could question the adequacy of our threat mitigation and detection processes and procedures,
and depending on the severity of the incident, U.S. government data, the Company’s data, customers’ data, our employees’ data, our intellectual property, and
other sensitive information could be compromised. As a consequence of the persistence, sophistication, and volume of these attacks, we may not be successful
in defending against all such attacks. Due to the evolving nature of these security threats and the national security aspects of much of the sensitive information
we possess, the impact of any future incident cannot be predicted.

We have a number of suppliers and indirect suppliers with a wide variety of systems and cybersecurity capabilities and we may not be successful in
preventing adversaries from exploiting possible weak links in our supply chain. We also must rely on this supply chain for detecting and reporting cyber
incidents, which could affect our ability to report or respond to cybersecurity incidents in a timely manner. The costs related to cyber or other security threats or
disruptions may not be fully insured or indemnified by other means.

A material network breach in the security of the IT systems of the Company or third parties for any reason, including, but not limited to, human error, could
include the theft of sensitive information, including, without limitation, our and our customers’ business proprietary and intellectual property. To the extent any
security breach or human error results in a loss or damage to sensitive information, or an inappropriate or unauthorized disclosure of sensitive information, the
breach could cause grave damage to the country’s national security and to our business. Threats, via insider threat or third parties, to our IT systems, are
constantly evolving and there is no assurance that our efforts to maintain and improve our IT systems will be sufficient to meet current or future threats. Any
event leading to a security breach or loss of, or damage to, sensitive information, whether by our employees or third parties, could result in negative publicity,
significant remediation costs, legal liability, and damage to our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, and cash flows. In an extreme case, the DOE could terminate our permit to access classified information resulting in the elimination of our ability to
continue American Centrifuge work or performance of DOE contracts, including the HALEU Operation Contract.

The inability to attract and retain key personnel could have an adverse impact on our business.

The Company’s LEU and Technical Services segments require people with unique skills and experience in the uranium enrichment industry. It also requires
people with U.S. security clearances. To train employees and obtain the required U.S. security clearances for them can take considerable time and expense.
The success of our business depends on key executives, managers, scientists, engineers and other skilled personnel. The ability to attract and retain these key
personnel may be difficult in light of the uncertainties currently facing the business and changes we may make to the organizational structure to adjust to
changing circumstances.

Changes in senior management could create uncertainty among our employees, customers, suppliers, and other third parties with which we do business. The
inability to retain appropriately qualified and experienced senior executives could negatively affect our operations, strategic planning, and performance.
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The potential for the DOE to seek to terminate or exercise its remedies under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and our other agreements with DOE, or
to require modifications to such agreements that are adverse to our interests, may have adverse consequences on the Company.

The Company and the DOE signed the “2002 DOE-USEC Agreement”, which requires the Company to develop, demonstrate, and deploy advanced
enrichment technology in accordance with milestones and provides for remedies in the event of a failure to meet a milestone under certain circumstances. The
DOE has specific remedies under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement if we fail to meet a milestone or if we abandon or constructively abandon the commercial
deployment of an advanced enrichment technology. These remedies include terminating the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement, revoking our access to the DOE’s
centrifuge technology that is required for the success of the American Centrifuge project, terminating the HALEU Operation Contract or other projects, requiring
us to transfer certain rights in the American Centrifuge technology and facilities to the DOE, and requiring us to reimburse the DOE for certain costs associated
with the American Centrifuge project.

We have granted to the DOE an irrevocable, non-exclusive right to use or permit third parties on behalf of the DOE to use all Centrifuge IP royalty free for
U.S. government purposes (which includes national defense purposes, including providing nuclear material to operate commercial nuclear power reactors for
tritium production). We also granted an irrevocable, non-exclusive license to the DOE to use such Centrifuge IP developed at our expense for commercial
purposes (including a right to sublicense), which may be exercised only if we miss any of the milestones under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement or if we (or our
affiliate or entity acting through us) are no longer willing or able to proceed with, or have determined to abandon, or have constructively abandoned, the
commercial deployment of the centrifuge technology. Such a commercial purposes license is subject to payment of an agreed upon royalty to us, which will not
exceed $665 million in the aggregate. While our long-term objective is to commercially deploy the American Centrifuge technology when it is commercially
feasible to do so, the DOE may take the position that we are no longer willing or able to proceed with commercial deployment, or have actually, or constructively,
abandoned commercial deployment, and could invoke its rights under the license described above. Any of these actions could adversely impact our business
and prospects.

The DOE may seek to exercise remedies under these agreements and there is no assurance that the parties will be able to reach agreement on appropriate
modifications to the agreements in the future. Moreover, even if the parties reach agreement on modifications to such agreements, there is no assurance that
such modifications will not impose material additional requirements, provide the DOE with material additional rights or remedies, or otherwise affect the overall
economics of the American Centrifuge technology and our ability to finance and successfully deploy the technology. Any of these actions could adversely impact
our business and prospects.

Our U.S. government contract work is regularly reviewed and audited by the U.S. government and these reviews can lead to withholding or delay of
payments to us, non-receipt of award fees, legal actions, fines, penalties and liabilities, and other remedies against us.

Our U.S. government contracts and subcontracts are subject to specific regulations such as the Federal Acquisition Regulation, among others, and also
subject to audits, cost reviews, and investigations by the U.S. government contracting oversight agencies. Should a contracting agency determine that we have
not complied with the terms of our contracts and subcontracts and applicable statutes and regulations, payments to us may be disallowed, which could result in
adjustments to previously reported revenues and refunding of previously collected cash proceeds. Additionally, we may be subject to litigation brought by private
individuals on behalf of the U.S. government under the Federal False Claims Act, which could include claims for treble damages. If we experience performance
issues under any of our U.S. government contracts and subcontracts, the U.S. government retains the right to pursue remedies, which could include termination
under any affected contract. Termination of a contract or subcontract could adversely affect our ability to secure future contracts, and could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
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Our U.S. government contracts and subcontracts are dependent on continued U.S. government funding and government appropriations, which may
not be made on a timely basis or at all, and could have an adverse effect on our business.

Current and future U.S. government contracts and subcontracts, including our HALEU Operation Contract, are dependent on government funding, which are
generally subject to Congressional appropriations or continued government operations. Our ability to perform under these federal contracts and subcontracts is
dependent upon sufficient funding for, and timely payment by, the entities with which we have contracted. If the contracting governmental agency, or the prime
contractor, does not receive sufficient appropriations for any reason, including due to a government shutdown, it may terminate our contract or subcontract (in
whole or in part) or reduce the scope of our contract or subcontract, or delay or reduce payment to us. Any inability to award us a contract or subcontract, any
delay in payment, or the termination of a contract or subcontract, in whole or in part, due to a lapse in funding or otherwise, could adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations, or cash flows.

Changes to, or termination of, any agreements with the U.S. government, or deterioration in our relationship with the U.S. government, could
adversely affect results of operations.

We are a party to a number of agreements and arrangements with the U.S. government that are important to our business including our HALEU Operation
Contract, the lease for the centrifuge facility near Piketon, and the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement. Termination, expiration, or modification of one or more of these
or other agreements could adversely affect our business and prospects. In addition, deterioration in our relationship with the U.S. agencies that are parties to
these agreements could impair or impede our ability to successfully implement these agreements, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition
or results of operations, or cash flows.

Our success depends on our ability to adapt to a rapidly changing competitive environment in the nuclear industry.

Changes in the competitive landscape may adversely affect pricing trends, change customer spending patterns, or create uncertainty. To address these
changes, we may seek to adjust our cost structure and operations, and evaluate opportunities to grow our business organically or through acquisitions and other
strategic transactions. We are actively considering, and expect to consider from time to time in the future, potential strategic transactions, which could involve,
without limitation, changes in our capital structure, acquisitions and/or dispositions of businesses or assets, joint ventures or investments in businesses,
products, or technologies. In connection with any such transaction, we may seek additional debt or equity financing, contribute or dispose of assets, assume
additional indebtedness, or partner with other parties to consummate a transaction. Any such transaction may not result in the intended benefits and could
involve significant commitments of our financial and other resources. Legal and consulting costs incurred in connection with debt or equity financing transactions
in development are deferred and subject to immediate expensing if such a transaction becomes less likely to occur. If the actions we take in response to industry
changes are not successful, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 1C. Cybersecurity

Managing cybersecurity risk is critical to Centrus. Centrus expects that the complexity of cybersecurity incidents will continue to evolve. To assess the
changing cyber environment, Centrus includes the evaluation of cybersecurity risk as part of its enterprise risk management process and provides periodic
reporting to the Board. Assessed risks, whether general or specific to the Company, include operational risk, intellectual property theft, fraud, extortion, harm to
employees or customers, violation of privacy laws and other litigation and legal risk, and reputational risk. This process includes evaluating risks from
cybersecurity threats associated with the Company’s use of third-party service providers.

To continually evaluate the sufficiency of Centrus’ cybersecurity posture, Centrus aligns with the National Institute of Standards and Technology
Cybersecurity Framework, has external experts complete assessments of Centrus’ cybersecurity posture, completes internal self-assessments and engages with
third-party experts for assistance in monitoring, deterring, detecting, and addressing potential breaches. The results of any internal or external assessment are
reported to senior management and the Board.

Based on our monitoring and evaluations to date, including any previously identified cybersecurity incidents, there has not been, and there is not reasonably
expected to be, a material effect on the Company’s business strategy, results of operations or financial condition, as a result of risks from cybersecurity threats.

Governance

Centrus has policies, procedures, and strategies in place to assist in assessing and managing cybersecurity risks. To help safeguard the Company’s network
and information maintained on that network, the Company maintains and executes a cybersecurity program designed to monitor, prevent, detect, mitigate, and
remediate cyberattacks.

The Board exercises its oversight of material risks from cybersecurity threats through the Board’s Audit and Finance Committee and the Board’s Technology,
Competition and Regulatory Committee. The Chief Financial Officer has delegated the assessment and management of material risks from cybersecurity threats
to the Cybersecurity Risk Committee which is comprised of members of senior management, including the Director, Information Technology. The Cybersecurity
Risk Committee regularly provides those delegating oversight with updates on the Company’s cybersecurity program which includes the current cybersecurity
risk landscape and efforts employed to assist in preventing those risks, the Company’s cybersecurity policies and practices, the ongoing efforts to improve
security, as well as the Company'’s efforts regarding significant cybersecurity events. In addition, the Company maintains a cybersecurity incident response plan,
which includes the Company’s processes for monitoring, preventing, detecting, mitigating, remediating, and recovery from cybersecurity incidents that is updated
regularly. Disclosure with regard to a cybersecurity incident will be considered by the Cybersecurity Risk Committee, with material issues raised with our Board.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters is located at 6901 Rockledge Drive, Suite 800, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, where we lease 24,000 square feet of office space
through October 2027. Our Bethesda, Maryland location is also utilized by our LEU and Technical Solutions segments. We own a 440,000 square foot
manufacturing facility, including supporting office space, on 72 acres at 400 Centrifuge Way, Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830. We also lease industrial buildings
and 110,000 square feet of supporting office space from DOE at 3930 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohio 45661. The industrial buildings encompass more than
14 acres under roof and were built to contain uranium enrichment operations using centrifuge technology. Our Oak Ridge, Tennessee and Piketon, Ohio facilities
support our Technical Solutions segment. We also have a short-term lease for a small area of office space in Washington, D.C. which is used by one of our
corporate functions. We maintain our facilities in good operating condition and believe they are adequate for our present needs and the foreseeable future.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Refer to Note 17, Commitments and Contingencies — Legal Matters, of our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company’s certificate of incorporation authorizes 100,000,000 shares of common stock, consisting of 70,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and
30,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, As of February 1, 2024, the Company has issued 15,675,634 shares of Common Stock, consisting of 14,956,434
shares of Class A Common Stock and 719,200 shares of Class B Common Stock. The Class B Common Stock was issued to Toshiba America Nuclear Energy
Corporation and Babcock & Wilcox Investment Company and has the same rights, powers, preferences and restrictions and ranks equally in all matters with the
Class A Common Stock, except voting. Holders of Class B Common Stock are currently entitled to elect, in the aggregate, one member of the Board of Directors
of the Company, subject to certain holding requirements. Additionally, the Company has reserved 1,900,000 shares of Class A Common Stock under its
management incentive plan, of which 561,704 shares were available for future awards as of December 31, 2023, including 120,000 shares associated with
awards which terminated or were cancelled without being exercised.

The Class A Common Stock trades on the NYSE American LLC under the symbol “LEU".

As of February 1, 2024, there were approximately 727 holders of record and approximately 23,771 beneficial owners of the Company’s Class A Common
Stock. As of February 1, 2024, there were two holders of record of the Company’s Class B Common Stock.

No cash dividends were paid in 2023 or 2022, and we have no intention to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The indenture governing our 8.25%
Notes, subject to certain exceptions, places certain restrictions on the ability of Enrichment Corp. to transfer cash and other assets to us. This could act as a
constraint on our ability to pay dividends on our Class A Common Stock.

On February 2, 2021, the Company offered and sold to Kulayba LLC the Warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, exercisable
immediately at an exercise price of $21.62 per share. On December 29, 2022, the Company amended and restated the Warrant to extend the term to February
5, 2024 (as so amended and restated, the New Warrant). On December 18, 2023, the Company issued 149,179 net shares of Class A Common Stock in
connection with the cashless exercise by Kulayba LLC of the New Warrant for 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $21.62.

There were no other unregistered sales of equity securities by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, or 2021.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of cumulative total returns for an investment in the Class A Common Stock of Centrus, the S&P 500 Index, and the
S&P Aerospace and Defense (A&D) Index. The graph reflects the investment of $100 on December 31, 2018, in Class A Common Stock, the S&P 500 Index
and the S&P A&D Index, and reflects the reinvestment of dividends. The stock price performance included in the graph below is not indicative of future stock
performance. Notwithstanding anything set forth in any of our previous filings under the Securities and Exchange Act, which might be incorporated into future
filings in whole or part, including this Form 10-K, the following performance graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any such filings.
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Matters Affecting our Foreign Stockholders

In order to aid in our compliance with our NRC license, our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to shares of our Common Stock
held (beneficially or of record) by foreign persons. Foreign persons are defined in our certificate of incorporation to include, among others, an individual who is
not a U.S. citizen, an entity that is organized under the laws of a non-U.S. jurisdiction, and an entity that is controlled by individuals who are not U.S. citizens or
by entities that are organized under the laws of non-U.S. jurisdictions.
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The occurrence of any one or more of the following events is a “foreign ownership review event” and triggers the board of directors’ right to take various
actions under our certificate of incorporation: (1) the beneficial ownership by a foreign person of (a) 5% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of any
class of our equity securities, (b) 5% or more in voting power of the issued and outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities, or (c) less than 5% of
the issued and outstanding shares of any class of our equity securities or less than 5% of the voting power of the issued and outstanding shares of all classes of
our equity securities, if such foreign person is entitled to control the appointment and tenure of any of our management positions or any director; (2) the
beneficial ownership of any shares of any class of our equity securities by or for the account of a foreign uranium enrichment provider or a foreign competitor
(referred to as “contravening persons”); or (3) any ownership of, or exercise of rights with respect to, shares of any class of our equity securities or other exercise
or attempt to exercise control of us that is inconsistent with, or in violation of, any regulatory restrictions, or that could jeopardize the continued operations of our
facilities (an “adverse regulatory occurrence”). These rights include requesting information from holders (or proposed holders) of our securities, refusing to
permit the transfer of securities by such holders, suspending or limiting voting rights of such holders, redeeming or exchanging shares of our stock owned by
such holders on terms set forth in our certificate of incorporation, and taking other actions that we deem necessary or appropriate to ensure compliance with the
foreign ownership restrictions.

For information regarding the foreign ownership restrictions set forth in our certificate of incorporation, please refer to — Part |, Item 1ARisk Factors - Our
certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to equity securities held (beneficially or of record) by foreign persons. If levels of foreign ownership
set forth in our certificate of incorporation are exceeded, we have the right, among other things, to redeem or exchange common stock held by foreign persons,
and in certain cases, the applicable redemption price or exchange value may be equal to the lower of fair market value or a foreign person’s purchase price.

Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes appearing elsewhere in this report.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ significantly from the results discussed in
the forward-looking statements particularly in light of the economic, social and market uncertainty created by, among other things, the war in Ukraine. See
“Forward-Looking Statements” at the beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Centrus, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”, “we” or “us”), is a trusted supplier of nuclear fuel components and services for the nuclear power industry,
which provides a reliable source of carbon-free energy. References to “Centrus”, the “Company”, “our”, or “we” include Centrus Energy Corp. and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries as well as the predecessor to Centrus, unless the context indicates otherwise.

Published spot price indicators for SWU reached historic highs in April 2009 at $163 per SWU. In the years following the 2011 Fukushima accident in Japan,
spot prices declined more than 75%, bottoming out in August 2018 at $34 per SWU. This was followed by a slow and steady rise, reaching $56 per SWU by
December 31, 2021. In 2022, spot prices increased substantially, reaching $110 per SWU by December 31, 2022. In 2023, spot prices continued to increase,
reaching $155 per SWU by December 31, 2023. This represents an increase of 41% since the beginning of the year and 356% over the 2018 historic low. This
sudden surge in the SWU spot price has been driven by uncertainty created as a result of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, coupled with growing interest in nuclear
power as a source of secure and carbon-free energy.

When Russian supply is included, the uranium enrichment segment of the global nuclear fuel market is oversupplied, but without Russian supply, the global
market would be undersupplied for uranium enrichment. Further, it is not clear that there are sufficient inventories of enriched uranium in the United States to
compensate for a loss of Russian supply, absent new capacity that will take a number of years to deploy. A report issued by the International Atomic Energy
Agency in 2023, for example, reported that while U.S. utilities may have enough inventory to cover one reload of their reactors, “truly strategic physical
stockpiles are almost non-existent.”?

Changes in the supply-demand balance and in the competitive landscape arising from the war in Ukraine may affect pricing trends, change customer
spending patterns, and create uncertainty in the uranium market. At the same time, there remains uncertainty about future demand for nuclear power generation.
To address these changes, we will continue to evaluate opportunities to grow our business organically or through acquisitions and other strategic transactions.

Under the HALEU Demonstration Contract, Centrus was engaged by the DOE to construct a cascade of 16 AC100M centrifuges in Piketon to demonstrate
HALEU production. The Company’s goal under the HALEU Demonstration Contract was to complete the demonstration and scale up production of HALEU and
LEU, to meet the needs of new and existing reactors as well as national security and other U.S. government requirements for enriched uranium. The HALEU
Demonstration Contract was originally set to expire on June 1, 2022; however, it was extended through November 30, 2022. The Company is currently
performing closeout activities on the HALEU Demonstration Contract. The DOE elected to change the scope of the HALEU Demonstration Contract and moved
the operational portion of the demonstration to a new, competitively-awarded contract that would provide for operations beyond the term of the existing HALEU
Demonstration Contract. The DOE has incrementally increased funds on the HALEU Demonstration Contract with total funding to date of $173.0 million.

2 International Atomic Energy Agency, “Global Inventories of Secondary Uranium Supplies” (IAEA-TECDOC-2030), p. 54 (2023).
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On November 10, 2022, after a competitive solicitation, the DOE notified Centrus that the Company had won the HALEU Operation Contract and work began
December 1, 2022. The base contract value is approximately $150 million in two phases through 2024. Phase 1 included an approximately $30 million cost
share contribution from Centrus matched by approximately $30 million from the DOE to complete construction of the cascade, begin operations and produce the
initial 20 kilograms of HALEU UFs by no later than December 31, 2023.

Phase 2 of the contract includes continued operations and maintenance, and production for a full year at an annual production rate of 900 kilograms of
HALEU UFe. The DOE will own the HALEU produced from the demonstration cascade and Centrus will be compensated on a cost-plus-incentive-fee basis, with
an expected Phase 2 contract value of approximately $90 million, subject to Congressional appropriations. The HALEU Operation Contract also gives DOE
three 3-year options to pay for up to nine additional years of production from the cascade beyond the base contract; those options are at the DOE’s sole
discretion and subject to the availability of Congressional appropriations. Concurrently, pursuant to an amendment to our lease for the Piketon facility, the DOE
assumed all D&D liabilities arising out of the HALEU Operation Contract.

Under the HALEU Operation Contract, DOE is contractually required to provide the 5B Cylinders necessary for us to collect the output of the cascade, but
supply chain challenges have created difficulties for DOE in securing 5B Cylinders for the entire production year. To support the DOE in mitigating the risk of
further delays in delivery of 5B Cylinders, the Company received technical direction and a contract modification from the DOE to procure compliant 5B Cylinders
and components while the contractual obligation to furnish compliant 5B Cylinders under the HALEU Operation Contract continues to rest with the DOE. During
periods where 5B Cylinders are insufficient, the Company will not be able to produce HALEU, but will be able to continue operations of the cascade and perform
preventive maintenance and regulatory compliance type activities. Centrus anticipates that the delays in obtaining sufficient 5B Cylinders will be temporary, but
no longer expects to achieve delivery of the 900 kilograms of HALEU UFs anticipated for Phase 2 of the contract which extends through November 2024. The
target fee for Phase 2 of the contract had been estimated to be $7.5 million based on the estimated costs for the contract and is subject to a contract minimum
fee of $6.9 million. The Company is also performing additional work on infrastructure and facility repairs under DOE'’s technical direction and subsequent
contract modification. For further details refer to Item 1 - Business - Technical Solutions - Government Contracting.

On February 9, 2023, the Company announced that construction and initial testing of the demonstration cascade and most of the support systems were
complete. On June 12, 2023, following the completion of its operational readiness reviews, the NRC issued a letter authorizing the Company to introduce
uranium hexafluoride into the HALEU cascade of centrifuges. This was a critical milestone in advancing toward the production of HALEU and the final NRC
approval required before starting enrichment operations. During the third quarter of 2023, the Company completed construction of the remaining support
systems, including a fissile materials storage area, for HALEU storage. On September 6, 2023, the Company announced that it was conducting final system
tests and other preparations so that production of HALEU could begin. On September 21, 2023, the NRC granted final approval for the company to produce the
quantity of HALEU required by Phase 1 of the contract. On October 11, 2023, the Company announced that it began enrichment operations in Piketon, Ohio. On
November 7, 2023, the Company announced that it made its first delivery of HALEU to the DOE, completing Phase 1 by successfully demonstrating its HALEU
production process. During November 2023, the Company transitioned to Phase 2 of the HALEU Operation Contract.
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The DOE is contemplating awarding additional contracts to ensure availability of HALEU for the ARDP and for the advanced reactor market in general, and
received a $700 million congressional appropriation from the Inflation Reduction Act as a first step in establishing a domestic supply chain for HALEU. On June
5, 2023, the DOE issued two draft requests for proposals (“RFPs”) seeking public comment, the first focusing on production of HALEU and the second focusing
on deconversion of HALEU into different forms used to fabricate fuels needed by various advanced reactor developers. Centrus submitted comments in
response to the draft RFPs to ensure the RFPs promote deployment of HALEU capacity to meet U.S. commercial and government needs for HALEU produced
with U.S. technology. On November 28, 2023, the DOE issued an RFP focusing on deconversion of HALEU and on January 9, 2024, issued an RFP focusing on
the production of HALEU. The Company expects to bid on both RFPs, with the goal of expanding HALEU production capability at the Piketon facility, subject to,
among other things, availability of funding and/or offtake commitments.

The war in Ukraine has contributed to a significant increase in market prices for enrichment and prompted calls for public and private investment in new,
domestic uranium enrichment capacity not only for HALEU production but also for LEU production to support the existing fleet of reactors. As a result, Centrus is
exploring the opportunity to deploy LEU enrichment alongside HALEU enrichment to meet a range of commercial and U.S. government requirements, which
would bring cost synergies while increasing revenue opportunities. Our ability to deploy LEU and/or HALEU enrichment, and the timing, sequencing, and scale of
those capabilities, is subject to the availability of funding and/or offtake commitments.

The Energy Act of 2020, which was signed into law in December 2020, requires the DOE to establish a program to support the availability of HALEU for
civilian domestic research, development, demonstration, and commercial use. The Energy Act also reauthorized DOE nuclear energy research, development,
demonstration, and commercial application activities, including advanced fuel, research and development for advanced reactors, used fuel technologies, and
integration of nuclear energy systems for both existing plants and advanced nuclear concepts. It also authorized the funding of an ARDP which was launched by
the DOE in May 2020. There are a number of advanced reactors under development that would use HALEU. Nine of the ten advanced reactor designs selected
by the DOE for its ARDP will require HALEU. Various agencies of the U.S. government, including the U.S. Department of Defense, the Defense Advanced
Research Projects Agency, and the DOE supporting the development of microreactors which demonstrates the focus on both the development of microreactors
and the ultimate need for HALEU. We believe our investments in advanced enrichment technology and our progress in demonstrating HALEU production will
position the Company to meet the needs of government and commercial customers in the future as they deploy advanced reactors and next generation fuels and
also offers potential cost synergies for a return to LEU production. Further, the Company is taking steps to pursue, including through the exploration of strategic
partnerships, technologies that are complementary to HALEU production and critical to the HALEU ecosystem, including deconversion and fuel fabrication.

While the monthly price indicators have increased for several years, the uranium enrichment segment of the nuclear fuel market remains oversupplied and
faces uncertainty about future demand for nuclear power generation. However, without Russian supply, the global market would be undersupplied for uranium
enrichment. Changes in the competitive landscape affect pricing trends, change customer spending patterns, and create uncertainty. To address these changes,
we have taken steps to adjust our cost structure; we may seek further adjustments to our cost structure and operations and evaluate opportunities to grow our
business organically or through acquisitions and other strategic transactions.

We are also actively considering, and expect to consider from time to time in the future, potential strategic transactions, which could involve, without limitation,
acquisitions and/or dispositions of businesses or assets, joint ventures or investments in businesses, products or technologies, or changes to our capital
structure. In connection with any such transaction, we may seek additional debt or equity financing, contribute or dispose of assets, assume additional
indebtedness, or partner with other parties to consummate a transaction.

Refer to Part |, Item 1 -Business, for additional information.
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Market Conditions and Outlook

The global nuclear industry outlook has begun to improve after many years of decline and stagnation. The development of advanced small and large-scale
reactors, innovative advanced fuel types, and the commitment of nations to begin deploying or to increase the share of nuclear power in their nations has
created optimism in the market. Part of the momentum has resulted from efforts to lower greenhouse gas emissions to combat climate change and improve
health and safety.

According to the WNA, as of January 2024, there were approximately 60 reactors under construction worldwide, about a third of which are in China. The
United States, with over 90 operating reactors, remains the world’s largest market for nuclear fuel. The nuclear industry in the United States, Japan, and Europe
faces headwinds as well as opportunities. In the United States, the industry has been under pressure from the expansion of subsidized renewable energy as well
as relatively low-cost natural gas resources in recent years, although natural gas prices in the U.S. electricity sector tripled between 2020 and 2022 according to
data from the EIA. Twelve U.S. reactors have prematurely shut down in the past ten years and others could shut down in the next few years. At the same time,
one large reactor is under construction, and the DOE recently released a report outlining a pathway to deployment of approximately 200 gigawatts of additional
capacity by 2050 which would triple the nuclear energy capacity in the United States.

The IEA projects that global nuclear energy generation will grow substantially in the next three decades. In the IEA’s 2023World Energy Outlook, nuclear
generation is forecasted to grow by 25 percent by 2030 and 45 percent by 2040 under the “Stated Policies” scenario. In the “Net Zero Emissions by 2050”
scenario, nuclear generation would grow by 47 percent by 2030 and more than double by 2040.
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As a consequence of the March 2011 earthquake and tsunami in Japan, over 60 reactors in Japan and Germany were taken offline, and other countries
curtailed or slowed their construction of new reactors or accelerated the retirement of existing plants. Eleven reactors in Japan have restarted and additional
reactors are expected to restart through 2024; more of Japan’s reactors are expected to restart in subsequent years. Due to the war in Ukraine, the EU is
encouraging its member countries to reconsider the planned early retirement of existing plants in order to reduce reliance on Russian gas imports.

In October 2020, the DOC reached an agreement with the Russian Federation on an extension of the RSA, a trade agreement which allows for Russian-origin
nuclear fuel to be exported to the United States in limited quantities. The two parties agreed to extend the agreement through 2040 and to set aside a significant
portion of the annual quota for Centrus’ shipments to the United States through 2028 to execute our long-term TENEX Supply Contract with TENEX. This
outcome allows for sufficient quota for Centrus to continue serving its utility customers and support its investments in building new capacity. Use of this quota is
subject to compliance with limitations under the RSA. These limitations include a requirement that we return UFg to TENEX for the LEU we receive under the
TENEX Supply Contract at approximately the same time that we deliver the LEU to our customers. Our ability to meet this requirement depends on the capacity
or willingness of the facilities where natural uranium is supplied to us by customers, to allow us to deliver this natural uranium to TENEX. We were recently
notified by one facility that it will no longer receive natural uranium for TENEX. As a result, we will need to rely to a greater extent on deliveries at other
processors or explore other options in order to comply with the RSA’s natural uranium delivery requirement.

On July 13, 2023, the Company and TerraPower, LLC (“TerraPower”) entered into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) to expand their collaboration
aimed at establishing commercial-scale, domestic production capabilities for HALEU to fuel the Natrium TM reactor that TerraPower is building in Wyoming.
Under this MOU, the Company and TerraPower will explore collaboration to ensure the Natrium demonstration reactor has access to HALEU at the milestones
necessary to meet the project's 2030 operation date. Subject to a definitive agreement to be negotiated, Centrus would work toward scaling up production
capacity with additional centrifuge cascades to meet TerraPower's fuel requirements.

On August 28, 2023, the Company and Oklo Inc. (“Oklo”) announced a new MOU to support the deployment of Oklo’s advanced fission powerhouses and
advanced nuclear fuel production in Southern Ohio subject to a definitive agreement to be negotiated. Oklo and Centrus plan to enter into a broad range of
collaboration programs supporting the development and operation of Oklo’s Aurora powerhouses, including supply of HALEU produced by Centrus at the
Piketon, Ohio facility. Centrus also intends to buy clean, reliable, and affordable energy from Oklo’s planned Ohio plants to power its HALEU production facility.

The war in Ukraine has escalated tensions between Russia and the international community. As a result, the United States and other countries have
imposed, and may continue imposing, additional sanctions and export controls against certain Russian products, services, organizations and/or individuals.
While sanctions imposed to date do not preclude the import of Russian uranium products into the United States, it is possible that additional restrictions could be
added in the future that would affect our ability to purchase and re-sell Russian uranium enrichment, or implement the TENEX Supply Contract, which could have
a negative material impact on our business. Further, sanctions by the United States, Russia or other countries may impact our ability and cost to transport,
export, import, take delivery, or make payments related to the LEU we purchase and may require us to increase purchases from non-Russian sources to the
extent available. For example, due to restrictions imposed by Canada on the ability of Canadian persons and entities to provide ocean transportation services to
Russia, a permit is required for our shipper, a Canadian company, to transport the LEU that we procure under the TENEX Supply Contract to the United States.
A Canadian permit issued to our shipper was recently extended to early July 2024, but for so long as the sanctions remain in place, the shipper will require
further extensions for us to continue to use the shipper for imports of this LEU beyond July 2024.
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In response to the war in Ukraine, there have been proposals in U.S. Congress and elsewhere to ban imports of uranium products that could affect our ability
to import LEU in one or more years under the TENEX Supply Contract. In December 2023, for example, the U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 1042,
the “Prohibiting Russian Uranium Imports Act”, that, if enacted into law, would ban imports of LEU from Russia beginning ninety (90) days after the date of
enactment. Any U.S. ban on imports of Russian LEU would represent a significant risk to our business. Through 2027, well over one-half of the LEU that we
expect to deliver to customers will come from material supplied to us under the TENEX Supply Contract. While we have other sources, they are not sufficient to
replace the TENEX supply. Accordingly, if the current proposals in Congress are adopted, we would apply for waivers from the Secretary of Energy to allow us
to continue supplying our customers, which are uncertain to be granted at this time. Refer to Part 1, Item 1- Business and Item 1A - Risk Factors, Operational
Risks and - War in Ukraine Risks, for further discussion.

In addition to limitations targeted specifically at imports of LEU, the expanding sanctions imposed by the United States and foreign governments on the
mechanisms used to make payments to Russia and to obtain services including transportation and other services have increased the risk that implementation of
the TENEX Supply Contract may be disrupted in the future.

Given all the foregoing, we continue to monitor the situation closely and assess the potential impact of any new sanctions and how the impact on the
Company might be mitigated.

For further discussion of these risks and uncertainties, refer to Part |, ltem 1A,Risk Factors - The current war in Ukraine and related international sanctions
and restrictions on trade could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Operating Results

Our revenues, operating results, and cash flows can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and year to year.Our Order Book in the LEU segment
consists primarily of long-term, fixed commitment contracts, and we have visibility on a significant portion of our revenue for 2024-2026.

Given the current uncertainty and disruption in the market, due to among other things, the war in Ukraine, we are no longer providing guidance on our results
of operations for 2024. Please see Forward Looking Statements at the beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our Order Book in the LEU segment extends to 2030. As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, our Order Book was approximately $1.0 billion. The
Order Book is the estimated aggregate dollar amount of revenue for future SWU and uranium deliveries, and includes approximately $0.3 billion of deferred
revenue and advances from customers as of December 31, 2023, whereby customers have made advance payments to be applied against future deliveries. No
orders in our Order Book are considered at risk related to customer operations. These medium and long-term contracts are subject to significant risks and
uncertainties, including existing import laws and restrictions, such as the RSA, which limits imports of Russian uranium products into the United States and
applies to our sales using material procured under the TENEX Supply Contract as well as the potential for additional sanctions and other restrictions in response
to the evolving situation regarding the war in Ukraine.

Our future operating results are subject to uncertainties that could affect results either positively or negatively. Among the factors that could affect our results
are the following:

* Armed conflicts, including the war in Ukraine, government actions and other events or third-party actions that disrupt supply chains, production,
transportation, payments, and importation of nuclear materials or other critical supplies or services;

* The potential for sanctions and other measures affecting the importation, sales or purchases of SWU or uranium or goods or services required for the
purchase or delivery of such SWU or uranium;
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* The availability and terms of additional purchases or sales of SWU and uranium;

« Conditions in the LEU and energy markets, including pricing, demand, operations, government restrictions on imports, exports or investments, and
regulations of our business and activities and those of our customers, suppliers, contractors, and subcontractors;

« Timing of customer orders, related deliveries, and purchases of LEU or LEU components;

e Costs of and future funding and demand for HALEU;

« Financial market conditions and other factors that may affect pension and benefit liabilities and the value of related assets;
« The outcome of legal proceedings and other contingencies;

» Potential use of cash for strategic or financial initiatives;

» Actions taken by customers and suppliers, including actions that might affect existing contracts;

* The government's inability to satisfy its obligations, including supplying government furnished equipment under its agreements with the Company or
processing security clearances due to a shutdown or other reasons; and

* Market, international trade, and other conditions impacting Centrus’ customers and the industry.

For further discussion of these risks and uncertainties, refer to Part |, Item 1A,Risk Factors.
Revenue

We have two reportable segments: the LEU segment and the Technical Solutions segment.
Revenue from our LEU segment is derived primarily from:

« sales of the SWU component of LEU;
« sales of natural uranium hexafluoride, uranium concentrates or uranium conversion; and
« sales of enriched uranium product that include both the natural uranium hexafluoride and SWU components of LEU.

Our Technical Solutions segment reflects our technical, manufacturing, engineering, and operations services offered to public and private sector customers,
including engineering and testing activities as well as technical and resource support currently being performed by the Company. This includes the HALEU
Operation Contract and other contracts with public and private sector customers.

SWU and Uranium Sales

Revenue from our LEU segment accounted for approximately 84% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2023. The majority of our customers
are domestic and international utilities that operate nuclear power plants, with international sales constituting approximately 40% of revenue from our LEU
segment since 2021. Our agreements with electric utilities are primarily medium-term and long-term fixed-commitment contracts under which our customers are
obligated to purchase a specified quantity of the SWU component of LEU from us. Contracts where we sell both the SWU and natural uranium hexafluoride
components of LEU to utilities or where we sell natural uranium hexafluoride to utilities and other nuclear fuel related companies are generally shorter-term,
fixed-commitment contracts. Individual customer orders for the SWU component of LEU fulfilled in 2023 averaged approximately $7.1 million per order. As a
result, a relatively small shift in the timing of customer orders for LEU may cause significant variability in our operating results year over year.
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Utility customers, in general, have the option to make payment but defer receipt of SWU and uranium products purchased from Centrus beyond the
contractual sale period, resulting in the deferral of costs and revenue recognition. Refer to Note 2, Revenue and Contracts with Customers, in the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report for further details.

Our financial performance over time can be affected significantly by changes in prices for SWU and natural uranium hexafluoride. Market prices for SWU and
uranium hexafluoride significantly declined from 2011 until mid-2018, when they began to trend upward. More recently, market uncertainty in the wake of the
Russian invasion of Ukraine has driven SWU and uranium hexafluoride prices sharply higher. Since our Order Book includes contracts awarded to us in
previous years, the average SWU price billed to customers typically lags published price indicators by several years. While some newer sales reflect the low
prices prevalent in recent years, certain older contracts included in our Order Book have sales prices that are significantly above current market prices.

Recent proposals, including proposed U.S. legislation, to severely limit or cut off supply of LEU from Russia have drawn attention to the potential for
significant tightening of supplies in the market. Russian enrichment plants represent 44% of the world’s capacity, and Russian capacity significantly exceeds its
domestic needs. According to data from the WNA, the annual enrichment requirements of reactors worldwide outside of Russia vastly exceeds the available
supply of non-Russian enrichment, which potentially threatens the viability of some reactors, including those in the United States. While inventories and
increased production at non-Russian plants may mitigate the shortfall, these options would not fully replace Russian supply. Deployment of new capacity
ultimately could replace Russian enrichment but this capacity will take a number of years and significant funding from private or government sources to come
online.

The following chart summarizes long-term and spot SWU price indicators, and a spot price indicator for Uk, as published by TradeTech, LLC in Nuclear
Market Review:

SWU and Uranium Market Price Indicators*
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* Source: Nuclear Market Review, a TradeTech publication, www.uranium.info
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Our contracts with customers are denominated primarily in U.S. dollars, and, although revenue has not been materially affected by changes in the foreign
exchange rate of the U.S. dollar, we may have a competitive price advantage or disadvantage obtaining new contracts in a competitive bidding process
depending upon the weakness or strength of the U.S. dollar. Under a customer contract that commenced deliveries in 2023, payments are denominated in euros
and the payments are subject to exchange rate risk. Costs of our primary competitors are denominated in other currencies. Our contracts with suppliers are
primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. We have a SWU supply agreement that commenced in 2023, with prices payable in a combination of U.S. dollars and
euros, but with a contract-defined exchange rate.

On occasion, we will accept payment for SWU in the form of natural uranium hexafluoride. Revenue from the sale of SWU under such contracts is recognized
at the time LEU is delivered and is based on the fair value of the natural uranium hexafluoride at contract inception, or as the quantity of natural uranium
hexafluoride is finalized, if variable.

Cost of sales for SWU and uranium is based on the amount of SWU and uranium hexafluoride sold and delivered during the period and unit inventory costs.
Unit inventory costs are determined using the average cost method. Changes in purchase costs have an effect on inventory costs and cost of sales. Cost of
sales includes costs for inventory management at off-site licensed locations. Cost of sales also includes certain legacy costs related to former employees of the
Portsmouth GDP and Paducah GDP.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part
IV of this Annual Report, which were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. U.S. GAAP and related accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines
and interpretations with regard to a wide range of matters that are relevant to our business are complex and involve many subjective assumptions, estimates
and judgments that are, by their nature, subject to substantial risks and uncertainties. Critical accounting estimates are those that require management to make
assumptions about matters that are uncertain at the time the estimate is made and for which different estimates, often based on complex judgments,
probabilities and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable, but are inherently uncertain and unpredictable, could have a material impact on our operating
results and financial condition. It is also possible that other professionals, applying their own judgment to the same facts and circumstances, could develop and
support a range of alternative estimated amounts. We are also subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from estimated amounts,
such as the healthcare environment, legislation and regulation. Additionally, changes in accounting rules or their interpretation could significantly affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The sensitivity analyses used below are not intended to provide a reader with our predictions of the variability of the estimates used. Rather, the sensitivities
used are included to allow the reader to understand a general cause and effect of changes in estimates.

We have identified the following to be our critical accounting estimates:
Revenue Recognition - Technical Solutions

Revenue for the Technical Solutions segment is recognized over the contractual period as services are rendered. The Company recognizes revenue over
time as it performs on these contracts because of the continuous transfer of control to the customer.
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The Company determines the transaction price for each contract based on the consideration it expects to receive for the products or services being provided
under the contract. If transaction prices are not stated in the contract for each performance obligation, contractual prices are allocated to performance obligations
based on estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised services. For contracts with multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation based on the estimated standalone selling price of the product or service underlying each performance
obligation. The standalone selling price represents the amount the Company would sell the product or service to a customer on a standalone basis (i.e., not
bundled with any other products or services). The Company's contracts with the U.S. government are subject to the FAR and the price is typically based on
estimated or actual costs plus a reasonable profit margin. As a result of these regulations, the standalone selling price of products or services in the Company’s
contracts with the U.S. government are typically equal to the selling price stated in the contract. The Company does not contemplate future modifications,
including unexercised options until they become legally enforceable. Contracts may be subsequently modified to include changes in specifications, requirements
or price, which may create new or change existing enforceable rights and obligations. Depending on the nature of the modification, the Company considers
whether to account for the modification as an adjustment to the existing contract or as a separate contract.

In cases where the Company uses the cost-to-cost input method of progress for performance obligations, the extent of progress towards completion is
measured based on the proportion of direct costs incurred to date to the total estimated direct costs at completion of the performance obligation. Revenues are
recorded proportionally as costs are incurred. For performance obligations to provide services to the customer, revenue is recognized over time based on direct
costs incurred or the right to invoice method (in situations where the value transferred matches the Company’s billing rights) as the customer receives and
consumes the benefits.

Significant estimates and assumptions are made in estimating revenue under the cost-to-cost method and total estimated costs, including the estimated
contract profit/loss. At the outset of a long-term contract, the Company identifies and monitors risks to the achievement of the technical, schedule and cost
aspects of the contract, and assesses the effects of those risks on its estimates of revenue and total costs to complete the contract. The estimates consider the
technical requirements, schedule and costs. The initial estimated total costs for each contract considers risks surrounding the ability to achieve the technical
requirements, schedule and costs in the initial estimated total costs to complete the contract. Total estimated costs may decrease during the performance of the
contract if the Company successfully retires risks surrounding the technical, schedule and cost aspects of the contract. Conversely, total estimated costs may
increase if the estimated total costs to complete the contract increase. As a significant change in one or more estimates could affect the profitability of the
Company’s contracts, the Company reviews and updates its contract-related estimates regularly. When estimates of total costs at completion for an integrated,
construction type contract exceed total estimates of revenue to be earned on a performance obligation related to complex equipment or related services, a
provision for the remaining loss on the performance obligation is recognized in the period the loss is determined. Estimated costs are subject to change during
the performance period of the contract and may affect the estimated contract loss.

Asset Valuations

The accounting for SWU and uranium inventories includes estimates and judgments. SWU and uranium inventory costs are determined using the average
cost method. Inventories of SWU and uranium are valued at the lower of cost or NRV. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. The estimated selling price for SWU and uranium under contract is based on the pricing
terms of contracts in our Order Book. For uranium not under contract, the estimated selling price is based primarily on published price indicators at the balance
sheet date.
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Intangible assets originated from our reorganization and application of fresh start accounting as of September 30, 2014. The intangible assets represented the
fair value adjustment to the assets and liabilities for our LEU segment. The identifiable intangible assets relate to our Order Book and customer relationships.
The Order Book intangible asset is amortized as the Order Book valued at emergence is reduced, principally as a result of deliveries to customers. The customer
relationships intangible asset is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated average useful life of 15 years, with 5 % years of scheduled
amortization remaining. The aggregate net balance of identifiable intangible assets was $39.4 million as of December 31, 2023.

The carrying values of the intangible assets are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the intangible assets may not be fully recoverable. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. An impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset, or asset group exceeds its fair value.

Inherent in our fair value determinations are certain judgments and estimates, including projections of future cash flows, the discount rate reflecting the risk
inherent in future cash flows, the interpretation of current economic indicators and market valuations, and strategic plans with regard to operations. A change in
these underlying assumptions would cause a change in the results of the tests, which could cause the fair value of the intangible asset to be less than its
respective carrying amount.

Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Costs and Obligations

We provide retirement benefits to certain employees and retirees under defined benefit pension plans and postretirement health and life benefit plans. The
valuation of benefit obligations and costs is based on provisions of the plans and actuarial assumptions that involve judgments and estimates.

Assets and obligations related to our retiree benefit plans are remeasured each year as of the balance sheet date resulting in differences between actual and
projected results for the year. The Company has elected the accounting option to recognize these actuarial gains and losses in the statement of operations in
the fourth quarter. The alternative would be to amortize gains and losses into operating results over time. The Company'’s treatment of recognizing actuarial
gains and losses immediately is intended to increase transparency into how movements in plan assets and benefit obligations impact financial results.
Immediate recognition of such gains and losses in the statement of operations may cause significant fluctuations in our results of operations. In addition, an
interim remeasurement and recognition of gains or losses may be required for a plan during the year if lump sum payments exceed certain levels.

Components of retirement benefit expense/income other than service cost are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations asNonoperating
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income. These components consist primarily of the return on plan assets, offset by interest cost as the discounted present
value of benefit obligations nears payment. Results also reflect claims experience, changes in mortality and healthcare claim assumptions and changes in
market interest rates. Service cost is recognized in Cost of Sales (for the LEU segment) and Selling, General and Administrative expense.
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Nonoperating Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income netted to income of $23.2 million, $6.6 million, and $67.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2023, 2022, and 2021, including a net actuarial gain of $24.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, net actuarial loss of $7.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and net actuarial gain of $50.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the net actuarial
gain reflected favorable investment returns relative to the expected return assumption, partially offset by a decrease in interest rates from approximately 5.5% to
5.2%. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the net actuarial loss reflected unfavorable investment returns relative to the expected return assumption,
partially offset by an increase in interest rates from approximately 2.8% to 5.5%, favorable investment returns relative to the expected return assumption, and
healthcare claims assumption, partially offset by changes in mortality, healthcare costs trend assumptions, and claims experience. For the year ended
December 31, 2021, the net actuarial gain reflected an increase in interest rates from approximately 2.5% to 2.8%, favorable investment returns relative to the
expected return assumption, and healthcare claims assumption, partially offset by changes in mortality, healthcare costs trend assumptions, and claims
experience.

Changes in actuarial assumptions could impact the measurement of benefit obligations and benefit costs, as follows:

* The expected return on benefit plan assets is approximately 6.8% for 2024. The expected return is based on historical returns and expectations of future
returns for the composition of the plans’ equity and debt securities. A one-half percentage point decrease in the expected return on plan assets would
increase annual pension costs by $1.3 million in 2024. However, the net impact of any changes in the expected return on benefit plan assets on the final
benefit cost recognized for fiscal year 2024 would be $0 since the actual return on assets would effectively be reflected at December 31, 2024, under our
mark-to-market accounting methodology.

* The present value of pension obligations is calculated by discounting long-term obligations using a market interest rate. This discount rate is the
estimated rate at which the benefit obligations could be effectively settled on the measurement date and is based on yields of high quality fixed income
investments whose cash flows match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments of the plan. Discount rates of approximately 5.2% were used
as of December 31, 2023. A one-half percentage point reduction in the discount rate would increase the valuation of pension benefit obligations by $13.0
million and postretirement health and life benefit obligations by $3.7 million, and the resulting changes in the valuations would decrease the aggregate
service cost and interest cost components of annual pension costs and postretirement health and life benefit costs by $0.9 million and $0.3 million,
respectively.

* The healthcare costs trend rates are 7% projected in 2024 reducing to a final trend rate of 5% by 2032. The healthcare costs trend rate represents our
estimate of the annual rate of increase in the gross cost of providing benefits. The trend rate is a reflection of health care inflation assumptions, changes
in healthcare utilization and delivery patterns, technological advances, and changes in the health status of our plan participants.

Income Taxes
During the ordinary course of business, there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result, we recognize

tax liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Accounting standards prescribe a minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is required to meet before the related tax benefit may be recognized in the

financial statements. As of December 31, 2023, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, included in Other Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet in Part IV of this Annual Report, was $2.9 million and accrued interest and penalties totaled $0.3 million.
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Accounting for income taxes involves estimates and judgments relating to the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the future recoverability of deferred tax
assets. In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, we determine whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon generating sufficient taxable income in future years when deferred tax assets are recoverable or are
expected to reverse. Factors that may affect estimates of future taxable income include, but are not limited to, competition, changes in revenue, costs or profit
margins, market share, and developments related to the American Centrifuge technology. In practice, positive and negative evidence is reviewed with objective
evidence receiving greater weight. If, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that all, or some portion, of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized, we record a valuation allowance. The more negative evidence that exists, the more positive evidence is necessary and the more difficult it is to
support a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed for all, or some portion, of the deferred tax assets.

All available positive and negative evidence is analyzed quarterly to determine the amount of the valuation allowance. A full valuation allowance against the
federal and state net deferred assets was first recorded in the fourth quarter of 2011 because of significant losses and other negative evidence.

In the second quarter of 2020, the valuation allowance on the state net deferred tax assets for the LEU segment was released due to a return to profitability
that led to cumulative income for state income tax purposes. A full valuation allowance against the federal and state net deferred tax assets for the rest of the
business remained throughout 2020 because negative evidence, including cumulative losses, outweighed positive evidence.

In 2021, Centrus evaluated both positive and negative evidence that was objectively verifiable to determine the amount of the federal valuation allowance that
was required on Centrus’ federal deferred tax assets. Centrus considered both its achievement of sustained profitability and cumulative income in 2021, as well
as the forecasted income to be significant forms of positive evidence. Negative evidence included uncertainty in and the lack of objectively verifiable evidence
for profitability in later years when Centrus’ existing Order Book and supply contracts reach expiration in its LEU segment. In Centrus’ Technical Solutions
segment, negative evidence included uncertainty in the future funding of the HALEU enrichment facility and thus, no assumptions for the future funding of the
HALEU enrichment facility were included in the forecast model because it was not objectively verifiable. Centrus determined that the positive evidence
outweighed the negative evidence and supported a release of the federal valuation allowance. However, due to lack of objectively verifiable information in later
years, it was determined that forecasted future income was not sufficient to realize all the deferred tax assets. Therefore, Centrus recorded a $40.7 million partial
release of its federal valuation allowance in the fourth quarter of 2021. Based on an analysis of the positive and negative evidence, it was determined that no
change to the federal valuation allowance was necessary in 2022.

The Company evaluated both positive and negative evidence that was objectively verifiable to determine the amount of the federal valuation allowance that
was required on Centrus’ federal deferred tax assets. Centrus has visibility on a significant portion of revenue in the LEU segment for 2023 through 2026,
primarily from its long-term sales contracts. Centrus determined that the positive evidence of increased forecasted future income in the LEU segment based on
existing sales Order Book and supply contracts along with commodity market forward pricing indicators, supported the release of the federal valuation
allowance. However, due to lack of objectively verifiable information in later years, it was determined that forecasted future income was not sufficient to realize
all the deferred tax assets. Therefore, Centrus recorded a partial release of its federal valuation allowance. In the third and fourth quarters of 2023, respectively,
Centrus released $7.7 million and $11.7 million of the valuation allowance against its federal net deferred tax assets.

The Company continues to maintain a partial valuation allowance against its remaining federal and state net deferred tax assets due to significant federal and

state net operating losses and insufficient future taxable income. As of December 31, 2023, the valuation allowance against the remaining federal and state net
deferred tax assets was $382.4 million.
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Going forward, Centrus will continue to evaluate both positive and negative evidence that would require changes to the remaining federal and state valuation
allowances. Such evidence in our Technical Solutions segment may include events that could have a significant impact on pre-tax income, such as signing new
contracts with significantly higher or lower margins than currently forecasted, follow-on work related to the HALEU program, or abandonment of the commercial
deployment of the centrifuge technology. Refer to Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors for more information. Such evidence in our LEU segment may include renewing
SWU sales contracts with existing customers and/or signing new SWU sales or purchase contracts with significantly higher or lower margins than currently
forecasted. Additional evidence in the LEU segment may include potential deferrals in the timing of deliveries requested by its customers, which could impact
revenue recognition timing. The impact of these and other potential positive and negative events will be weighed and evaluated to determine if the valuation
allowances should be increased or decreased in the future.

Results of Operations

Set forth below are our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2023 compared with the year ended December 31, 2022. We have omitted
discussion of 2021 results where it would be redundant to the discussion previously included in Item 7 of our 2022 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the
SEC on February 22, 2023.

Segment Information

The following table presents elements of the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations that are categorized by segment (dollar amounts in
millions):

Year Ended December 31, 2023 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2022

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 $ Change % Change

LEU segment
Revenue:

SWU revenue $ 208.2 $ 196.2 $ 12.0 6 %

Uranium revenue 60.8 39.4 21.4 54 %

Total 269.0 235.6 334 14 %
Cost of sales 163.9 105.0 58.9 56 %
Gross profit $ 105.1 $ 130.6 $ (25.5) (200 %
Technical Solutions segment
Revenue $ 51.2 $ 58.2 $ (7.0) 12) %
Cost of sales 44.2 70.9 (26.7) (38) %
Gross profit (loss) $ 7.0 $ (12.7) $ 19.7 155 %
Total
Revenue $ 320.2 $ 293.8 $ 26.4 9 %
Cost of sales 208.1 175.9 32.2 18 %
Gross profit $ 1121 $ 117.9 $ (5.8) B) %
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Revenue

Revenue from the LEU segment was $269.0 million and $235.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an increase of $33.4
million (or 14%). SWU revenue increased $12.0 million (or 6%) due to a 37% increase in the volume of SWU sold, partially offset by a 23% decrease in the
average price of SWU sold. Uranium revenue increased $21.4 million (or 54%). The increase was driven by a 49% increase in the volume of UFs sold and a
18% increase in the average price of UFg sold. Revenue from sales of U3Og was $0 and $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Revenue from the Technical Solutions segment was $51.2 million and $58.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a
decrease of $7.0 million (or 12%). This decrease was driven by decreased work performed under the HALEU Demonstration Contract, other contracts, and the
X-energy contract of $45.4 million, $4.8 million, and $3.2 million, respectively. This was partially offset by increased work performed under the HALEU Operation
Contract of $46.4 million.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the LEU segment was $163.9 million and $105.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an increase of $58.9
million (or 56%). The volume of SWU and UF; sold increased by 37% and 49%, respectively, and the average SWU and UF; unit cost increased by 8% and
31%, respectively. Cost of sales of U3O0g was $0 and $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Cost of sales for the Technical Solutions segment was $44.2 million and $70.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a
decrease of $26.7 million (or 38%). This decrease was driven by decreased work performed under the HALEU Demonstration Contract, other contracts, and the
X-energy contract of $37.6 million, $6.3 million and $3.2 million, respectively. This was partially offset by an increase in work performed under the HALEU
Operation Contract of $20.4 million. The costs related to the HALEU Operation Contract for the year ended December 31, 2022 included the $21.3 million
accrued loss for Phase 1 of the HALEU Operation Contract. For details on HALEU Operation and Demonstration Contract accounting, refer to Technical
Solutions - Government Contracting above.

Gross Profit

The Company recognized a gross profit of $112.1 million and $117.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a decrease of
$5.8 million (or 5%).

Gross profit for the LEU segment was $105.1 million and $130.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a decrease of $25.5
million (or 20%). The decrease was due primarily due to the specific contract and pricing mix of SWU contracts and the timing of their deliveries year over year.
This was reflected by an increase in the volume of SWU sold and a decrease in the average profit margin per SWU.

Gross profit for the Technical Solutions segment was $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and netted to a loss of $12.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022, a change of $19.7 million (or 155%). The change was attributable to an increase in gross profit generated from the HALEU
Operation Contract and other contracts of $26.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, partially offset by a $7.8 million decrease in gross profit generated from
the HALEU Demonstration Contract.
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Non-Segment Information

The following table presents elements of the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations that are not categorized by segment (dollar amounts in
millions):

Year Ended December 31, 2023 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2022

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 $ Change % Change
Gross profit $ 112.1 $ 117.9 $ (5.8) B %
Advanced technology costs 14.2 14.8 (0.6) 4 %
Selling, general and administrative 35.6 33.9 1.7 5 %
Amortization of intangible assets 6.3 9.0 2.7) (30) %
Special charges for workforce reductions 3.6 0.5 3.1 620 %
Operating income 52.4 59.7 (7.3) 12) %
Nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income (23.2) (6.6) (16.6) (252) %
Interest expense 1.3 0.5 0.8 160 %
Investment income (8.7) (2.0) (6.7) (335) %
Other income, net (1.5) — (1.5) n/a
Income before income taxes 84.5 67.8 16.7 25 %
Income tax expense 0.1 15.6 (15.5) 99) %
Net income $ 84.4 $ 52.2 $ 32.2 62 %

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets was $6.3 million and $9.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a decrease of $2.7 million
(or 30%). Amortization expense for the intangible asset related to the September 2014 sales Order Book is a function of SWU sales volume under that Order
Book, and amortization expense for the intangible asset related to customer relationships is amortized on a straight-line basis.

Special Charges for Workforce Reductions
Special charges for workforce reductions was $3.6 million and $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an increase of $3.1
million (or 620%). Special charges for workforce reductions represents employee-related costs for severance and other related benefits. The increase was due

primarily to an increase in severance expense of $3.1 million. In December 2023, the Company recorded a severance charge of $3.6 million related to the
separation of one executive under the provisions of the Executive Severance Plan which provides severance benefits to certain covered executives.
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Nonoperating Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income

Nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income was $23.2 million and $6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an
increase of $16.6 million (or 252%). For the year ended December 31, 2023, nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income consist primarily of the
partial annuitization of one pension plan in October 2023 of ($28.6) million and other investment income and gains on plan assets of ($3.1) million, partially offset
by a decrease in discount rates of $8.5 million. For the year ended December 31, 2022, nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income consist
primarily of ($164.1) million related to an increase in discount rates, offset by a loss of $137.0 million on plan assets and $20.5 million of additional costs which
include interest costs amortized during the year.

Investment Income

Investment income was $8.7 million and $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an increase of $6.7 million (or 335%).
The Company’s investment income represents interest earned on operating cash, which is primarily held in money market accounts. The increase was due
primarily to an increase in interest rates.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $0.1 million and $15.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, a decrease to the income tax expense
of $15.5 million (or 99%). For the year ended December 31, 2023, income tax expense consists of federal income tax benefit of ($0.7) million, permanent
differences of $4.8 million, and state income tax expense of $0.8 million. For the year ended December 31, 2022, income tax expense consists of federal income
tax of $14.9 million, permanent differences of $3.5 million, and state income tax expense of $0.7 million. The state income tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, primarily relates to an accrual for a current unrecognized tax benefit offset by the reversal of a previously accrued unrecognized
tax benefit.

Net Income
Net income was $84.4 million and $52.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, an increase of $32.2 million (or 62%). The

increase was primarily driven by an increase in nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income of $16.6 million, a decrease in income tax expense of
$15.5 million, and an increase in investment income of $6.7 million, partially offset by a decrease in gross profit of $5.8 million.
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Net Income per Share
Refer to Note 15, Net Income per Common Share, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report.

The Company measures Net Income and Net Income per Share both on a GAAP basis and on an adjusted basis to exclude deemed dividends allocable to
retired preferred stock shares and the warrant modification (“Adjusted Net Income” and “Adjusted Net Income per Share”). We believe Adjusted Net Income and
Adjusted Net Income per Share, which are non-GAAP financial measures, provide investors with additional understanding of the Company’s financial
performance as well as its strategic financial planning analysis and period-to-period comparability. These metrics are useful to investors because they reflect
how management evaluates the Company’s ongoing operating performance from period-to-period after removing certain transactions and activities that affect
comparability of the metrics and are not reflective of the Company’s core operations.

Three Months Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Numerator (in millions):
Net income $ 56.3 $ 21.3 $ 116.2 $ 84.4 $ 52.2 $ 175.(
Less: Distributed earnings allocable to warrant modification — 15 — — 15 -
Less: Preferred stock dividends - undeclared and cumulative — — — — — 2.
Less: Distributed earnings allocable to retired preferred shares — — 31.0 — — 37.¢
Net income allocable to common stockholders $ 56.3 $ 19.8 $ 85.2 $ 84.4 $ 50.7 $ 135.0
Plus: Distributed earnings allocable to warrant modification $ — $ 15 $ — $ — $ 15 $ -
Plus: Distributed earnings allocable to retired preferred shares — — 31.0 — — 37.¢
Adjusted net income, including distributed earnings allocable to
retired preferred shares and warrant modification (Non-GAAP) $ 56.3 $ 21.3 $ 116.2 $ 84.4 $ 52.2 $ 172.¢
Denominator (in thousands) (a):
Average common shares outstanding - basic 15,461 14,648 13,873 15,212 14,601 13,49:
Average common shares outstanding - diluted 15,732 15,029 14,278 15,501 14,988 13,87¢
Net Income per Share (in dollars):
Basic $ 3.64 $ 1.35 $ 6.14 $ 5.55 $ 3.47 $ 10.0¢
Diluted $ 3.58 $ 1.32 $ 5.97 $ 5.44 $ 3.38 $ 9.7
Plus: Effect of distributed earnings allocable to retired preferred
shares and warrant modification, per common share (in dollars):
Basic $ — $ 0.10 $ 2.24 $ — $ 0.11 $ 2.7¢
Diluted $ = $ 0.10 $ 217 $ = $ 0.10 $ 2.7:
Adjusted Net Income per Share (Non-GAAP) (in dollars):
Basic $ 3.64 $ 1.45 $ 8.38 $ 5.55 $ 3.58 $ 12.8:
Diluted $ 3.58 $ 1.42 $ 8.14 $ 5.44 $ 3.48 $ 12.4¢

(a) For details related to average shares outstanding, refer to Note 15 Net Income Per Common Share, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had a consolidated cash balance of $201.2 million. In addition, the Company had $29.8 million of restricted cash
related to three inventory loans, which each required a cash deposit into an escrow fund. See Note 3, Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Report. The Company anticipates having adequate liquidity to support our business operations for at least
the next 12 months from the date of this Annual Report. Our view of liquidity is dependent on, among other things, conditions affecting our operations, including
market, international trade restrictions, sanctions and other conditions, the level of expenditures and government funding for our services contracts, and the
timing of customer payments. Liquidity requirements for our existing operations are affected primarily by the timing and amount of customer sales and our
inventory purchases.

We believe our Order Book in our LEU segment is a source of stability for our liquidity position. Subject to market conditions, we see the potential for growing
uncommitted demand for LEU during the next few years with accelerated open demand in 2025 and beyond.

Cash resources and net sales proceeds from our LEU segment fund technology costs that are outside of our customer contracts in the Technical Solutions
segment and general corporate expenses, including cash interest payments on our debt. We believe our investment in advanced U.S. uranium enrichment
technology will position the Company to meet the needs of our customers as they deploy advanced reactors and next generation fuels. We signed the three-year
HALEU Demonstration Contract with DOE in October 2019. Under the HALEU Demonstration Contract, the Company contributed its required contribution
through November 30, 2021. The program began May 31, 2019, when Centrus and the DOE signed a preliminary letter agreement that allowed work to begin
while the full contract was being finalized. Our HALEU Demonstration Contract period of performance ended in November 2022. The Company is currently
performing closeout activities on the HALEU Demonstration Contract.

We were awarded the HALEU Operation Contract in November 2022 which provided for a 50/50 cost share for Phase 1 of the base contract to complete the
cascade, begin operations and complete the initial, small quantity of demonstration HALEU. The Company completed Phase 1 in November 2023. Phase 2
includes continued operations and maintenance on a cost-plus-incentive-fee basis. Finally, the HALEU Operation Contract includes options for the government
to unilaterally extend performance for up to an additional nine years, comprised of three options of three years each, also on a cost-plus-incentive-fee basis. The
Company also is performing additional work on infrastructure and facility repairs and costs associated with 5B Cylinder refurbishment under the DOE'’s technical
direction. The Company’s goal is to modularly scale up the facility as demand for HALEU grows in the commercial and government sectors, subject to the
availability of funding and/or contracts to purchase the output of the plant.

Although the Company believes demand for HALEU will emerge over the next several years, there are no guarantees about whether or when government or
commercial demand for HALEU will materialize, and there are a number of technical, regulatory and economic hurdles that must be overcome for these fuels
and reactors to come to the market. For further discussion, refer to Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors.

If funding of gas centrifuge technology by the U.S. government is reduced or discontinued, or we are not awarded a future DOE contract to continue to
operate the cascade, such actions may have a material adverse impact on our ability to deploy the American Centrifuge technology and on our liquidity.

Further, any proposal for a U.S. ban on LEU imports represents a significant risk to our business as we currently rely on the TENEX Supply Contract as the

major supply source to meet our delivery obligations. A ban on LEU imports could have a material impact on our operations and liquidity. For further discussion,
please see Part |, Item 1A, Risk Factors.
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The indenture governing the 8.25% Notes includes restrictions on the ability of Enrichment Corp. to transfer cash and other assets to the Company, which
could constrain the Company’s ability to pay dividends on its Common Stock or to fund its commitments or the commitments of its other subsidiaries, subject to
certain exceptions, such as the transfer of inventory and other assets in the ordinary course of business of Enrichment Corp. The indenture also restricts the
Company’s ability to engage in certain mergers or acquisitions and requires the Company to offer to repurchase all such outstanding notes at 101% of their
outstanding principal amount in the event of certain change of control events.

Capital expenditures of approximately $7.0 million are anticipated over the next 12 months.

On October 12, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with an insurer (“Insurer”) for one of its defined benefit plans to purchase a group annuity
contract and transferred approximately $186.5 million of its pension plan obligations to the Insurer. The purchase of the group annuity contract was funded
directly by assets of the pension plan of approximately $171.4 million. The purchase resulted in a transfer of benefit administrative responsibilities for
approximately 1,400 beneficiaries effective December 1, 2023. The Company recorded income related to the pension settlement in the fourth quarter of $28.6
million which was included in Nonoperating Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We are also actively considering, and expect to consider potential strategic transactions from time to time, which at any given time may be in various stages
of discussions, diligence, or negotiation. These could involve, without limitation, acquisitions and/or dispositions of businesses or assets, joint ventures or
investments in businesses, products or technologies, or changes to our capital structure. In connection with any such transaction, we would seek to satisfy these
needs through a combination of working capital, cash generated from operations or additional debt or equity financing.

The change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash from our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows are as follows on a summarized basis (in
millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022
Cash provided by operating activities $ 9.1 $ 20.6
Cash used in investing activities (1.6) (0.7)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 13.9 (4.3)
Increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 214 3 15.6

Operating Activities

During 2023, net cash provided by operating activities was $9.1 million. The net increase was primarily due to approximately $318.0 million in cash collected
from customers, investment income, and reimbursements for postretirement health and life benefits paid by the Company. These cash inflows were partially
offset by approximately $309.0 million of disbursements for operations, of which approximately $245.0 million relates to payments for LEU inventory deliveries
and cash outflows for the Technical Solutions segment, with the remaining disbursements including corporate administration, benefits claims, and advanced
technology costs.

During 2022, net cash provided by operating activities was $20.6 million. The net increase was primarily due to $252.0 million in cash collected from

customers, offset by $159.1 million of payments for LEU inventory deliveries and cash outflows for the Technical Solutions segment. This remaining difference
was primarily related to payments for benefit claims, corporate administration, and advance technology costs.
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Investing Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, investing activities consisted of capital expenditures of $1.6 million and $0.7 million, respectively.
Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2023, cash of $23.2 million was provided from the net proceeds related to the issuance of 722,568 shares of Class A
Common Stock under an ATM offering.

For both the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, annual payments of $6.1 million of interest classified as debt are classified as a financing activity.
Refer to Note 8, Debt, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report regarding the accounting for the 8.25% Notes.

Working Capital
The following table summarizes the Company’s working capital (in millions):

December 31,

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2012 % 179.9
Accounts receivable 49.4 38.1
Inventories, net 222.1 148.4
Current debt (6.1) (6.1)
Deferred revenue and advances from customers, net of deferred costs (165.0) (137.5)
Other current assets and liabilities, net (87.3) (84.9)

Working capital $ 2143 % 137.9

We are managing our working capital to seek to improve the long-term value of our LEU and Technical Solutions segments and are planning to continue
funding the Company’s qualified pension plans because we believe that is in the best interest of all stakeholders. We expect that any other uses of working
capital will be undertaken in light of these strategic priorities and will be based on the Company’s determination as to the relative strength of its operating
performance and prospects, financial position, and expected liquidity requirements. In addition, we expect that any such other uses of working capital will be
subject to compliance with contractual restrictions to which the Company and its subsidiaries are subject, including the terms and conditions of our 8.25% Notes.

We continually evaluate alternatives to manage our capital structure, and may opportunistically repurchase, exchange, or redeem Company securities from time
to time.

Common Stock Issuance

Pursuant to a sales agreement with its agents, the Company sold through at the market offerings an aggregate of 722,568 shares, 99,090 shares, and
1,516,467 shares of its Class A Common Stock for a total of $24.4 million, $3.8 million, and $44.2 million in 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. After expenses
and commissions paid to the agents the Company’s 2023, 2022, and 2021, proceeds totaled $23.4 million, $3.6 million, and $42.4 million, respectively.
Additionally, the Company recorded direct costs of $0.2 million and $0.3 million related to the issuance in 2023 and 2021, respectively. The shares of Class A
Common Stock were issued pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-239242), which became effective on August 5,
2020, and two prospectus supplements dated December 31, 2020 and December 5, 2022, respectively. The Company has used and/or intends to use the net
proceeds from these offerings for working capital and general corporate purposes including, but not limited to, capital expenditures, working capital, investment
in technology development and deployment, repayment of indebtedness, potential acquisitions and other business opportunities.

71



On February 2, 2021, the Company entered into the Voting Agreement Amendment to its existing Voting and Nomination Agreement with the MB Group and
an Exchange Agreement, whereby the MB Group agreed to support management’s recommendation on certain matters at the Company’s 2021 Annual Meeting
and Kulayba LLC agreed to exchange shares of Preferred Stock for shares of Class A Common Stock and a warrant to acquire additional shares of Class A
Common Stock. Pursuant to the First Amendment to the Voting and Nomination Agreement, the MB Group agreed to cause all shares of Class A Common
Stock owned of record or beneficially owned by the MB Group at the Annual Meeting to be voted in favor of (i) an amendment to extend the length of the term of
the Company'’s Section 382 Rights Agreement dated as of April 6, 2016, as amended to date, for two years from June 30, 2021, to June 30, 2023, and (ii) an
increase of shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for delivery under the Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended to date, of an additional
700,000 shares of Class A Common Stock.

In connection with the entry into the Voting Agreement Amendment, the Company and Kulayba LLC also entered into the Exchange Agreement, pursuant to
which Kulayba LLC agreed to the Exchange, representing a $5,000,198 liquidation preference (including accrued and unpaid dividends), for (i) 231,276 shares
of Class A Common Stock priced at the closing market price of $21.62 on the date the Exchange Agreement was signed and (ii) the Warrant, exercisable for
250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $21.62 per share, which was the closing market price on the date the Exchange Agreement
was signed, subject to certain customary adjustments pursuant to the terms of the Warrant. The Warrant was exercisable by Kulayba LLC for a period
commencing on the closing date of the Exchange and ending, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Warrant, on the first to occur of: (a) the second
anniversary of the closing date of the Exchange or (b) the last business day immediately prior to the consummation of a Fundamental Transaction (as defined in
the Warrant), which results in the shareholders of the Company immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction owning less than 50% of the voting equity of
the surviving entity immediately after the consummation of the Fundamental Transaction. The Company retired the 3,873 shares of Preferred Stock received by
the Company under the Exchange Agreement.

On December 29, 2022, the Company amended and restated the Warrant, and entered into a Voting Rights Agreement with the MB Group. Pursuant to the
terms of the Voting Rights Agreement, each member of the MB Group and each Permitted Transferee (as defined in the Voting Rights Agreement) agreed, at
the Company’s 2023 and 2024 Annual Meetings and at any other vote by the holders of the Company’s Common Stock, to (i) cause, in the case of all Common
Stock owned of record, and (i) instruct and cause the record owner, in the case of all shares of Common Stock of which MB Group is a Beneficial Owner (as
defined in the Voting Rights Agreement), but not owned of record, directly or indirectly, by it, or by any MB Affiliate (as defined in the Voting Rights Agreement),
as of the applicable record date, in each case entitled to (i) be present for quorum purposes, and (ii) vote, as follows: (a) for all directors nominated by the Board
for election, (b) for all other proposals, in accordance with the recommendation of the Board, and (c) for any Company proposed adjournments thereof. In
addition, each member of the MB Group agreed to not directly or indirectly gift, sell, dispose or otherwise transfer any shares of Common Stock unless the
transferee agreed to be bound to the same voting conditions at the 2023 and 2024 Annual Meetings, and other meetings in 2023 and 2024, except with respect
to any sale or disposition of Common Stock on a national securities exchange or any sale or disposition of Common Stock underlying the New Warrant to any
person that is not affiliated, associated or otherwise related to any member of the MB Group. In exchange, the Company agreed to amend and restate that
Warrant, to extend the term of the Warrant to February 5, 2024, subject to the other terms of the Warrant (as so amended and restated, the New Warrant).
Immaterial amendments were made on October 17, 2022.

On December 18, 2023, the Company issued 149,179 net shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the cashless exercise by Kulayba LLC of the
New Warrant for 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $21.62.

72



2023 Shelf Registration

The Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (Registration Statement No. 333-272984) with the SEC on June 28, 2023, which became
effective on July 10, 2023. Pursuant to this shelf registration statement, the Company may offer and sell up to $200 million in securities, in aggregate. The
Company retains broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds from the sale of the securities offered. Unless otherwise specified in any prospectus
supplement, we currently intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities offered under this prospectus for working capital and general corporate
purposes including, but not limited to, capital expenditures, working capital, repayment of indebtedness, potential acquisitions and other business opportunities.
Pending any specific application, we may initially invest funds in short-term marketable securities or apply them to the reduction of indebtedness.

Rights Agreement

On June 20, 2023, the Company entered into a Fifth Amendment to the Rights Agreement, which amends the Rights Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2016,
by and among the Company, and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. and Computershare Inc., as rights agent, as amended by (i) the First Amendment to the
Rights Agreement dated as of February 14, 2017, (ii) the Second Amendment to the Rights Agreement dated as of April 3, 2019, (jii) the Third Amendment to
the Rights Agreement dated as of April 13, 2020, and (iv) the Fourth Amendment to the Rights Agreement dated as of June 16, 2021.

The Fifth Amendment to the Rights Agreement (i) increases the purchase price for each one one-thousandth (1/1000th) of a share of the Company’s Series A
Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share, from $18.00 to $160.38; and (ii) extends the Final Expiration Date (as defined in the Rights
Agreement) from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2026.

The Fifth Amendment was not adopted as a result of, or in response to, any effort to acquire control of the Company. The Fifth Amendment has been adopted
in order to preserve for the Company'’s stockholders the long-term value of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards for United States federal income tax
purposes and other tax benefits.

Capital Structure and Financial Resources

Interest on the 8.25% Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears as of February 28 and August 31 based on a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months. The 8.25% Notes are guaranteed on a subordinated and limited basis by, and secured by substantially all assets of, Enrichment Corp. The 8.25% Notes
mature on February 28, 2027. Additional terms and conditions of the 8.25% Notes are described in Note 8, Debt, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Part IV of this Annual Report.

2021 Tender Offer

On October 20, 2021, the Company announced the commencement of a tender offer to purchase all of its outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock, par
value $1.00 per share (the “Series B Senior Preferred Stock”), at a price of $1,145.20 per share (inclusive of any rights to accrued but unpaid dividends), to the
sellers in cash, less any applicable withholding taxes (the “Offer”). The Offer was made pursuant to the Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO filed by the
Company on October 20, 2021, with the SEC. The aggregate liquidation preference per Series B Senior Preferred Stock (including accrued but unpaid
dividends) was $1,347.29 as of September 30, 2021.
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On November 23, 2021, the Company announced the results of the tender offer and the related Consent Solicitation to amend the certificate of designation of
the Series B Senior Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Amendment”). 36,867 shares of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock were properly tendered and
not properly withdrawn in the Offer, and corresponding consents have been delivered in the Consent Solicitation. Pursuant to the terms of the Offer and Consent
Solicitation, the Company has accepted for purchase all of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock tendered in the Offer, for an aggregate purchase price of $42.2
million. The accepted shares represent 97.4% of the Company’s outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock as of September 30, 2021. Based on the final
results, the requisite consent of at least 90% of the outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock required to approve the Series B Preferred Amendment was
obtained. On November 23, 2021, the Company issued a Notice of Full Redemption providing for the redemption of any and all shares Series B Senior Preferred
Stock outstanding after consummation of the Company’s tender offer to purchase all of its issued and outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock. On
December 15, 2021, the Company completed the redemption of all 980 outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock for aggregate cash consideration of $1.1
million. The aggregate purchase price of $43.3 million was offset by direct costs totaling $0.9 million.

The effect of the Series B Preferred Amendment was to: (i) cease any obligation to pay dividends on Series B Senior Preferred Stock (other than the payment
of accrued dividends in connection with a redemption or distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up), (ii) permit the Company to redeem
Series B Senior Preferred Stock during the 90 days following the date of effectiveness of the Series B Preferred Amendment at a redemption price per share
equal to $1,145.20 (plus any additional accrued dividends for the period from and including the date of effectiveness of the Series B Preferred Amendment to
the date of redemption), (iii) remove the prohibition on the declaration and payment of dividends on junior stock of the Company, which includes all shares of the
Company’s capital stock defined as “Common Stock” in the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, or the redemption, purchase or
acquisition of such junior stock, and (iv) remove the restriction on redemption, purchase or acquisition of capital stock of the Company ranking on parity with the
Series B Senior Preferred Stock.

On December 16, 2021, the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock of Centrus Energy Corp. with the Secretary of
State of Delaware to eliminate the designation of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock and to return all shares of preferred stock of the Company previously
designated as Series B Senior Preferred Stock to authorized but unissued and undesignated shares of preferred stock of the Company.

Contractual Commitments

As of December 31, 2023, Centrus had contractual commitments to repay debt, make payments under operating leases, settle obligations related to
agreements to purchase goods and services and settle tax and other liabilities.

Centrus has obligations related to our 8.25% Notes that mature in February 2027, as discussed above. We are also obligated to make payments under
operating leases that expire at various dates through 2027. Refer to Note 9, Leases, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report
for further information.

In our Technical Solutions segment, the majority of our contractual commitments were entered into as a result of contracts we have with our U.S. government
customers. The U.S. government generally would be required to pay us for any costs we incur relative to these commitments if they were to terminate the
related contracts “for convenience” under the FAR, subject to available funding. This also would be true in cases where we perform subcontract work for a prime
contractor under a U.S. government contract. The termination for convenience language also may be included in contracts with foreign, state and local
governments. We also have contracts with customers that do not include termination for convenience provisions, including contracts with commercial
customers.
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In our LEU segment, we have long-term inventory purchase agreements with TENEX and Orano that extend to 2028 and 2030, respectively. Refer to Note
17, Commitments and Contingencies, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report for additional information. In addition, Centrus
has entered into multiple inventory loans that we expect to repay from 2024 through 2026. Refer to Note 4, Inventories, of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part IV of this Annual Report for additional information.

DOE Technology License

We have a non-exclusive license in DOE inventions that pertains to enriching uranium using gas centrifuge technology. The license agreement with the DOE
provides for annual royalty payments based on a varying percentage (1% up to 2%) of our annual revenues from sales of the SWU component of LEU produced
by the Company using DOE centrifuge technology. There is a minimum annual royalty payment of $100,000 and the maximum cumulative royalty over the life of
the license is $100 million. There is currently no commercial enrichment facility producing LEU using DOE centrifuge technology. We are continuing to advance
our U.S. centrifuge technology that has evolved from DOE inventions at specialized technology and manufacturing facilities in Oak Ridge with a view to
deploying a commercial enrichment facility over the long term once market conditions recover.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than our SWU purchase commitments and the license agreement with the DOE relating to the American Centrifuge technology, there were no material
off-balance sheet arrangements at December 31, 2023.

New Accounting Standards

Reference is made to New Accounting Standards in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV
of this Annual Report for information on new accounting standards.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative trading purposes, nor do we currently hedge our exposure to any market risk.
Interest Rate Risk

We have financial instruments that are subject to interest rate risk, primarily our 8.25% Notes. As of December 31, 2023, we have $ 95.7 million of debt
related to our 8.25% Notes, with a fair value of approximately $ 71.7 million. The terms of our 8.25% Notes do not generally allow investors to demand we pay
off these obligations prior to maturity. Therefore, we do not have significant exposure to interest rate risk on our 8.25% Notes. However, we do have exposure to
fair value risk if we repurchase or exchange the 8.25% Notes prior to maturity.

Inflation Risk

The global macroeconomic environment has experienced, and continues to experience, extraordinary challenges, including the highest rates of inflation in
recent years. These macroeconomic factors have contributed, and we expect will continue to contribute, to increased costs, among other concerns. We cannot
predict how long these inflationary pressures will continue, or how they may change over time, but we expect to see continued impacts on the global economy,
our customers, our industry and our company.

We have generally been able to anticipate increases in costs when pricing our contracts. In our Technical Solutions segment, contracts typically include
assumptions for labor, material, and overhead cost escalations and are typically executed on a cost-plus basis. In our LEU segment, bids for longer-term
contracts typically include assumptions for shipping and handling cost escalations in amounts that historically have been sufficient to cover cost increases over
the delivery periods.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our contracts with customers and suppliers are denominated primarily in U.S. dollars. On occasion, we will accept payments in euros for spot sales that may
be subject to short-term exchange risk. Half of our Orano Supply Agreement is denominated in euros, exchanged at a fixed rate. We have one customer
contract that commenced deliveries in 2023 and extends to 2026 where payments are denominated in euros that may be subject to exchange rate risk. If the
euro strengthens against the dollar by approximately 20% and nears its highest value over the past 10 years, it will have a negative cash flow impact on the
contract of less than 10%. Since the substantial majority of our business is conducted in U.S. dollars, a 20% change in the euro would not have a material impact
to our financial condition or results of operations.

Commodity Price Risk

Commaodity price risk is associated with price movements resulting from changes in supply and demand, fuel costs, market liquidity, weather conditions,
governmental regulatory and environmental policies, and other factors. Centrus procures SWU and uranium through long-term and short-term contracts as well
as spot market purchases. Similarly, Centrus sells SWU and uranium through long-term and short-term contracts as well as spot sales. The Company’s
purchase agreements are subject to fluctuations in market prices. Prices for the Company’s purchase agreements are generally determined by formulas using a
combination of fixed and market-related pricing with more favorable pricing on the fixed price component as well as a pricing ceiling for the market-related
component on its Orano Supply Agreement. Furthermore, the Company also has a substantial portion of its purchase order book committed under fixed price
sales agreements with more recent arrangements reflecting higher market pricing based upon improved market conditions. As such, the Company believes any
changes in the prices of SWU and uranium do not create material market risk as the Company has a natural hedge in its purchase arrangements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements, together with related notes and the reports of our independent registered public accounting firms, are set forth in Part
IV, Item 15 of this Annual Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Centrus maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by Centrus in reports it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow for
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

As of December 31, 2023, the end of the period covered by this report, our management performed an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule
13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) of the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, and under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer and effected by the Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.

Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023. This evaluation was
based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013). Based on this assessment, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2023.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2023, that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None of our directors or executive officers adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as defined in
Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K) during the fourth quarter of 2023.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information regarding executive officers is included in Part | of this Annual Report. Additional information concerning directors, executive officers and
corporate governance appearing under the captions Proposal 1. Election of Directors, in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting
of stockholders, which will be filed no later than 120 days after December 31, 2023 (the “2024 Proxy Statement”), is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a COBC that applies to our employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer, as
well as to members of our board of directors. Our COBC provides a brief summary of the standards of conduct that are at the foundation of our business
operations. The COBC states that we conduct our business in strict compliance with all applicable laws. Each employee must read the COBC and sign a form
stating that he or she has read, understands and agrees to comply with the COBC. A copy of the COBC is available in the Corporate Governance section of our
website at www.centrusenergy.com or upon request without charge. We will disclose on the website any amendments to, or waivers from, the COBC that are
required to be publicly disclosed.

The Company has also adopted the Centrus Energy Corp. Securities Trading and Confidentiality Policies and Procedures which governs the purchase, sale
and/or other disposition of the Company's securities, including its Class A Common Stock, by its directors, officers and employees that is reasonably designed to
promote compliance with applicable insider trading laws, rules and regulations. A copy of this policy is filed as Exhibit 19 to this Annual Report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning executive and director compensation appearing under the captions Compensation Discussion & Analysis and Compensation of
Directors, respectively, in the 2024 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management appearing under the captionSecurity Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management in the 2024 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Information concerning the common stock that may be issued under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated in June 2021) appearing under
the caption Equity Compensation Plan Information in the 2024 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions and director independence appearing under the captions Transactions with Related
Persons, and Director Independence in the 2024 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information concerning principal accounting fees and services appearing under the caption Audit and Non-Audit Fees in the 2024 Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@) (1) Consolidated Financial Statements

Reference is made to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are required to be filed as part of this Annual Report.

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this report and such Exhibit Index is incorporated
herein by reference. The accompanying Exhibit Index identifies each management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as
an exhibit to this report.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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Exhibit No.

1.1

1.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

4.6

4.7

4.8

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Centrus Energy Corp. Common Stock (par value $0.10 per share) At Market Issuance Sales Agreement
dated December 31, 2020, by and among the Company. B. Riley Securities, Inc. and Lake Street
Capital Markets, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on December 31, 2020).

Amended No. 1 to At Market Issuance Sales Agreement dated December 5, 2022, by and among the
Company, B. Riley Securities, Inc. and Lake Street Capital Markets, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 1.2 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed
with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Centrus Energy Corp. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on September
30, 2014).

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Centrus Energy Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, filed with the
SEC on March 31, 2017).

Preferred Stock of Centrus Energy Corp. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 7, 2016).

Indenture by and among Centrus Energy Corp., as Issuer, United States Enrichment Corporation, as
Note Guarantor and Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee and Collateral Agent, dated as of September
30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed

with the SEC on September 30, 2014).

Supplemental Indenture by and among Centrus Energy Corp., as Issuer, United States Enrichment
Corporation, as Note Guarantor and Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee and Collateral Agent (filed as
Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 15, 2017).

Pledge and Security Agreement by and among Delaware Trust Company, as Collateral Agent, and
United States Enrichment Corporation, dated as of September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on September 30, 2014).

Note Subordination Agreement by and among United States Enrichment Corporation and Delaware
Trust Company. as Trustee, dated as of September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on September 30, 2014).

Outstanding Notes Note Subordination Agreement by and among United States Enrichment Corporation
and Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of February 14, 2017 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.6 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 15, 2017).

Rights Agreement dated as of April 6, 2016, among Centrus Energy Corp., Computershare Inc.
(“Computershare™) and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., together with Computershare, as Rights
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 7, 2016).

Form of Rights Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 7, 2016).

Form of First Amendment to Section 382 Rights Agreement by and between Centrus Energy Corp.
Computershare Trust Company, N.A. and Computershare Inc., to be dated on or about February 7
2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with

the SEC on January 5, 2017).
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000110465920141044/tm2039081d3_ex1-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_12x12312022xsale.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_12x12312022xsale.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505916000072/ex3-1_20160406a.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000119312514358622/d797579dex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-5.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000119312514358617/d797579dex42.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000119312514358617/d797579dex43.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-6.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505916000072/ex4-1_20160406a.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505916000072/ex4-2_20160406a.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505917000002/ex41_20170105.htm

4.9

4.10

411

4.14

4.15

4.17

4.18

Indenture by and among Centrus Energy Corp., as Issuer, United States Enrichment Corporation, as
Note Guarantor and Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee and Collateral Agent, dated as of February
14, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the SEC on February 15, 2017).

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2017 by and among Delaware Trust
Company, as Collateral Agent, and United States Enrichment Corporation dated as of February 14, 2017
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the

SEC on February 15, 2017).

New Notes Note Subordination Agreement by and among United States Enrichment Corporation and
Delaware Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of February 14, 2017 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 15, 2017).

Pari Passu Intercreditor Agreement by and among United States Enrichment Corporation and Delaware
Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of February 14, 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 15, 2017).

Second Amendment to Section 382 Rights Agreement by and between Centrus Energy Corp.
Computershare Trust Company. N.A. and Computershare Inc., dated April 3, 2019 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 4
2019).

Third Amendment to the Section 382 Rights Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2020, by and among the
Company, Computershare Trust Company N.A. and Computershare Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 14, 2020).

Fourth Amendment to the Section 382 Rights Agreement, dated as of June 16, 2021, by and among the
Company, Computershare Trust Company N.A. and Computershare Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on June 16, 2021).

Fifth Amendment to the Section 382 Rights Agreement by and between Centrus Energy Corp.
Computershare Trust Company. N.A. and Computershare Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1

to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on June 21, 2023).
Description of the Securities of the Company. (a)

Form of Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Common Stock by and between the Company and
Kulayba LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on November 9, 2022.

Form of Second Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated as of December
29, 2022, by and between Centrus Energy Corp. and Mr. Morris Bawabeh, Kulayba LLC and M&D
Bawabeh Foundation, Inc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Lease Agreement between the United States Department of Energy (“DOE”) and United States
Enrichment Corporation, dated as of July 1, 1993, including notice of exercise of option to renew
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed
with the SEC on June 29, 1998).

Amendment to Appendix 1 Lease Agreement between the U.S. Department of Energy and United States
Enrichment Corporation for the Gas Centrifuge Enrichment Plant, dated as of May 31, 2019 (certain
information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 2019, filed with the SEC on August 12, 2019).

Amendment 2 to Appendix 1 Lease Agreement between the U.S. Department of Energy and United
States Enrichment Corporation for the Gas Centrifuge Enrichment Plant, dated as of September 9, 2021
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with

the SEC on November 12, 2021).
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000114420417009425/v459780_ex4-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505919000008/exhibit41_centrus-secondam.htm
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file:///tmp/T5582/2563b85a-8de0-4640-bfa7-9907f1a6a939/exhibit_417x20231231xdescr.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505922000034/exhibit_41x20220930.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_418x12312022x2nd.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_418x12312022x2nd.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_418x12312022x2nd.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_418x12312022x2nd.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/0000950133-98-002445.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001065059/000106505919000026/haleulettercontract5-311.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001065059/000106505921000047/exhibit103_20210930.htm
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105

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Amendment 3 to Appendix 1 Lease Agreement between the U.S. Department of Energy and United
States Enrichment Corporation for the Gas Centrifuge Enrichment Plant, dated as of November 30
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.82 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Lease Agreement between DOE and United States Enrichment
Corporation, dated as of December 7, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed with the SEC on February
27, 2007). (Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment

under Rule 24b-2).

Work Authorization dated September 27, 2018 under the Supply of Service Agreement Between United
States Department of Energy and Centrus Energy Corp., Exhibit J to the Centrifuge Deployment Project
Lease Agreement between the Department of Energy and USEC Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.49 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2018, filed with the SEC on November 8, 2018).

to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on June 29
1998).

Agreement, dated June 17, 2002, between DOE and USEC Inc. (2002 DOE-USEC Agreement”)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on June 21, 2002).

Madification 1 to 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement, dated August 20, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005
filed with the SEC on February 24, 2006).

Modification No. 2 dated January 12, 2009, to 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on January 13, 2009).

Modification No. 3 dated January 28, 2010, to 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 2, 2010).

Modification No. 4 dated February 11, 2011, to 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 16, 2011).

Modification No. 5 dated June 12, 2012, to the Agreement dated June 17, 2002, between DOE and
USEC Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-

for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, filed with the SEC on August 1, 2012).

License dated December 7, 2006 between the United States of America, as represented by DOE, as
licensor, and USEC Inc., as licensee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed with the SEC on February
27, 2007).

Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment
Corporation and Joint Stock Company “Techsnabexport” (“TENEX") (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011
filed with the SEC on May 4, 2011). (Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant

to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 001 dated April 22, 2013 to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract dated
March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013
filed with the SEC on August 6, 2013). (Certain information has been omitted and filed separatel

pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 002 dated July 29, 2013 to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract dated
March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2013, filed with the SEC on November 5, 2013). (Certain information has been omitted and filed
separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505923000009/exhibit_1082x12312022xle.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000095013307000816/w30578exv10w2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001065059/000106505918000042/k1600wa.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/0000950133-98-002445.txt
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000095013302002326/w61710exv99w3.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505912000049/ex10_10.htm
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1065059/000106505913000049/exhibit10-4.htm

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Amendment No. 003 dated July 23, 2014 to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract dated
March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2014, filed with the SEC on November 14, 2014). (Certain information has been omitted and filed
separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 004 dated September 10, 2014 to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2014, filed with the SEC on November 14, 2014). (Certain information has been omitted

and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Letter Agreement, dated June 22, 2015, supplementing the Enriched Product Transitional Supply
Contract dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX.
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 2015, filed with the SEC on August 7, 2015). (Certain information has been
omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 005 dated July 7, 2015, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract dated
March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2015, filed with the SEC on November 12, 2015). (Certain information has been omitted and filed

separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 006 dated September 4, 2015, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2015, filed with the SEC on November 12, 2015). (Certain information has been omitted
and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 007 dated October 19, 2015, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2015 filed with the SEC on March 23, 2016). (Certain information has been omitted and filed

separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Amendment No. 008 dated December 22, 2015, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011 between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2015 filed with the SEC on March 23, 2016). (Certain information has been omitted and filed

separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2).

Letter Agreement, dated August 1, 2016, by and between Joint Stock Company “TENEX” and United
States Enrichment Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarter!
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, filed with the SEC on November 10
2016). (Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment

under Rule 24b-2).

Letter Agreement, dated September 23, 2019, by and between Joint Stock Company “TENEX” and
United States Enrichment Corporation (certain information has been omitted because the identified
confidential portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed)
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended September 30, 2019, filed with the SEC on November 8, 2019).

Amendment No. 009, dated September 23, 2019, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011, between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (certain information
has been omitted because the identified confidential portions (i) are not material and (i) would be
competitively harmful if publicly disclosed) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, filed with the SEC on
November 8, 2019).

Letter Agreement, dated June 12, 2018, by and between Joint Stock Company “TENEX” and United
States Enrichment Corporation (certain information has been omitted because the identified confidential
portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2019. filed with the SEC on November 8, 2019).
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Letter Agreement, dated September 28, 2019, by and between Joint Stock Company “TENEX” and
United States Enrichment Corporation (certain information has been omitted because the identified
confidential portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed)
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended September 30, 2019 filed with the SEC on November 8, 2019).

Letter Agreement, dated June 9, 2020, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract, dated
March 23, 2011, between TENEX, Joint-Stock Company and United States Enrichment Corporation
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

gquarter ended June 30, 2020 filed with the SEC on August 6, 2020).

Amendment No. 010, dated February 11, 2022, to the Enriched Product Transitional Supply Contract
dated March 23, 2011, between United States Enrichment Corporation and TENEX (certain information

has been omitted because the identified confidential portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be

competitively harmful if publicly disclosed).

Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.77 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 16, 2015).

Form of Change in Control Agreement with executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on January 16, 2013). (b)

Form of Employee Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement under the Centrus Energy Corp. 2014
Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.80 of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 16, 2015). (b)

Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Annual Retainers and Meeting
Fees) under the Centrus Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.81 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with
the SEC on March 16, 2015). (b)

Amended and Restated Centrus Energy Corp. Executive Severance Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on September 30, 2014).
(b)

2019 Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.60 of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 27, 2020). (b)

USEC Inc. Pension Restoration Plan, as amended and restated, dated November 1, 2007 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.55 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended
December 31, 2007, filed with the SEC on February 29, 2008). (b)

First Amendment, dated August 1, 2008, to USEC Inc. Pension Restoration Plan, as amended and
restated, dated November 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s

uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008, filed with the SEC on
November 5, 2008). (b)

Second Amendment dated July 25, 2013 to the USEC Inc. Pension Restoration Plan, as amended and
restated effective January 1, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on July 26, 2013). (b)

USEC Inc. 1999 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated, dated
November 1, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.65 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed with the SEC on February 24, 2011). (b)

Centrus Energy Corp. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2015, filed with the SEC on August 7, 2015). (b

Centrus Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (as Amended and Restated June 16, 2021
(incorporated by reference to Appendix C of the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule
14A filed with the SEC on April 28, 2021. (b)
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Centrus Energy Corp. Employee Notional Stock Unit Award Agreement and Centrus Energy Corp.
Employee Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on November 12, 2021).

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated April 27, 2018 between Orano Cycle and United States
Enrichment Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 of the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, filed with the SEC on August 9, 2018). (Certain
information has been omitted and filed separately, pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24.b2).

First Amendment, dated June 5, 2020, to the Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated April 27, 2018
between Orano Cycle and United States Enrichment Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 filed with
the SEC on August 6, 2020).

Letter Agreement, dated May 31, 2019 between Centrus Energy Corp. and the U.S. Department of
Energy (certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment

under Rule 24b-2) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2019, filed with the SEC on August 12, 2019).

Agreement, dated October 31, 2019, by and between American Centrifuge Operating, LLC and the
United States Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.59 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 27
2020).

Exchange Agreement dated February 2, 2021, by and between the Company and Kulayba LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on February 5, 2021).

Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2021 by and between United States Enrichment Corporation and
the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on November 12, 2021).

Executive Incentive Plan dated April 8, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 12, 2022). (b)

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Award Notice under the Executive Incentive Plan dated April 8
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6, 2022). (b)

Modification 1 to Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2019, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Modification 3 to Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2020, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6. 2022).

Modification 4 to Agreement, dated as of June 5, 2020, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6
2022).

Modification 5 to Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2020, by and between American Centrifuge

Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Modification 6 to Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2020, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Modification 7 to Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).
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Modification 8 to Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6

2022).

Modification 9 to Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6
2022).

Modification 10 to Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Modification 12 to Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on

May 6. 2022).

Modification 13 to Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on

May 6, 2022).

Modification 14 to Agreement, dated as of December 7, 2021, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on
March 11, 2021).

Modification 15 to Agreement, dated as of January 26, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Modification 16 to Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6. 2022).

Modification 17 to Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6. 2022).

Modification 18 to Agreement, dated as April 7, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6
2022).

Modification 19 to Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2022).

Madification 20 to Agreement, dated May 18, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s

uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on August 5
2022).

Modification 21 to Agreement, dated July 7, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge Operating, LLC
and the U. S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on August 5
2022).

Modification 22 to Agreement, dated July 27, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and the
U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on August 5, 2022).

Modification 23 to Agreement, dated July 29, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and the
U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on August 5, 2022).

Modification 24 to Agreement, dated August 1, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and the
U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on August 5, 2022).
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Maodification 25 to Agreement, dated September 7, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and
the U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on November 9
2022).

Modification 26 to Agreement, dated October 19, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and
the U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on November 9
2022).

Modification 27 to Agreement, dated November 28, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC
and the U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 80 of the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Modification 28 to Agreement, dated January 25, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and
the U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.84 of the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Modification 29 to Agreement, dated February 14, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and
the U.S Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.86 of the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Modification 30 to Agreement, dated March 2, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on May 9
2023).

Maodification 31 to Agreement, dated April 2, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge Operating, LLC
and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s
uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on May 9

2023).

Voting and Nomination Agreement, dated December 29, 2022, by and between Centrus Energy Corp.
and Mr. Morris Bawabeh, Kulayba LLC and M&D Bawabeh Foundation, Inc (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.83 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022
filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Agreement, dated November 30, 2022, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and the U.S.
Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.81 of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Modification 1 to Agreement, dated January 19, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge, LLC and
the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.85 of the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023).

Madification 2 to Agreement, dated March 21, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on May 9

2023).

Modification 3 to Agreement, dated April 3, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge Operating, LLC
and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on May 9
2023).

Modification 4 to Agreement, dated September 28, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, filed with the
SEC on November 8, 2023).

Modification 5 to Agreement, dated October 19, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge Operating
LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, filed with the SEC on
November 8, 2023).

Modification 6 to Agreement, dated December 23, 2023, by and between American Centrifuge
Operating, LLC and the U.S. Department of Energy. (a)
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10.90 Letter agreement, dated April 28, 2023, by and between Joint Stock Company “TENEX” and United
States Enrichment Corporation (certain information has been omitted because the identified confidential
portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2023, filed with the SEC on November 8, 2023).

10.91 Employment Agreement, dated November 16, 2023 by and between Centrus Energy Corp. and Amir
Vexler. (a)(b)

10.92 Centrus Energy Corp. Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice dated January 1, 2024 by and between
Centrus Energy Corp. and Amir Vexler . (a)(b

16.1 Letter, dated March 8, 2023, from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the SEC (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 16.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on March 6, 2023).

19 Insider Trading Policy. (a)
21 Subsidiaries of Centrus Energy Corp. (&
231 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP. independent registered public accounting firm. (a)
23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm. (a)
311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a). (a)
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a). (a)

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
@

97 Centrus Energy Clawback Policy, dated August 3, 2023, related to Recovery of Errone ously Awarded
Compensation. (a)

101 Consolidated Financial Statements from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, filed in interactive data file (formatted as Inline XBRL). (a)

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

(a) Filed herewith.

(b) Management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements required to be filed as exhibits pursuant to ltem 15(b) of this report.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Centrus Energy Corp.
February 9, 2024 /s!/ Amir V. Vexler

Amir V. Vexler
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities indicated on February 9, 2024:

Signature Title

/s/ Amir V. Vexler President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) and Director

Amir V. Vexler

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer and

Is/ Kevin J. Harrill Principal Accounting Officer)

Kevin J. Harrill

/sl Mikel H. Williams Chairman of the Board and Director
Mikel H. Williams

/s/ Kirkland H. Donald Director
Kirkland H. Donald

/sl Tetsuo Iguchi Director

Tetsuo Iguchi

/sl Tina W. Jonas Director

Tina W. Jonas

s/ William J. Madia Director
William J. Madia

/s/ Bradley K. Sawatzke Director

Bradley K. Sawatzke
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Centrus Energy Corp.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Centrus Energy Corp. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2023, the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows, for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
“financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 9, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the
audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments.

The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter
below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Valuation Allowance related to Federal Deferred Tax Assets — Refer to Notes 1 and 14 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company evaluated both positive and negative evidence that was objectively verifiable to determine the amount of the federal valuation allowance that was required on Centrus’
federal deferred tax assets. Centrus has visibility on a significant portion of revenue in the LEU segment for 2023 through 2026, primarily from its long-term sales contracts. Centrus
determined that the positive evidence of increased forecasted future income in the LEU segment based on existing sales Order Book and supply contracts along with commodity market
forward pricing indicators, supported the release of the federal valuation allowance. However, due to lack of objectively verifiable information in later years, it was determined that
forecasted future income was not sufficient to realize all the deferred tax assets. Therefore, Centrus recorded a partial release of its federal valuation allowance. In the third and fourth
quarters of 2023, respectively, Centrus released ($7.7) million and ($11.7) million of the valuation allowance against its federal net deferred tax assets.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the valuation allowance related to federal deferred tax assets is a critical audit matter are (i) the
significant judgment by management when assessing the ability to realize the federal deferred tax assets and whether a valuation allowance is necessary, particularly as it relates to
estimates of future taxable income and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence related to management’s
significant assumptions related to estimates of future taxable income.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the Valuation Allowance related to Federal Deferred Tax Assets included the following, among others:

« Tested the design and operating effectiveness of management's internal controls pertaining to the ability to realize federal deferred tax assets and whether a valuation allowance
is necessary, including controls over the estimates of future taxable income.

« Evaluated management's methodology for assessing the ability to realize federal deferred taxes and whether a valuation allowance is necessary.

« Tested the completeness and accuracy of underlying information used in management'’s process for assessing the ability to realize federal deferred tax assets and whether a
valuation allowance is necessary.

« Assessed the timing for appropriateness of the valuation allowance partial releases associated with the federal deferred tax assets.

« Evaluating management's assumption related to the estimates of future taxable income involved evaluating whether the assumptions and estimates used by management were
reasonable considering (i) the current and past performance of the Company; (ii) the terms of the Company’s existing contractual agreements with its customers and suppliers;
(iii) the source and reliability of market related inputs; and (iv) whether the assumptions were consistent with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.

+ Read and analyzed the minutes of the Boards of Directors of Centrus Energy Corporation for discussions of changes in legal, regulatory, or business factors which could impact
management’s estimates and conclusions with respect to the financial statement impacts of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.

* Read and evaluated relevant sanctions, laws, regulatory statutes or other publicly available information to assess whether this external information was appropriately considered
by management in their determination of the valuation allowance related to federal deferred tax assets.

« Evaluated Centrus Energy Corporation’s footnotes and disclosures related to the financial statement impacts of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 9, 2024

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2023.

93



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Centrus Energy Corp.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Centrus Energy Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2023, of the Company and our report dated February 9, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 9, 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Centrus Energy Corp.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Centrus Energy Corp. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, of stockholders’ deficit and of cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2022, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2022 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Isl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
February 22, 2023

We served as the Company's auditor from 2002 to 2023.
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CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Deferred costs associated with deferred revenue
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deposits for financial assurance
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets, net
Other long-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payables under inventory purchase agreements
Inventories owed to customers and suppliers
Deferred revenue and advances from customers
Current debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Postretirement health and life benefit obligations

Pension benefit liabilities

Advances from customers

Long-term inventory loans

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Stockholders’ equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, par value $ 1.00 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized

Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, none issued

Series B Senior Preferred Stock, none issued

Class A Common Stock, par value $ 0.10 per share, 70,000,000 shares authorized, 14,956,434 and 13,919,646 shares issued and

outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively

Class B Common Stock, par value $ 0.10 per share, 30,000,000 shares authorized, 719,200 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022
Excess of capital over par value

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31,

2023 2022
2012 $ 179.9
49.4 38.1
306.4 209.2
117.6 135.7
10.8 24.2
685.4 587.1
7.0 55
324 32.3
39.4 45.7
285 26.8
35 8.1
7962 $ 705.5
562 $ 65.5
41.9 43.6
84.3 60.8
282.6 273.2
6.1 6.1
a71.1 4492
89.6 95.7
81.2 84.5
17.3 436
32.8 46.2
63.1 48.7
8.8 11.7
763.9 779.6
15 1.4
0.1 0.1
180.5 158.1
(1495) (233.9)
(0.3) 0.2
32.3 (74.1)
7962 $ 705.5




CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions, except share and per share data)

Revenue:
Separative work units
Uranium
Technical solutions
Total revenue
Cost of Sales:
Separative work units and uranium
Technical solutions
Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Advanced technology costs
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets
Special charges for workforce reductions
Operating income
Nonoperating components of net periodic benefit income
Interest expense
Investment income
Other income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income and comprehensive income
Distributed earnings allocable to warrant modification
Preferred stock dividends - undeclared and cumulative
Distributed earnings allocable to retired preferred shares

Net income allocable to common stockholders

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

Average number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):

Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
2082 % 196.2 163.3
60.8 39.4 228
51.2 58.2 112.2
320.2 293.8 298.3
163.9 105.0 113.1
44.2 70.9 70.7
208.1 175.9 183.8
112.1 117.9 114.5
14.2 14.8 21
35.6 33.9 36.0
6.3 9.0 8.1
3.6 0.5 —
52.4 59.7 68.3
(232) (6.6) (67.6)
13 0.5 0.1
(87) (2.0) (0.1)
(15) — —
84.5 67.8 135.9
0.1 15.6 (39.1)
84.4 52.2 175.0
— 15 —
= = 21
— — 37.6
844 $ 50.7 135.3
555 § 3.47 10.03
544 $ 3.38 9.75
15,212 14,601 13,493
15,501 14,988 13,879

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

OPERATING
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Accrued loss on long-term contract
Deferred tax assets
Retirement benefit plans (gains) losses, net
Revaluation of inventory borrowing
Equity-related compensation
Other reconciling adjustments, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Inventories owed to customers and suppliers
Other current assets
Payables under inventory purchase agreements
Deferred revenue and advances from customers, net of deferred costs
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Pension and postretirement liabilities
Other changes, net

Cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING
Capital expenditures

Cash used in investing activities

FINANCING

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net

Redemption of preferred stock, net

Payment of interest classified as debt

Exercise of stock options

Withholding of shares to fund grantee tax obligations under stock-based compensation plan
Other

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year (Note 3)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year (Note 3)
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Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
844 % 522 % 175.0
7.1 9.6 8.6
(20.0) 19.5 (7.2)
(1.6) 14.7 (39.5)
(24.6) 7.8 (50.5)
7.4 8.0 4.8
2.3 1.9 12.1
(1.6) — —
(11.3) (9.0) 0.5
(83.8) (88.5) (14.2)
235 52.4 35
14.9 (15.6) (1.0)
(1.7) 5.7 16.6
12.1 (225) 13.2
8.5 2.6 (46)
(5.7) (18.1) (67.0)
(0.8) (0.1) (0.3)
9.1 20.6 50.0
(1.6) (0.7) (1.2)
(16) (0.7) (1.2)
23.2 3.6 421
— — (44.4)
(6.1) (6.1) (6.1)
— 0.4 0.9
(3.0) (1.9) (2.4)
(0.2) (0.3) —
13.9 (4.3) (9.9)
21.4 15.6 38.9
212.4 196.8 157.9
2338 % 2124 % 196.8




Year Ended December 31,

2022

2021

2023
Supplemental cash flow information:
Non-cash activities:
Property, plant and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 0.9
Equity transaction costs included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities —
Adjustment to right to use lease assets from lease modification (4.2)

Disposal of right to use lease assets from lease modification —
Reclassification of equity compensation liability to equity —
Common stock and warrant issued in exchange for preferred stock —

Distributed earnings allocable to warrant modification —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’
(in millions, except per share data)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common Stock, Common Stock,

Balance at December 31, 2020

Net income
Issuance of common stock

Exchange of preferred stock for common stock and common
stock warrant

Purchase under tender offer
Reclassification of stock-based compensation liability to equity

Stock-based compensation shares withheld for employee
taxes

Other comprehensive loss

Stock-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2021

Net income
Issuance of common stock
Reclassification of stock-based compensation liability to equity

Stock-based compensation shares withheld for employee
taxes

Warrant modification
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)

Stock-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2022

Net income
Issuance of common stock

Stock-based compensation shares withheld for employee
taxes

Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)

Stock-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2023

Class A, Class B, Excess of Accumulated
Preferred Stock, Par Value Par Value Capital Over Other Comprehensive
Series B $0.10 per Share  $0.10 per Share Par Value Accumulated Deficit Income (Loss) Total
$ 01 $ 1.1 $ 01 $ 85.0 $ (407.7) $ 08 $ (320.6)
= = = = 175.0 = 175.0
— 0.2 — 41.9 — — 42.1
= 0.1 = 7.5 (7.6) = =
(0.1) — — — (44.3) — (444)
— — — 7.5 — — 7.5
— — — (2.4) — — (2.4)
= = = = = (0.3) (0.3)
— — — 1.2 — — 12
$ — 8 14 $ 01 $ 140.7 $ (2846) $ 05 $ (141.9)
- = — = 52.2 = 52.2
— — — 4.0 — — 4.0
— — — 10.6 — — 10.6
—_ —_ — (1.9) —_ —_ (1.9)
— — — 15 (15) — —
— — — — — (0.3) (0.3)
- = — 3.2 - = 3.2
$ — 8 14 8 01 $ 1581 $ (2339) s 02 $ (741)
— — — — 84.4 — 84.4
— 0.1 — 23.1 — — 23.2
— — — (3.0) — — (3.0)
— — — — — (0.5) (0.5)
— — — 23 — — 23
$ — 8 15 $ 01 S 1805 $ (1495) $ (03) $ 32.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Centrus Energy Corp. (“Centrus” or the “Company”), which include the accounts of the Company, its principal
subsidiary Enrichment Corp., and its other subsidiaries, were prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for
consistency with the current year presentation. All material intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts presented and disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Significant estimates and judgments include, but are not limited to,
revenue and related costs, asset valuations, pension and postretirement health and life benefit costs and obligations, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, the
future recoverability of deferred tax assets, and determination of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. Actual results may differ from such estimates,
and estimates may change if the underlying conditions or assumptions change.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term or highly liquid assets with original maturities of three months or less.
Inventories and Inventories Owed to Customers and Suppliers

LEU consists of two components: SWU and UR. SWU is a standard unit of measurement that represents the effort required to transform a given amount of
natural uranium into two components: enriched uranium having a higher percentage of U%3> and depleted uranium having a lower percentage of Lf3. The SWU
contained in LEU is calculated using an industry standard formula based on the physics of enrichment. The amount of enrichment deemed to be contained in
LEU under this formula is commonly referred to as its SWU component and the quantity of natural uranium hexafluoride deemed to be used in the production of
LEU under this formula is referred to as its uranium or “feed” component.

SWU and uranium inventory costs are determined using the average cost method. SWU and uranium purchase costs include shipping costs when applicable.
Inventories of SWU and uranium are valued at the lower of cost or NRV. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less reasonably
predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. The estimated selling price for SWU and uranium is based on the pricing terms of contracts in the
Company’s Order Book, and, for uranium not under contract, the estimated selling price is based primarily on published price indicators at the balance sheet
date.
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Inventories owed to customers and suppliers, included in current liabilities, consist primarily of SWU and uranium inventories owed to fabricators. Fabricators
process LEU into fuel for use in nuclear reactors. Under inventory optimization arrangements between Centrus and domestic fabricators, fabricators order
quantities of LEU from Centrus based on scheduled or anticipated orders from utility customers, for deliveries in future periods. As delivery obligations under
actual customer orders arise, Centrus typically satisfies these obligations by arranging for the transfer to the customer of title to the specified quantity of LEU at
the fabricator. Centrus’ balances of SWU and uranium vary over time based on the timing and size of the fabricator’s LEU orders from Centrus and the
fabricator's needs for working stock of LEU. Balances can be positive or negative at the discretion of the fabricator. Fabricators have other inventory supplies
and, where a fabricator has elected to order less material from Centrus than Centrus is required to deliver to its customers at the fabricator, the fabricator will
use these other inventories to satisfy Centrus’ customer order obligations on Centrus’ behalf. In such cases, the transfer of title of LEU from Centrus to the
customer results in quantities of SWU and uranium being owed by Centrus to the fabricator. The amounts of SWU and uranium owed to fabricators are satisfied
as future deliveries of LEU to fabricators are made.

Deferred Taxes

Centrus follows the asset and liability approach to account for deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the balance sheet carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
based on income tax rates in effect for the years in which temporary differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in income tax
rates is recognized in income when the change in rates is enacted in the law. A valuation allowance is provided if it is more likely than not that all, or some
portion, of the deferred tax assets may not be realized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at acquisition cost. Leasehold improvements and machinery and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the useful life of the assets or the lease term, if applicable. Refer also to Carrying Value of Long-Lived Assets below.

Intangible Assets

Centrus has intangible assets resulting from fresh start accounting as a result of emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy on September 30, 2014. The
identifiable intangible assets relate to the sales Order Book and customer relationships. The Order Book intangible asset is amortized as the Order Book valued
at emergence is reduced, principally as a result of deliveries to customers. The customer relationships intangible asset is amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated average useful life of 15 years, with 5 ¥ years of scheduled amortization remaining. Refer also to Carrying Value of Long-Lived
Assets below.

Carrying Value of Long-Lived Assets
The Company evaluates the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets when events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of asset, or asset group, may not be fully recoverable. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not

recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. An impairment loss is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset, or asset group, exceeds its fair value.

102



Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement

Accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at
fair value, consideration is given to the principal or most advantageous market and assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability.

Pursuant to accounting standards, Centrus’ 8.25 % Notes due February 2027 are recorded at face value and the fair value is disclosed. The estimated fair
value of the 8.25% Notes is based on bid/ask quotes as of or near the balance sheet date. Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the
instrument.

The balance sheet carrying amounts for accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and payables under inventory purchase agreements
approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of the instruments.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Credit risk could result from the possibility of a customer failing to perform or pay according to the terms of a contract. Extension of credit is based on an
evaluation of each customer’s financial condition. Centrus regularly monitors credit risk exposure and takes steps intended to mitigate the likelihood of such
exposure resulting in a loss.

Concentrations of Supply Risk and Other Considerations with the War in Ukraine

The current war in Ukraine has led to the U.S., Russia and other countries imposing sanctions and other measures that restrict international trade. The
situation is rapidly changing, and it is not possible to predict future actions that could be taken. The Company has multiple sources of supply; however, the
supply contract with TENEX remains the Company’s largest source and accounts for well over one-half of or its anticipated supply in 2024-2027 for deliveries to
U.S. customers.

At present, sanctions have not impacted the ability of the Company or TENEX to perform under the TENEX Supply Contract. Recently, sanctions have been
imposed by the U.S. on exports of fossil fuels. Russia has imposed sanctions on the export of commodities but does not include the export of LEU. Canada has
imposed sanctions on ocean transportation of Russian LEU, but has given a permit to the Company’s carrier that extends to early July 2024. Additional
sanctions or other measures by the U.S. or foreign governments (including the Russian government) could be imposed or the existing Canadian permit might not
be extended. Any sanctions or measures directed at trade in LEU from Russia or the parties involved in such trade or otherwise, including denial or non-renewal
of licenses or permits, could interfere with, or prevent, implementation of the TENEX Supply Contract. While the initial sanctions announced do not affect the
ability of the Company or TENEX to implement the TENEX Supply Contract, the situation at this time is unpredictable and there are proposals in Congress
(including one that has passed the House of Representatives) to impose a ban on imports of Russian LEU.

If a ban were enacted or measures were taken to limit the supply of Russian LEU or to prohibit or limit dealings with Russian entities, including, but not limited
to, TENEX or Rosatom, the Company would seek a license, waiver or other approval from the government imposing such measures to ensure that the Company
could continue to fulfill its purchase and sales obligations. There is no assurance that such a license, waiver, or approval would be granted. If a license, waiver or
approval were not granted, the Company would need to look to alternative sources of LEU to replace the LEU that it could not procure from TENEX. The
Company has contracts for alternative sources that could be used to mitigate a portion of the near term impacts. However, the Company’s alternative sources
are not sufficient to replace all of the Russian LEU the Company is currently permitted to import under the RSA, and to the extent additional supply cannot be
obtained, or obtained at a higher costs, it will have a material adverse impact on its business, results of operations, and competitive position.
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Given the foregoing, there is no assurance that future developments would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s procurement, payment,
delivery or sale of LEU under the TENEX Supply Contract and well as on our business, results of operations, and competitive position.

Segments

Centrus operates two business segments: LEU, which supplies various components of nuclear fuel to utilities, and Technical Solutions, which provides
advanced engineering, design, and manufacturing services to government and private sector customers.

Related Party

As previously disclosed in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2020, on that same date the Company entered into an At
Market Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with B. Riley Securities, Inc. and Lake Street Capital Markets, LLC, relating to an ATM offering of shares of
the Company’s Class A Common Stock. Mr. Williams, Chairman of the Centrus Board of Directors, also served on the board of B. Riley Financial, Inc. Mr.
Williams recused himself and took no part in the selection of B. Riley or the negotiation of the terms of the Sales Agreement.

The Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (Registration Statement No. 333-272984) with the SEC on June 28, 2023, which became
effective on July 10, 2023. Pursuant to this shelf registration statement, the Company may offer and sell up to $200 million in securities, in aggregate. The
Company may continue to work with B. Riley Securities, Inc. for any offerings under this registration statement. Mr. Williams is an employee of Targus
International LLC whose ultimate parent has been B. Riley Financial, Inc since 2022. Please refer to Note 16, Stockholders’ Equity, for further details.

Foreign Currency

The Company records foreign currency transaction gains and losses, realized and unrealized, and foreign exchange gains and losses due to re-measurement
of monetary assets and liabilities that are not denominated in U.S. dollars in other income, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue

The Company accounts for a contract when it has approval and commitment from both parties, the rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are
identified, the contract has commercial substance and collectability of consideration is probable. Revenue for product and service sales is recognized when or as
the Company transfers control of the promised products or services to the customer. Revenue is measured at the transaction price, which is based on the
amount of consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer. The transaction price
will include estimates of variable consideration until it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue recognized will not occur.

SWU and Uranium Revenue
Revenue for the Company’s LEU segment is derived from sales of the SWU component of LEU, from sales of both the SWU and uranium components of
LEU, and from sales of UFs and U30s. Contracts with customers are primarily medium and long-term, fixed-commitment, contracts under which its customers are

obligated to purchase a specified quantity of the SWU component of LEU or the SWU and uranium components of LEU. The Company'’s contracts for UFs and
U305 are generally shorter-term, fixed-commitment contracts.
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Revenue is recognized at the time the customer obtains control of the LEU or uranium. Customers generally obtain control of LEU at nuclear fuel fabricators.
Centrus ships LEU to nuclear fuel fabricators for scheduled or anticipated orders from utility customers. Based on customer orders, Centrus arranges for the
transfer of title of LEU from Centrus to the customer for the specified quantity of LEU at the fuel fabricator. Each such delivery to a customer is accounted for as
a distinct performance obligation under a contract, and a contract may call for multiple deliveries over a number of periods. The contract’s transaction price is
allocated to each performance obligation based on the observable standalone selling price of each distinct delivery of SWU or uranium. For certain contracts the
customers may elect not to take control of the LEU or uranium and Centrus may have the right to enforce payment under the terms of the contractual
agreement. The revenue recognition for these contracts is assessed when it occurs.

Utility customers in general have the option to defer receipt of uranium products purchased from the Company beyond the contractual sale period. In such
cases, title to SWU and/or uranium components are transferred to the customer and a performance obligation for Centrus is created and a receivable is
recorded. Cash is collected for the receivable under normal credit terms. The performance obligation is represented as deferred revenue in Deferred Revenue
and Advances from Customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the customer-titled product is classified as Deferred Costs Associated with Deferred
Revenue on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Risk of loss remains with Centrus until the customer obtains control of the uranium product. The recognition of
revenue and related cost of sales occurs at the point in time at which the customer obtains control of SWU or uranium and risk of loss of the product transfers to
the customer, which may occur beyond one year. The timing of the transfer of control, subject to notice period requirements, is at the option of the customer. As
such, deferred costs and deferred revenue are classified within current assets and current liabilities, respectively.

On occasion, the Company will accept payment in the form of uranium. Revenue from the sale of SWU under such contracts is recognized at the time transfer
of control of LEU occurs and is based on the fair value of the uranium at contract inception or, as the quantity of uranium is finalized, if variable.

Amounts billed to customers for handling costs are included in sales. Handling costs are accounted for as a fulfillment cost and are included in cost of sales.
The Company does not have shipping costs associated with outbound freight after control over a product has transferred to a customer. The Company’s
contracts with customers do not provide for significant payment terms or financing components.

Technical Solutions Revenue

Revenue for the Technical Solutions segment, principally representing technical, manufacturing, engineering, procurement, construction and operations
services offered to public and private sector customers, is recognized over the contractual period as services are rendered. The Company recognizes revenue
over time as it performs on these contracts because of the continuous transfer of control to the customer. For public sector contracts, this continuous transfer of
control to the customer is supported by clauses in the contract that allow the customer to unilaterally terminate the contract for convenience, pay the Company
for costs incurred plus a reasonable profit and assume control of any work in progress. The Company’s government and private sector contracts generally
contain contractual termination clauses or entitle the Company to payments for work performed to date for goods and services that do not have an alternative
use. With control transferring over time, revenue is recognized based on the extent of progress towards completion of the performance obligation. A contract
may contain one or more performance obligations. Two or more promises to transfer goods or services to a customer may be considered a single performance
obligation if the goods or services are highly interdependent or highly interrelated such that utility of the promised goods or services to the customer includes
integration services provided by the Company.
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The Company determines the transaction price for each contract based on the consideration it expects to receive for the products or services being provided
under the contract. If transaction prices are not stated in the contract for each performance obligation, contractual prices are allocated to performance obligations
based on estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised services. For contracts with multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation based on the estimated standalone selling price of the product or service underlying each performance
obligation. The standalone selling price represents the amount the Company would sell the product or service to a customer on a standalone basis (i.e., not
bundled with any other products or services). The Company's contracts with the U.S. government are subject to the FAR and the price is typically based on
estimated or actual costs plus a reasonable profit margin. As a result of these regulations, the standalone selling price of products or services in the Company’s
contracts with the U.S. government are typically equal to the selling price stated in the contract. The Company does not contemplate future modifications,
including unexercised options until they become legally enforceable. Contracts may be subsequently modified to include changes in specifications, requirements
or price, which may create new or change existing enforceable rights and obligations. Depending on the nature of the maodification, the Company considers
whether to account for the modification as an adjustment to the existing contract or as a separate contract.

The Company generally uses the cost-to-cost input method of progress for performance obligations to deliver products with continual transfer of control to the
customer because it best depicts the transfer of control to the customer that occurs as the Company incurs costs. Under the cost-to-cost method, the extent of
progress towards completion is measured based on the proportion of direct costs incurred to date to the total estimated direct costs at completion of the
performance obligation. Revenues are recorded proportionally as costs are incurred. For performance obligations to provide services to the customer, revenue is
recognized over time based on direct costs incurred or the right to invoice method (in situations where the value transferred matches the Company'’s billing
rights) as the customer receives and consumes the benefits.

Use of the cost-to-cost method requires the Company to make reasonably dependable estimates of costs at completion associated with the design,
manufacture and delivery of products and services in order to calculate revenue. Significant judgment is used to estimate total revenue and costs at completion,
particularly in the assumptions related to internal labor hours and third-party services for which a vendor invoice or quote is not yet available. As a significant
change in one or more estimates could affect the profitability of the Company’s contracts, the Company reviews and updates its contract-related estimates
regularly. Adjustments in estimated profits/losses are recognized under the cumulative catch-up method. Under this method, the impact of the adjustments is
recognized in the period the adjustment is recognized. When estimates of total costs at completion for such an integrated, construction type contract exceed
total estimates of revenue to be earned on a performance obligation related to complex equipment or related services, a provision for the remaining loss on the
performance obligation is recognized in the period the loss is determined.

The Company applied the practical expedient in paragraph ASC 606-10-50-14 and does not disclose the value of remaining performance obligations under
service contracts having original expected terms of one year or less.

The timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of invoicing to customers. Progress on satisfying performance obligations under contracts with
customers and the related billings and cash collections are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as contract assets or contract liabilities. Contract
balances are classified as assets or liabilities on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period.

Unbilled receivables are included in Accounts Receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and arise when the timing of cash collected from customers
differs from the timing of revenue recognition. Those assets are recognized when the revenue associated with the contract is recognized prior to billing and
derecognized when billed in accordance with the terms of the contract. To the extent billings to the customer precede the recognition of Technical Solutions
revenue, the Company recognizes a liability included in Deferred Revenue and Advances from Customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Advanced Technology Costs

American Centrifuge and related expenses that are outside of the Company’s customer contracts are included in Advanced Technology Costs .
Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Plans

The Company provides retirement benefits to certain employees and retirees under defined benefit pension plans and postretirement health and life benefit
plans. The valuation of benefit obligations and costs is based on provisions of the plans and actuarial assumptions that involve judgments and estimates. Plan
assets and benefit obligations are remeasured each year as of the balance sheet date, or when lump sum payments exceed certain levels, resulting in
differences between actual and projected results. The Company has elected to recognize these actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of
operations to provide transparency regarding the impacts of changes in plan assets and benefit obligations.
Executive Severance Plan

The Company provides severance benefits to certain covered executives, which may also include continuation of certain insurance benefits, under an
Executive Severance Plan (the “Severance Plan”). The benefits payable under the Severance Plan are based on salary level, amongst other variables. As the
severance expenses are part of an on-going benefit arrangement, the Company recognizes the expense when payment of the severance is probable and can
be reasonably estimated in accordance with ASC 712, Compensation — Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits.
Stock-Based Compensation

Centrus has a stock-based compensation plan which authorizes the issuance of common stock to the Company’s employees, officers, directors, and other
individuals providing services to the Company or its affiliates pursuant to options, notional stock units, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units, restricted

stock, performance awards, dividend equivalent rights, and other stock-based awards.

Stock-based compensation cost for options and stock-settled awards are measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award. The cost is
recognized over the requisite service period on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Stock-based compensation cost for awards likely to be settled with cash payments is recognized over the requisite service period and accrued as a liability
and re-measured each reporting period based on the trading price of the Company’s common stock.

The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur.
New Accounting Standards

Accounting Standards Effective in Future Periods

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2023-07,Segment Reporting, to
improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. This pronouncement is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 and early adoption is
permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact this will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, /ncome Taxes, to improve the transparency of income tax disclosures, primarily through requiring
consistent categories and greater disaggregation in the rate reconciliation and requiring disaggregation of income taxes paid by jurisdiction. This pronouncement
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 and early adoption is permitted. Based on the Company’s review, it does not expect the
pronouncement to have any material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. REVENUE AND CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table presents revenue from SWU and uranium sales disaggregated by geographical region, including foreign countries representing 10% or
more of revenue, based on the billing addresses of customers (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

United States $ 230.4 $ 96.1 $ 108.3
Foreign:

Belgium 0.1 38.3 36.6

Japan 23.6 61.6 34.6

Other 14.9 39.6 6.6

Total foreign 38.6 139.5 77.8

Revenue - SWU and uranium $ 269.0 $ 235.6 $ 186.1

Refer to Note 19, Revenue by Geographic Area, Major Customers and Segment Information, for disaggregation of revenue by segment and end-market.
SWU sales are made primarily to electric utility customers and uranium sales are made primarily to other nuclear fuel related companies. Technical Solutions
revenue resulted primarily from services provided to the U.S. government and its contractors. SWU and uranium revenue is recognized at point of sale and
Technical Solutions revenue is generally recognized over time based on direct costs incurred or the right to invoice method (in situations where the value
transferred matches the Company’s billing rights) as the customer receives and consumes the benefits.

Accounts Receivable

December 31,

2023 2022
(in millions)
Accounts receivable:
Billed $ 40.2 $ 29.0
Unbilled * 9.2 9.1
Accounts receivable $ 494 S 38.1

* Billings under certain contracts in the Technical Solutions segment are invoiced based on approved provisional billing rates. Unbilled revenue represents the
difference between actual costs incurred and invoiced amounts. The Company expects to invoice and collect the unbilled amounts after actual rates are
submitted to the customer and approved. Unbilled revenue also includes unconditional rights to payment that are not yet billable under applicable contracts
pending the compilation of supporting documentation.
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Contract Liabilities

The following table presents changes in contract liability balances (in millions):

December 31,
2023 2022 Change
Accrued losses on HALEU Operation Contract:

Current - Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ = $ 20.0 $ (20.0)
Deferred revenue - current $ 252.4 $ 258.4 $ (6.0)
Advances from customers - current $ 30.2 $ 14.8 $ 15.4
Advances from customers - non current $ 32.8 $ 46.2 $ (134)

Deferred sales and advances from customers totaled $ 33.4 million and $ 33.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively.
Previously deferred sales and advances from customers recognized in revenue totaled $ 23.6 million and $ 62.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2023,
and 2022, respectively.

LEU Segment

The SWU component of LEU typically is bought and sold under contracts with deliveries over several years. The Company’s agreements for natural uranium
hexafluoride and uranium concentrate sales generally are shorter-term, fixed-commitment contracts. The Company’s sales under contract in the Order Book
extend to 2030. As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Order Book was approximately $ 1.0 billion. The Order Book represents the estimated
aggregate dollar amount of revenue for future SWU and uranium deliveries under contract and includes approximately $ 315 million and $ 319 million of Deferred
Revenue and Advances from Customers at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Most of the Company’s customer contracts provide for fixed purchases of SWU during a given year. The Company’s Order Book is partially based on
customers’ estimates of the timing and size of their fuel requirements and other assumptions that are subject to change. For example, depending on the terms of
specific contracts, the customer may be able to increase or decrease the quantity delivered within an agreed range. The Company’s Order Book estimate also is
based on the Company’s estimates of selling prices, which may be subject to change. For example, depending on the terms of specific contracts, prices may be
adjusted based on escalation using a general inflation index, published SWU price indicators prevailing at the time of delivery, and other factors, all of which are
variable. The Company uses external composite forecasts of future market prices and inflation rates in its pricing estimates.

Under the terms of certain contracts with customers in the LEU segment, the Company will accept payment for SWU in the form of uranium. Revenue from
the sale of SWU under such contracts is recognized at the time LEU is delivered and is based on the fair value of the uranium at contract inception, or as the
guantity of uranium is finalized, if variable. For the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively, SWU revenue of $ 14.8 million, $ 14.5 million,
and $ 0 was recognized under such contracts based on the fair market value of uranium acquired in exchange for SWU delivered. Uranium received from
customers as advance payments for the future sales of SWU totaled $ 63.0 million and $ 61.0 million as of December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The
advance payments are included in either Advances from Customers, Current or Advances from Customers, Non current, based on the anticipated SWU sales
period.
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Technical Solutions Segment

Revenue for the Technical Solutions segment, representing the Company’s technical, manufacturing, engineering, procurement, construction, and operations
services offered to public and private sector customers, is recognized over the contractual period as services are rendered. For details, refer to Note 1, Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies — Revenue —Technical Solutions Revenue.

In 2019, the Company entered into a cost-share contract with the DOE, the HALEU Demonstration Contract, to deploy a cascade of centrifuges to
demonstrate production of HALEU for advanced reactors. The DOE agreed to reimburse the Company for 80% of its costs incurred in performing the contract.
The DOE modified the contract several times to increase the total contract funding to $ 173.0 million and to extend the period of performance to November 30,
2022. The Company is currently performing closeout activities on the HALEU Demonstration Contract. Costs under the HALEU Demonstration Contract include
program costs, including direct labor and materials and associated indirect costs that are classified as Cost of Sales, and an allocation of corporate costs
supporting the program that are classified as Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The impact to Cost of Sales for the years ended December 31,
2023, 2022, and 2021 is $ 0, $ 0.5 million, and $ 7.2 million, respectively, for previously accrued contract losses attributable to work performed in the periods. As
of both December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, a total of $ 19.6 million of previously accrued contract losses have been realized and the accrued contract
loss balance included in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities is $ 0 . The Company has received aggregate cash payments under the HALEU
Demonstration Contract of $ 171.2 million through December 31, 2023.

In 2022, DOE elected to move the operational portion of the demonstration to a subsequent, competitively-awarded contract that allows for a much longer
period of operation than would have been possible under the original contract. On November 10, 2022, after a competitive solicitation, the DOE awarded the
HALEU Operation Contract to the Company and work began December 1, 2022. The base contract value is approximately $ 150 million in two phases through
2024. Phase 1 included an approximately $ 30 million cost share contribution from Centrus matched by approximately $ 30 million from the DOE to complete
construction of the cascade, begin operations and produce the initial 20 kilograms of HALEU UFs by no later than December 31, 2023. On October 11, 2023, the
Company announced that it began enrichment operations in Piketon, Ohio. On November 7, 2023, the Company announced that it made its first delivery of
HALEU to the DOE, completing Phase 1 by successfully demonstrating its HALEU production process.

Phase 2 of the HALEU Operation Contract includes continued operations and maintenance, and production for a full year at an annual production rate of 900
kilograms of HALEU UFs. The DOE will own the HALEU produced from the demonstration cascade and Centrus will be compensated on a cost-plus-incentive-
fee basis, with an expected Phase 2 contract value of approximately $ 90 million, subject to Congressional appropriations. The HALEU Operation Contract also
gives DOE options to pay for up to nine additional years of production from the cascade beyond the base contract; those options are at the DOE'’s sole
discretion and subject to the availability of Congressional appropriations. Pursuant to an amendment to the Company’s lease for the Piketon facility, the DOE
assumed all D&D liabilities arising out of the HALEU Operation Contract.

Under the HALEU Operation Contract, DOE is obligated to provide the 5B Cylinders necessary for us to collect the output of the cascade, but supply chain
challenges have created difficulties for DOE in securing enough 5B Cylinders for the entire production year. Centrus’ delivery of the 900 kilograms, which it no
longer can achieve by November 2024, was conditioned on DOE'’s ability to provide the 5B Cylinders on a timeline that allows for continuous production
throughout Phase 2 of the contract. During time periods when 5B Cylinders are insufficient, the Company will be able to continue operations of the cascade, but
will not be able to produce HALEU. The 9% target fee for Phase 2 of the contract was estimated to be $7.5 million based on the estimated costs for the contract
and is subject to a contract minimum fee of $6.9 million.
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To support the DOE in mitigating the risk of further delays in delivery of 5B Cylinders, the Company received technical direction and a contract modification
from the DOE to procure compliant 5B Cylinders and components while the contractual obligation to furnish compliant 5B Cylinders under the HALEU Operation
Contract continues to rest with the DOE. The Company is also performing additional work on infrastructure and facility repairs under DOE’s technical direction.
On September 28, 2023, the DOE modified the HALEU Operation Contract to incorporate additional scope, which are not subject to cost-share, for
infrastructure and facility repairs, and costs associated with 5B Cylinder refurbishment, for an estimated additional contract value of $5.8 million. On October 19,
2023, the DOE modified the HALEU Operation Contract to provide additional funding of $ 5.5 million for the additional scope items.

Costs under the HALEU Operation Contract include program costs, including direct labor and materials and associated indirect costs that are classified as
Cost of Sales, and an allocation of corporate costs supporting the program that are classified as Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. When estimates
of program costs to be incurred for an integrated, construction-type contract exceed estimates of total revenue to be earned, a provision for the remaining loss
on the contract is recorded to Cost of Sales in the period the loss is determined. The Company’s corporate costs supporting the program are recognized as
expense as incurred over the duration of the contract term. As of December 31, 2022, the portion of the Company'’s anticipated cost share under the HALEU
Operation Contract representing the Company’s share of projected program costs was recognized in Cost of Sales as an accrued loss of $ 21.3 million. At
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, $ 0 and $ 20.0 million of the accrued loss is included in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, respectively.
The accrued loss on the contract was adjusted over the contract term based on actual results and remaining program cost projections. The impact to Cost of
Sales in the year ended 2023 and 2022 is $ 20.0 million and $ 1.3 million, respectively, for previously accrued contract losses attributable to work performed in
the period. The HALEU Operation Contract is incrementally funded and DOE is currently obligated for costs up to approximately $ 59.4 million of the $ 125.9
million estimated transaction price for Phases 1, Phase 2, and the additional scope work. The Company has received aggregate cash payments under the
HALEU Operation Contract of $ 32.6 million through December 31, 2023.

The Company does not currently have a contractual obligation to perform work in excess of the funding provided by the DOE. If the DOE does not commit to
additional costs above the existing funding, the Company may incur material additional costs or losses in future periods that could have an adverse impact on its
financial condition and liquidity.

Revenue for the Technical Solutions segment in the year ended December 31, 2021, also includes $ 43.5 million related to the settlement of the Company’s
claims for reimbursements for certain pension and postretirement benefits costs incurred in connection with a past cost-reimbursable contract with the DOE
unrelated to the HALEU Demonstration Contract. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the DOE paid the Company $ 43.5 million, of which $ 33.8
million was contributed to the pension plan in September 2021 for its subsidiary Enrichment Corp. and $ 9.7 million was deposited in October 2021 in a trust for
payment of postretirement health benefits payable by Enrichment Corp. After receiving payment, at the Company’s request, the case was dismissed.

111



3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

The following table summarizes the Company’s cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash as presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheets to amounts on

the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in millions):
December 31,

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents $ 201.2 $ 179.9
Deposits for financial assurance - current (a) 0.2 0.2
Deposits for financial assurance - non current 324 323
$ 233.8 $ 212.4

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

(a) Deposits for financial assurance - current is included within Other Current Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company has $ 6.8 million and $ 0 million denominated in euros as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and recorded less than $ 0.1 million in
transaction losses in each of the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

The following table provides additional detail regarding the Company’s deposits for financial assurance (in millions):

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current Long-Term Current Long-Term
Collateral for Inventory Loans $ — $ 29.8 $ — $ 29.8
Workers Compensation — 25 — 2.4
Other 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1
Total deposits for financial assurance $ 0.2 $ 324 $ 0.2 $ 32.3

The Company has provided financial assurance to states in which it was previously self-insured for workers’ compensation in accordance with each state’s
requirements in the form of a surety bond or deposit that is fully cash collateralized by Centrus. Each surety bond or deposit is subject to reduction and/or
cancellation, as each state determines that the likelihood of further workers’ compensation obligations related to the period of self-insurance. In March, May, and
October 2022, the Company entered into three inventory loans which required a cash deposit into an escrow fund. Refer to Note 4, Inventories.
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4. INVENTORIES

Centrus holds uranium at licensed locations (e.g., fabricators) in the form of natural uranium hexafluoride and as the uranium component of LEU in transit to
meet book transfer requests by customers and suppliers. Centrus also holds SWU as the SWU component of LEU at licensed locations or in transit to meet
book transfer requests by customers and suppliers. Fabricators process LEU into fuel for use in nuclear reactors. Components of inventories are as follows (in
millions):

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current Current
Current Liabilities Current Liabilities
Assets (a) Inventories, Net Assets (a) Inventories, Net
Separative work units $ 219 $ —  $ 21.9 $ 241 % — 3 24.1
Uranium 284.5 84.3 200.2 185.1 60.8 124.3
Total $ 3064 $ 843 $ 222.1 $ 209.2 $ 60.8 $ 148.4

(a) This includes inventories owed to suppliers for advances of uranium.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or NRV.

The Company may also borrow SWU or uranium from customers or suppliers, in which case the Company will record the SWU and/or uranium and the
related liability for the borrowing using a projected and forecasted purchase price over the borrowing period. In March 2023, the Company borrowed UFs which
was recorded to inventory at a value of $ 22.5 million, based on the estimated fair market value of the inventory on the date of borrowing. In December 2023, the
Company repaid borrowed SWU inventory valued at $ 11.1 million to a customer and reduced the SWU and the related liability.

In March, May, and October 2022, the Company borrowed SWU which was recorded to inventory at a value of $ 9.4 million, $ 8.5 million, and $ 10.4 million,
respectively. The inventory value was calculated based on the anticipated sourcing of inventory for repayment at the date of acquisition.

In 2018 through 2020 the Company borrowed SWU inventory valued at $ 20.7 million. In the fourth quarter of 2021 and 2023, the Company repaid borrowed
SWU inventory valued at $ 3.1 million and $11.1 million, respectively, to a customer and reduced the SWU and the related liability using an average purchase
price over the borrowing period.

The Company performs quarterly revaluations of the Long-Term Inventory Loans reflecting an updated projection of the timing and sources of inventory to be

used for repayment. These revaluations were recorded to Cost of Sales and resulted in an increase to the related liability of $ 7.4 million, $ 7.9 million, and $ 4.8
million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

A summary of changes in property, plant and equipment follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2022 Additions / (Depreciation) 2023
Land $ 1.2 $ — $ 1.2
Buildings and leasehold improvements 4.8 0.2 5.0
Machinery and equipment 2.0 1.8 3.8
Other 11 0.2 1.3
Property, plant and equipment, gross 9.1 2.2 11.3
Accumulated depreciation (3.6) (0.7) (4.3)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 55 § 15 $ 7.0

Depreciation expense was $ 0.7 million in 2023, $ 0.6 million in 2022 and $ 0.6 million in 2021.

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Intangible assets originated from the Company’s reorganization and application of fresh start accounting as of the date the Company emerged from
bankruptcy, September 30, 2014, and reflect the conditions at that time. The intangible asset related to the Company’s Order Book is amortized as the Order
Book, existing at emergence, is reduced, principally as a result of deliveries to customers. The intangible asset related to customer relationships is amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimated average useful life of 15 years. Amortization expense is presented below gross profit on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. Intangible asset balances are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amount Amortization Net Amount
Sales order book $ 546 $ 416 $ 13.0 $ 546 $ 39.9 $ 14.7
Customer relationships 68.9 425 26.4 68.9 379 31.0
Total $ 1235 $ 841 $ 39.4 $ 1235 $ 77.8 $ 45.7

The amount of amortization expense for intangible assets in each of the succeeding years is estimated to be as follows (in millions):

2024 $ 8.9
2025 9.1
2026 7.4
2027 6.0
2028 4.6
Thereafter 3.4

Total $ 39.4
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7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Components of accounts payable and accrued liabilities follow (in millions):

December 31,
2023 2022
Trade payables $ 61 $ 5.9
Compensation and employee benefits 21.1 15.7
Postretirement health and life benefit obligations - current 10.1 78
Accrued HALEU Operation Contract loss — 20.0
Short-term inventory loan 14.3 9.9
Operating lease liability 14 3.3
Other accrued liabilities 3.2 34
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 56.2 $ 65.5
8. DEBT
A summary of debt follows (in millions):
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Maturity Current Long-Term Current Long-Term
8.25% Notes: Feb. 2027
Principal $ = $ 74.3 $ = $ 74.3
Interest 6.1 153 6.1 214
Total $ 6.1 $ 89.6 $ 6.1 $ 95.7

Interest on the 8.25 % Notes maturing in February 2027 is payable semi-annually in arrears as of February 28 and August 31 based on a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. The 8.25% Notes mature on February 28, 2027. The 8.25% Notes were issued in connection with a troubled debt
restructuring, therefore, all future interest payment obligations on the 8.25% Notes are included in the carrying value of the 8.25% Notes. As a result, interest
payments are reported as a reduction in the carrying value of the 8.25% Notes and not as interest expense. As of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022,
$ 6.1 million of interest is recorded as current and classified as Current Debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The 8.25% Notes rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company’s existing and future unsubordinated indebtedness other than its Issuer Senior Debt
and its Limited Secured Acquisition Debt (each as defined below). The 8.25% Notes rank senior in right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and future
subordinated indebtedness and to certain limited secured acquisition indebtedness of the Company (the “Limited Secured Acquisition Debt"). The Limited
Secured Acquisition Debt includes (i) any indebtedness, the proceeds of which are used to finance all or a portion of an acquisition or similar transaction if any
lender’s lien is solely limited to the assets acquired in such a transaction and (ii) any indebtedness, the proceeds of which are used to finance all or a portion of
the American Centrifuge project or another next generation enrichment technology if any lender’s lien is solely limited to such assets, provided that a lien
securing the 8.25% Notes that is junior with respect to the lien securing such indebtedness will be limited to the assets acquired with such Limited Secured
Acquisition Debt.
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The indenture governing the 8.25% Notes includes restrictions on the ability of Enrichment Corp. to transfer cash and other assets to the Company, which
could constrain the Company'’s ability to pay dividends on its Common Stock or to fund its commitments or the commitments of its other subsidiaries, subject to
certain exceptions, such as the transfer of inventory and other assets in the ordinary course of business of Enrichment Corp. The indenture also restricts the
Company’s ability to engage in certain mergers or acquisitions and requires the Company to offer to repurchase all such outstanding notes at 101% of their
outstanding principal amount in the event of certain change of control events.

The 8.25% Notes are subordinated in right of payment to certain indebtedness and obligations of the Company, as described in the indenture governing the
8.25% Notes (the “Issuer Senior Debt”), including (i) any indebtedness of the Company (inclusive of any indebtedness of Enrichment Corp.) under a future credit
facility up to $ 50 million with a maximum net borrowing of $ 40 million after taking into account any minimum cash balance (unless a higher amount is approved
with the consent of the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the 8.25% Notes then outstanding), (ii) any revolving credit facility to finance
inventory purchases and related working capital needs, and (i) any indebtedness of the Company to Enrichment Corp. under the secured intercompany notes.

The 8.25% Notes are guaranteed on a subordinated and limited basis by, and secured by substantially all of the assets of, Enrichment Corp. The Enrichment
Corp. guarantee is a secured obligation and ranks equally in right of payment with all existing and future unsubordinated indebtedness of Enrichment Corp.
(other than Designated Senior Claims (as defined below) and Limited Secured Acquisition Debt) and senior in right of payment to all existing and future
subordinated indebtedness of Enrichment Corp. and Limited Secured Acquisition Debt. The Enrichment Corp. guarantee is subordinated in right of payment to
certain obligations of, and claims against, Enrichment Corp. described in the indenture governing the 8.25% Notes (collectively, the “Designated Senior
Claims”), including obligations and claims:

« under a future credit facility up to $ 50 million with a maximum net borrowing of $ 40 million after taking into account any minimum cash balance;
« under any revolving credit facility to finance inventory purchases and related working capital needs;

* held by or for the benefit of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation pursuant to any settlement (including any required funding of pension plans);
and

* under surety bonds or similar obligations held by or on behalf of the U.S. government pursuant to regulatory requirements.
The lien securing the Enrichment Corp. guarantee of the 8.25% Notes is junior in priority with respect to the lien securing Limited Secured Acquisition Debt,
which is limited to the assets acquired with such Limited Secured Acquisition Debt.
9. LEASES
Centrus leases facilities and equipment under operating leases. Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has facility leases with terms greater than 12 months, and the Company records the related asset and obligation at the present value of lease
payments over the term. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet.
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Lease assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. Lease assets exclude lease incentives. Lease terms reflect options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that those
options will be exercised. The depreciable life of lease assets and leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term. The weighted-average
remaining lease term was 3.1 years and 3.6 years at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, with maturity dates ranging from December 2025 to September
2027 at both December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. The weighted-average discount rate was 11.3 % and 10.1 % at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Lease expense primarily related to operating leases and totaled a credit of $ 0.1 million, expense of $ 0.7 million, and a credit of $ 0.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. Lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, was net of DOE
credits in the amount of $ 1.5 million, $ 1.6 million, and $ 2.0 million, respectively, for the true-up of prior years’ lease expenses. Other amounts related to short-
term lease expense were insignificant. Operating lease expense is included in Cost of Sales, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses, and Advance
Technology Costs on the Statement of Operations. Cash paid for operating leases included in operating cash flows was $ 1.7 million, $ 1.6 million, and $ 2.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

The Company leases facilities and related personal property near Piketon, Ohio from the DOE under an agreement which is classified as an operating lease.
The lease was amended on May 6, 2021, to decrease the monthly lease payment beginning with the June 2021 payment. The Company accounted for the
amendment as a modification and remeasured the remaining future lease payments through May 31, 2022, and recorded a $ 1.0 million reduction in the related
lease asset and liability. In September 2021, the lease was further amended to extend the term through December 31, 2025. The Company did not remeasure
the lease asset and liability, as the terms of the lease amendment allowed for early termination upon completion of the work under the HALEU Demonstration
Contract, which was expected to occur by November 30, 2022. In November 2022, in connection with the award of the HALEU Operation Contract, the
Company remeasured the lease asset and liability through the lease expiration date of December 31, 2025, and recorded an additional $ 6.6 million in lease
assets and liabilities. In November 2022, the lease was further amended to provide that any facilities, centrifuges or other equipment constructed or installed
under contract with the DOE will be owned by the DOE and may be returned to the DOE in an “as is” condition at the end of the lease term, and the DOE would
be responsible for its D&D. In January 2023, in connection with the revision of estimated facility costs, the Company remeasured the lease asset and liability
through the current lease expiration date of December 31, 2025, and recorded an adjustment to reduce the lease assets and liabilities by $4.2 million.

Operating Lease Assets and Liabilities

The table below presents the lease-related assets and liabilities recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions).

December 31,
2023 2022 Classification on the Balance Sheet
Lease assets $ 27 $ 7.9 Other long-term assets
Lease liabilities:
Current $ 14  $ 3.3 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Non current 2.6 6.1  Other long-term liabilities
Total lease liabilities $ 40 $ 9.4
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Maturity of Operating Lease Liabilities

The table below reconciles undiscounted payments for operating leases with terms greater than 12 months to the operating lease liabilities recorded on the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 (in millions).

2024 $ 1.9
2025 1.9
2026 1.0
2027 0.8
2028 —
Thereafter —
Total lease payments 5.6
Less imputed interest 1.6
Present value of lease payments $ 4.0
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10. FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. When determining the fair value of assets and liabilities, the following hierarchy is used in selecting inputs, with the highest priority given to
Level 1, as these are the most transparent or reliable:

* Level 1 assets include investments with quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to liquidate as of the reporting date.

« Level 2 assets include investments in U.S. government agency securities, corporate and municipal debt whose estimates are valued based on
observable inputs, other than quoted prices.

* Level 3 assets include investments with unobservable inputs, such as third-party valuations, due to little or no market activity.

Financial Instruments Recorded at Fair Value (in millions):

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2012 % — % — 3 201.2 $ 1799 $ —  $ — % 179.9
Deferred compensation asset (a) 858 — — 3.3 2.4 — — 2.4
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation obligation (a) $ 33 % — 8 —  $ 3.3 $ 24 $ —  $ — 8 24

(a) The deferred compensation obligation represents the balance of deferred compensation plus net investment earnings. The deferred compensation plan is funded through a
rabbi trust. Trust funds are invested in mutual funds for which unit prices are quoted in active markets and are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 during the periods presented.

Other Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Consolidated Balance Sheets carrying amounts forAccounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
(excluding the deferred compensation obligation described above), and Payables under Inventory Purchase Agreements approximate fair value because of their

short-term nature.

The carrying value and estimated fair value of long-term debt are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Carrying Value Estimated Fair Carrying Value Estimated Fair
ving Value @ ving Value @
8.25% Notes $ 95.7 (b) $ 717 $ 101.8 (b) $ 68.8

@ Based on bid/ask quotes as of or near the balance sheet date, which are considered Level 2 inputs based on the frequency of trading.

®)  The carrying value of the 8.25% Notes consists of the principal balance of $ 74.3 million and the sum of current and non current interest payment obligations until
maturity. Refer to Note 8, Debt .
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11. PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT HEALTH AND LIFE BENEFITS

The Company provides retirement benefits to certain employees and retirees under two qualified defined benefit pension plans, one postretirement health and
life benefit plan and two disqualified plans. There are approximately 2,900 employees and retirees covered by qualified defined benefit pension plans providing
retirement benefits based on compensation and years of service, and approximately 2,900 employees and retirees covered by postretirement health and life
benefit plans. The DOE retained the obligation for postretirement health and life benefits for workers who retired prior to July 28, 1998. Pursuant to non-qualified
supplemental pension plans, Centrus provides certain executive officers additional retirement benefits in excess of qualified plan limits imposed by tax law
based on a targeted benefit objective. Employees hired on or after September 1, 2008, who are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement that provides
for participation do not participate in a qualified defined benefit pension plan or postretirement health and life benefit plans.

Changes in the projected benefit obligations and plan assets and the funded status of the plans follow:

Postretirement Health

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Life Benefit Plans
($ millions) Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022

Changes in Benefit Obligations:
Obligations at beginning of period $ 5273 % 696.2 $ 953 $ 131.1
Actuarial (gains) losses, net (25.2) (138.0) 14 (27.0)
Service costs 2.9 2.7 — —
Interest costs 27.8 19.1 5.0 Bi5
Benefits paid from plan assets (50.2) (50.0) (104) (12.3)
Benefits paid from Company assets (0.4) (0.4) — —
Plan amendments 0.4 — — —
Settlements (171.4) — — —
Administrative expenses paid (3.0) (2.3) — —
Obligations at end of period 308.2 527.3 91.3 95.3
Changes in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 483.3 672.7 BI5 9.2
Actual return on plan assets 318 (137.1) 0.1 (0.1)
Company contributions 0.4 0.4 6.8 6.7
Benefits paid (50.6) (50.4) (10.4) (12.3)
Settlements (171.4) — — —
Administrative expenses paid (3.0) (2.3) — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 290.5 483.3 — 3.5
Unfunded status at end of period $ (17.7) s (440) s (91.3) $ (91.8)
Amounts recognized in assets and liabilities:

Current liabilities $ (04) $ (04) $ (10.1) $ (7.3)

Non current liabilities (17.3) (43.6) (812) (84.5)

$ (17.7) $ (440) s (91.3) $ (91.8)

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), pre-tax:

Prior service credit $ (01) s (07) $ (1.8) $ (1.9)

The current liabilities reflect expected contributions for benefit payments for the non-qualified plans and the postretirement health and life benefit plans in the
following year.
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The discount rates below, rounded to the nearest 0.1%, are the estimated rates at which the benefit obligations could be effectively settled on the
measurement date and are based on yields of high quality fixed income investments whose cash flows match the timing and amount of expected benefit
payments of the plans.

Plan assets and benefit obligations are remeasured each year as of the balance sheet date resulting in differences between actual and projected results for
the year. These actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter. In addition, an interim
remeasurement and recognition of gains or losses may be required for a plan during the year when lump sum payments exceed, or are expected to exceed, the
sum of the service cost and interest cost components of the annual net periodic benefit cost for that plan for the current year. There were no interim
remeasurements in 2022.

During the third quarter of 2023, the Company determined that it was probable that lump sum payouts for 2023 would be greater than the annual service and
interest cost components of the annual net periodic benefit cost for one of its defined benefit pension plans, triggering a remeasurement. The Company’s
defined benefit obligations for its pension plans was $527.3 million at December 31, 2022, of which $30.6 million related to this plan. The interim remeasurement
resulted in a decrease in the benefit obligation and a corresponding net actuarial gain of $0.9 million in 2023.

The defined benefit pension plans currently allow for a lump sum payment option to (a) active employees who are terminated as a result of Company
reductions in force and (b) terminated vested participants who have not yet begun receiving their benefits and have been terminated as a result of a reduction in
force by the Company, or due to voluntary termination or involuntary termination, other than involuntary termination as a termination for cause.

On October 12, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with an insurer (“Insurer”) for one of its defined benefit plans to purchase a group annuity
contract and transferred approximately $186.5 million of its pension plan obligations to the Insurer. The purchase of the group annuity contract was funded
directly by assets of the pension plan of approximately $171.4 million. The purchase resulted in a transfer of benefit administrative responsibilities for
approximately 1,400 beneficiaries effective December 1, 2023. The Company recorded income related to the pension settlement in the fourth quarter of
$28.6 million, which was included in Nonoperating Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income in its Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Projected benefit obligations are based on actuarial assumptions including possible future increases in compensation. Accumulated benefit obligations are
based on actuarial assumptions but do not include possible future increases in compensation. Effective August 2013, accrued benefits under the defined benefit
pension plans are fixed and no longer increase to reflect changes in compensation or company service. Therefore, the accumulated benefit obligation equaled
the projected benefit obligation of $ 308.2 million and $ 527.3 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, none
of Centrus’ plans had fair value of plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit obligations.
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Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs and Other Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

The Company reports service costs for its defined benefit pension plans and its postretirement health and life benefit plans inCost of Sales and Selling,

General and Administrative Expenses. The remaining components of net periodic benefit (credits) costs are reported as Nonoperating Components of Net
Periodic Benefit Income.

Postretirement Health

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Life Benefit Plans
(in millions) Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021

Net Periodic Benefit (Credits) Costs
Service costs $ 29 $ 27 % 2.7 $ — % — 8 —
Interest costs 27.8 19.1 18.1 5.0 3.5 3.4
Expected return on plan assets (31.0) (35.6) (38.3) (0.1) (0.1) —
Amortization of prior service credits, net (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1)
Actuarial (gains) losses, net (26.0) 34.7 (48.2) 1.4 (26.9) (2.3)
Net periodic benefit (credits) costs $ (265) $ 20.7 $ (659) $ 62 $ (236) $ 1.0
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations Recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Amortization of prior service costs, net $ — 8 — 3 — 3 (18) $ (19) $ (2.0)
Prior service credit (0.1) (0.7) (0.9) — — —
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss, pre-tax $ (01) $ (07) $ (09) s (1.8) $ (19) s (2.0)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit costs (income) and other

comprehensive income (loss), pre-tax $ (266) $ 200 $ (66.8) $ 44 3 (255) $ (1.0)

Net periodic benefit costs include service and interest costs of providing pension benefits that are accrued over the years employees render service. Prior
service costs or credits are amortized over the employees’ average remaining years of service from age 40 until the date of full benefit eligibility or the average
expected future lifetime of all plan participants, as applicable. Participants in the postretirement health and life benefit plans are generally eligible for benefits at
retirement after age 50 with 10 years of continuous credited service at the time of retirement.

On September 7, 2021, the Company collected $ 43.5 million from the DOE, of which $ 33.8 million was contributed to the pension plan in September 2021 for
its subsidiary Enrichment Corp. and $ 9.7 million was deposited in October 2021 in a trust for payment of postretirement health benefits payable by Enrichment
Corp. Refer to Note 2, Revenue and Contracts with Customers.

Effective January 1, 2014, or for certain plan participants formerly represented by a collective bargaining unit, January 1, 2015, plan participants age 65 or
older (“post-65") have access to a range of medical plan choices with varying costs and benefits through a Medicare Exchange implemented by the Company.
The Company provides an annual stipend for each of the post-65 retirees and post-65 spouses who enroll in the coverage through the exchange. Depending on
the level of benefits elected by the participant, the participant may be required to make contributions in excess of the stipend amount.
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The transition to the post-65 Medicare Exchange was reflected as a plan amendment that reduced plan obligations by $ 6.8 million as of December 31, 2014.
This reduction in obligation was recognized in other comprehensive income in 2014 as a prior service credit. The prior service credit is being amortized into net
periodic benefit cost as a credit over time. The post-65 Medicare Exchange stipend amount was increased for 2017. This increase in obligation of $ 3.6 million
as of December 31, 2016, was recognized in other comprehensive income in 2016 as a prior service cost and is being amortized into net periodic benefit cost
over time. The post-65 Medicare Exchange stipend amount was increased in 2018, as specified in a settlement agreement with the former collective bargaining
unit. The settlement agreement also specifies the addition of catastrophic drug coverage effective January 1, 2019. The benefit enhancement for 2019 has been
applied to all post-65 participants regardless of past representation by the collective bargaining agreement. The increase in obligation of $ 10.0 million as a result
of the settlement agreement was recognized in net periodic benefit costs in 2017 as a plan change resulting from a legal settlement and is reported in
Nonoperating Components of Net Periodic Benefit Income.

The defined benefits pension plans were amended in March 2019 making permanent the option for pension-eligible employees to receive a lump sum
payment upon termination, regardless of benefit size. The effect of these plan changes has been added to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) as
an unrecognized prior service cost to be amortized over the average future service of active employees starting in 2020.

Assumptions Used to Determine Net Periodic Benefit Costs

Postretirement Health

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Life Benefit Plans
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Discount rate 5.2 % 5.5 % 2.8 % 5.2 % 5.5 % 2.8 %
Expected return on plan assets 6.8 % 55% 6.3 % 4.0 % 0.8 % —

The expected return on plan assets is based on the weighted average of long-term return expectations for the composition of the plans’ equity and debt
securities. Expected returns on equity securities are based on historical long-term returns of equity markets. Expected returns on debt securities are based on
the current interest rate environment.

Healthcare cost trend rates used to measure postretirement health benefit obligations follow:

December 31,
2023 2022
Healthcare cost trend rate for the following year 7.0% 7.0 %
Long-term rate that the healthcare cost trend rate gradually declines to 5% 5%
Year that the healthcare cost trend rate is expected to reach the long-term rate 2032 2031
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Benefit Plan Assets

Independent advisors manage investment assets of Centrus’ defined benefit pension plans and postretirement health and life benefit plans. Centrus has the
fiduciary responsibility for reviewing performance of the various investment advisors. The goal of the investment policy of the plans is to maximize portfolio
returns within reasonable and prudent levels of risk in order to meet projected liabilities and maintain sufficient cash to make timely payments of all participant
benefits. Risk is reduced by diversifying plan assets and following a strategic asset allocation approach. Additionally, as the plans are frozen and funding status
has improved, the Company has shifted the investment allocations to lower risk investments in order to minimize market exposure and will continue to do so
based upon approved funding milestones. Asset classes and target weights are adjusted periodically to optimize the long-term portfolio risk/return trade off, to
provide liquidity for benefit payments, and to align portfolio risk with the underlying obligations. The investment policy of the plans prohibits the use of leverage,
direct investments in tangible assets, or any investment prohibited by applicable laws or regulations.

The allocation of plan assets between equity and debt securities and the target allocation range by asset category for the defined benefit pension plans

follows:

December 31,

2023 2022 2024 Target

Equity securities 42 % 36 % 35 - 40%

Debt securities 57 % 62 % 55 - 60%

Cash 1% 2 % 0- 5%
100 % 100 %
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Plan assets are measured at fair value. Following are the plan investments as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, categorized by the fair value hierarchy levels
described in Note 10, Fair Value:

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Plans

(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

U.S. government securities $ — 3 — % — % — % — 3 — 3 — 3 =
Corporate debt — — 9.6 60.3 — — 9.6 60.3
Municipal bonds and non-U.S. government securities — — — — — — — —
Mutual funds (b) 245.7 320.4 — — — — 245.7 320.4
Mortgage and asset backed securities — — — — — — — —
Fair value of investments by hierarchy level $ 2457 $ 3204 $ 96 $ 603 $ — 8 — 255.3 380.7
Investments measured at NAV (a) 35.2 105.8
Accrued interest receivable 0.5 0.6
Unsettled transactions — (0.3)
Plan assets $ 291.0 $ 486.8

(a) Equity, bond and money market investments held in collective trusts are valued based on the NAV provided by the administrator of the funds. The NAV for each fund is based
on the underlying assets owned by the fund, less any expenses accrued against the fund, divided by the number of fund shares outstanding. While the underlying investments
are traded on an exchange, the funds are not. Fair values for the collective trust investments are measured using the NAVs as a practical expedient and are not categorized in
the fair value hierarchy.

(b) Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Plan assets of $ 3.5 million as of December 31, 2022, are all included within Level 1 mutual funds. During 2023, the remaining assets of
the Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Plan were expended and any related benefit costs are now primarily funded as incurred.

Benefit Plan Cash Flows
The Company expects to contribute $ 0.4 million to the qualified defined benefit pension plans, $ 0.4 million to the non-qualified defined benefit pension plans,
and $ 10.1 million to the postretirement health and life benefit plans in 2024. There is no required contribution for the postretirement health and life benefit plans

under Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

Estimated future benefit plan payments follow (in millions):

Defined Benefit Pension Postretirement Health and

Plans Life Benefit Plans
2024 $ 300 $ 10.1
2025 285 9.5
2026 28.6 9.0
2027 26.9 8.4
2028 26.1 7.8
2029 to 2033 120.1 316
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Other Plans

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan for employees. Employee contributions are matched at established rates. Amounts contributed are
invested in a range of investment options available to participants and the funds are administered by an independent trustee. Matching cash contributions by the
Company amounted to $ 2.3 million, $ 2.1 million, and $2.0 million in 2023, 2022, and 2021.

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, qualified employees may defer compensation on a tax-deferred basis subject to plan limitations. Any
matching contributions under the Company’s 401(k) plan that are foregone due to annual compensation limitations of the Code are eligible to be received from
the Company under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, provided that the employee deferred the maximum allowable pre-tax contribution in the 401(k)
plan. The Company matching contributions amounted to less than $0.1 million in 2023, 2022, and 2021.

12. EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

The Company maintains the Severance Plan which provides severance benefits for covered executives. In addition, the Company also enters into employee
agreements with key executives which incorporate severance benefits, including continuation of certain insurance benefits. The benefits payable under the
Severance Plan (as well as applicable employment agreements) outline benefits based on salary level, amongst other variables. Accordingly, as the severance
expenses are part of an on-going benefit arrangement, the Company recognizes the expense when payment of the severance is probable and can be
reasonably estimated in accordance with ASC 712, Compensation — Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits. In December 2023, the Company recorded a
severance charge of $ 3.6 million related to the separation of one executive, which was recorded in Special Charges for Workforce Reductions expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company expects the majority of the severance charge to be paid out in 2024, excluding the costs for the
continuation of insurance benefits. The Company’s severance expenses were $ 3.6 million, $ 0.5 million, and $ 0 million for the years ended December 31,
2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s 2014 Plan authorizes the issuance of stock options, SARs, restricted stock units, restricted stock, notional stock units, performance awards,
dividend equivalent rights, and other stock-based awards, as well as cash-based awards, to employees, officers, directors, and other individuals providing
services to the Company or its affiliates. As disclosed in Note 16, Stockholder’s Equity, in February 2021, the Company increased the available shares of Class
A Common Stock under the Company’s 2014 Plan by an additional 700,000 shares. The 2014 Plan currently authorizes the issuance of up to 1,900,000 shares.
As of December 31, 2023, there were 561,704 shares available for future awards.

In January 2019, the Company adopted the 2019 Equity Incentive Plan, which is subject to the terms of the 2014 Plan, under which participating employees
are eligible to receive grants of equity awards such as notional stock units and SARs. Under this plan, the Company has granted awards that are subject to
either cliff-based or performance-based vesting. The cliff-based awards vest after three years of service. The performance-based awards vest if the Company
reaches or exceeds a pre-defined net income target for the three-year award term. Equity awards may be payable in common stock, cash, or a combination of
both, at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Compensation costs for awards that are likely to be settled with cash payments are remeasured each reporting
period based on the closing price of the Company’s Class A Common Stock. These cumulative vested costs are accrued in Accounts Payable and Accrued
Liabilities or Other Long-Term Liabilities. Equity awards that are payable in stock are accounted for as equity and compensation costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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In 2019, under the 2014 Plan, the Company awarded notional stock units to participating executives for the three-year period ending December 31, 2021. As
the original award, at grant date, was expected to be settled in cash, the Company had recorded cumulative compensation costs in Other Long-Term Liabilities
at December 31, 2020. There were 206,183 notional stock units (two-thirds of these awards) paid in shares in April 2021, with the remainder paid in April 2022.
As of March 31, 2021, the Company reclassified these shares to equity as the Board of Directors approved settlement in shares. The related obligation of $7.5
million was reclassified from Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities to Excess of Capital over Par Valuein the first quarter of 2021 based on the market share
price at the time of the Board of Directors’ decision. In the second quarter of 2021, the Company withheld $2.4 million of shares to fund the grantees’ tax
withholding obligations relating to the April 2021 interim payment.

In 2020, the Company awarded participating executives notional stock units and stock appreciation rights for the three-year period ending April 26, 2023.
These equity awards could have been paid in common stock, cash, or a combination of both at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The cumulative vested
costs were accrued in Other Long-Term Liabilities as at that time they were likely to be settled in cash

In September 2021, the Company awarded participating executives notional stock units and SARs. The awards granted will be paid in shares on or before
May 1, 2024, provided that a defined performance condition is achieved. In order to receive the award, the total cumulative net income as reported on the
Company’s Form 10-Ks for the years ending December 31, 2021, 2022, and 2023 must be equal to or greater than $160 million. The grant date fair value of
notional stock units is determined based on the closing price of Class A Common Stock on the grant date. The grant date fair value of the SARs were
determined based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Company has concluded that it is probable that the performance condition will be achieved
and therefore has recorded compensation cost. Compensation costs for these notional stock units and SARs are amortized to expense on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period.

In February 2022, the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors determined that remaining notional stock units
granted in 2019 and 2020 would be paid in shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock. The related obligation of $10.6 million was reclassified from
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities to Excess of Capital over Par Valuein the first quarter of 2022 based on the market share price at the time of the
Board'’s decision. In the first quarter of 2022, the Company withheld $1.9 million of shares that vested during the period for the purpose of funding the grantees’
tax withholding obligations under the terms of the stock-based compensation plan.

In March 2022, restricted stock was granted to participating executives with a vesting period ending in March 2025. In March 2023, restricted stock was
granted to participating executives with a vesting period ending in March 2026. The March 2022 and 2023 awards are payable in shares of the Company’s
Class A Common Stock and the grant-date value is included in Excess of Capital over Par Value as the value is amortized over the vesting period.

The plan payouts for the 2020-2022 performance period were settled in Class A Common Stock in March and April 2023. In the first quarter of 2023, the
Company withheld $1.9 million of shares that vested during the period for the purpose of funding the grantees’ tax withholding obligations under the terms of the
stock-based compensation plan.

Compensation cost for restricted stock units and stock options is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period. As of December 31, 2023, there was $ 1.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost, adjusted for actual
forfeitures, related to non-vested stock-based payments granted, all of which relates to restricted stock units. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 48 months.
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A summary of stock-based compensation costs is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Notional stock units and stock appreciation rights $ 1.0 $ 0.9 $ 11.6
Restricted stock 0.4 0.2 —
BOD and employee restricted stock units 0.9 0.7 0.5
Stock options — 0.1 0.1
Total stock-based compensation costs $ 2.3 $ 1.9 $ 12.2
Total recognized tax benefit $ (03) $ (02) s (15)

The total recognized tax benefit is reported at the federal statutory rate net of the tax valuation allowance.
Board Restricted Stock Units

Non-employee, independent directors are granted restricted stock units as part of their compensation for serving on the Board of Directors. Settlement of
these restricted stock units is made in shares of Class A Common Stock upon the director’s retirement, other end of service, or vesting, in accordance with the
terms of the grant agreement. The restricted stock units generally vest over one year; however, vesting is accelerated upon (1) the director attaining eligibility for
retirement, (2) termination of the director’s service by reason of death or disability, or (3) a change in control. As of December 31, 2023, approximately 160,000
shares of restricted stock units could potentially be converted to Class A Common Stock once vested and settled.

The following table summarizes Centrus’ board restricted stock units activity:

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value (per

Shares (in thousands) share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2020 47 $10.38
Granted 20 $25.13
Vested (47) $10.38
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 20 $25.13
Granted 28 $38.80
Vested (20) $25.13
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 28 $38.80
Granted 17 $35.95
Vested (28) $ 38.80
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 17 $35.95
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Employee Restricted Stock Units

In 2021, certain employees were granted restricted stock units as part of their compensation. The restricted stock units generally vest over three years and
will be settled in Class A Common Stock upon vesting. As of December 31, 2023, approximately 1,000 shares of these restricted stock units could potentially be
converted to Class A Common Stock once vested and settled. In December 2023, the Company granted 20,000 restricted stock units to the new CEO as part of
his compensation. The restricted stock units generally vest over five years and will be settled in Class A Common Stock. As of December 31, 2023,
approximately 20,000 shares of these restricted stock units could potentially be converted to Class A Common Stock once vested and settled.

The following table summarizes Centrus’ employee restricted stock units activity:
Weighted Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Value (per

(in thousands) share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2020 — —
Granted 4 $24.01
Vested = =
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 4 $24.01
Granted — —
Vested (1) $24.01
Forfeited - —_
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 3 $24.01
Granted 20 $55.54
Vested (1) $24.01
Forfeited (1) $24.01
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 21 $54.04

Stock Options

The intrinsic value of an option, if any, represents the excess of the fair value of the common stock over the exercise price. The fair value of stock option
awards is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which includes a number of assumptions including Centrus’ estimates of stock price volatility,
employee stock option exercise behaviors, future dividend payments, and risk-free interest rates.

The expected term of options granted is the estimated period of time from the beginning of the vesting period to the date of expected exercise or other
settlement, based on historical exercises and post-vesting terminations. Centrus has estimated the expected term using the simplified method described in SEC
Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 14, Share-Based Payment, due to the lack of historical exercise and post-vesting termination information available for the
Company since its reorganization. Future stock price volatility is estimated based on the Company'’s historical volatility. The risk-free interest rate for the
expected option term is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. No cash dividends are expected in the foreseeable future, and
therefore, an expected dividend yield of zero is used in the option valuation model.

There were no option grants in the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021.
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Stock options vest and become exercisable in equal annual installments over a three or four year period and expire ten years from the date of grant. A
summary of stock option activity follows:

Weighted Average

Stock Options (in Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
thousands) Exercise Price Life in Years Value (in millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 411 $4.18 5.3 $78
Granted — — — —
Exercised (217) $4.17 — —
Forfeited/Cancelled — —_ —_ —
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 194 $4.18 4.4 $8.9
Granted — — — —
Exercised (98) $4.00 — —
Forfeited/Cancelled — — — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 96 $4.37 2.2 $2.7
Granted — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited/Cancelled — — — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 96 $4.37 0.3 $4.8
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 96 $4.37 0.3 $4.8

Stock options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Options Outstanding Remaining Contractual Life in Options Exercisable
Stock Exercise Price (thousands) Years (thousands)
$4.37 96 0.3 96

Stock Appreciation Rights - 2020 Award

The intrinsic value of a SAR, if any, represents the excess of the fair value of the common stock over the exercise price. The fair value of SAR awards is
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which includes a number of assumptions including Centrus’ estimates of stock price volatility, expected
term, future dividend payments, and risk-free interest rates.

These SARs generally have a defined term of three years from award and are automatically exercised at the end of its term. Future stock price volatility is

estimated based on the Company’s historical volatility. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the
time of grant. No cash dividends are expected in the foreseeable future and, therefore, an expected dividend yield of zero is used in the valuation model.
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A summary of SARs with time-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:
Weighted Average

Stock Appreciation Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Rights (in thousands) Exercise Price Life in Years Value (in millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 84 $5.53 2.3 $1.5
Granted — —_ —_ —_
Exercised = = = =
Forfeited/Cancelled — — — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 84 $5.53 1.3 $3.7
Granted — — — —
Exercised = = = =
Forfeited/Cancelled (14) $5.53 — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 70 $5.53 0.3 $2.7
Granted — — — —
Exercised (74) $5.53 — —
Forfeited/Cancelled 4 $5.53 —_ —_

Outstanding at December 31, 2023 — — — _

Exercisable at December 31, 2023 — — — _

Stock Appreciation Rights (Performance Condition) - 2021 Award

The intrinsic value of a SAR, if any, represents the excess of the fair value of the common stock over the exercise price. The fair value of SAR awards is
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which includes a number of assumptions including Centrus’ estimates of stock price volatility, expected
term, future dividend payments, and risk-free interest rates.

These SARs generally have a defined term of three years from award and are automatically exercised at the end of its term if the performance condition has
been met. Future stock price volatility is estimated based on the Company’s historical volatility. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. No cash dividends are expected in the foreseeable future and, therefore, an expected dividend yield of
zero is used in the valuation model.
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A summary of SARs with performance-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan in the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Stock Appreciation Weighted Average
Rights (Performance Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate Intrinsic
Condition) (in thousands) Exercise Price Life in Years Value (in millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — — — —
Granted 21 $19.44 — —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited/Cancelled —_ — - —
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 21 $19.44 2.3 $0.6
Granted — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited/Cancelled (3) $19.44 — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 18 $19.44 1.3 —
Granted — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited/Cancelled (1) $19.44 — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 17 $19.44 0.2 $0.3
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 17 $19.44 0.2 $0.3

The weighted-average assumptions used in the valuation models to determine the fair value of SARs granted to employees under the 2014 Plan are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Stock Appreciation Rights Granted (in thousands) n/a n/a 21.0
Average Risk-Free Rate n/a n/a 0.3 %
Expected Volatility n/a n/a 82.8 %
Expected Term (Years) n/a n/a 25
Dividend Yield n/a n/a —
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Notional Stock Units - 2019 and 2020 Awards

A summary of notional stock units with time-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value (per

Shares (thousands) share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2020 571 $3.68
Granted — —
Vested (319) —
Forfeited/Cancelled — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 252 $4.33
Granted — —
Vested (128) $3.16
Forfeited (2) $5.53
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 122 $5.53
Granted — —
Vested (104) $5.53
Forfeited (18) $5.53

Nonvested at December 31, 2023 —_ =

Notional Stock Units (Performance Condition) - 2021 Award

A summary of notional stock units with performance-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Shares Weighted Average Grant
(in thousands) Date Fair Value (per share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2020 — —
Granted 10 $39.55
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 10 $ 39.55
Granted — —
Vested — —
Forfeited (2) $39.55
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 8 $ 39.55
Granted — —
Vested = =
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 8 $ 39.55
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Restricted Stock (Performance Condition) - 2022 Award

A summary of restricted stock with performance-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Shares Weighted Average Grant Date
(in thousands) Fair Value (per share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 — —
Granted 24 $33.70
Vested — —
Forfeited (2) $33.70
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 22 $33.70
Granted — —
Vested — —
Forfeited (5) $33.70
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 17 $33.70

Restricted Stock (Performance Condition) - 2023 Award

A summary of restricted stock with performance-based vesting granted under the 2014 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Shares Weighted Average Grant Date
(in thousands) Fair Value (per share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2022 — —
Granted 17 $42.70
Vested — —
Forfeited (6) $42.70
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 11 $42.70
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14. INCOME TAXES
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

The income tax expense (benefit) is as follows (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Current:
Federal $ — $ — $ —
State and local 1.6 1.0 0.4
Foreign — —_ —
1.6 1.0 0.4
Deferred:
Federal (a) (0.7) 14.9 (40.7)
State and local (0.8) (0.3) 1.2
Foreign — — —
(15) 14.6 (39.5)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 0.1 $ 15.6 $ (39.1)

(a) The income tax expense for 2023 and the income tax benefit for 2021 include the reversal of a portion of the federal valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets. See further

discussion below.
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Deferred Taxes

Future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and the Company’s estimate of the tax
bases of its assets and liabilities result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, as follows (in millions):

December 31,

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefits costs $ 27.1 $ 335
Inventory 313 21.3
Property, plant and equipment 178.0 190.2
Research and experimental expenditures B BI5)
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards 172.0 188.6
Accrued expenses 0.4 4.9
Long-term debt and financing costs 5.5 7.6
Lease liability 0.8 21
Other 0.6 0.4
Deferred tax assets 419.0 452.1
Valuation allowance (3824) (414.1)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance $ 36.6 $ 38.0
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets $ 7.1 $ 9.0
Lease asset 0.6 1.8
Prepaid expenses 0.4 0.4
Deferred tax liabilities $ 8.1 $ 11.2
Deferred tax assets, net $ 28.5 $ 26.8

The valuation allowance reduces the net deferred tax assets to their net realizable value. The ultimate realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent
upon generating sufficient taxable income in future years when deferred tax assets are recoverable or are expected to reverse.

The Company evaluated both positive and negative evidence that was objectively verifiable to determine the amount of the federal valuation allowance that
was required on Centrus’ federal deferred tax assets. Centrus has visibility on a significant portion of revenue in the LEU segment for 2023 through 2026,
primarily from its long-term sales contracts. Centrus determined that the positive evidence of increased forecasted future income in the LEU segment based on
existing sales Order Book and supply contracts along with commodity market forward pricing indicators, supported the release of the federal valuation
allowance. However, due to lack of objectively verifiable information in later years, it was determined that forecasted future income was not sufficient to realize
all the deferred tax assets. Therefore, Centrus recorded a partial release of its federal valuation allowance. In the third and fourth quarters of 2023, respectively,
Centrus released ($ 7.7 ) million and ($ 11.7 ) million of the valuation allowance against its federal net deferred tax assets.

The Company continues to maintain a partial valuation allowance against its remaining federal and state net deferred tax assets due to significant federal and

state net operating losses and insufficient future taxable income. As of December 31, 2023, the valuation allowance against the remaining federal and state net
deferred tax assets was $ 382.4 million.
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In 2022, an analysis of the positive and negative evidence was performed to determine if a change to the federal valuation allowance was required. Centrus
evaluated both positive and negative evidence that was objectively verifiable to determine the amount of the valuation allowance that was required on Centrus’
deferred tax assets. Centrus had visibility on a significant portion of revenue in the LEU segment for the next few years, primarily from its long-term sales
contracts. Centrus considered both its achievement of sustained profitability and cumulative income in 2022, as well as the forecasted income to be significant
forms of positive evidence. Negative evidence included uncertainty in and the lack of objectively verifiable evidence for profitability in later years in Centrus’ LEU
segment when existing Order Book and supply contracts expire and in Centrus’ Technical Solutions segment related to future funding of the HALEU enrichment
facility. Based on the analysis, positive evidence continued to outweigh negative evidence. However, it was determined that no further change to the federal
valuation allowance was necessary in 2022, and the Company continued to maintain a partial valuation allowance against its remaining federal and state net
deferred tax assets due to significant federal and state net operating losses and insufficient future taxable income. As of December 31, 2022, the valuation
allowance against the remaining federal and state net deferred tax assets was $ 414.1 million.

Going forward, Centrus will continue to evaluate both positive and negative evidence that would support any further changes to the remaining federal and
state valuation allowances. Such evidence in the Company’s Technical Solutions segment may include events that could have a significant impact on pre-tax
income, such as signing new contracts with significantly higher or lower margins than currently forecasted, follow-on work related to the HALEU program, or
abandonment of the commercial deployment of the centrifuge technology. Such evidence in our LEU segment may include renewing SWU sales contracts with
existing customers and/or signing new SWU sales or purchase contracts with significantly higher or lower margins than currently forecasted. Additional evidence
in the LEU segment may include potential deferrals in the timing of deliveries requested by its customers, which could impact revenue recognition timing. The
impact of these and other potential positive and negative events will be weighed and evaluated to determine if the valuation allowances should be increased or
decreased in the future.

The Company has federal NOLs of $ 568.0 million generated through December 31, 2017, that currently expire through 2037. In addition, the Company has
federal NOL carryforwards of $ 131.4 million generated after December 31, 2017, that do not expire. Centrus also has state NOL carryforwards of $ 488.4
million, with a full valuation allowance, that currently expire through 2038.

Effective Tax Rate

A reconciliation of income taxes calculated based on the federal statutory income tax rate and the effective tax rate follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

Federal statutory tax rate 21 % 21 % 21 %
Valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets (38) (1) (53)
State rate changes 15 2 1
Executive compensation 1 1 1
State income tax expense, net of federal benefit — (1) 1
Uncertain tax positions 1 1 —

Effective tax rate — % 23 % (29)%
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The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2023, includes a decrease to the valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets of $ 31.7 million,
or a change to the effective tax rate of (38%). Included in the valuation allowance decrease is the release of the valuation allowance against federal net deferred
taxes of $ 19.4 million, or a change to the effective tax rate of (23%), as well as a release of the valuation allowance against state net deferred taxes for state
rate changes of $ 12.3 million during the year, as a result of state law changes, or a change to the effective tax rate of (15%). There is an offsetting increase to
the effective tax rate for state rate changes of $ 12.1 million, or a change to the effective tax rate of 15% so that the impact for the state rate changes net of the
corresponding valuation allowance decrease is zero.

The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2022, includes a decrease to the valuation allowance against state net deferred tax assets of $ 0.6
million, or a change to the effective tax rate of (1%).

The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2021, includes a decrease to the valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets of $ 71.3 million,
or a change to the effective tax rate of (53%). Included in the valuation allowance decrease is the release of the valuation allowance against federal net deferred
taxes of $ 40.7 million, or a change to the effective tax rate of (30%).

Uncertain Tax Positions

Accounting standards require that a tax position meet a minimum recognition threshold in order for the related tax benefit to be recognized in the financial
statements. The liability for unrecognized tax benefits, included in Other Long-Term Liabilities, was $ 2.9 million as of December 31, 2023, and $ 1.9 million as of
December 31, 2022. If recognized, these tax benefits would impact the effective tax rate. As a result of changes to unrecognized tax benefits, the income tax
provision (state tax, net of federal benefit) increased by $ 1.0 million and $ 0.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the table below relates to unrecognized state income tax benefits. Centrus believes that the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits will not change significantly in the next 12 months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the period $ 1.9 $ 1.0
Additions to tax positions of current period 1.0 0.9
Reductions to tax positions of prior years — =
Balance at end of the period $ 2.9 $ 1.9

Centrus and its subsidiaries file income tax returns with the U.S. government and various states and foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2023, the
federal, Maryland and Tennessee statutes of limitation are closed with respect to all tax years through 2019.

Centrus recognizes accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions as a component ofinterest Expense. Reversals of previously accrued interest for
income taxes is typically offset against interest expense, but if the amount is significant, it is reclassified to interest income in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Centrus recognizes the increase or decrease of accrued penalties for income taxes as a component of Selling, General and Administrative in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The impact of accrued interest and penalties for income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was an increase to expenses of $ 0.2 million for

the year ended December 31, 2023, and $ 0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Accrued interest and penalties for income taxes, included as a
component of Other Long-Term Liabilities, totaled $ 0.3 million as of December 31, 2023, and $ 0.1 million as of December 31, 2022.
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15. NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing income allocable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. In calculating diluted net income per share, the number of shares is increased by the weighted average number of potential
common shares related to stock compensation awards including restricted stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights and notional stock units, and the
warrant. No dilutive effect is recognized in a period in which a net loss has occurred.

On February 2, 2021, the Company completed the exchange of 3,873 shares of its outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock, par value $ 1.00 per share
(“Preferred Stock™) for (i) 231,276 shares of Class A Common Stock and (ii) a warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise
price of $ 21.62 per share, for an aggregate valuation of approximately $ 7.5 million. The carrying value of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock on the Balance
Sheet was $ 1.00 per share par value. The aggregate liquidation preference of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock, including accrued but unpaid dividends, was
$ 1,291.04 per share as of December 31, 2020.

On November 23, 2021, the Company completed the purchase of 36,867 shares of its outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock at a price per share of $
1,145.20, less any applicable withholding taxes. The Company also completed the purchase of the remaining 980 shares of its outstanding Series B Senior
Preferred Stock at a price per share of $ 1,149.99 , less any applicable withholding taxes, on December 15, 2021 (Refer to Note 16, Stockholders’ Equity). The
aggregate purchase price of both transactions was $ 43.3 million. The carrying value of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
was $ 1.00 per share par value.

The aggregate valuation of all 2021 preferred stock transactions of approximately $ 50.8 million, less accrued but unpaid dividends attributable to the acquired
and retired shares of Series B Senior Preferred Stock, is considered for purposes of Net Income per Share to be a deemed dividend in the aggregate amount
equal to the amount by which it exceeds the carrying value of the Preferred Stock on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, or $ 37.6 million.

On December 29, 2022, the Company amended and restated the warrant issued on February 2, 2021, to extend the term to February 5, 2024. The change in
the fair value of the warrant is considered as a reduction to net income available to common stockholders for purposes ofNet Income per Share. On December
18, 2023, Kulayba LLC delivered a note of exercise with regard to all 250,000 shares issued under the warrant via a cashless exercise. The closing market price
of a share of Class A Common Stock on the exercise date of the warrant was $53.61. Pursuant to the warrant, the exercise price was $21.62 per share. The
cashless exercise resulted in the purchase of 149,179 Shares of Class A Common Stock by Kulayba LLC on December 18, 2023. For further detail, refer to
Note 16, Stockholders’ Equity.
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The weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares and the calculation of basic and diluted income per common share are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

Numerator (in millions):

Net income $ 84.4 $ 52.2 $ 175.0

Warrant modification — 15 —

Preferred stock dividends - undeclared and cumulative — — 2.1

Distributed earnings allocable to retired preferred shares — — 37.6

Net income allocable to common stockholders $ 84.4 $ 50.7 $ 135.3
Denominator (in thousands):

Average common shares outstanding - basic 15,212 14,601 13,493

Potentially dilutive shares related to stock compensation awards and warrant 289 387 386

Average common shares outstanding - diluted 15,501 14,988 13,879
Net income per common share (in dollars):

Basic $ 5.55 $ 3.47 $ 10.03

Diluted $ 5.44 $ 3.38 $ 9.75
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16. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Shares Outstanding

Changes in the number of shares outstanding are as follows:

Preferred Stock,

Common Stock,

Common Stock,

Series B Class A Class B
Balance at December 31, 2020 41,720 11,390,189 719,200
Issuance under public offering — 1,516,467 —
Common stock issued for options exercised — 216,500 —
Issuance of previously vested restricted stock units — 89,318 —
Notional stock units paid in shares — 206,183 —
Common stock and warrant issued in exchange for preferred stock (3,873) 231,276 —
Purchase under tender offer (37,847) — —
Balance at December 31, 2021 — 13,649,933 719,200
Issuance under public offering — 99,090 —
Common stock issued for options exercised — 98,000 —_
Issuance of previously vested restricted stock units — 1,172 —
Notional stock units paid in shares — 71,451 —
Balance at December 31, 2022 — 13,919,646 719,200
Issuance under public offering — 722,568 —
Issuance of previously vested restricted stock units — 45,437 —
Notional stock units paid in shares — 119,604 —
Exercise of outstanding warrant — 149,179 —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 14,956,434 719,200

Common Stock

The Company'’s certificate of incorporation authorizes 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $ 1.00 per share, 70,000,000 shares of Class A

Common Stock and 30,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has issued 15,675,634 shares of Common Stock,
consisting of 14,956,434 shares of Class A Common Stock and 719,200 shares of Class B Common Stock.

Pursuant to a sales agreement with its agents, the Company sold through at the market offerings an aggregate of 722,568 shares, 99,090 shares, and
1,516,467 shares of its Class A Common Stock for a total of $ 24.4 million, $ 3.8 million, and $ 44.2 million in 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. After
expenses and commissions paid to the agents the Company’s 2023, 2022, and 2021, proceeds totaled $ 23.4 million, $ 3.6 million, and $ 42.4 million,

respectively. Additionally, the Company recorded direct costs of $ 0.2 million and $ 0.3 million related to the issuance in 2023 and 2021, respectively. The shares
of Class A Common Stock were issued pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-239242), which became effective on
August 5, 2020, and two prospectus supplements dated December 31, 2020 and December 5, 2022, respectively. The Company has used and/or intends to use
the net proceeds from these offerings for working capital and general corporate purposes including, but not limited to, capital expenditures, working capital,
investment in technology development and deployment, repayment of indebtedness, potential acquisitions and other business opportunities.
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The Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (Registration Statement No. 333-272984) with the SEC on June 28, 2023, which became
effective on July 10, 2023. Pursuant to this shelf registration statement, the Company may offer and sell up to $200 million in securities, in aggregate. The
Company retains broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds from the sale of the securities offered. Unless otherwise specified in any prospectus
supplement, the Company currently intends to use the net proceeds from the sale of its securities offered under this prospectus for working capital and general
corporate purposes including, but not limited to, capital expenditures, working capital, repayment of indebtedness, potential acquisitions and other business
opportunities. Pending any specific application, we may initially invest funds in short-term marketable securities or apply them to the reduction of indebtedness.

As previously disclosed on Form 8-K filed February 5, 2021, on February 2, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to its existing Voting and
Nomination Agreement with the MB Group and an Exchange Agreement (as described below) whereby the MB Group agreed to support management’s
recommendation on certain matters at the Company’s 2021 Annual Meeting and Kulayba LLC agreed to exchange shares of the Company’s Preferred Stock for
shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock and a warrant to acquire additional shares of Class A Common Stock. Pursuant to the First Amendment to the
Voting and Nomination Agreement, the MB Group agreed to cause all shares of Class A Common Stock owned of record or beneficially owned by the MB
Group at the Annual Meeting to be voted in favor of (i) an amendment to extend the length of the term of the Company’s Section 382 Rights Agreement dated
as of April 6, 2016, as amended to date, for two years from June 30, 2021, to June 30, 2023, and (ii) an increase of shares of Class A Common Stock reserved
for delivery under the Company’s Centrus Energy Corp 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended to date, of an additional 700,000 shares of Class A Common
Stock. At the Annual Meeting both of the above referenced proposals were approved by the Company’s stockholders.

In connection with this entry into the amendment, the Company and Kulayba LLC also entered into the Exchange Agreement, pursuant to which Kulayba LLC
agreed to exchange 3,873 shares of Preferred Stock, representing a $ 5,000,198 liquidation preference (including accrued and unpaid dividends), for (i) 231,276
shares of Class A Common Stock priced at the closing market price of $ 21.62 on the date the Exchange Agreement was signed and (ii) the Warrant,
exercisable for 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $ 21.62 per share, which was the closing market price on the date the
Exchange Agreement was signed, subject to certain customary adjustments pursuant to the terms of the Warrant. The Warrant was exercisable by Kulayba LLC
for a period commencing on the closing date of the Exchange and ending, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Warrant, on the first to occur of: (a) the
second anniversary of the closing date of the Exchange or (b) the last business day immediately prior to the consummation of a Fundamental Transaction (as
defined in the Warrant) which results in the shareholders of the Company immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction owning less than 50% of the
voting equity of the surviving entity immediately after the consummation of the Fundamental Transaction. The Company retired the 3,873 shares of Preferred
Stock received by the Company under the Exchange Agreement.
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On December 29, 2022, Centrus amended and restated the Warrant and entered into a Voting Rights Agreement with the MB Group. Pursuant to the terms
of the Voting Rights Agreement, each member of the MB Group and each Permitted Transferee (as defined in the Voting Rights Agreement) agreed, at the
Company’s 2023 and 2024 Annual Meetings and at any other vote by the holders of the Company’s Common Stock, to (i) cause, in the case of all Common
Stock owned of record, and (i) instruct and cause the record owner, in the case of all shares of Common Stock of which MB Group is a Beneficial Owner (as
defined in the Voting Rights Agreement), but not owned of record, directly or indirectly, by it, or by any MB Affiliate (as defined in the Voting Rights Agreement),
as of the applicable record date, in each case entitled to (i) be present for quorum purposes, and (ii) vote, as follows: (a) for all directors nominated by the Board
for election, (b) for all other proposals, in accordance with the recommendation of the Board, and (c) for any Company proposed adjournments thereof. In
addition, each member of the MB Group agreed to not directly or indirectly gift, sell, dispose or otherwise transfer any shares of Common Stock unless the
transferee agreed to be bound to the same voting conditions at the 2023 and 2024 Annual Meetings and other meetings, except with respect to any sale or
disposition of Common Stock on a national securities exchange or any sale or disposition of Common Stock underlying the New Warrant to any person that is
not affiliated, associated or otherwise related to any member of the MB Group. In exchange, the Company agreed to amend and restate that Warrant, to extend
the term of the Warrant to February 5, 2024, subject to the other terms of the New Warrant. Immaterial amendments were made on October 17, 2022. Under
U.S. GAAP, the New Warrant was accounted for as an exchange of the original instrument. As such, the Company recorded the difference in the fair value of
the New Warrant, immediately before and after the exchange, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a dividend.

On December 18, 2023, the Company issued 149,179 net shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the cashless exercise by Kulayba LLC of the
New Warrant for 250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $21.62 .

Shares of Class B Common Stock that are sold in the market are automatically converted to shares of Class A Common Stock. Shares of Class B Common
Stock that were sold in the market and converted to shares of Class A Common Stock totaled 0 in 2023, 2022, and 2021.

The Company has reserved 1,900,000 shares of Class A Common Stock under its management incentive plan, of which 561,704 shares are available for
future awards as of December 31, 2023. Refer to Note 13, Stock-Based Compensation, for additional information.

The Class A Common Stock trades under the symbol “LEU” on the NYSE American LLC trading platform.

The Class B Common Stock was issued to Toshiba American Nuclear Energy Corporation and Babcock & Wilcox Investment Company and has the same
rights, powers, preferences and restrictions and ranks equally in all matters with the Class A Common Stock, except voting. Holders of Class B Common Stock
are entitled to elect, in the aggregate, one member of the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to certain holding requirements.

Series B Senior Preferred Stock

In 2017, Centrus issued 104,574 shares of Series B Senior Preferred Stock as part of a securities exchange. The issuance of the Series B Senior Preferred
Stock was a non-cash financing transaction. As detailed below, the Series B Senior Preferred Stock was purchased by the Company in 2020 and 2021 and the
designation of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock was eliminated and all shares of preferred stock of the Company previously designated as Series B Senior
Preferred Stock were returned to authorized but unissued and undesignated shares of preferred stock of the Company.

The Series B Senior Preferred Stock had a par value of $ 1.00 per share and a liquidation preference of $ 1,000 per share (the “Liquidation Preference”).

Holders of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock were entitled to cumulative dividends of 7.5% per annum of the Liquidation Preference. Centrus had not met the
criteria for payment of dividends for the periods from issuance through final redemption of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock in 2021.
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2020 Tender Offer

On November 17, 2020, pursuant to a tender offer announced on October 19, 2020, the Company completed the purchase of 62,854 shares of its
outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock at a price per share of $ 954.59 , less any applicable withholding taxes, for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $ 60 million. The purchase price per share represented a 25% discount from the aggregate liquidation preference, including accrued but unpaid
dividends, of $ 1,272.78 per share as of September 30, 2020. These shares represented approximately 60% of the Company's outstanding Series B Senior
Preferred Stock as of September 30, 2020. The remaining Series B Senior Preferred Stock outstanding after the transaction was 41,720 shares.

On December 22, 2020, the Company filed with the Delaware Secretary of State a Certificate of Retirement of 62,854 Series B Senior Preferred Stock, par
value $ 1.00 per share, to effect the retirement of the Company’s Series B Senior Preferred Stock repurchased upon the completion of its previously announced
tender offer to purchase Series B Senior Preferred Stock. Effective upon filing, the Certificate of Retirement amended the Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company to reduce the total number of authorized Series B Senior Preferred Stock by 62,854 shares such that the total number of
authorized Series B Senior Preferred Stock of the Company was 41,720 shares.

2021 Tender Offer

On October 20, 2021, the Company announced the commencement of a tender offer to purchase all of its outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock, par
value $ 1.00 per share, at a price of $ 1,145.20 per share (inclusive of any rights to accrued but unpaid dividends), to the sellers in cash, less any applicable
withholding taxes (the “Offer”). The Offer was made pursuant to the Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO filed by the Company on October 20, 2021, with
the SEC. The aggregate liquidation preference per Series B Senior Preferred Stock (including accrued but unpaid dividends) was $ 1,347.29 as of September
30, 2021.

On November 23, 2021, the Company announced the results of the tender offer and the related consent solicitation to amend the certificate of designation of
the Series B Senior Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Amendment”). 36,867 Series B Senior Preferred Stock were properly tendered and not properly
withdrawn in the Offer, and corresponding consents have been delivered in the consent solicitation. Pursuant to the terms of the Offer and Consent Solicitation,
the Company has accepted for purchase all of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock tendered in the Offer, for an aggregate purchase price of $ 42.2 million. The
accepted shares represent 97.4% of the Company’s outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock as of September 30, 2021. Based on the final results, the
requisite consent of at least 90% of the outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock required to approve the Series B Preferred Amendment was obtained. On
November 23, 2021, the Company issued a Notice of Full Redemption providing for the redemption of any and all shares of the Company’s Series B Senior
Preferred Stock outstanding after consummation of the Company’s tender offer to purchase all of its issued and outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock.
On December 15, 2021, the Company completed the redemption of all 980 outstanding Series B Senior Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $
1.1 million. The aggregate purchase price of $ 43.3 million was offset by direct costs totaling $ 0.9 million.

The effect of the Series B Preferred Amendment was to: (i) cease any obligation to pay dividends on Series B Senior Preferred Stock (other than the payment
of accrued dividends in connection with a redemption or distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up), (ii) permit the Company to redeem
Series B Senior Preferred Stock during the 90 days following the date of effectiveness of the Series B Preferred Amendment at a redemption price per share
equal to $ 1,145.20 (plus any additional accrued dividends for the period from and including the date of effectiveness of the Series B Preferred Amendment to
the date of redemption), (iii) remove the prohibition on the declaration and payment of dividends on junior stock of the Company, which includes all shares of the
Company’s capital stock defined as “Common Stock” in the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, or the redemption, purchase or
acquisition of such junior stock, and (iv) remove the restriction on redemption, purchase or acquisition of capital stock of the Company ranking on parity with the
Series B Senior Preferred Stock.

144



On December 16, 2021, the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock of Centrus Energy Corp. with the Secretary of
State of Delaware to eliminate the designation of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock and to return all shares of preferred stock of the Company previously
designated as Series B Senior Preferred Stock to authorized but unissued and undesignated shares of preferred stock of the Company.

Rights Agreement

On April 6, 2016 (the “Effective Date”), the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) adopted a Section 382 Rights Agreement, which was (a) amended on
February 14, 2017 to, among other things, exclude acquisitions of the Series B Senior Preferred Stock issued as part of the exchange offer and consent
solicitation from the definition of “Common Shares” in connection with the settlement and completion of the exchange offer and consent solicitation, and (b)
further amended on April 3, 2019 to, among other things, (i) decreased the purchase price for each one one-thousandth (1/1000th) of a share of the Company’s
Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share, from $26.00 to $18.00 and (ii) extended the Final Expiration Date (as defined in
the Rights Agreement) from April 5, 2019 to April 5, 2022 (as amended, the “Rights Agreement”). The Board adopted the Rights Agreement in an effort to
protect shareholder value by, among other things, attempting to protect against a possible limitation on the Company’s ability to use its net operating loss
carryforwards and other tax benefits, which may be used to reduce potential future income tax obligations.

In connection with the adoption of the Rights Agreement, the Board declared a dividend of one preferred-share-purchase-right for each share of the
Company'’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock outstanding as of the Effective Date. The rights initially trade together with the common stock
and are not exercisable. In the absence of further action by the Board, the rights would generally become exercisable and allow a holder to acquire shares of a
new series of the Company’s preferred stock if any person or group acquires 4.99 % or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, or if a
person or group that already owns 4.99% or more of the Company’s Class A Common Stock acquires additional shares representing 0.5 % or more of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock. The rights beneficially owned by the acquirer would become null and void, resulting in significant
dilution in the ownership interest of such acquirer.

The Board may exempt any acquisition of the Company’s common stock from the provisions of the Rights Agreement if it determines that doing so would not
jeopardize or endanger the Company’s use of its tax assets or is otherwise in the best interests of the Company. The Board also has the ability to amend or
terminate the Rights Agreement prior to a triggering event.

On June 16, 2021, the Company entered into, a Fourth Amendment to the Rights Agreement (the “Fourth Amendment”). The Fourth Amendment modified the
Final Expiration Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement) to be June 30, 2023.

On June 20, 2023, the Company entered into a Fifth Amendment to the Rights Agreement, which (i) increased the purchase price for each one one-
thousandth (1/1000th) of a share of the Company’s Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share, from $18.00 to $160.38; and
(i) extended the Final Expiration Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement) from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2026.

The Fifth Amendment was not adopted as a result of, or in response to, any effort to acquire control of the Company. The Fifth Amendment has been adopted

in order to preserve for the Company’s stockholders the long-term value of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards for United States federal income tax
purposes and other tax benefits.
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17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments under SWU Purchase Agreements
TENEX

The Russian government-owned entity TENEX, is a major supplier of SWU to the Company. Under the 2011 TENEX Supply Contract, the Company
purchases SWU contained in LEU received from TENEX, and the Company delivers natural uranium to TENEX for the LEU’s uranium component. The LEU that
the Company obtains from TENEX is subject to quotas and other restrictions applicable to commercial Russian LEU. Further, the ability of the Company or
TENEX to perform under the TENEX Supply Contract is vulnerable to (i) sanctions or restrictions that might be imposed by Russia, the United States, or other
countries as a result of the war in Ukraine, or otherwise, (ii) customers and other parties who may object to receiving or handling Russian LEU or SWU, or (iii)
suppliers and service providers seeking to limit their involvement with business related to Russia.

The TENEX Supply Contract originally was signed with commitments through 2022, but was modified in 2015 to give the Company the right to reschedule
certain quantities of SWU of the original commitments into the period 2023 and beyond, in return for the purchase of additional SWU in those years. The
Company has exercised this right to reschedule in each year through December 31, 2023. As a result of exercising this right to reschedule, the Company will
have purchase commitments that could extend through 2028.

The TENEX Supply Contract provides that the Company must pay for all SWU in its minimum purchase obligation each year, even if it fails to submit orders
for such SWU. In such a case, the Company would pay for the SWU, but have to take the unordered SWU in the following year.

Pricing terms for SWU under the TENEX Supply Contract are based on a combination of market-related price points and other factors. This formula was
subject to an adjustment at the end of 2018 that reduced the unit costs of SWU under this contract in 2019 and for the duration of the contract.

Orano

In 2018, the Company entered into the Orano Supply Agreement with the French company Orano Cycle for the long-term supply to the Company of SWU
contained in LEU. The Orano Supply Agreement subsequently was assigned by Orano Cycle to its affiliate, Orano CE. Under the amended Orano Supply
Agreement, the supply of SWU runs through 2030. The Orano Supply Agreement provides significant flexibility to adjust purchase volumes, subject to annual
minimums and maximums in fixed amounts that vary year by year. The pricing for the SWU purchased by the Company is determined by a formula that uses a
combination of market-related price points and other factors and is subject to certain floors and ceilings.
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Milestones Under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

The Company’s predecessor USEC Inc. and the DOE signed the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement dated June 17, 2002, pursuant to which the parties made
long-term commitments directed at resolving issues related to the stability and security of the domestic uranium enrichment industry. The 2002 DOE-USEC
Agreement requires Centrus to develop, demonstrate and deploy advanced enrichment technology in accordance with milestones, including the deployment of a
commercial American Centrifuge Plant, and provides for remedies in the event of a failure to meet a milestone under certain circumstances, including terminating
the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement, revoking Centrus’ access to the DOE’s centrifuge technology that is required for the success of the Company’s ongoing work
with the American Centrifuge technology, requiring Centrus to transfer certain rights in the American Centrifuge technology and facilities to the DOE, and
requiring Centrus to reimburse the DOE for certain costs associated with the American Centrifuge technology. The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides that if
a delaying event beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Centrus occurs that could affect Centrus’ ability to meet the American Centrifuge Plant
milestone under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement, the DOE and the Company will jointly meet to discuss in good faith possible adjustments to the milestones as
appropriate to accommodate the delaying event. In 2014, the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and other agreements between the Company and the DOE were
assumed by Centrus subject to an express reservation of all rights, remedies and defenses by the DOE and the Company under those agreements. The DOE
and the Company have agreed that all rights, remedies and defenses of the parties with respect to any missed milestones and all other matters under the 2002
DOE-USEC Agreement continue to be preserved, and that the time limits for each party to respond to any missed milestones continue to be tolled.

Legal Matters
From time to time, the Company is involved in various pending legal proceedings, including the pending legal proceedings described below.

In 1993, USEC-Government entered into a lease for the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs with the DOE. As part of that lease, the DOE and USEC-
Government also entered into a Power MOU regarding power purchase agreements between DOE and the providers of power to the GDPs. Under the Power
MOU, the DOE and USEC-Government agreed upon the allocation of rights and liabilities under the power purchase agreements. In 1998, USEC-Government
was privatized and became Enrichment Corp., now a principal subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to legislation authorizing the privatization, the lease for the
GDPs, which included the Power MOU as an Appendix, was transferred to Enrichment Corp. and Enrichment Corp. was given the right to purchase power from
the DOE. The Paducah GDP was shut down in 2013 and deleased by Enrichment Corp. in 2014. On August 4, 2021, the DOE informally informed Enrichment
Corp. that the Joppa power plant, which had supplied power to the Paducah GDP, was planned to be D&D. According to the DOE, the power purchase
agreement with Electric Energy Inc. requires the DOE to pay for a portion of the D&D costs of the Joppa power plant and the DOE has asserted that a portion of
the DOE liability is the responsibility of Enrichment Corp. under the Power MOU in the amount of approximately $ 9.6 million. The Company is assessing the
DOE's assertions including whether all or a portion of any such potential liability had been previously settled. The Company has not formed an opinion on the
merits nor is it able to estimate the potential liability, if any, and no expense or liability has been accrued.
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On May 26, 2019, the Company, Enrichment Corp., and six other DOE contractors who have operated facilities at the Portsmouth GDP (including, in the case
of the Company, the American Centrifuge Plant site located on the premises) were named as defendants in a class action complaint filed by Ursula McGlone,
Jason McGlone, Julia Dunham, and K.D. and C.D., minor children by and through their parent and natural guardian Julia Dunham (collectively, the “McGlone
Plaintiffs”) in the U.S. District Court in the Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division. The complaint seeks damages for alleged off-site contamination allegedly
resulting from activities on the Portsmouth GDP site. The McGlone Plaintiffs are seeking to represent a class of (i) all current or former residents within a seven-
mile radius of the Portsmouth GDP site and (i) all students and their parents at the Zahn’s Corner Middle School from 1993-present. The complaint was
amended on December 10, 2019 and on January 10, 2020 to add additional plaintiffs and new claims. On July 31, 2020, the court granted in part and denied in
part the defendants’ motion to dismiss the case. The court dismissed ten of the fifteen claims and allowed the remaining claims to proceed to the next stage of
the litigation process. On August 18, 2020, the McGlone Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to file a third amended complaint and notice of dismissal of three of the
individual plaintiffs. On March 18, 2021, the McGlone Plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to file a fourth amended complaint to add new plaintiffs and allegations.
On March 19, 2021, the court granted the McGlone Plaintiffs’ motion for leave to amend the complaint to include Price-Anderson Act and eight other state law
claims. On May 24, 2021, the Company, Enrichment Corp., and the other defendants filed their motion to dismiss the complaint. On March 31, 2022, the court
granted the Company’s motion in part by dismissing claims brought on behalf of the minor children but allowed the other claims to proceed. As such, the
discovery stage of litigation is continuing. On April 28, 2022, the Company, Enrichment Corp., and the other defendants filed their answer to the fourth amended
complaint. The Company believes that its operations at the Portsmouth GDP site were fully in compliance with the NRC's regulations. Further, the Company and
Enrichment Corp. believe that any such liability should be indemnified under the Price-Anderson Act. The Company and Enrichment Corp. have provided
notifications to DOE required to invoke indemnification under the Price-Anderson Act and other contractual provisions.

On June 8, 2022, the Company, Enrichment Corp., and six other DOE contractors who operated facilities at the Portsmouth GDP were named as defendants
in a complaint filed by Brad Allen Lykins, as administrator of the estate of Braden Aaron Lee Lykins in the U.S. District Court in the Southern District of Ohio,
Eastern Division (“Lykins Complaint”). In March 2021, Brayden Lykins, who was thirteen years old, passed away from leukemia. The complaint alleges that the
defendants released radiation into the environment in violation of the Price-Anderson Act causing Lykins’ death and seeks monetary damages. On August 30,
2022, the Company, Enrichment Corp. and the other defendants filed their answer to the Lykins Compliant. The Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that
their operations at the Portsmouth GDP site were fully in compliance with the NRC's regulations. Further, the Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that any
such liability should be indemnified under the Price-Anderson Act. The Company and Enrichment Corp. have provided notifications to the DOE required to
invoke indemnification under the Price-Anderson Act and other contractual provisions.

On March 8, 2023, the Company, Enrichment Corp., and six other DOE contractors that operated facilities at the Portsmouth GDP were named as defendants
in a complaint filed by Christian Rose in the U.S. District Court in the Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (“Rose Complaint”). Christian Rose was
diagnosed with cancer in June 2022. Although Mr. Rose is an adult, he attended the Zahn Corner Middle School, which was closed a few years ago due to
contamination and is in the vicinity of the plant. The Rose Complaint alleges that the defendants released radiation into the environment in violation of the Price-
Anderson Act causing death — even though the plaintiff is still alive — and seeks monetary damages in nature of past and future medical expenses, pain and
suffering and punitive damages, among others. On May 15, 2023, the Company, Enrichment Corp. and the other defendants filed their answers to the Rose
Complaint. The Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that their operations at the Portsmouth GDP site were fully in compliance with the NRC'’s regulations.
Further, the Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that any such liability should be indemnified under the Price-Anderson Act. The Company and Enrichment
Corp. have provided notifications to the DOE required to invoke indemnification under the Price-Anderson Act and other contractual provisions.
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On November 27, 2023, the Company, Enrichment Corp. and six other DOE contractors who operated facilities at the Portsmouth GDP were named as
defendants in a complaint filed by Joshua Shaw in the U.S. District Court in the Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (“Shaw Complaint”). Joshua Shaw
was diagnosed with Acute Myeloid Leukemia (AML) in August 2008 and after going through chemotherapy continues to suffer from aftereffects of AML, including
anxiety and fatigue. The Shaw Complaint alleges that the defendants released radiation into the environment exposing Mr. Shaw to radiation in violation of the
Price-Anderson Act and causing Mr. Shaw’s AML and other injuries. Mr. Shaw seeks monetary damages in nature of past and future medical expenses for
treatment and care, pain and suffering and punitive damages, among others. The Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that their operations at the
Portsmouth GDP site were fully in compliance with the NRC'’s regulations. Further, the Company and Enrichment Corp. believe that any such liability should be
indemnified under the Price-Anderson Act. The Company and Enrichment Corp. have provided notifications to the DOE required to invoke indemnification under
the Price-Anderson Act and other contractual provisions.

Centrus is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome
of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, other than the above, Centrus does not believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters, individually
and in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on its cash flows, results of operations or financial condition.

18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
The sole component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) relates to activity in the accounting for pension and postretirement health and life

benefit plans. The amortization of prior service costs (credits) is reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and included in the
computation of net periodic benefit cost. For further details, refer to Note 11, Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Benefits .
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19. REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA, MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue by customer location, including customers in a foreign country representing 10% or more of total revenue, follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

United States $ 2816  $ 1543 3 220.5
Foreign:

Belgium 0.1 38.3 36.6

Japan 23.6 61.6 34.6

Other 14.9 39.6 6.6

Total foreign 38.6 139.5 77.8

Total revenue $ 3202 $ 2938 $ 298.3

The U.S. government and its contractors, in the Company’s Technical Solutions segment, represented approximately 16 % of total revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2023, 20 % for the year ended December 31, 2022, and 38 % for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The ten largest customers in the Company’s LEU segment represented approximately 79 % of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2023. Revenue
from Customer A , Customer B, and Customer C represented approximately 17 %, 15 %, and 13 % respectively, of total revenue for the year ended December
31, 2023.

The ten largest customers in the Company’s LEU segment represented approximately 75 % of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022. Revenue
from Kyushu Electric Power Company and Synatom represented approximately 15 % and 13 %, respectively, of total revenue for the year ended December 31,
2022.

The ten largest customers in the Company’s LEU segment represented approximately 57 % of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021. Revenue
from Kyushu Electric Power Company and Synatom represented approximately 12 % of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021.

No other customer represented more than 10% of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022, or 2021.

Centrus has two reportable segments: the LEU segment with two components, SWU and uranium, and the Technical Solutions segment. The LEU segment
includes sales of the SWU component of LEU, sales of both the SWU and uranium components of LEU, and sales of uranium. The Technical Solutions segment
includes revenue and cost of sales for work that Centrus performs under the HALEU Demonstration and Operation Contracts. The Technical Solutions segment
also includes limited services provided by Centrus to DOE and its contractors at the Piketon facility. Gross profit is Centrus’ measure for segment reporting. Net
sales of the Company’s business segments in the following tables exclude intersegment sales as these activities are eliminated in consolidation and thus are not
included in management’s evaluation of performance of each segment. Sales between segments are recorded at market prices at the time of the sale. Such
intercompany operating income is eliminated in consolidation, so that the company’s total sales and total operating income reflect only those transactions with
external customers. Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 2, Revenue and Contracts with Customers, for additional details on
revenue for each segment.
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The following table presents the Company’s segment information (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Revenue
LEU segment:
Separative work units $ 2082 % 196.2 $ 163.3
Uranium 60.8 39.4 22.8
Intersegment revenue, eliminated on consolidation 5.0 — —
Total 274.0 235.6 186.1
Technical Solutions segment 51.2 58.2 112.2
Total revenue 325.2 293.8 298.3
Elimination of intersegment revenue (5.0) — —
Total revenue $ 3202 $ 2938 $ 298.3
Segment Gross Profit (Loss)
LEU segment:
LEU segment $ 1051 $ 1306 $ 73.0
Intersegment gross profit, eliminated on consolidation 2.0 — —
Total 107.1 130.6 73.0
Technical Solutions segment:
Technical Solutions segment 7.0 (12.7) 41.5
Intersegment gross profit, eliminated on consolidation 3.0
Total 10.0 (12.7) 415
Elimination of intersegment gross profit (5.0) — —
Gross profit $ 112.1 $ 117.9 $ 114.5

The Company'’s total assets are not presented for each reportable segment as they are not reviewed by, nor otherwise regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker. Centrus’ long-term or long-lived assets, which include property, plant and equipment and other assets reported on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, were located in the United States as of December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022.
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CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
(as of December 31, 2023)

The authorized capital stock of Centrus Energy Corp (the “Company,” “Centrus” or “us”) consists of (a) 100,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.10
per share, of which 70,000,000 shares are classified as Class A Common Stock, and 30,000,000 shares are classified as Class B Common Stock, and (b)
20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, of which 2,000,000 shares have been designated Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred
Stock. The Class A Common Stock is registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and trades on the NYSE
American platform under the symbol “LEU.”

The following description of the terms of our securities is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Company’s Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”), and the Rights Agreement
(as defined below), all of which are exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Class A Common Stock

The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each outstanding share of Class A Common Stock owned by that stockholder on every
matter properly submitted to the stockholders for their vote, except for any amendment for the Certificate of Incorporation that relates solely to the terms of one
or more outstanding series of preferred stock or Class B Common Stock. Generally, all matters to be voted on by stockholders, other than the election of
directors, must be approved by a majority in voting power of the stock represented and entitled to vote. However, questions governed expressly by provisions of
the Certificate of Incorporation, bylaws, applicable stock exchange rules or applicable law require approval as set forth in the applicable governing document,
stock exchange rule or law. The holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to elect up to two directors, which right is subject to change based on certain
holding requirements. Otherwise, the directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast on the election of directors.

Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock outstanding at any time, the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
will be entitled to share ratably, based upon the number of shares held, in such dividends and other distributions of cash or any other right or property as may be
declared by the Board of Directors out of the assets or funds legally available for such dividends or distributions.

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company'’s affairs, holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock would be entitled to share ratably, based upon the number of shares held, in assets that are legally available for distribution to stockholders after
payment of liabilities. If there is any preferred stock outstanding at such time, holders of the preferred stock may be entitled to distribution and/or liquidation
preferences.

The Certificate of Incorporation does not provide for any conversion, sinking fund, redemption, preference, preemptive right, or right of subscription for the Class
A Common Stock. Issued and outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock convert into shares of Class A Common Stock upon transfer to a party other than
the current Class B stockholders and their respective affiliates.

Provisions of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law that May Have an Anti-Takeover Effect

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that a special meeting of stockholders may be called only by the
Chairman, the President, the Board of Directors



or a committee empowered by the Board of Directors to call a special meeting. Stockholders are not permitted to call, or to require that the Board of Directors
call, a special meeting of stockholders.

In the event that levels of foreign ownership of the Company’s stock established by the Certificate of Incorporation are exceeded, the Board of Directors has the
right to take certain actions with respect to such ownership. These actions include requesting information from holders (or proposed holders) of the Company’s
securities, refusing to permit the transfer of securities by such holders, suspending or limiting voting rights of such holders, redeeming or exchanging shares of
the Company'’s stock owned by such holders on terms set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation, and taking other actions that are deemed necessary or
appropriate to ensure compliance with the foreign ownership restrictions.

Delaware Takeover Statute. The Company is subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”"), which, subject to certain
exceptions, prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any “business combination” (as defined below) with any “interested stockholder” (as defined
below) for a period of three years following the date that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless: (i) prior to such date, the Board of Directors
of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder; (ii) on
consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the
voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding
those shares owned (x) by persons who are directors and also officers and (y) by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to
determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or (iii) on or subsequent to such date, the
business combination is approved by the Board of Directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by written consent, by the
affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 of the DGCL defines “business combination” to include: (i) any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder; (ii)
any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 10% or more of the assets of the corporation involving the interested stockholder;
(iii) subject to certain exceptions, any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock of the corporation to the interested
stockholder; (iv) any transaction involving the corporation that has the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the
corporation beneficially owned by the interested stockholder; or (v) the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees,
pledges or other financial benefits provided by or through the corporation. In general, Section 203 of the DGCL defines an “interested stockholder” as any entity
or person beneficially owning 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by
such entity or person.

Rights to Acquire Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock

On April 6, 2016, Centrus adopted a Section 382 stockholders rights plan and declared a dividend distribution of one right for each outstanding share of our
common stock to stockholders of record on April 6, 2016. Each right entitles its holder, under the circumstances described below, to purchase from us one one-
thousandth of a share of our Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share, at an exercise price of $160.38 per right, subject to
adjustment. The terms of the rights are set forth in a Section 382 Rights Agreement between us, Computershare, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A.,
as amended (the “Rights Agreement”).

The rights plan is intended to act as a deterrent to any person or group, together with its affiliates and associates, being or becoming the beneficial owner of
4.99% or more of common stock, with certain exceptions. The rights initially trade together with the common stock and are not exercisable. In the absence of
further action by the Board, the rights would generally become exercisable and allow a holder to acquire shares of a new series of the Company’s preferred
stock if any person or group acquires 4.99% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, or if a person or group that already



owned 4.99% or more of the Company’s Class A Common Stock when the rights plan was initially adopted acquires additional shares representing 0.5% or
more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock. The rights beneficially owned by the acquirer would become null and void, resulting
in significant dilution in the ownership interest of such acquirer.

The Board may exempt any acquisition of the Company’s common stock from the provisions of the Rights Agreement if it determines that doing so would not
jeopardize or endanger the Company’s use of its tax assets or is otherwise in the best interests of the Company. The Board also has the ability to amend or
terminate the Rights Agreement prior to a triggering event. Unless earlier terminated or extended in accordance with the Rights Agreement, the rights issued
under the Rights Agreement expire on June 30, 2026.
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_CHECK ONE | s THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSWUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT
ORDER NO. IN I[TEM 104

8. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying office,
appropriation data, efc,) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43,103(b).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authorty)

% Incremental Funding; FAR 52.232-22 Limitation of Funds;
E.IMPORTANT:  Contractor [%lis not  [is required to sign this document andreturn ____ copies to the issuing office.
14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitati tract subject matter where feasible. )

UEI: L8VHVS5CNBVS7
The purpose of this amendment to the Contract is to:

1. Provide Incremental Funding to CLIN 0001 in the amount of $770,016.87, changing the
total cobligation from $28,270,000.00 to $29,040,016.87.

2. Provide Incremental Funding to CLIN 0002 in the amcunt of $19,795,264.10, changing the
total obligation from $4,730,000.00 to $24,525,264.10.

See attachment Contract 89243223CNE0QO030 Rev. 05.pdf

Continued ...

Except as provided hergin, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in ltem 9 A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remaing unchanged and in full force and effect.

154, NAME AND TITLE OF SIGMER (Type or print) 16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER [Type or print}

Trevor M. Bluth

15B. CONTRACTORIOFFEROR 15C. DATE SIGNED 168, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 16C. DATE SIGMED
- 12/27/2023

(Signature of person authonized to siga) (Sigriarure of Comlracting Officer)
Previous edition unusable STANDARD FORM 30 (REV. 11/2018)

Prascribed by GSA FAR (48 CFR) 53.243




CONTINUATION SHEET

REFERENCE NO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED
89243223CNEO00030/P00006

PAGE QF

NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACTOR
American Centrifuge Operating, LLC

ITEM NO.
(A)

SUPPLIES/SERVICES
(B)

QUANTITY
(C)

UNIT
(D}

UNIT PRICE
(E}

AMOUNT
(F}

00001

A1l other terms and conditions remain the same.
Payment:
OR for Idaho
https://vipers.doe.gov
Any guestions, please contact
by call/email 855-384-7377 or
VipersSupport@hg.doe.gov
Pericod of Performance: 12/01/2022 to 12/31/2024

Change Item 00001 to read as follows (amount shown
is the teotal amount):

Completion of Cascade, Initial Cascade COperation,
and Production of 20 kilograms (kg) of HALEU
{Phase 1)

Line item wvalue is: $29,418,741.50

Incrementally Funded Amount: 529,040,016.87
Requisition No: 23NE000030, 23NWE000080,
23NE000111, 23WE000166, 24NEQO00055

Accounting Info:
05350-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 05350 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WFC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: $0.00

Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07900 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 wrC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: $0.00

Accounting Info:
05350-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 05350 Zppr Year: 2023 RAllottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WFO: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: $0.00

Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07900 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Feport Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WFCQ: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: 50.00

Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136~-0000000-0000000
Continued ...

29,418,741.50

MSM T540-01-152-8067

OPTIONAL FORM 336 (4-86)
Sponsored by GSA
FAR (48 CFR) 53.110




REFERENCE MO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED PAGE  OF
CONTINUATION SHEET 555 4 35230cNE000030/P00006 3 3
NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACTOR
American Centrifuge Operating, LLC
ITEM NO. SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY fUNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
-0000000 Fund: 07900 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: &0
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233
Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WECQ: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000
Funded: $0.00
Accounting Info:
07900-2024-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07300 Appr Year: 2024 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233
Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WrC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000
Funded: 50.00
Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07900 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233
Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WwrC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000
Funded: $770,016.87
Change Item 00002 to read as follows({amount shown
is the total amount):
goooz Ongoing Cascade Operation and Production cof 900 90,689,166.00

kg minimum of HALEU, Year 1 (Phase 2)

Line item walue is: 590,689,166.00

Incrementally Funded Amount: $24,525,264.10
Requisition No: 23NE000111, 23NE000166, Z24NE000056

Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07900 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WEC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: $0.00

Accounting Info:
07900-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07300 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WEFG: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: 50.00

Accounting Info:
073800-2023-60-302218-25233-2721136-0000000-0000000
-0000000 Fund: 07300 Appr Year: 2023 Allottee: 60
Report Entity: 302218 Object Class: 25233

Program: 2721136 Project: 0000000 WFC: 0000000
Local Use: 0000000

Funded: $19,795,264.10

MSM T540-01-152-8067

OPTIONAL FORM 336 (4-86)
Sponsored by GSA
FAR (48 CFR) 53.110
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated November [16], 2023 is entered into
by and between Centrus Energy Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Centrus” or the “Company™),
and Amir Vexler (“Executive”). Centrus and Executive shall collectively be referred to as the
“Parties” and individually as a “Party.”

WHEREAS, the Company desires to secure for itself the services of Executive, and Executive
wishes to furnish such services to the Company, pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions
hereinafter set forth.

WHEREAS, certain capitalized terms shall have the meanings given those terms in Section 3 of
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual promises and covenants
contained herein, the Company and Executive, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as
follows:

1. Employment. The Company and Executive agree that Executive’s employment with the
Company will commence on December 4, 2023 (the “Effective Date™). During the period of
December 4, 2023 through December 31, 2023, Executive shall serve as advisor to the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board™), coordinate with the Company’s current Chief Executive Officer
regarding the transition of his duties in such role, and prepare with other executives and employees
to take on the roles of President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Commencing on
January 1, 2024, Executive shall serve as the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer,
and shall report to the Board. While he serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Executive will also serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Executive hereby accepts these positions and agrees to perform Executive’s duties and
responsibilities, in accordance with the terms, conditions and provisions hereinafter set forth.

1.1  Employment Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and
shall terminate in accordance with the provisions of Section 2 below. The period commencing on
the Effective Date and ending on the date on which the term of Executive’s employment under the
Agreement shall terminate is hereinafter referred to as the “Employment Term.”

1.2 Duties. Responsibilities. During the Employment Term, Executive shall report to
the Board. Commencing on January 1, 2024, Executive shall have all authorities, duties and
responsibilities incident to his position as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Subject to the oversight of the Board, as President and Chief Executive Officer, Executive shall
have responsibility for, and exercise, the executive authority of the Company, including general
and active management of the business of the Company and effectuating all orders and resolutions
of the Board (either directly or through delegation of authority to other executives of the
Company), and such other duties and responsibilities not inconsistent with the foregoing as may
be reasonably assigned to him from time to time by the Board.
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1.3 Work Location: Commuting Stipend. During the Employment Term, Executive
will work from the Company’s headquarters or such other office as mutually agreed upon by the
Board and Executive (the “Company Office”™). In the first year of his employment, Executive will
work regularly during the workweek at the Company Office and may commute to his home in
North Carolina on the weekends. In recognition of this potential commute, the Company will
provide the Commuting Stipend (as defined below) during the first year of Executive’s
employment. Executive will be entitled to reimbursement of travel expenses to the Company’s
facilities (other than the Company Office), client sites and other business travel in accordance with
the Company’s business expense reimbursement policy. For purposes of this Agreement,
“Commuting Stipend” means a monthly allowance of $1,500.00 to assist Executive in commuting
from his home in North Carolina to the Company Office.

1.4 Extent of Service. During the Employment Term, Executive agrees to use
Executive’s full and best efforts to carry out Executive’s duties and responsibilities as set forth in
Section 1.2 hereof with the highest degree of loyalty and the highest standards of care and,
consistent with the other provisions of this Agreement, Executive agrees to devote substantially
all of Executive’s business time, attention and energy thereto. The foregoing shall not be construed
as preventing Executive from making investments in other businesses or enterprises, provided that
Executive agrees not to become engaged in any other business activity which, in the judgment of
the Board, is likely to interfere with Executive’s ability to discharge Executive’s duties and
responsibilities to the Company, violate the Centrus Code of Business Conduct or other Company
employment policies, violate applicable conflict of interest laws and regulations or conflict with
Executive's obligations pursuant to Section 4 below; nor shall the foregoing be construed to
prevent Executive from performing personal and charitable activities and other activities approved
by the Board. Executive will not serve on the board of directors of an entity unrelated to the
Company or undertake other outside activities without the prior written consent of the Board.

1.5 Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay Executive a
base salary at the annual rate of $810,000.00 (“Base Salary™), payable in installments at such times
as the Company customarily pays its other senior executives. Executive’s Base Salary shall be
reviewed annually by the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board
(the “Compensation Committee™). Any such modified amount shall be Executive’s Base Salary
for purposes of this Agreement.

1.6  Retirement. Welfare and Other Benefit Plans and Programs. During the
Employment Term, Executive shall be entitled to participate in the employee retirement and
welfare benefit plans and programs made available to the Company’s senior executives generally,
as such retirement and welfare plans may be in effect from time to time and subject to the eligibility
requirements of such plans. During the Employment Term, Executive shall be provided with
employee benefits under the same terms as those made available to the Company’s senior
executives generally, as such programs may be in effect from time to time. During the Employment
Term, Executive shall be entitled to vacation and sick leave in accordance with the Company’s
vacation, holiday and other pay for time not worked policies; provided, however, that Executive

2
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shall be entitled to accrue four (4) weeks (i.e. 160 hours) of paid vacation per calendar year (at a
rate of 6.15 hours per pay period). Nothing in this Agreement or otherwise shall prevent the
Company from amending or terminating any retirement, welfare or other employee benefit plans,
programs, policies or perquisites from time to time as the Board deems appropriate (with the
exception of the Severance Plan (defined below) as applied to the Executive pursuant to this
Agreement).

1.7  Reimbursement of Expenses. During the Employment Term, Executive shall be
provided with reimbursement of reasonable expenses related to Executive’s employment by the
Company on a basis no less favorable than that which may be authorized from time to time for the
Company’s other senior executives.

1.8 Incentive Compensation.

(a) Annual Bonus, Executive shall be eligible to participate in the Centrus
Energy Corp. 2022 Executive Incentive Plan (or its successor) (“EIP"), with an annual
target bonus equal to 100% of Base Salary (“Annual Bonus™). The actual amount of the
Annual Bonus awarded to Executive will be based on attainment of certain individual and
corporate performance goals and targets determined by the Compensation Committee, after
consultation with Executive, and the Compensation Committee’s determination, in its sole
discretion, whether and to what extent the applicable performance goals and targets have
been achieved. The Annual Bonus may be more (up to 125% of Base Salary or such higher
amount as the Compensation Committee may determine in the future) or less (as low as
zero) than the target amount, as determined by the Compensation Committee in its sole
discretion. The Annual Bonus for a performance year will be paid at the same time annual
bonuses are paid to other senior executives who are eligible to receive an annual bonus for
such performance year. Except for the 2023 performance year, no minimum amount of
Annual Bonus is guaranteed. For the 2023 performance year, Executive will be entitled to
earn a fixed Annual Bonus in the amount of $810,000.00 multiplied by a fraction in which
the numerator is the number of calendar days that Executive is actively employed by the
Company in 2023 and the denominator is 365, which will be paid in in or about 2024 when
annual bonuses under the Annual Bonus Plan are (or would be, if approved by the Board’s
Compensation Committee) paid to other senior executives. In order to earn the Annual
Bonus for any applicable year during the Employment Term (including the 2023
performance year), Executive must be actively and continuously employed through the end
of such year and the date such Annual Bonus is due to be paid.

(b)  Eguity Compensation. Subject to approval of the Board, Executive shall
receive a grant of 20,000 of the Company’s restricted stock units (“RSUs™) with annual
vesting in equal installments (i.e. 4,000 RSUs for each installment) over a five-year period
(the “Initial Grant™), subject in each case to Executive obtaining DOE Q security clearance
and remaining actively employed by the Company on the applicable vesting dates. Except
as provided in Section 2.4 or 2.5, in all respects, the Initial Grant shall be subject to the
terms and conditions of an RSU award agreement (and, as applicable, the Company’s

3
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equity incentive plan from which the Initial Grant is awarded) evidencing the terms and
conditions of the Initial Grant.

(c) Up to ten percent (10%) of any Annual Bonus awarded to Executive may
be paid in fully vested shares of Common Stock pursuant to an applicable Company equity
plan (the “Equity Plan™), with the applicable percentage to be determined by the
Compensation Committee in its sole discretion, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Equity Plan, applicable securities laws, and the exception described below. The number of
shares to be awarded shall be determined by multiplying the Base Salary as of the
beginning of the applicable performance year by the percentage of the Annual Bonus being
paid in shares to obtain the cash value of the equity award and dividing the aforementioned
cash value of the equity award by the Fair Market Value (as defined in the Equity Plan) of
the Common Stock on the date of issuance. The number of shares awarded will be rounded
up or down to the nearest full share. Determinations by the Compensation Committee under
this Section 1.8(c) shall be final, conclusive and binding upon all persons.

(d)  Long Term Incentive Cash Award. Commencing in calendar year 2024,
Executive shall be eligible each year to receive a Long Term Incentive Cash Award with a
target award of 33% of Base Salary, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
EIP.

2. Termination. The Employment Term and Executive’s employment with the Company
shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events (and the effective date of any
such termination is referred to herein as the “Date of Termination™):

2.1  Termination by the Company without Cause: by Executive for Good Reason. The
Company may terminate Executive’s employment with the Company at any time without Cause
or Executive may terminate his employment for Good Reason, in each case, subject to the terms
of this Agreement. In the event Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for reasons
other than Cause, Disability (as defined below) or failure to obtain DOE Q clearance, or is
terminated by Executive for Good Reason (and not due to his death or Disability), in addition to
the Accrued Obligations (as defined below) and subject to Executive satisfying the Severance
Conditions (as defined below), Executive shall be entitled to the following payments and benefits
in lieu of any severance benefits provided in the Company’s Executive Severance Plan:

(a) A cash lump sum severance payment equal to Executive’s Base Salary plus
the Target Bonus in effect immediately preceding the date of termination (the “Severance
Payment™). The Severance Payment shall be subject to standard withholdings and
deductions and shall be paid over a twelve (12) month period in accordance with the
customary payroll practices of the Company following the effective date of the Release (as
defined below) and ending earlier if the Executive violates any covenant contained in
Section 6.

(b) The Company shall pay or reimburse Executive for the premiums necessary
for Executive to continue coverage under the Company’s group medical, dental and vision
insurance at the same levels in effect immediately preceding the Date of Termination

4
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pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (“COBRA™) for the
period commencing on the Date of Termination and ending on the earlier of (x) the twelve
(12)-month anniversary of the Date of Termination and (y) the first date that Executive is
no longer eligible for COBRA or becomes eligible for health insurance coverage from a
subsequent employer.

2.2 Retirement or Other Voluntary Termination. Executive may voluntarily terminate
his employment for any reason, including voluntary retirement, effective upon 30 days’ prior
written notice in accordance with Section 10. In such event, except for the Accrued Obligations,
after the Date of Termination, Executive shall not be entitled to any further payments or benefits
under this Agreement.

2.3 Failure to Obtain DOE Q Clearance. If Executive fails to obtain a DOE Q) clearance
within twelve (12) months following the Separation Date (which period may be extended at the
discretion of the Board provided that Executive applied all reasonable efforts to expediate the DOE
Q clearance process), the Company may terminate Executive at its discretion. In such
circumstance, in addition to the Accrued Obligations and subject to Executive satisfying the
Severance Conditions, Executive shall be entitled to receive (a) continuation of payment of
Executive’'s Base Salary for a period of six months following the Date of Termination and (b)
reimbursement of the premiums necessary for Executive to continue coverage for Executive and
his eligible dependents under the Company’s group medical, dental and vision insurance pursuant
to COBRA for a period commencing on the Date of Termination and continuing until the earlier
to occur of (x) the six month anniversary of the Date of Termination; (y) the date Executive
becomes eligible to receive health care coverage from a subsequent employer and (z) the date
Executive is no longer eligible to receive health care coverage pursuant to COBRA. For the
avoidance of doubt, Executive will not be entitled to severance payments or benefits if Executive
is terminated for Cause for failing to maintain his DOE Q clearance after receiving such DOE Q
clearance.

24  Disability. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment if Executive
incurs a Disability (as defined in Section 3). Executive agrees, in the event of a dispute relating to
Executive’s Disability, to submit to a physical examination by a licensed physician selected by the
Company. If the Company issues a Notice of Termination to Executive on account of Disability,
no further payments shall be due under this Agreement following the Date of Termination other
than the Accrued Obligations.

2.5  Death. If Executive dies while employed by the Company, the Company shall pay
to Executive’s executor, legal representative, administrator or designated beneficiary, as
applicable, the Accrued Obligations. Otherwise, the Company shall have no further liability or
obligation under this Agreement to Executive’s executors, legal representatives, administrators,
heirs or assigns.

2.6 Cause. The Company or the Board may terminate Executive’s employment at any
time for Cause by issuing a Notice of Termination to Executive, in which event all payments under
this Agreement shall cease, except for the Accrued Obligations, provided that Executive shall not
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be entitled to receive any unpaid short-term or long-term cash incentive payments, including any
Annual Bonus or Long Term Cash Award payments, or any successor programs, and Executive

shall forfeit any outstanding equity grants in accordance with the terms of the applicable grant
agreements.

3. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings
specified in this Section 3:

3.1  “Cause” shall mean, as determined by the Board in its good faith discretion,
Executive’s (i) conviction of, or plea of nolo contendere to, any felony or other crime involving
either fraud or a breach of the Executive’s duty of loyalty with respect to the Company Group or
its customers or suppliers, (ii) refusal or failure to abide by a reasonable directive of the Board,
which Executive fails to cure within ten (10) business days after receiving written notice from the
Board, (iii) fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement, breach of fiduciary duty, material misuse of
funds or property belonging to the Company or any of its parent, subsidiary or affiliated entities
(“Affiliates™), or other willful or reckless misconduct in connection with the performance of the
Executive’s duties hereunder, (iv) material violation of the written policies of the Company or the
terms of this Agreement, which (if reasonably susceptible of cure) is not fully cured by Executive
within ten (10) business days after receiving written notice from the Board of such violation; or
(v) any misrepresentation relating to or failure to satisfy the conditions set forth below in Section
11 of this Agreement.

3.2 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

33 “Disability” shall mean the failure or inability of the Executive, with or without a
reasonable accommodation, to perform the essential functions of the Executive’s job as a result of
physical or mental incapacity for ninety (90) consecutive days or one hundred twenty (120) days
during any three hundred sixty five (365) consecutive calendar day period.

34  “Good Reason” shall mean, without the Executive’s express written consent, any
of the following, unless such act or failure to act is corrected prior to the Date of Termination
specified in the Notice of Termination given in respect thereof:

(a) a material diminution of Executive’s duties, responsibilities or authorities
in effect immediately preceding any such change for any reason other than (i) by reason of
Disability or Executive taking a leave of absence or (B) the Company placing Executive
on a leave of absence or taking other reasonable precautionary measures based on
Executive engaging in conduct that may provide grounds for the Company to terminate
Executive for Cause;

(iii) a material reduction of Executive’s Base Salary or Annual Bonus
opportunity (except for across-the-board reductions similarly affecting all senior
executives of the Company);

(iv) a material breach of a material provision of this Agreement by the
Company;
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provided, however, that any such event shall not constitute Good Reason unless and until
Executive shall have provided the Company with written notice thereof no later than sixty (60)
days following the initial occurrence of such event and the Company shall have failed to remedy
such event within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, and Executive shall have terminated
his employment with the Company within thirty (30) days following the expiration of such
remedial period,

3.5  “Notice of Termination” means a written notice by the Company or Executive that
(a) sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for
termination of Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated, and (b) specifies a Date
of Termination as provided herein.

3.6  “Separation Agreement” shall mean a Separation and General Release Agreement
in a form acceptable to the Board and delivered to Executive as a material condition to receiving
the severance benefits set forth above in section 2.1.

3.7  “Severance Conditions” shall mean Executive’s compliance with Section 4 and 15
of this Agreement, his timely execution and delivery by Executive of the Separation Agreement,
which he does not revoke and allows to become enforceable, and his compliance with the terms of
the Separation Agreement.

4, Restrictive Covenants.

4.1 Confidential Information; Inventions: Return of Property: Work Product.

(a) Executive acknowledges that the continued success of the Company and its
Affiliates (collectively, “Company Group™)} depends upon the use and protection of a large body
of confidential and proprietary information belonging to the Company Group. All such
confidential and proprietary information now existing or to be developed in the future shall be
referred to in this Agreement as “Confidential Information.” Confidential Information shall be
interpreted as broadly as possible under applicable law to include all information of any sort
(whether merely remembered or embodied in a tangible or intangible form, and whether or not
specifically labeled or identified as “confidential”) that is (i) not publicly or generally known (but
for purposes of clarity, Confidential Information shall never exclude any such information that
becomes known to the public because of the Executive’s unauthorized disclosure or the disclosure
by other third parties that Executive knows is not by the Company) and (ii) related to the current
or potential business of the Company and/or its Affiliates, including, but not limited to, the
information, observations, and data obtained by the Executive during the course of the
Employment Term concerning the business and affairs of the Company Group concerning (A)
acquisition opportunities in or reasonably related to the Company Group’s business or industry of
which the Executive becomes aware prior to or during the Term, (B) identities and requirements
of, contractual arrangements with, and other information regarding the Company Group’s
employees (including personnel files and other information), suppliers, distributors, customers,
independent contractors, third-party payors, providers, or other business relations and their
confidential information, including, without limitation, billing information, credit card
information, bank account information, and other information concerning customers, (C) internal
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business information, including development, transition, and transformation plans, methodologies
and methods of doing business, strategic, staffing, training, marketing, promotional, sales, and
expansion plans and practices, including plans regarding planned and potential sales, historical
and projected financial information, budgets and business plans, risk management practices,
negotiation strategies and practices, opinion leader lists and databases, customer service
approaches, integration processes, new and existing programs and services, cost, rate, and pricing
structures and terms, and requirements and costs of providing service, support, and equipment, (D)
trade secrets, technology, know-how, compilations of data and analyses, techniques, systems,
formulae, research, records, reports, manuals, flow charts, documentation, models, data, and data
bases, (E) computer software, including operating systems, applications, and program listings, (F)
devices, discoveries, concepts, ideas, inventions, innovations, improvements, developments,
methods, designs, analyses, drawings, photographs, reports, and all similar or related information
(whether or not patentable and whether or not reduced to practice), (G) copyrightable works, (H)
intellectual property of every kind and description, and (I) all similar and related information in
whatever form.

(b) Executive acknowledges that the Confidential Information obtained or learned by
Executive during the Term from the Company Group concerning its business or affairs is its
property. Therefore, Executive agrees that he shall not disclose to any unauthorized Person or use
for Executive’s own account any of such Confidential Information, whether or not developed by
Executive, without the Board’s prior written consent, unless and to the extent that any Confidential
Information (i) becomes generally known to and available for use by the public other than as a
result of the Executive’s acts or omissions to act, (ii) is required to be disclosed pursuant to any
applicable law or court order, (iii) is disclosed in confidence to a federal, state or local government
official or to an attorney solely to report or investigate a suspected violation of law, or (iv) is
disclosed under seal in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding without
fear of prosecution, liability or retaliation provided the Executive so discloses in strict adherence
with 18 U.S.C. §1833. The Executive shall take reasonable and appropriate steps to safeguard
Confidential Information and to protect it against disclosure, misuse, espionage, loss, and theft and
agrees to deliver to the Company at the end of the Term, or at any other time the Company Group
may request in writing, all copies and embodiments, in whatever form, of memoranda, notes, plans,
records, reports, studies, and other documents and data, relating to the business or affairs of the
Company Group (including, without limitation, all Confidential Information and Work Product)
that Executive may then possess or have under the Executive’s control. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained herein, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Executive from
disclosing Confidential Information as provided under Section 4.5 below.

() During the Term, the Executive shall not use or disclose any confidential
information or trade secrets, if any, of any former employers or any other Person to whom the
Executive has an obligation of confidentiality, and shall not bring onto the premises of the
Company Group any unpublished documents or any property belonging to any former employer
or any other Person to whom the Executive has an obligation of confidentiality unless consented
to in writing by the former employer or Person. The Executive shall use in the performance of the
Executive’s duties only information that is (i) generally known and used by persons with training
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and experience comparable to the Executive’s and that is (A) common knowledge in the industry
or (B) is otherwise legally in the public domain, (ii) otherwise provided or developed by the
Company Group, or (iii) in the case of materials, property, or information belonging to any former
employer or other Person to whom the Executive has an obligation of confidentiality, approved
for such use in writing by such former employer or Person. If at any time during the Term, the
Executive believes that the Executive is being asked to engage in work that will, or will be likely
to, jeopardize any confidentiality or other obligations the Executive may have to former employers,
then the Executive shall immediately advise the Board so that the Executive’s duties can be
modified appropriately.

(d) On the Date of Termination, or at any other time at the Board’s request, Executive
shall return to the Company all Company property and documents, including but not limited to, (i)
any and all computers, tablets, electronic storage devices, computer equipment, records, notes,
notebooks, reports, proposals, keys, security cards, credit cards, vendor lists, and client lists and
(ii) any and all documents containing the Company’s confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret
information, including but not limited to any documents stored electronically on any computer,
phone, tablet, electronic storage device, email account, social media account, or cloud storage
account, as well any emails, instant messages, Word or Pages documents, Excel or Numbers
spreadsheets, PowerPoint or KeyPoint presentations, Google Docs, Google Sheets, Google Slides,
or other documents or correspondence.

(e) Executive acknowledges and agrees that all intellectual property, including all
discoveries, concepts, ideas, inventions, innovations, improvements, developments, methods,
processes, programs, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, patent applications, copyrightable work,
and mask work (whether or not including any Confidential Information) and all registrations or
applications related thereto, all other proprietary information, and all similar or related information
(whether or not patentable) that relate to the Company Group’s actual or anticipated business,
research, and development or existing or future products or services and that are conceived,
developed, contributed to, made, or reduced to practice by Executive (whether alone or jointly
with others) during the Term including any of the foregoing that constitutes any proprietary
information or records (“Work Product™), belong to the applicable member of the Company Group.
Any copyrightable work prepared in whole or in part by Executive in the course of Executive’s
work for any of the foregoing entities shall be deemed a “work made for hire” to the maximum
extent permitted under copyright laws, and the Company shall own all rights therein. To the extent
any such copyrightable work or the intellectual property rights in the Work Product is not a “work
made for hire,” Executive hereby assigns and agrees to assign to the applicable member of the
Company Group all right, title, and interest, including, without limitation, copyright and all other
intellectual property rights, in and to such copyrightable work and other Work Product. Executive
shall promptly disclose such Work Product to the Board and, at the Company’s expense, perform
all actions reasonably requested by the Board (whether during or after the Employment Term) to
establish and confirm such ownership by the Company Group (including, without limitation,
assignments, consents, powers of attorney, and other instruments). Executive shall also execute
and comply with the Company’s standard confidentiality and invention assignment agreement, as
applicable.
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42  Noncompetition: Nonsolicitation. Executive shall not, at any time during the term
of this Agreement and for a petriod of one year following the termination of Executive’s
employment for any reason (the “Restriction Period™), (a) engage or become interested as an owner
or stockholder (other than as an owner or stockholder of less than three percent (3%) of the stock
of a publicly owned company), partner, director, officer, employee, consultant or otherwise in any
Competitor (defined below), unless such position would not require or permit Executive to work
on Competitive Activities and would not involve any services that would require or permit
Executive to use or disclose any of the Company’s Confidential Information; (b) engage in any
Competitive Activities, (c) recruit, solicit for employment, hire or engage any employee or
consultant of the Company or any of its Affiliates or any person who was an employee or
consultant of the Company or any of its Affiliates within two (2) years prior to the Date of
Termination, or (d) solicit any customer or potential customer of the Company or any of its
Affiliates with whom Executive interacted on behalf of the Company within two (2) years prior to
the Date of Termination. “Competitive Activities” means enrichment of uranium, including but
not limited to low-enriched uranium (“LEU”) and high-assay, low-enriched uranium (“HALEU”);
the sale of natural or enriched uranium; and/or any other business that the Company engages in or
demonstrably plans to engage in during the two (2) years prior to the Date of Termination.
“Competitor” means any company engaged in Competitive Activities and any contractor or
subcontractor to any of these businesses (with respect to activities by such contractor or
subcontractor that are engaged in Competitive Activities). Because of the worldwide nature of the
Company’s business, Executive acknowledges and agrees that these restrictions apply without any
geographic limitation. Executive acknowledges that these provisions are necessary for the
Company’s protection and are not unrcasonable, since Executive would be able to obtain
employment with companies not engaged in any Competitive Business and would be able to recruit
and hire personnel other than employees of the Company or any of its Affiliates. The duration
and the scope of these restrictions on the Executive’s activities are divisible, so that if any provision
of this paragraph is held or deemed to be invalid, that provision shall be automatically modified to
the extent necessary to make it valid.

43.  Nonm-Disparagement. Following the termination of Executive’s employment for
any reason, subject to the provisions of Section 4.4 below, Executive shall not criticize or disparage
the Company, its Affiliates or any of their respective services, directors, officers, employees,
SUCCEsSOrs or assigns, or any person acting by, through, under or in concert with any of them, with
any written or oral statement.

44  Protected Rights.

(a) Defend Trade Secret Act Notice. Executive is hereby provided notice that under
the 2016 Defend Trade Secrets Act (“DTSA™): (i) no individual will be held criminally or civilly
liable under Federal or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret (as defined in the
Economic Espionage Act) that: (x) is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government
official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attormey; and made solely for the purpose of reporting
or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (y) is made in a complaint or other document filed
in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal so that it is not made public; and
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(i) an individual who pursues a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected
violation of the law may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade
secret information in the court proceeding so long as the individual (x) files any document
containing the trade secret under seal and (y) does not disclose the trade secret, except as permitted
by court order.

(b)  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prohibit Executive from (i) filing a charge
or complaint with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the National Labor Relations
Board, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission or any other federal, state or local government
agency or commission (“Government Agencies™) or a legal proceeding in court or arbitration; (ii)
testifying truthfully in any Government Agency, legal or arbitral proceeding; or (iii)
communicating with any Government Agencies or otherwise participate in any investigation or
proceeding that may be conducted by any Government Agency. Executive does not need the prior
authorization of the Board to make any such reports or disclosures and Executive is not required
to notify the Board that Executive has made such reports or disclosures. In addition, nothing in
this Agreement prevents Executive from discussing or disclosing information about acts in the
workplace that Executive has reason to believe violate applicable state, federal or local law, or
from exercising rights (if any) under Section 7 of the National Labor Relations Act.

4.5  Severability. If, at the time of enforcement of the covenants contained in this
Section 4, a court or arbitrator shall hold that the duration, scope, or area restrictions stated herein
are unreasonable under circumstances then existing, Executive and the Company agree that the
maximum duration, scope, or area reasonable under such circumstances shall be substituted for the
stated duration, scope, or area and that the court shall be allowed and directed to revise the
restrictions contained herein to cover the maximum period, scope, or area permitted by applicable
law. Executive has been advised to consult and has consulted with legal counsel regarding the
foregoing covenants and, based on such consultation, has determined and hereby acknowledges
that the foregoing covenants are reasonable in terms of duration, scope, and area restrictions and
are necessary to protect the goodwill of the Company Group. Executive further acknowledges and
agrees that the foregoing covenants are being entered into by him in connection with the payments
and benefits hereunder.

46  Remedies. Inthe event of the breach or a threatened breach by Executive of any of
the provisions of this Section 4, the Company Group would suffer material and irreparable harm
and money damages would not be a sufficient or adequate remedy for any such breach and, in
addition and supplementary to other rights and remedies existing in its favor whether hereunder or
under any other agreement, at law or in equity, the Company Group shall be entitled to specific
performance and/or injunctive or other equitable relief from a court of law or equity of competent
jurisdiction in order to enforce or prevent any violations of the provisions hereof (without posting
a bond, deposit, or other security). In addition, in the event a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that the Executive has committed a material breach of Section 4.2, the Restriction
Period for the Executive shall be extended with respect to Section 4.2 for the period that Executive
was deemed to be in such material breach.
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4.7  Survival. This Section 4 shall survive the termination of the Employment Term
hereunder.

5. Dispute Resolution. In the event of any dispute relating to Executive’s employment, the
termination thereof, or this Agreement, other than a dispute in which the primary relief sought is
an equitable remedy such as an injunction, and unless prohibited by applicable law, the parties
agree that any dispute, claim, or controversy based on common law, equity, or any federal, state,
or local statute, ordinance, or regulation (other than workers’ compensation claims) arising out of
or relating in any way to this Agreement, its termination or any termination of Executive’s
employment, including whether such dispute is arbitrable, shall be settled by arbitration. This
agreement to arbitrate includes but is not limited to all claims for any form of illegal discrimination,
improper or unfair treatment or dismissal, and all tort claims. Executive shall still have a right to
file a discrimination charge with a federal or state agency, but the final resolution of any
discrimination claim shall be submitted to arbitration instead of a court or jury. The arbitration
proceeding shall be conducted under the employment dispute resolution arbitration rules of the
American Arbitration Association in effect at the time a demand for arbitration under the rules is
made. The decision of the arbitrator(s), including determination of the amount of any damages
suffered, shall be exclusive, final, and binding on all parties, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns. THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY
JURY AS TO ALL CLAIMS HEREUNDER.

6. Resignation from Boards: Clawback.

6.1  If Executive’s employment with the Company terminates for any reason, Executive
shall immediately resign from the Board and all other boards of directors of the Company, and any
other entities for which Executive serves as a representative of the Company.

6.2  Executive agrees that Executive will be subject to any compensation clawback,
recoupment and anti-hedging policies that may be generally applicable to Executive as an
executive officer of the Company, as in effect from time to time and as approved by the Board or
a duly authorized committee thereof, or, to the extent so required by applicable law, with respect
to Executive.

7. Survivability. The respective rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement
shall survive any termination of Executive’s employment and this Agreement to the extent
necessary to the intended preservation of such rights and obligations and shall inure to the benefit
of any successors or assigns of the Company.

8. Mitigation. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment or
benefit provided for in this Agreement by seeking other employment or otherwise, and there shall
be no offset against amounts due Executive under this Agreement on account of any remuneration
attributable to any subsequent employment that Executive may obtain.

9. Indemnification. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold Executive harmless to the
fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State of Delaware and under the bylaws of the Company,
both as in effect at the time of the subject act or omission. In connection therewith, Executive shall
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be entitled to the protection of any insurance policies which the Company elects to maintain
generally for the benefit of the Company’s directors and officers, against all costs, charges and
expenses whatsoever incurred or sustained by Executive in connection with any action, suit or
proceeding to which Executive may be made a party by reason of his being or having been a
director, officer or employee of the Company. This provision shall survive any termination of
Executive’s employment hereunder.

10.  Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement
or necessary or convenient in connection herewith shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been given when hand delivered or mailed by registered or certified mail, or by a nationally
recognized overnight delivery service, as follows (provided that notice of change of address shall
be deemed given only when received):

If to the Company, to:

Centrus Energy Corp.

One Democracy Center, Suite 800
6901 Rockledge Drive

Bethesda, MD 20817-1818

Attention: Chairman of the Board and General Counsel

If to Executive, to the most recent address on file with the Company or to such other names
or addresses as the Company or the Executive, as the case may be, shall designate by notice to
each other person entitled to receive notices in the manner specified in this Section 10.

11. Executive Representations.

11.1  Entering the Agreement. Executive represents and warrants to the Company that
(a) there are no restrictions, agreements or understandings whatsoever to which Executive is a
party which would prevent or make unlawful Executive’s execution of this Agreement or
Executive’s employment hereunder, which is or would be inconsistent or in conflict with this
Agreement or Executive’s employment hereunder, or would prevent, limit or impair in any way
the performance by Executive of the obligations hereunder, (b) as a material condition to
commencing employment with the Company, Executive has obtained a signed written waiver from
Orano USA LLC (including its parent, subsidiary and affiliated entities, collectively “Orano”) that
releases Executive from certain post-employment restrictive covenants set forth in Section 8 and
Section 9.1(i)-(iii) of the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated April 3, 2021, by
and between Orano USA LLC and Executive, as reflected in Exhibit A hereto (the “Orano
Waiver™); (c) Executive has complied with all obligations to return all property and documents to
Orano, and will comply with his ongoing legal and contractual obligations to Orano (subject to the
Orano Waiver); (d) Executive will use Executive’s best efforts to obtain a DOE “Q” level security
clearance within twelve months following the Effective Date, including but not limited to
renouncing any citizenships that interfere or with Executive’s ability to obtain DOE “Q” level
security clearance, (e) Executive has secured all approvals, if any, that he is required to obtain
under the laws, regulations and Executive Orders applicable to his prior employment with the
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United States Government, including an opinion by the Department of Energy’s Designated
Agency Ethics Official as to his pre- and post-employment restrictions which are applicable to his
performance under this Agreement and (f) none of the duties and obligations of Executive
hereunder represents a conflict with his obligations under the laws, regulations and Executive
Orders applicable as a result of his prior employment, if any, with the United States Government
and any applicable post-employment restrictions, including, but not limited to, government ethics
laws, regulations and executive orders. To the extent Executive knows or should have known about
such obligation, Executive covenants that in connection with his provision of services to the
Company, Executive shall not breach any obligation (legal, statutory, contractual or otherwise) to
any former employer or other person, including, but not limited to, obligations relating to
confidentiality and proprietary rights. Executive also will be required to (x) show proof of his
right to work in the United States upon the commencement of his employment with the Company
within the deadline specified by applicable law and (y) pass a pre-employment drug test.

11.2 On-going Representations. Executive represents and warrants to the Company that
during the Employment Term he (a) will maintain a DOE “Q” level security clearance, (b) comply
with all applicable conflict of interest laws and regulations, (c) will at all times be in full
compliance with any pre- and post-employment restrictions applicable to his performance under
this Agreement, and (d) adhere to the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and all other
Company policies and procedures.

12. Contents of Agreement; Amendment and Assignment.

12.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, including employment, termination and
severance. This Agreement supersedes any and all agreements relating to the subject matter hereof.
This Agreement cannot be changed, modified, extended or terminated except upon written
amendment approved by the Board and executed on behalf of the Company by a member of the
Board (other than Executive) and by Executive.

12.2  Successors. All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the respective heirs, executors,
administrators, legal representatives and successors of the parties hereto, except that the duties and
responsibilities of Executive under this Agreement are of a personal nature and shall not be
assignable or delegable in whole or in part by Executive. The Company shall require any successor
(whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) to all
or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company, expressly to assume and agree to
perform the Company’s obligations under this Agreement in the same manner and to the same
extent as the Company would be required to perform if no such succession had taken place.

13; Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or application thereof to anyone or under
any circumstances is adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision or application of this Agreement which can
be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable provision or application and shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable such provision or application in any other jurisdiction. If any
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provision is held void, invalid or unenforceable with respect to particular circumstances, it shall
nevertheless remain in full force and effect in all other circumstances.

14. Remedies Cumulative; No Waiver. No remedy conferred upon a Party by this Agreement
is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given under this Agreement or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission by a Party in exercising any right,
remedy or power under this Agreement or existing at law or in equity shall be construed as a waiver
thereof, and any such right, remedy or power may be exercised by such Party from time to time
and as often as may be deemed expedient or necessary by such Party in its sole discretion.

15.  Cooperation. During the Employment Term and thereafter, Executive shall cooperate with
the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates, upon the Company’s request, with respect to any
litigation, investigation, administrative procedures, or legal proceedings or inquiries that involve
the Company, either now existing or which may hereafter be instituted by or against the Company,
including but not limited to, appearing upon the Company’s reasonable request as a witness and/or
consultant in connection with any litigation, investigation, administrative procedures, or legal
proceedings or inquiries. In the event the Company requires Executive’s cooperation in accordance
with this Section 15, the Company shall reimburse Executive for reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses (including travel, lodging and meals and reasonable attorneys” fees) incurred by
Executive in connection with such cooperation, subject to reasonable documentation.

16.  Beneficiaries/References. Executive shall be entitled, to the extent permitted under any
applicable law, to select and change a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive any compensation or
benefit payable under this Agreement following Executive’s death by giving the Company written
notice thereof. In the event of Executive’s death or a judicial determination of Executive’s
incompetence, reference in this Agreement to Executive shall be deemed, where appropriate, to
refer to Executive’s beneficiary, estate or other legal representative.

17.  Section Headings. All section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only.

18.  Withholding Taxes. All payments under this Agreement shall be made subject to
applicable tax withholding, and the Company shall withhold from any payments under this
Agreement all federal, state and local taxes as the Company is required to withhold pursuant to
any law or governmental rule or regulation. Executive shall be responsible for all taxes applicable
to amounts payable under this Agreement.

19. Section 409A of the Code.

19.1 This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A of the Code and its
corresponding regulations, to the extent applicable. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement
to the contrary, payments may only be made under this Agreement upon an event and in a manner
permitted by Section 409A of the Code, to the extent applicable. In no event may Executive,
directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of a payment. For purposes of Section 409A of
the Code, each payment hereunder shall be treated as a separate payment.
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19.2  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if Executive is a
“specified employee” under Section 409A of the Code and if payment of any amounts under this
Agreement is required to be delayed for a period of six months after separation from service in
order to avoid taxation under Section 409A of the Code, payment of such amounts shall be delayed
as required by Section 409A of the Code, and the accumulated amounts shall be paid in a lump
sum payment within five business days after the end of the six-month period. If Executive dies
during the postponement period prior to the payment of benefits, the amounts withheld on account
of Section 409A of the Code shall be paid to the personal representative of Executive’s estate
within 60 days after the date of Executive’s death.

20.  Voluntary Execution. Executive acknowledges and agrees that (a) he has signed this
Agreement voluntarily and without any duress or undue influence; (b) he has read this Agreement;
(¢) he has had the opportunity to seek and has been represented by legal counsel of his own choice
in the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement; (d) he is fully aware of the legal and binding
effect of this Agreement and (e) this Agreement has been mutually drafied by the Parties and shall
not be construed against either Party as the drafter.

21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the laws of
the State of Maryland without giving effect to any conflict of laws provisions.

22.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each counterpart
shall have the same force and effect as an original and shall constitute an effective, binding
agreement on the part of each of the undersigned. Each party may execute this Agreement by
signing on the designated signature block below, and by transmitting such signature page via e-
mail (via PDF or TIF format) to the other parties. Any signature made and transmitted by e-mail
(via PDF or TIF format) for the purpose of executing this Agreement shall be deemed an original
signature for purposes of this Agreement, and shall be binding upon the party transmitting its or
his signature by e-mail (including through the delivery of signed documents in PDF or TIF format
or by means of DocuSign or other electronic signature platforms).

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, intending to be legally bound, have executed this
Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.

Signed by
Mitel (Rilliams Date: 11/16/2023 | 8:38:46 PM EST

By S REFH. Williams
Title: Chairman of the Board

AMIR VEXLER

| Awir \peler Date: 11/16/2023 | 8:34:56 pu EST
i Vexter
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CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD NOTICE
(Amir Vexler)

Centrus Energy Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby grants to Amir Vexler
(“you” or the “Grantee™), an Award of Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs™) subject to and conditioned upon
your agreement to the terms of this Award Notice, the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement™) and the Centrus Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive
Plan, as amended from time to time (the “Plan”), all of which are an integral part of and are hereby
incorporated into this Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this
Award Notice or the Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in the Plan.

Grant Date January 1,2024

Number of Restricted Stock

Units (“RSUs”) Granted 20,000

Vesting Schedule Conditioned upon you obtaining DOE “Q” security

clearance (the “Security Clearance Condition™), the
RSUs subject to this Award Notice shall vest annually
at the rate of 4,000 RSUs on each December 4 after
the Grant Date, with December 4, 2024 as the first
such vesting date and continuing through December
4, 2028, provided that you remain actively employed
by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, to the
extent that you have not satisfied the Security
Clearance Condition by December 4, 2024 or other
applicable vesting date, none of the RSUs that would
have vested on December 4, 2024 or such other
applicable vesting date shall vest; provided, however,
if you continue to remain actively employed by the
Company under the terms of your Employment
Agreement with the Company dated November 16,
2023 (the “Employment Agreement”) and satisfy the
Security Clearance Condition after December 4,
2024, the RSUs that would otherwise have vested on
December 4, 2024 or such other applicable vesting
date shall vest on the second business day following
the date that you satisfy the Security Clearance
Condition.

Subject to the provisions of the Agreement and the Plan, (i) the Restricted Stock Units shall become
vested and nonforfeitable in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth above, (ii} Shares (as defined
in the Agreement) equal to the number of Restricted Stock Units issuable to the Grantee under the
Agreement shall become distributable upon vesting, and (iii) actual distribution of the Shares shall occur
in accordance with the Agreement.




This Award Notice may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original but
all of which together shall represent one and the same agreement.

Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer
and Corporate Secretary

By signing below and returning this Award Notice to the Company, you acknowledge receipt of the
Agreement and the Plan; accept the Restricted Stock Units that have been granted to you; and agree to be
bound by all of the provisions set forth in this Award Notice, the Agreement and the Plan.

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED
BY: Amir Vexler

Signature ""‘E’{/j ;M— Date_&/’ﬂ i ’/ / 2ol

Enclosures: Exhibit A: Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Amir Vexler)
Centrus Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended




EXHIBIT A

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
(Amir Vexler)

Centrus Energy Corp. (the “Company™) has granted to the Grantee an Award consisting of Restricted
Stock Units, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the applicable Restricted Stock Unit
Award Notice (the “Award Notice”). The Award has been granted to the Grantee pursuant to the Centrus
Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”). Unless otherwise
defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the applicable Award Notice
or the Plan. As used herein, the term “Restricted Stock Unit” and “RSU” shall mean a non-voting unit of
measurement which represents the right to receive one share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock (the
“Shares™) for each unit that vests (subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 of the Plan) solely for
purposes of the Plan and this Agreement. The RSUs shall be used solely as a device for the determination of
the issuance of Shares to eventually be made to Grantee if and to the extent such RSUs vest pursuant to
Section 1 hereof and the terms of the Award Notice. The RSUs shall not be treated as property or as a trust
fund of any kind.

1. Vesting of Award. The Award of RSUs will vest only in accordance with the vesting schedule
stated in the applicable Award Notice, subject to Section 3 below,

2. Grant of the Award. The Award of Restricted Stock Units is subject to the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement and the Plan as provided in the Award Notice. The number of
Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 of the Plan.

3 Vesting Acceleration and Forfeiture Events.

(a) Subject to other subsections hereof, the RSUs awarded pursuant to the Award Notice
will vest and become nonforfeitable with respect to the applicable portion thereof
according to the Vesting Schedule set forth in the Award Notice, subject to Grantee’s
continuous active employment through the applicable vesting dates, as a condition to
the vesting of the applicable installment of the RSUs and the rights and benefits under
this Agreement.

(b) To the extent that Grantee has a termination of employment for any reason prior to the
satisfaction of the Security Clearance Condition, all Restricted Stock Units held by the
Grantee as of the date of such termination of employment shall be automatically
canceled and forfeited for no consideration on the date of the Grantee’s termination of
employment.

(c) Subject to subsection (g) hereof, to the extent not already vested or previously forfeited
(and assuming prior satisfaction of the Security Clearance Condition), upon the date
the Grantee has a termination of employment by reason of Grantee’s death or
Disability, all Restricted Stock Units held by the Grantee as of the date of such death
or Disability shall be automatically canceled and forfeited for no consideration on the
date of such death or Disability.

(d) Subject to subsections (f) and (g) below, to the extent not already vested or previously
forfeited (and assuming prior satisfaction of the Security Clearance Condition), upon
the date the Grantee has a termination of employment (i) by the Company other than
for Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement), (ii) as contemplated by
subsection (f) below, or (iii) by Grantee for Good Reason (as defined in the
Employment Agreement), the Restricted Stock Units shall become fully vested and
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(e)

(f)

(2)

nonforfeitable as of the date of such termination of employment; provided, however,
for the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this subsection (d) shall not apply to a
termination of employment due to Grantee’s death or Disability, which shall instead
by governed by subsection (c) hereof, or retirement which shall be governed by
subsection (e) below.

Subject to subsection (g) below, to the extent not already vested or previously forfeited
(and assuming prior satisfaction of the Security Clearance Condition), upon the date
the Grantee has a termination of employment by the Grantee other than upon death,
Disability, Good Reason or as contemplated by subsection (f) below, all Restricted
Stock Units held by the Grantee as of the date of such termination of employment shall
be automatically canceled and forfeited for no consideration on the date of the
Grantee’s termination of employment,

Subject to subsection (g) below, to the extent not already vested or previously forfeited
(and assuming prior satisfaction of the Security Clearance Condition), in the event that
the Grantee has a termination of employment by the Company other than for Cause,
or by the Grantee for Good Reason, coincident with or following a Change in Control
of the Company, the Restricted Stock Units shall become fully vested and
nonforfeitable as of the date of such termination of employment; provided, however,
for the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this subsection (f) shall not apply to a
termination of employment due to Grantee’s death or Disability, which shall instead
by governed by subsection (c) hereof or retirement which shall be governed by
subsection (e) hereof,

Notwithstanding subsections (c) through (f) above, in the event that the Grantee has a
termination of employment for Cause or if Grantee is terminated by the Company for
failing to maintain the DOE “Q” security clearance, all Restricted Stock Units held by
the Grantee as of the date of such termination of employment shall be automatically
canceled and forfeited for no consideration on the date of the Grantee’s termination of
employment. In the event the Company is in the process of considering a termination
for Cause with respect to Grantee, any other notice of termination of employment
given by Grantee to the Company shall be disregarded until such determination is
completed, and any determination by the Company that a termination of employment
for Cause is applicable shall control the treatment under Section 3 hereof.

4, Settlement of Restricted Stock Units: Section 409A.

(a)

(b)

As soon as administratively practicable following the vesting of any RSUs pursuant
to Section 1 hereof, the Company shall deliver to Grantee (or any transferee permitted
under Sections 5 or 6 hereof) a number of Shares (or if applicable, the per Share
equivalents of cash, property or securities of the surviving entity of any merger,
consolidation or other transaction or event having a similar effect, which are
substituted for Shares pursuant to Section 16 of the Plan) equal to the number of such
RSUs that vested on the applicable vesting date, less to the extent applicable, the
number of Shares withheld in accordance with Section 4(b). The Company shall
deliver such Shares for the benefit of Grantee by delivering to Grantee evidence of
book entry Shares credited to the account of Grantee, The value of such Shares shall
not bear any interest owing as a result of the passage of time.

Grantee shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Company to pay to the Company
all federal, state, local, foreign and other taxes required to be withheld with respect to
the grant and vesting of Restricted Stock Units and issuance of Shares upon settlement
of those RSUs hereunder. As of the date of this Agreement, taxes are required to be
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withheld when the Shares are issued to Grantee upon vesting and settlement of the
Restricted Stock Units. The Company has no obligation to deliver Shares or other
consideration under this Agreement until the Company’s tax withholding obligations
have been satisfied in full by the Grantee. The Company shall have the right, but not
the obligation, to deduct from the Shares deliverable to Grantee upon the grant, vesting
or settlement of the RSUs, or to accept from the Grantee the tender of, a number of
whole Shares having a Fair Market Value, as determined by the Company, equal to all
or any part of the tax withholding obligations of the Company with regard thereto. The
Fair Market Value of any Shares withheld or tendered to satisfy any such tax
withholding obligations shall not exceed the amount determined by the applicable
minimum statutory withholding rates. The Company’s rights in the preceding sentence
shall not relieve Grantee of Grantee’s obligation to make satisfactory arrangements for
satisfaction of withholding obligations as they become due.

(c) The Company intends the Restricted Stock Units to be exempt from Code
Section 409A as short term deferrals. Regardless of the Company’s actions in this
regard, Grantee hereby acknowledges and agrees that the uitimate liability for any and
all taxes is and remains Grantee’s responsibility and liability and that the Company
makes no representations or undertaking regarding tax treatment of the Restricted
Stock Units or issuance of the Shares,

Nontransferability. Except by will or under the laws of descent and distribution or as provided
below, the Grantee shall not be permitted to sell, transfer, pledge, encumber, alienate, or assign
the Restricted Stock Units or any rights under this Agreement. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, except as provided above, the Restricted Stock Units and the Grantee’s rights
under this Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of
in any way, shall not be assignable by operation of law, and shall not be subject to execution,
attachment or similar process. Any attempted assignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or
other disposition of the Restricted Stock Units of the Grantee’s rights under this Agreement
contrary to the provisions hereof, and the levy of any execution, attachment or similar process
upon them, shall be null and void and without effect.

Beneficiary. The Grantee may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries (which beneficiary may
be an entity other than a natural person) to receive any Shares or other consideration payable
hereunder which may be made following the Grantee’s death. Such designation may be
changed or canceled at any time without the consent of any such beneficiary. Any such
designation, change or cancellation must be made in a form and manner established by the
Committee and shall not be effective unless and until received by the Committee during the
Grantee’s lifetime. If no beneficiary has been named, or the designated beneficiary or
beneficiaries shall have predeceased the Grantee or (if other than a natural person) failed or
ceased to exist, the beneficiary shall be the Grantee’s spouse or, if no spouse survives the
Grantee, the Grantee’s estate,

No Rights as Stockholder. Grantee shall have no right to vote Shares represented by Restricted
Stock Units and shall have no rights as a stockholder of the Company with respect to Restricted
Stock Units unless and until Shares are issued to the Grantee in settlement of the Restricted
Stock Units pursuant to Section 4,

No Right to Continued Employment. Neither the Plan nor this Agreement shall confer on the
Grantee any right to continued employment with the Company,

No Trust Fund Created. Neither this Agreement nor any of the transactions contemplated
hereby shall create or be construed to create a trust or separate fund of any kind or a fiduciary
relationship between the Company or any Affiliate and the Grantee or any other person. To
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the extent that any person acquires a right to receive payments from the Company or any
Affiliate pursuant to this Agreement, such right shall be no greater than the right of any
unsecured general creditor of the Company or any Affiliate.

10. No Fractional Shares. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to this
Agreement and upon settlement of a Grantee’s Restricted Stock Units, the value of any
fractional Shares shall be paid to the Grantee in cash.

11. Clawback. Grantee agrees that the RSUs will be subject to any compensation clawback,
recoupment and anti-hedging policies that may be generally applicable to Grantee as an
executive officer of the Company, as in effect from time to time and as approved by the Board
or a duly authorized committee thereof, or, to the extent so required by applicable law, with
respect to Grantee,

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Amendments; Entire Agreement, Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or in the
Plan, this Agreement may be amended or modified at any time by an instrument in writing
signed by the parties hereto, or by an instrument in writing signed unilaterally by the Company
if the Company determines that such amendment is required by law, or required otherwise to
comply with or obtain for the Grantee or the Company any benefits, or permits the Grantee or
the Company to avoid any penalties or additional taxes, under the Code or other revenue law,
or is otherwise appropriate. The Award Notice, this Agreement and the Plan constitute the
entire agreement between the parties with respect to the terms and supersede all prior written
or oral negotiations, commitments, representations and agreements with respect thereto. If
there is any inconsistency between the terms of the Award Notice, this Agreement and the
terms of the Plan, the Plan’s terms shall completely supersede and replace the conflicting terms
to the minimum extent necessary.

14, Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document given under this Agreement shall
be in writing and shall be addressed and delivered, in the case of the Company, to the General
Counsel of the Company at the principal office of the Company and, in the case of the Grantee,
to the Grantee’s address as shown in the records of the Company. Either the Grantee or the
Company may change such party’s address for notices by notice duly given pursuant to this
Section.

15. Award Subject to Plan. This Award is subject to the Plan. The terms and provisions of the
Plan as it may be amended from time to time are hereby incorporated herein by reference. In
the event of a conflict between any term or provision contained heyein and opfrovision

of the Plan, the applicable terms and provisions of the Plan vern. &

By: /

Shahféam Ghasemihn”
Senior Vice President, General Counsel,
Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate

Secretary

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED
BY: Amir V. Vexler

||l ,
Signature ’74(;’1/ w{ﬂ
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Centrus Energy Corp.
Securities Trading and Confidentiality
Policies and Procedures
(Last Updated November 7, 2023)

As a publicly-traded corporation, Centrus Energy Corp. (together with its subsidiaries, “Centrus™ or the
“Company”) has adopted certain policies which are designed to deter any “insider trading” problems and
the unauthorized handling of Company information. This Securities Trading and Confidentiality Policies
and Procedures and its appendices (this “Policy™) is divided into two parts: the first pait prohibits trading
in certain circumstances and applies to all Company directors, officers and employees and their respective
immediate family members, The second part imposes special additional trading restrictions and applies to
all (i) directors of the Company, (ii) executive officers of the Company, (iii) the persons listed on
Appendix A, which may be updated from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Company and (iv)
with respect to any of the foregoing persons, (A) any spouse, child, parent, grandparent, sibling and in-
law of such person, (B) anyone else who lives in the same household as such person, and (C) any person
or entity under the influence or control of such person (collectively the “Covered Persons™). This Policy
supersedes and replaces the Company’s prior Securities Trading and Confidentiality Policies and
Procedures dated as of August 10. 2021. Please read this Policy carefully and contact the Company’s
General Counsel or his/her delegate if you have any questions.

One of the principal purposes of the federal securities laws is to prohibit so-called “insider trading.”
Simply stated, insider trading occurs when a person uses material nonpublic information obtained through
involvement with the Company to make decisions to purchase, sell, give away or otherwise trade the
Company’s securities or to provide that information to others outside the Company. The prohibitions
against insider trading apply to trades, tips and recommendations by virtually any person, including all
persons associated with the Company, if the information involved is “material” and “nonpublic.” These
terms are defined in this Policy under Part I, Section 3 below. The prohibitions would apply to any
director, officer or employee who buys or sells Company stock on the basis of material nonpublic
information that he or she obtained about the Company, its customers, suppliers, or other companies with
which the Company has contractual relationships or may be negotiating transactions.

As outlined in more detail below, directors, officers and employees and/or Covered Persons must
comply with the following:

e Do not trade securities while in possession of material, non-public information.

e Covered Persons must pre-clear all transactions in Centrus securities with the General
Counsel or his/her delegate.

e Covered Persons may NOT trade in Centrus securities during “black-out periods” which
begin 15 days prior to the end of a quarter and end on the second trading day following the
date of filing of the Company’s financial results and Form 10-K or 10-Q for the applicable
quarter.

¢ Do not convey material, non-public information to any unauthorized third party or
employee, including a relative.

s Do not participate in discussions on social media platforms, Internet *chat rooms” or
similar online forums about the Company’s prospects or Company’s securities or engage in




any other activity that could lead to the intentional or inadvertent dissemination of
material, non-public information to third parties.

PART 1

DO NOT TRADE SECURITIES WHILE IN POSSESSION OF
MATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION

1. Applicability

This Policy applies to all trading or other transactions in the Company’s securities, including common
stock, options and any other securities that the Company may issue, such as preferred stock, notes, bonds
and convertible securities, as well as to derivative securities relating to any of the Company’s securities,
whether or not issued by the Company. This Policy applies to all Company directors, officers and
employees and their respective immediate family members.

This Policy is necessary, for your protection and the protection of the Company, because in
connection with various Company projects and ongoing operations you may obtain material
information that has not been released to the public. Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder generally prohibit any person
from trading in securities on the basis of material nonpublic information. Any doubts about whether
a particular situation requires you to refrain from engaging in a securities transaction or sharing
information with others should be resolved against taking such action, unless the procedures set forth
in this Policy are followed. All questions regarding this Policy and its application should be directed to
General Counsel of the Company or his/her delegate.

2. General Policy

(a) No director, officer or employee, or any of their immediate family members may purchase
or sell, or offer to purchase or sell, any Company security, whether or not issued by the Company, while in
possession of material nonpublic information about the Company.

(b) No director, officer or employee, or any of their immediate family members who knows of
any material nonpublic information about the Company may communicate that information (*tip”) to any
other person, including family members and friends, or otherwise disclose such information without the
Company’s prior authorization.

(c) No director, officer or employee, or any of their immediate family members may purchase
or sell any security of any other company, whether or not issued by the Company, while in possession of
material nonpublic information about that company that was obtained in the course of his or her
involvement with the Company. No director, officer or employee, or any of their immediate family
members who knows of any such material nonpublic information may communicate that information to, or
tip, any other person, including family members and friends, or otherwise disclose that information without
the Company’s prior authorization.

(d) For compliance purposes, you should never trade, tip or recommend securities (or
otherwise cause the purchase or sale of securities) while in possession of information that you have reason
to believe may be material and nonpublic unless you first consult with, and obtain the advance approval of,
the General Counsel or his/her delegate.




(e) Covered Persons must “pre-clear” all trading in securities of the Company in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Part II, Section 2 below.

3. Definitions
A, Securities Transaction

A “securities transaction” means buying or selling (i) Company securities (debt or equity), (ii) the
securities of any corporation in which the Company has a substantial interest or is acquiring an interest, or
one with which the Company is about to enter into a major project or major contract, (iii) the securities of
a corporation participating in a significant joint venture with the Company, or (iv) the securities of a
corporation that is buying or selling a substantial amount of assets from or to the Company. In addition to
buying or selling, a securities transaction includes the purchase, sale or exercise of puts, calls or other
such options or derivative securities for such securities. A securities transaction includes such
transactions for any Company account, client account, employee account or account over which the
employee has investment discretion.

B. Material

Insider trading restrictions come into play only if the information you possess is “material.” Materiality,
however, may involve a relatively low threshold. Information is “material” if it concerns the business or
operations of the Company that could, if known, influence a reasonable investor in making an investment
decision or likely would affect the market price of the Company’s securities, or if it otherwise is
information that a reasonable investor would want to know before making an investment decision.
Material information also includes any information concerning the business or operations of any
corporation in which the Company has a substantial interest, or is acquiring an interest, or with which the
Company is entering into a significant project or contract.

Depending on the facts and circumstances at any particular time, information with respect to the
Company that could be considered material information includes, but is not limited to:

e financial results, including revenues, costs, earnings, earnings estimates, operating results or
changes in earnings information;

e guidance on earnings, revenues, costs (including cost estimates on projects that could have a
material impact the Company’s financial statements);

e changes in research recommendations (by the Company or others) or debt ratings;

e events regarding the Company’s securities (e.g., defaults on senior securities, calls of securities
for redemption, adoption, amendment or termination of repurchase plans or programs, stock splits
or changes in dividends, changes to the rights of securityholders, actual or proposed public or
private sales or offerings of additional securities (debt or equity) or information related to any
additional funding);

e extraordinary borrowing;

e the introduction of a significant new product or service, or failures thereof, or expansion or
curtailment of operations;




e new significant contracts with customers or suppliers or developments regarding customers or
suppliers (e.g., the acquisition or loss of a contract), including award or loss of a significant
contract;

e significant litigation developments or disputes with customers, suppliers or contractors;
e significant labor disputes or negotiations;
e changes in management or control, or other extraordinary management developments;

e governmental approvals or investigations, significant decisions by government agencies that may
affect the Company, or regulatory approvals or changes in regulations and any analysis of how
they affect the Company;

e a proposal, negotiation or agreement for a joint venture or termination thereof;

e proposals, negotiations or agreements for acquisitions of or mergers with other companies, tender
offers, dispositions of existing operations or changes in assets;

e confidential information obtained from a prospective borrower or in connection with
underwriting or dealing activities;

e liquidity problems;

e changes in auditors or auditor notification that the Company may no longer rely on an auditor’s
audit report;

e major changes in accounting methods or policies;

e significant write-downs in assets or increases in reserves;

e bankruptcies or receiverships; and

e cybersecurity risks and incidents, including vulnerabilities and breaches.

Material information is not limited to historical facts but may also include projections and forecasts.
Information may be material even if it relates to future, speculative or contingent events and even if it is
significant only when considered in combination with publicly available information. With respect to a
future event, such as a merger, acquisition, offering or exchange of the Company’s securities, or
introduction of a new product, the point at which negotiations or product development are determined to
be material is determined by balancing the probability that the event will occur against the magnitude of
the effect the event would have on a company’s operations or stock price should it occur. Thus,
information concerning an event that would have a large effect on stock price, such as a merger, may be
material even if the possibility that the event will occur is relatively small. When in doubt about whether
particular nonpublic information is material, you should presume it is material.

If you are unsure whether information is material, you should consult the General Counsel or
his/her delegate before making any decision to disclose such information (other than to Covered
Persons or persons who are subject to confidentiality obligations in favor of the Company on a
“need to know” basis) or to trade in or recommend securities to which that information relates.




C. Nonpublic

Insider trading prohibitions come into play only when you possess information that is material and
“nonpublic.” Information is considered to be “nenpublic’” until it has been adequately disclosed to the
public. It is important to note that information is not necessarily public for insider trading purposes
merely because it has been disclosed to a few members of the public or discussed in the press, which
sometimes report rumors. To be “public” the information must have been disseminated in a manner
designed to reach investors generally, and the investors must be given the opportunity to absorb the
information. You should presume that information is nonpublic unless you can point to its official release
by the Company in a public filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), the
issuance of a press release, disclosure of the information in the financial media or a meeting with
members of the press and the public. Even after public disclosure of information about the Company, you
must wait until the close of business on the second (2" full trading day after the information was
publicly disclosed before you can treat the information as public. Shorter or longer waiting periods might
be warranted based upon the nature of the information, as determined by the General Counsel or his/her
delegate.

Information with respect to the Company that could be considered nonpublic information may include,
but is not limited to:

e information available to a select group of analysts, brokers or institutional investors;
e undisclosed facts that are the subject of rumors, even if the rumors are widely circulated; and
e information that has been entrusted to the Company on a confidential basis until a public
announcement of the information has been made and enough time has elapsed for the market to
respond to a public announcement of the information.
As with questions of materiality, if you are not sure whether information is considered public, you
should either consult with the General Counsel or his/her delegate or assume that the information is
nonpublic and treat it as confidential.
4. Penalties for Violations of the Securities Trading Policy and Laws

A. Legal Penalties.

The SEC and the Department of Justice actively enforce insider trading laws, and the personal
consequences of illegally trading securities using material nonpublic information can be quite severe.
Potential consequences include:

e civil penalties of up to three times the amount of profit gain or loss avoided as a result of the
unlawtul action;

e significant criminal fines (no matter how small the profit);
e significant jail terms; and
e private suits for damages equal to the profit gained or loss avoided.

In addition, a person (a “tipper”) who tips others (“tippees”) may also be liable for transactions by the
tippees to whom he or she has disclosed material nonpublic information. Tippers can be subject to the




same penalties and sanctions as the tippees, and the SEC has imposed large penalties even when the tipper
did not profit from the transaction.

The SEC can also seek substantial civil penalties from any person who, at the time of an insider trading
violation, “directly or indirectly controlled the person who committed such violation,” which would apply
to the Company and/or management and supervisory personnel. These control persons may be held liable
for substantial penalties including in excess of $2 million dollars or three times the amount of the profits
gained or losses avoided. Even for violations that result in a small or no profit, the SEC can seek penalties
from a company and/or its management and supervisory personnel as control persons.

B. Company-Imposed Penalties

Violations of this Policy by a director, officer or employee or his or her family members may subject such
person to disciplinary action by the Company, including termination for cause. Any exceptions to this
Policy, if permitted, may only be granted by the General Counsel or his/her delegate.

. Compliance with Laws Outside of the United States

[f you are located or engaged in dealings outside the United States, be aware that laws regarding insider
trading and similar offenses differ from country to country. Directors, officers and employees must abide
by the laws in the country where located. However, you are required to comply with this Policy even if
local law is less restrictive. If a local law conflicts with this Policy, you must consult the General Counsel
or his/her delegate for guidance.

Please promptly report actual or potential violations of this Policy and seek advice with respect to the
receipt of material non-public information that you believe you should not have received, or you believe
the disclosing party should not have disclosed, in accordance with Appendix B hereto.

PART 11
1. Blackout Periods
To further reduce the likelihood that directors, executive officers and certain identified employees,
consultants and contractors may be deemed to have engaged in “insider trading,” all Covered Persons are

prohibited from trading in Centrus’ securities during blackout periods as defined below.

A, Quarterly Blackout Periods

Trading in the Company’s securities is prohibited during the period beginning at the close of the market
fifteen (15) days before the end of each fiscal quarter and ending at the close of business on the second
(2*¢) trading day following the date the Company’s financial results are publicly disclosed and the
Company’s Form 10-K or Form 10-Q applicable to the quarter is filed. During these periods, Covered
Persons generally possess or are presumed to possess material nonpublic information about the
Company’s financial results.

B. Other Blackout Periods

From time to time, other types of material nonpublic information regarding the Company (such as
offerings or exchanges of the Company’s securities, new significant contracts, significant litigation
developments, negotiation of mergers, acquisitions or dispositions, investigation and assessment of
cybersecurity incidents or new product developments) may be pending or under consideration and not be




publicly disclosed. While such material nonpublic information is pending or under consideration, the
Company may impose special blackout periods during which Covered Persons are prohibited from
trading in the Company’s securities. If the Company imposes a special blackout period, it will notify the
Covered Persons affected.

C. Exceptions

These trading restrictions do not apply to transactions under a pre-existing written plan, contract,
instruction, or arrangement pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act (a “Trading Plan™) that:

e has been reviewed and approved by the General Counsel or his/her delegate (or, if revised or
amended, such revisions or amendments have been reviewed and approved by the General
Counsel or his'her delegate);

e was entered into in good faith by the person at a time when the person was not in possession of
material nonpublic information about the Company (and for a Covered Person, outside of a
blackout period);

e includes a cooling-off period before trades can commence thereunder equal to at least (i) for
officers and directors, the later of (A) ninety (90) days after the adoption of such Trading Plan
and (B) two (2) business days after the disclosure of the Company’s financial results for the fiscal
quarter in which the Trading Plan was adopted or modified, and (ii) for all other employees, thirty
(30) days after the adoption of such Trading Plan (as applicable, a “Cooling-off Period™);

e for officers and directors, includes a representation certifying that, at the time of adoption or
modification of such Trading Plan, such officer or director (i) is not aware of any material
nonpublic information about the Company or its securities, and (ii) is adopting such Trading Plan
in good faith and not as part of a scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5-1 under the
Exchange Act; and

e gives a third party the discretionary authority to execute such purchases and sales, outside the
control of the Covered Person, so long as such third party does not possess any material
nonpublic information about the Company; or explicitly specifies the security or securities to be
purchased or sold, the number of shares, the prices and/or dates of transactions, or other objective
formula(s) describing such transactions.

Company policy requires Trading Plans to be written and to specify the amount of, date on, and price at
which the securities are to be traded, or to establish a formula for determining such items. Trading Plans
may not be adopted when the employee is in possession of material nonpublic information about the
Company or during any blackout period. An employee may amend or replace his or her Trading Plan only
during periods when trading is permitted in accordance with this Policy and any such amendment or
replacement has been reviewed and approved by the General Counsel or his/her delegate. Any
modification to a Trading Plan that changes the amount, price, or timing of trades, including a change to
the formula that affects these inputs, will trigger a new Cooling-off Period. During any consecutive 12-
month period, an employee may not establish more than one Trading Plan that is designed to effect the
trading of Company securities as a single transaction (i.e., a Trading Plan that has the practical effect of
requiring such a result). An employee can establish a second Trading Plan only if (1) trading under the
successor Trading Plan is not scheduled to begin until completion or expiration of the predecessor
Trading Plan (if the predecessor Trading Plan is terminated early, trading under the successor Trading
Plan cannot commence until the applicable Cooling-off Period has run from the date of termination of the
predecessor Trading Plan), or (ii) one of the Trading Plans authorizes sell-to-cover transactions to satisfy




tax withholding obligations incident to the vesting of certain equity awards, such as grants of restricted
stock and restricted stock units, and (A) the sell-to-cover arrangement authorizes the sale of only enough
securities necessary to satisfy the employee’s tax withholding obligations arising exclusively from the
vesting of a compensatory award, (B) the employee does not otherwise exercise control over the timing of
such sales, and (C) the sell-to-cover arrangement does not include sales incident to the exercise of stock
options.

D. Trading Windows

Covered Persons are permitted to trade in the Company”s securities when no blackout period is in effect.
Generally, this means that Covered Persons can trade during the period beginning on the third (3™)
trading day following the date the Company’s financial results are publicly disclosed and Form 10-K or
Form 10-Q is filed and ending on the close of the market on fifteenth (15™) day before the end of each
fiscal quarter. However, even during this trading window, a Covered Person who is in possession of any
material nonpublic information should not trade in the Company’s securities until the information has
been made publicly available or is no longer material. In addition, the Company may close a trading
window if a special blackout period under Part 11, Section 1(B) above is imposed and will re-open the
trading window once the special blackout period has ended.

2. Pre-Clearance of Securities Transactions

A. Mandatory Pre-Clearance

Because Covered Persons are likely to come into contact with material nonpublic information on a
continuing and frequent basis, all Covered Persons must pre-clear all securities transactions, even
during a trading window with the General Counsel or his/her delegate prior to executing the
transaction.

Subject to the exemption for purchases and sales under a Trading Plan, no Covered Person may, directly
or indirectly, purchase or sell (or otherwise make any transfer, gift, pledge or loan of) any Company
security at any time without first obtaining prior approval from the General Counsel or his/her delegate.
Pre-clearance requests should be submitted in writing or by electronic mail to the General Counsel or
his/her delegate. The General Counsel or his’'her delegate shall record the date each request is received
and the date and time each request is approved or disapproved. Unless revoked, a grant of permission will
normally remain valid until the close of trading two (2) business days following the day on which it was
granted. If the transaction does not occur during the two-day period, pre-clearance of the transaction must
be re-requested.

All Covered Persons should obtain pre-clearance for transacting (directly or indirectly) in the securities of
another company that has had at any time, or is expected to have, any significant relationship with
Centrus, even if the individual is not aware of any current relationship between Centrus.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, pre-clearance is not required for purchases and sales of securities under a
Trading Plan. With respect to any purchase or sale under a Trading Plan, the third party effecting
transactions on behalf of the Covered Person should be instructed to send duplicate confirmations of all
such transactions to the General Counsel or his/her delegate on the date the transaction occurs.
Pre-clearance will also assist the Company in facilitating the timely filing of the transaction reports
required by Company directors and officers designated by the Company as Section 16 officers under the
Exchange Act, which such filings are often due within two (2) business days of the applicable transaction.




B. All Other Employees.

All other employees of Centrus should evaluate their own circumstances at the time they are
contemplating a securities transaction to determine whether they have come into possession of material
nonpublic information (or nonpublic information that could become material with time). If an employee
believes he or she may be in possession of material nonpublic information, he or she should treat
that information as strictly confidential and contact the General Counsel or his/her delegate for
guidance and to pre-clear any contemplated securities transactions.

3. Section 16 and Other Securities Matters

Directors, officers, and holders of 10% or more of the Company’s securities may have obligations under
Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Such obligations generally include filing Forms 3, 4 and 5. Any Form 4
or Form 5 filed on or after April 3, 2023 will require completion of a checkbox to indicate whether the
reported transaction occurred under a Trading Plan and, if so, the Trading Plan’s adoption date. Bona fide
gifts of Company securities are subject to Section 16 reporting obligations.

Additionally, directors and such officers may be liable for “short-swing™ profits from purchases and sales
of the Company’s securities under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act. This section provides that any such
person who makes both a purchase and a sale or a sale and a purchase of the Company’s securities within
a period of six (6) months must, unless an available exemption applies, pay to the Company the excess of
the sale price over the purchase price even if no real profit was made. Section 16(b) continues to be
applicable to directors and officers for a six-month period after they cease to serve in that capacity. If a
person is, or was within the preceding six (6) months, a director or officer of the Company, he or she
should consult with the General Counsel or his’her delegate regarding the implications of Section 16(b)
prior to effecting any transaction in Company securities.

[f'a person holds securities that cannot be resold unless (a) registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act™), (b) sold pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, or (c) disposed of
pursuant to another exception from the registration requirements of the Securities Act (collectively,
“Restricted Securities™), such person should consult with the General Counsel or his/her delegate prior
to selling any Restricted Securities.

4. Prohibited Transactions

In addition to the prohibitions set forth above, all employees, officers and directors (and their family
members and designees) are prohibited from entering into short sales or purchasing financial instruments
(including prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, put or call options, collars, and exchange
funds) that are designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of Centrus securities. This
applies to all securities held, directly or indirectly, by the employee, officer or director, including
securities granted to the employee, officer or director by the Company as part of the compensation of the
employee, officer or director.

Covered Persons, are prohibited from engaging in the following transactions in the Company’s securities
unless advance approval is obtained from the General Counsel or his/her delegate:

e Short sales. Covered Persons may not sell the Company’s securities short;
e Derivative trading. Covered Persons may not buy or sell options, puts or calls or other derivative

securities on the Company’s securities (the exercise of stock options granted by the Company are
not prohibited but is subject to the Policy);




e Trading on margin or pledging. Covered Persons may not hold Company securities in a margin
account or pledge Company securities as collateral for a loan; and

e Hedging. Covered Persons may not enter into hedging or monetization transactions or similar
arrangements with respect to Company securities.

5. “Tipping” of Material nonpublic Information is Prohibited

In addition to trading while in possession of material nonpublic information, it is illegal and a violation of
the Company’s confidentiality policy (attached hereto as Appendix C) to convey such information to
another if you know or have reason to believe that the person will misuse such information by trading in
securities or passing such information to others. This applies regardless of whether the tippee is related to
you or is an entity, such as a trust or a corporation, and regardless of whether you receive any monetary
benefit from the tippee.

Trading on or conveying material nonpublic information may also breach contractual obligations assumed
by the Company. Apart from contractual remedies (such as damages and injunctions), severe, and
possibly irreparable, reputational damage to the Company can result from trading on, tipping or other
improper use of material nonpublic information.
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APPENDIX A
CERTAIN EMPLOYEES, INDEPENDENT CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS

None

Appendix A




APPENDIX B
REPORTING VIOLATIONS/SEEKING ADVICE

L. Reporting Violations

Contact the General Counsel or his/her delegate immediately if you become aware of any suspected
violations of the above policies or believe that you have provided material nonpublic information to
somebody who does not have a valid need to know it.

I1. Seeking Advice

Inform the General Counsel or his/her delegate immediately if you believe that:
e you or another person have received material nonpublic information that you or the other person
are not authorized to receive or that you or the other person do not legitimately need to know to
perform your respective employment responsibilities, or

e you receive information but are unsure if it is within the definition of material nonpublic
information or whether its release might be contrary to a fiduciary or other duty or obligation.

Do not share the information with anyone unless the General Counsel or his/her delegate advises
otherwise. Containment of the information, until the legal implications of possessing it are determined, is
critical.

The obligations described above are extremely important. The above policies should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s Fair Disclosure Policy and the Company’s other information protection
policies. Together, these policies set forth minimum standards for the use, dissemination and protection of
material nonpublic information. To the extent that any other internal policy of the Company, business
group, or office sets forth more stringent standards or requirements, such policy will control.

If you have any questions about the foregoing policies or procedures, or concerning your obligations in
this regard, please contact the General Counsel or his/her delegate.

Appendix B




APPENDIX C

CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY:

DO NOT DISCLOSE INFORMATION TO UNAUTHORIZED THIRD

PARTIES OR COMPANY EMPLOYEES

The Company’s confidentiality policy prohibits each director, officer and employee from disclosing to
any person nonpublic information relating to the Company or any of its operations. This policy applies
with equal force to nonpublic information relating to other companies that you may obtain in the course
of your employment with the Company. The one narrow exception to this rule is that you may disclose
such information to the Company’s representatives (including employees, counsel, accountants and
financial or technical advisors) who need to know such information for the purpose of assisting the
Company with the particular project to which such information relates and who are subject to a
confidentiality obligation in favor of the Company.

I. General Policy

As a general rule, you should presume that any information you receive about the Company or its
customers is nonpublic information and, therefore, should be protected from disclosure. You have an
obligation to safeguard nonpublic information, whether generated internally or acquired from other
sources, and to use it only in the performance of your employment responsibilities. In particular:

e You may not personally profit from nonpublic information of the Company and its customers.
You may not use nonpublic information to trade securities for your own (or related) accounts or
to advise relatives, friends or other persons with respect to trading securities. For additional
guidance on this issue, please refer to the Company’s Securities Trading and Confidentiality
Policies and Procedures, above.

e During and after your employment with the Company, you may not disclose nonpublic
information to anyone outside the Company. You may not use (or permit anyone else to use) such
information, except as required by your employment responsibilities at the Company.

e Upon termination of your employment, you must return to the Company all physical (including
electronic) copies of confidential information as well as all other embodied in any physical or
electronic form that is based on or derived from such information, without retaining any copies.

e You may not bring to the Company nonpublic information of any former employer or use such
information to aid the business of the Company without the prior written consent of your former

employer.

® You may not seek to obtain nonpublic information that may be in the possession of other persons
or business units of the Company that you do not need to know to do your job.

e You may not share nonpublic information with other employees except on a strict “need to know™
basis.

I1. Basic Practices to Protect Confidentiality
Nonpublic information may be communicated only to those persons who need to know it for a legitimate
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business purpose. Nonpublic information may be communicated to other employees of the Company or to
the Company’s outside lawyers and other consultants only if:

e The recipient has a legitimate need for and is authorized to receive the information in connection
with his or her employment responsibilities; and

e Noidentifiable harm can reasonably be expected to result from communication of the information
to the recipient.

Nonpublic information should not be communicated if it would give rise to a conflict between the
interests of the recipient and those of the Company or its clients, or if it is reasonably foreseeable that the
recipient would misuse the information. Nonpublic information concerning a transaction may be shared
with other participants in the transaction only to the extent necessary to effectuate the transaction and only
insofar as is consistent with your obligation to serve the client’s interests.

The following practices should be followed to help prevent the misuse of nonpublic information:

e Do not participate in Internet or social media discussions about the Company’s prospects or the
prospects of the Company’s stock while in possession of nonpublic information.

e Avoid discussing or even speculating about nonpublic information in places where you may be
overheard by people who do not have a valid need to know such information.

e Take great care when discussing nonpublic information on cellular phones and on speaker
phones. Do not discuss nonpublic information with relatives or social acquaintances.

e Always put confidential documents away when not in use and, based upon the sensitivity of the
information, keep such documents in a locked desk or office. Do not leave documents containing
nonpublic information where they may be seen by persons who do not have a need to know the
content of the documents.

e  Avoid unnecessary copying of documents containing nonpublic information.

e Do not use recycling bins to dispose of documents containing nonpublic information. If possible,
use shredders prior to disposal.

e Never distribute internal-use-only documents outside the Company.

e When necessary, use codewords to conceal the identities of clients of the Company or
information regarding clients” proposed business or transactions.

e Do not give your computer IDs and passwords to any other person,

e Be aware that the Internet and other external electronic mail carriers are not secure environments
for the transmission of confidential information.

e [fyou notice unfamiliar or unauthorized people in your department or on your floor, do not
hesitate to notify Security.

e Comply with the specific terms of any confidentiality agreements of which you are aware.
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When you join or leave the Company or transfer from one part of the Company to another, take
precautions to protect against disclosure or misuse of confidential information that you may
possess.

Refer requests for information on the Company from the financial community, such as securities
analysts, brokers or investors, to the Company’s Investor Relations department.

Refer requests for information on the Company from the media or press to the Company’s
Corporate Communications department.

Refer requests for information from the SEC or other regulators to the Company’s General
Counsel or his/her delegate.
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EXHIBIT 21

JSIDIARIES OF CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.

Name of Subsidiary State of Incorporation
United States Enrichment Corporation Delaware

American Centrifuge Operating LLC Delaware



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-272984 on Form
S-3 and Registration Statement No. 333-257628 on Form 5-8 of our reports dated February 9,
2024, relating to the financial statements of Centrus Energy Corp. and its subsidiaries (the
Company) and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Mclean, Virginia
February 9, 2024







CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-272084) of

Centrus Energy Corp. of our report dated February 22, 2023 relating to the financial statements, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
February 9, 2024







EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Amir V. Vexler, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Centrus Energy Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's

fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

February 9, 2024 /sl Amir V. Vexler

Amir V. Vexler

President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Kevin J. Harrill, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Centrus Energy Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's

fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

February 9, 2024 /sl Kevin J. Harrill

Kevin J. Harrill
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CEO AND CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of Centrus Energy Corp. for the period ended December 31, 2023, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report”), pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, Amir V. Vexler, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Kevin J. Harrill, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and
Treasurer, each hereby certifies, that, to his knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Centrus Energy Corp.

February 9, 2024 /sl Amir V. Vexler

Amir V. Vexler

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2024 /sl Kevin J. Harrill

Kevin J. Harrill

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer



CENTRUS ENERGY CORP.
CLAWBACK POLICY
(Effective August 3, 2023)

Introduction

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Centrus Energy Corp. (the ‘Company”) believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders to create and maintain a culture that emphasizes integrity and accountability and that reinforces the Company’s pay-for-performance compensation
philosophy. The Board has therefore adopted this policy (the “Policy”) to provide for the recoupment of certain executive compensation in the event of an
accounting restatement resulting from material noncompliance with financial reporting requirements under the federal securities laws. This Policy is designed to
comply with Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the listing standards of NYSE American LLC (‘"NYSE”)
or any other national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed.

Administration

This Policy shall be administered by the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board (the “Committee”). Any determinations
made by the Committee shall be final and binding on all affected individuals.

Covered Executives

This Policy applies to the Company’s current and former executive “officers,” as such term is defined in Section 811 of NYSE’'s Company Manual or any
other national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed and as determined by the Committee in accordance with Section 10D of the
Exchange Act, Rule 10D-1 thereunder (i.e., the Company’s Section 16 officers) (each, a “Covered Executive” and collectively, “Covered Executives”).

Recoupment; Accounting Restatement

In the event the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement of its financial statements due to the Company’s material noncompliance with
any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, the Committee will require prompt reimbursement or forfeiture of any excess Incentive-Based
Compensation (as defined below) received by any Covered Executive on or after October 2, 2023 during the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding
the date on which the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement, in addition to any transition period (that results from any change in the
Company’s fiscal year) within or immediately following such three completed fiscal years (the “Recoupment Amount”). The Recoupment Amount shall be
computed without regard to any taxes paid by the Covered Executive with respect to such Incentive-Based Compensation. Incentive-Based Compensation is
deemed received in the Company’s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure (as defined below) specified in the Incentive-Based
Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of the Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end of that period.

Incentive-Based Compensation

For purposes of this Policy, “Incentive-Based Compensation” means any of the following; provided that, such compensation is granted, earned or
vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a “Financial Reporting Measure”:

Annual bonuses and other short- and long-term cash incentives;
Restricted stock;

Restricted stock units;

Performance awards;

Performance shares;

Performance share units;



Phantom stock;

Notional stock units (to the extent performance based);

Stock options (including incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to the extent performance based); and
Stock appreciation rights.

For the avoidance of doubt, Incentive-Based Compensation does not include awards that are granted, earned and vested without regard to attainment of
Financial Reporting Measures, such as time-vesting awards, discretionary awards and awards based wholly on subjective standards, strategic measures or
operational measures.

A “Financial Reporting Measure” is a measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’s
financial statements, including any measure that is derived wholly or in part from such measure, including, but not limited to:

Company stock price;

Earnings measures such as earnings per share;

Total shareholder return (‘TSR”) and relative TSR;

Revenues;

Net income;

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (‘EBITDA”")
EBITDA;

Funds from operations;

Liquidity measures such as working capital;

Return measures such as return on invested capital or return on assets; and
Such other financial performance criteria as defined and set forth in the Centrus Energy Corp. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, restated,
modified or supplemented from time to time.

Excess Incentive-Based Compensation: Amount Subject to Recovery

The amount to be recovered under this Policy will be the excess of the Incentive-Based Compensation paid to the Covered Executive based on the
erroneous data over the Incentive-Based Compensation that would have been paid to the Covered Executive had it been based on the restated results, as
determined by the Committee.

If the Committee cannot determine the amount of excess Incentive-Based Compensation received by the Covered Executive directly from the information
in the accounting restatement, then it will make its determination based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the accounting restatement.

Method of Recoupment

The Committee will determine, in its sole discretion, the method for recouping Incentive-Based Compensation hereunder which may include, without
limitation:

(a) requiring reimbursement of cash Incentive-Based Compensation previously paid;

(b) seeking recovery of any gain realized on the vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer or other disposition of any equity-based awards;
(c) offsetting the recouped amount from any compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Covered Executive;

(d) cancelling outstanding vested or unvested equity awards; and/or

(e) taking any other remedial and recovery action permitted by law, as determined by the Committee.



No Indemnification

The Company shall not indemnify any Covered Executive against the loss of any incorrectly awarded Incentive-Based Compensation.

Interpretation

The Committee is authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate, or advisable for the
administration of this Policy. It is intended that this Policy be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with the requirements of Section 10D of the Exchange Act
and any applicable rules or standards adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, NYSE or any other national securities exchange on which the
Company’s securities are listed (collectively, the “Applicable Rules”).

Effective Date

This Policy shall be effective as of the date first set forth above (the ‘Effective Date”) and shall apply to any Incentive-Based Compensation that is
approved, awarded or granted to Covered Executives, whether prior to, on or after the Effective Date, subject in all respects to the terms and conditions of this
Policy including with respect to recoupment.

Amendment; Termination; Applicable Rules

The Committee may amend or terminate this Policy from time to time in its discretion. This Policy shall be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with
any Applicable Rule and shall otherwise be interpreted (including in the determination of amounts recoverable) in the business judgment of the Committee. To
the extent the Applicable Rules require recovery of Incentive-Based Compensation in additional circumstances beyond those specified in this Policy, nothing in
this Policy shall be deemed to limit or restrict the right or obligation of the Company to recover Incentive-Based Compensation to the fullest extent required by
the Applicable Rules. This Policy shall be deemed to be automatically amended, as of the date the Applicable Rules become effective with respect to the
Company, to the extent required for this Policy to comply with the Applicable Rules.

Other Recoupment Rights

The Committee intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the law. The Committee may require that any employment agreement, equity
award agreement, restricted stock award agreement, stock option award agreement, phantom award agreement, performance award agreement, notional stock
unit award agreement or other similar agreement entered into on or after the Effective Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, require a
Covered Executive to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies
or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, equity incentive plan,
equity award agreement, restricted stock award agreement, stock option award agreement or other similar agreement and any other legal remedies available to
the Company.

Impracticability

The Committee shall recover any excess Incentive-Based Compensation in accordance with this Policy unless such recovery would be impracticable, as
determined by the Committee in accordance with the Applicable Rules.

Successors

This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Executives and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or other legal
representatives.



